

# SpeechMiner 8-0 User Manual

## copyright © UTOPY Inc.. All rights reserved. [www.utopy.com]

The information contained in this document is subject to change without notice. This document contains proprietary information which is protected by copyright. All rights are reserved. No part of this document may be photocopied, reproduced, or translated to another language without the prior written consent of UTOPY Inc..

# Table of Contents

Chapter 1: Welcome	1
Chapter 2: Getting Started	
Logging into SpeechMiner	
Overview of the Main Window	
About Calls and Interactions	
Chapter 3: Workflows	
Chapter 4: Views	
Managing Views	
Managing Widgets	
Gauge Widget	
Report Widget	
My Messages Widget	
My Queues Widget	
Recently QAed Widget	
Chapter 5: Action Items	
• Managing Action Items	
Creating a New Action Item	
Chapter 6: Search	
Using an Interaction Grid	
Searching for Interactions	
Defining Search Criteria	
Using Text Mode	
Performing a Search	
Using an Event Grid	
Performing a Quick Search for Terms	
Saved Searches	
Browsing Interactions	
Chapter 7: Using the Media Player	65
Event Icons	
Playing Back a Call	
Viewing Call Content	
Call Comments	
Call Attributes	
Filling in Forms	
	80

Detaching the Player	
More Actions Options	
Chapter 8: Explore	
Overview of the Explore Page	
Setting the Filters	
Identifying Term Trends	
Finding Common Terms	
Using a Trend Graph	
Finding Related Words	
Chapter 9: Quality Monitoring	
Queues	
Creating a New Queue	
Managing Queues	
Forms Manager	
Creating a New Form	
Managing Forms	
Chapter 10: Coaching	
Working with the Coaching Session List	
Taking Part in a Session	
Creating a New Coaching Session	
Coaching Session Reports	
Managing Session Types	
Chapter 11: Reports	
Selecting a Template for a Report	
Creating a Custom Report	
Managing Saved Reports	
MRS Library	
Chapter 12: Tools	
User Management	
Editing Your User Profile	
Managing Users	
Managing Groups	
Managing Roles	
System Administration	
Managing Preset Views	
Monitoring the System	
Managing the Call Queue	
Purging the System	
Managing the Cache	
Reprocessing Interactions and Managing Audits	
	165

System Configuration	
Viewing System Information	
Managing Security Settings	
Managing Alerts	
System Alerts	
Elements Explorer	
Topic Statistics	
Program Statistics	
Category Statistics	
Chapter 13: Permalinks	
Chapter 14: Appendix A: Standard Reports	
Template Layout	
Common Parameters	
Templates	
Agent Bubble Chart	
Agent Comparison	
Agent Trend	
Audit Analysis	
Call List	
Capacity Trend	
Category Bubble Chart	
Category Distribution	
Category Trend	
Coaching Summary	
First Topic Distribution	
Metadata Frequency	
MINI_System Load	
Monitor System	
Performance Profile	
Predictive Elements	
Program Distribution	
QM Agent Summary	
System Load	
Team Comparison	
Top and Bottom Performers	
Topic Analysis - Audits	
Topic Analysis - Trends	
Topic Call List	
Usage Tracking	
User Management	
Chapter 15: PDF Index	

Welcome to the SpeechMiner online help system.





**Getting Started** 

Action Items

Action Items

Workflows



Using the Media Player



Explore



Search



Coaching



Tools





Appendix A: Standard Reports

© 2012 UTOPY Inc.



- utopy.com
- Support site
- support@utopy.com

or contact our support team: Email: <u>support@utopy.com</u> Home > Getting Started

# Getting Started

SpeechMiner®, UTOPY's award-winning Speech Analytics platform, leverages recorded customer interactions (from any recording system) and analyzes each call for critical business topics and events. With unmatched accuracy, the system "listens" to conversations between customers and contact-center agents, precisely identifies the topics that were discussed, and categorizes what took place within each interaction.

SpeechMiner is made up of two software components:

- SpeechMiner browser-based interface, which offers a variety of ways to access the results of the call analyses performed by the system. Users can employ this interface to find calls that have specific characteristics or that deal with particular topics, to identify and listen to the parts of calls that interest them, to audit and fine-tune SpeechMiner's call processing, and to keep track of a range of system-metrics.
- SpeechMiner Administration Tool (SMART), which enables users to configure the Speech Analytics system to search calls for specific topics and other characteristics.

This manual explains how users can use the SpeechMiner browser-based interface. This first section explains how to log into SpeechMiner and gives an overview of the interface. Upcoming sections provide details about working with the interface. Information about using the SMART SpeechMiner component is available in the SMART User Manual.

### See also

Logging into SpeechMiner Overview of the Main Window About Calls and Interactions

Home > Getting Started > Logging into SpeechMiner

# Logging into SpeechMiner

In order to work with SpeechMiner, you must log into the system with a username and password that is defined for you by your SpeechMiner system administrator.

When you log in, SpeechMiner automatically checks the roles and groups that are assigned to your account. The roles tell the system what SpeechMiner functions and features you can access. Only those items you have permissions to view are displayed in the interface when you are logged in. The groups tell the system which call data is relevant to you. The Interaction Lists, call searches, and reports you access in SpeechMiner will only include data from this body of calls. For additional information about roles and groups, see <u>User Management</u>.

#### To log into SpeechMiner

1. In an Internet Explorer browser window, navigate to the SpeechMiner address. The SpeechMiner Login page appears.

**Note:** The SpeechMiner address should be given to you by your system administrator. Alternatively, when your account was created, you may have received an automated e-mail notification with this information.

5133		
		UTOPY
	1000101011100	Contraction -
	SpeechMiner®	
9)	Version 8.0	
	Session expired. Please re-login. Authentication	
	• SpeechMiner • Windows	
	Login I	
	Password	
	Login	
This product is lic	ensed to: Client name	
	2, UTOPY, Inc. All rights reserved, UTOPY, the UTOPY lo o are trademarks or registered trademarks of UTOPY, Inc.	

#### SpeechMiner Login Page

2. Select **SpeechMiner** if your username and password are managed by SpeechMiner. Select **Windows** if you log into SpeechMiner using the same username and password you use to log into Windows. The fields required for the selected option are displayed.

Note: If you are not sure which option to choose, contact your system administrator.

- 3. In the Login and Password fields, type your username and password.
- 4. If you selected Windows in step 2, in the Domain field, select your Windows domain.
- 5. Click Login. You are logged into the system, and your homepage is displayed. (If no homepage has been set in your profile settings, your <u>Views</u> page is opened.)

Note: The first time you log in, the End User License agreement appears before you are logged in. Read the agreement. Then, select I accept and click **OK**. Your homepage is displayed.

## See also

Overview of the Main Window About Calls and Interactions

Home > Getting Started > Overview of the Main Window

# Overview of the Main Window

The SpeechMiner interface is divided into pages from which you can access all of the system's functions. The following pages are included in the interface:

Page	Description
Views	The home page of the interface, this page can contain a number of <u>Views</u> , each of which can contain a selection of small applications that help you keep tabs on information that is of importance to you.

<u>Search</u>	Searching for calls and other interactions by their characteristics, listening to calls in SpeechMiner's multi-featured, proprietary Media Player; viewing the content of calls and other interactions
Explore	Identifying unexpected trends and problems by viewing automated analyses of the terms that were found in call transcripts and records of other interactions.
Reports	Managing reports by selecting filter criteria, generating reports, and handling the results.
<u>Quality</u>	Management of call monitoring. This system enables call monitors and supervisors to check selections of calls that meet specified criteria and fill in forms rating the calls and drawing attention to issues that arise in them.
Coaching	Management of coaching sessions. Coaching sessions provide managers with extensive tools for helping agents and other personnel to improve their performance. Each session directs the trainee to listen to particular recorded calls and can include notes on how lessons from these calls can be implemented by the agents in their work.
Tools	Access to system administration tools, including user management, Preset-View management, and system administration
Help	A dropdown menu that provides access to this guide, information about the current version of SpeechMiner, and a form for sending feedback about SpeechMiner to UTOPY

## To open a page:

• Place your mouse pointer over the name of the page in the Main Menu. If a dropdown menu opens, select one of the options in the menu. If no dropdown menu opens, click the name of the page.

# Elements of the Interface

Each page of the interface contains some or all of the following elements:



Key to illustration:

Element	Number in Illustration	Description
Main Menu	1	A menu bar for navigating from page to page in the interface. Most of the menu options have dropdown submenus that provide quick access to the tabs of the page or to other functions. Place the mouse pointer on the menu item to view the dropdown menu.
		Most of the submenus have a default option. This option appears in the submenu in <b>bold</b> type. For these menu options, if you click the name of the menu option, the default option from the submenu is automatically selected. For example, in the <b>Views</b> menu option, the default option is the first View in the

		submenu. The name of this View appears in bold type in the submenu; clicking Views in the main menu opens this View.
Tabs	2	In many of the pages, the functionality is divided into tabs. The tabs appear below the Main Menu. Click a tab to display it.
Page contents	3	Below the Main Menu and tabs are the contents of the page. For example, in a <u>Views</u> page, the widgets of the current View are displayed, and in a <u>Search</u> page, in the <b>New Search</b> tab, a search form is displayed on the left, and, once a search has been performed, an <u>Interaction Grid</u> with the results appears on the right.
Action Items	4	A link that opens the current user's Action Items box, which is used to manage job assignments
Search box	5	Enter one or more terms in the box to perform a <u>quick search</u> for calls in which the terms were found.
User name	6	The user name of the user who is currently logged in
Logout	7	Click to log out of SpeechMiner
Date and time	8	The date and time at which the current page was loaded.

### See also

Logging into SpeechMiner About Calls and Interactions

Home > Getting Started > About Calls and Interactions

# About Calls and Interactions

The basic SpeechMiner package works with audio calls that are recorded by external recording systems and then imported into the SpeechMiner database for further processing, such as transcription, identification of Topics, and association with Categories. An optional add-on enables SpeechMiner to also process various forms of written texts, such as e-mails, chats, and Facebook conversations. When this add-on is activated, SpeechMiner can include calls and other data in its processing. The general term used in SpeechMiner for data that includes both calls and other written sources is interactions.

If your system only includes the call-processing features, some of the menu items and labels in your SpeechMiner interface differ from those that appear in this manual, because they say call or calls instead of interaction or interactions. In addition, certain options are not included in the interface. For example, since only call data is available for searches, you will not see the options that allow you to select the types of interactions to include in a search (see <u>Defining Search Criteria</u>).

If your system includes both call-processing and text processing, the menu items, options, and labels in your SpeechMiner interface should match those that appear in this manual. In filters, you can choose the types of interactions to include. For example, you could choose to perform a search for specific terms in calls and e-mails, but not in chats or social media. In a list of search results, individual items like calls or e-mails, are labeled using icons that identify their source-types. For example, like indicates a call, an e-mail, and an e-mail, and an e-mail, and an excerpt from Facebook.

SpeechMiner's text-analysis system uses an external application called Attensity to perform some of the processing. Attensity handles two different bodies of texts:

- Texts your company imports into the SpeechMiner database, such as e-mails and chats that took place within your system
- Social-network interactions, such as Facebook conversations and Twitter tweets. Attensity automatically scans a large number of social-networks searching for terms and subjects you have identified as significant.

See also

Logging into SpeechMiner Overview of the Main Window Home > Workflows

# Workflows

## See also

Welcome Getting Started Views Action Items Search Using the Media Player Explore Quality Monitoring Coaching Reports Tools Permalinks Appendix A: Standard Reports Home > Views

# Views

Your **Views** page is your customizable home page in SpeechMiner. The **Views** page can contain one or more Views. Each View contains small applications called widgets that display information or other content of interest to you. For example, a View could include a number of <u>Report</u> widgets to give you a snapshot of metrics and key performance indicators, a <u>My Messages</u> widget to display system messages, and a <u>My Queues</u> widget that enables you to easily access and play calls that require auditing.

liews	Search	Explore	Reports	Quality	Coaching	Tools	Help		on Items (2)  Ac 06/12/1	2 01:46 /	
- 8 Gene	al System I	Aetri	8 Agents	8 Usage	4				Add Wildgets	Change	e Settings
OC Call D	uration - Financia	1		Edit 🖂 🔀	C My Me	ssages					Edit 🖂
	D.111	· · · ·	0.00		100					N	lew
	DUDDI	Size = Averag	ge Call Duration		Received		From	Subject	Type	Action	
			dale		6/12/2012		miones	Call review, your attention needed		Delet	
E	3%				6/12/2012		ismith	Call review, your attention needed		Delet	
5	3.76		tami jackson	shane	6/12/2012	1:42:59 AM	jsmith	Notes: Help with system testing	Note	Delet	e
				tiffani	6/12/2012	1:36:59 AM	Libby	Notes: System Maintenance	Note	Delet	0
Financial 6	3%	nic	ck jason	jake	12						
ue .			dylan	-							
iĒ 2	1%		eithan	adam							
			tod	bob							
	sally don		shila Charles	florence							_
	Jane		jermy	<u>(</u>	C My Qu	eues Widg	et				Edit
-16	-22% 1%	24%		9% 92%							
	-2276 176			976 9276	Queue v			Quota	Reviewed/Total	Action	15
		(Multiple	e Selected)		Financial			Calls per Month	0'5	Next	List
					Short Calls		2	0 Calls per Month	0/20	Next	List
4					1						
					1						
*Financial Cal	- Mini (administrator)										

#### **Views Page**

Key to Illustration:

Number	Description
1	View tabs
2	Widget

Two types of Views can be included in your Views page:

- 1. Preset Views: Views that were created by a manager or system administrator and published to your account.
- 2. Personal Views: Views that you created manually in your Views page. Personal Views are identified by an 불 icon in its tab.

**Note:** Depending on your permissions, you may or may not be able to add personal views and remove or modify any of the Views in your **Views** page. If you do not have permission to perform an action described in this section, the buttons or controls required for that action will not appear in your interface. In addition, you can choose a different page as your homepage. If you do so, the page you select will open when you first log into SpeechMiner. For additional information, see <u>Editing Your User Profile</u>.

#### To open a View:

• In the Main Menu, under Views, select the View. The Views page opens with the View displayed in a tab.

### To switch to a different View:

• Click the desired tab, or select the View from the Main Menu, as described above.

To open the last View you had open in your Views page:

• In the Main Menu, select Views.

## See also

Managing Views Managing Widgets

Managing Preset Views

Home > Views > Managing Views

# Managing Views

This section explains how you can create new personal Views, modify the name and widget layout of an existing View, change the order of the tabs in the Views page, and delete existing Views.

Note: Depending on your permissions, you may or may not be able to perform all of the actions described in this section.

## Adding a New View

You can add as many new views to your Views page as you wish. Each view can contain a different selection of widgets. For example, if you are a manager of two workgroups, you may choose to create two different Views, to help keep track of each workgroup separately.

### To create a new View:

- 1. In the Views page, click the plus sign (1) at the end of the tabs. A new blank View opens, and its tab is labeled New Page.
- 2. Modify the properties of the View; see Renaming a View and Changing the Column Layout of a View below.
- 3. Select widgets to add to the View; see Managing Widgets.

## **Renaming a View**

You can change the name of an existing View.

## To change the name of a View:

- 1. On the right side of the screen, click Change Settings. The setting options appear on the screen.
- 2. Under Change View Title, in the Title field, modify the name of the View.
- 3. Click Save. The name is applied to the View, and the setting options are closed.

### Changing the Column Layout of a View

You can change the column layout of an existing View. The widgets in the View are arranged to fit into the column layout you select. The width of each widget is determined by the width of the column in which it appears. Within a given column layout, you can manually change the width of each column to suit the widgets that appear in them.

Note: You can move widgets within a View, or change their heights, to suit the column layout you choose. See Managing Widgets.

#### To change the column layout of a View:

- 1. On the right side of the screen, click Change Settings. The setting options appear on the screen.
- 2. Under Change Columns, click the desired layout, as follows:

Icon Description

Three columns of equal widths
Two columns, with the larger on the left
Two columns with the larger on the right
One column

The layout is applied to the View, and the setting options are closed.

## To change the width of a column:

• Drag the border line at the top of the column to the left or right.

s General	Search System M	Explore	Reports	Quality		ching Tools	Help		on Items (2)  Adr 06/12/12 Add Widgets	01:46 AM +03: Change Settings
	ation - Financia	1		Edit		C My Messages				Edit
	Bubblo	Size = Averag	e Call Duration							New
	Dubble	Oize - Averag	e can buration			Received .	From	Subject	Type	Action
			dale			6/12/2012 1:45:48 AM	mjones	Call review, your attention needed	Cal	Delete
58%						6/12/2012 1:44:42 AM	jsmith	Call review, your attention needed	Call	Delete
50 %			tami jackson 👝	shane		6/12/2012 1:42:59 AM	jsmth	Notes: Help with system testing	Note	Delete
			k jason	tiffani		6/12/2012 1:36:59 AM	Libby	Notes: System Maintenance	Note	Delete
39% 21%			eve dylan eithan	jake adam		12				
2%	sally		shila tod charles	florence						
	jane		jermy	libicitee		C My Queues Widg	et			Edit (=
-16%	2% 1%	24%		9% 92	%					_
			Selected)			Queue 🔻		Quota	Reviewed\Total	Actions
		funtible	Selected)			Financial		Calls per Month	0\5	Next List
						Short Calls	1	20 Calls per Month	0\20	Next List
cial Calls -	fini (ødministrator)									

# Changing the Order of the View Tabs

You can move the View tabs to change their order.

### To move a View tab:

1. When the View is open, place you mouse pointer on the orange stripe across the top of the tab. The mouse pointer changes to

		_
/iews	Coaching	
iews		
iews		
<b>.</b>		
ABC Group	🙎 System M	et

2. Drag the tab. The location in which it will be placed when you release the mouse button is outlined.

SpeechMin	ier®
Views	Coaching
Views	
	AB Group

3. When the outline appears in the desired location, release the mouse button. The tab is moved to that location.

## **Deleting a View**

You can delete existing Views from the Views page.

## To delete a view:

- 1. On the right side of the screen, click Change Settings. The setting options appear on the screen.
- 2. Under Delete View, click Yes. You are prompted to confirm that you want to delete the View.
- 3. Click Yes. The View is deleted, and the setting options are closed.

# See also

Managing Preset Views Views Managing Widgets

Home > Views > Managing Widgets

# Managing Widgets

Widgets are small applications that can be included in a View in the **Views** page. Each widget is displayed in the page as a small rectangle. Depending on your user permissions, you may be able to add widgets to a View, move widgets from one location to another within a View, modify the settings of widgets, minimize widgets, and remove widgets from a View.

Various types of widgets can be included in a View: <u>Gauge</u>, <u>Report</u>, <u>My Messages</u>, <u>My Queues</u>, and <u>Recently QAed</u>. The Gauge and Report widgets can be configured to display information about a variety of topics, so you may find it useful to include more than one of them in a single View, or to create multiple Views in which these widgets display different data.

## Adding a Widget

You can add any number of widgets to a View.

#### To add a widget to a view:

1. When you have the View open, click Add Widgets. The available widgets are displayed.

ews							06/10/12	09:57 PM +03:00 U
Q General 5								
	stem Metri	Agents	📙 Usage	4			Hide Widgets	Change Settings
Click on any of the Home	4							
Click on any of the items								
O Gauge	My Messages		eport (Drill down)		My Queue:	: vvidget	Recently QAed	

- 2. Click the widget you want to add to the View. The widget is added to the view.
- 3. Drag the widget to the desired location on the screen.

# Editing a Widget

You can change the name, height, and refresh rate of all widgets. Some widgets have additional settings that you can change.

# To change the name of a widget:

- 1. Click the title of the widget. The title becomes an editable text field.
- 2. Modify the title as required.
- 3. Click **OK**. The title is updated.

# To change the height and other settings of a widget:

- 1. In the upper-right corner of the widget, click Edit. The widget's configurable settings are displayed.
- 2. Change the settings as required. For detailed information about the settings of each type of widget, see the description of the widget, as follows:
  - Gauge Widget Report Widget My Messages Widget My Queues Widget Recently QAed Widget
- 3. Click **Save** to save your changes.
- 4. In the upper-right corner of the widget, click Close. The setting options are hidden.

# Moving a Widget

You can move a widget from location to location within a View.

# To move a widget:

• Drag the widget to its desired location.

# Minimizing a Widget

If you do not want to see the contents of a widget temporarily, you can minimize the widget.

## To minimize a widget:

• In the upper-right corner of the widget, click the minus sign (). The title bar of the widget is displayed, but its content is hidden.

# To maximize a widget:

• In the upper-right corner of the widget, click the plus sign (H). The content of the widget is displayed below its title bar.

# **Refreshing a Widget**

The contents of widgets are refreshed automatically at specified intervals, but you can also refresh them manually.

# To refresh a widget:

Click C.

# **Deleting a Widget**

You can remove a widget from a View.

# To remove a widget from a View:

- 1. In the upper-right corner of the widget, click the x (X). You are prompted to confirm that you want to remove the widget from the View.
- 2. Click  $\boldsymbol{Yes}.$  The widget is removed from the View.

# See also

Gauge Widget Report Widget My Messages Widget My Queues Widget Recently QAed Widget

#### Managing Views

Home > Views > Managing Widgets > Gauge Widget

# Gauge Widget

The Gauge widget provides a graphic representation of the current quantity of a selected type of data. For example, a Gauge widget can show the average handling time for calls received by the workgroup, or the number of calls waiting for your handling. You can choose from a selection of customizable SQL stored procedures that retrieve the data of your choice for display in a Gauge widget.



Gauge Widget

# Configuring the Widget

You can configure the settings of a Gauge widget.

### To configure a Gauge widget:

1. In the upper-right corner of the widget, click Edit. The widget's configurable settings are displayed.

Setting	Description	
Height	The height of the widget, in pixels	
Color Direction	<ul> <li>Select one of the following:</li> <li>Green to Red: The gauge will display green for the lower values, yellow for the middle values, and red for the highest values.</li> <li>Red to Green: The gauge will display red for the lower values, yellow for the middle values, and green for the highest values.</li> </ul>	
Min	The minimum value to display	
Max	The maximum value to display	
Bound1	The value at the boundary between the first color and the yellow area	
Bound2	The value at the boundary between the yellow area and the last color	
SQL Stored Procedure	The name of the SQL procedure that will retrieve data for presentation in the gauge. <b>Note:</b> For information about the procedures that are available, contact your system administrator.	

Refresh Rate	How often the data represented in the gauge should be refreshed, in minutes
Edit Filter	Select the data to include in the sample used for calculations: Click the <b>Edit Filter</b> icon (). The <u>Filter Panel</u> opens in a new window. Select the required filter settings, and then, at the bottom of the window, click <b>Save</b> . For additional information about working with the Filter Panel, see <u>Defining Search Criteria</u> .

- 2. Click Save. The settings are implemented.
- 3. Click **Close**. The settings are hidden.

## See also

Report Widget My Messages Widget My Queues Widget Recently QAed Widget

Home > Views > Managing Widgets > Report Widget

# Report Widget

The Report widget can be used to display any of the existing reports saved in the system. Many report templates are available in Mini versions that are specially formatted for the Views page because they require less space on your screen, but you can select reports of any size.



**Report Widget** 

## **Drilling Down in a Report**

Clicking on certain locations in the Report widget will drill down to other reports or to Interaction Lists, as appropriate for the item that was clicked. For example, clicking on a bar in the report above will open a list of calls specific to the agent whose name was clicked. Interaction Lists are opened in a separate window, but other drill-down reports are usually opened in the same widget. For information about available reports and the expected drill-down results, see Templates.

A Back (S) button appears in the left corner of the Report widget's title bar. If you have drilled down from a report to another

report, you can use the back button to return to the original report.

## To close a drill-down report and return to the report results:

• Click Back (C).

## **Configuring a Report Widget**

You can specify the height of a Report widget, how often it is updated, and what report is should contain.

#### To configure a Report widget:

- 1. In the upper-right corner of the widget, click Edit. The widget's configurable settings are displayed.
- 2. Fill in the fields as follows:

Setting	Description
Height	The height of the widget, in pixels
Refresh Rate	How often the data in the report should be refreshed, in minutes
Select	Select the report you want to display in the widget. The list contains all saved reports for which you have permissions. Reports that are saved in your account are marked with an asterisk (*). The name of the user who saved the report appears in parentheses after the name of the report.

Note: If a report has already been selected, additional configuration fields may appear.

- 3. In the widget's settings, click **Save**. The settings are implemented, and the name of the saved report is displayed at the bottom-left of the widget.
- 4. In the upper-right corner of the widget, click Close. The setting options are hidden.

## Changing the Settings of the Report

Once you have selected a saved report for display in a widget, you can modify the report's settings as necessary.

#### To change the settings of the report:

- 1. In the upper-right corner of the widget, click Edit. The widget's configurable settings are displayed.
- 2. Click the **Edit Report** icon (2). The report template opens in a new window.

emplate: Agent Bubble Chart Calls Filter: Calls	Report Title	Description		
Calls		Description		
		e coordenen	Version	
	Agent Bubble Chart	Medium Length Calls per Aç	Mini 💌	
🗖 Emails	Items on Report			
Chats	Agents	X-Axis Categories	Y-Axis Categories	
Texts	Any 🔳	2 Selected 🗸	1 Selected 🗸	
🗖 Social				
Date Range		<u>6</u> 8	××	
01/01/70 - 06/12/12 💌	Save cha	nges	Cancel	
From: 01/01/70 02:00 AM				
To: 06/12/12 01:44 PM				
Expand All / Collapse All				
SpeechMiner				
Interaction Properties				
🗄 Metadata				
User Actions				

#### **Report Template**

- 3. Modify the settings as necessary.
- 4. Click **Save Changes**. The dialog box closes. The report is generated with the new settings, and the results are displayed in the widget.

**Note:** If the saved report you modified was not in your account, you are prompted to provide a new name for the saved report. The modified settings are saved under the new name you specified, in your account. The original saved report in the other user's account is not changed.

5. In the upper-right corner of the widget, click **Close**. The setting options are hidden.

# **Opening the Edit Report Page**

You can open the Edit Report page directly from a Report widget. You can then run the report with different settings, view a larger version of it, or create a new saved report.

#### To open the Edit Report page:

• In the bottom-left corner of the widget, click the name of the saved report. The Edit Report page opens.

Note: To return to the Views page, use your browser's Back button.

### See also

Gauge Widget My Messages Widget My Queues Widget Recently QAed Widget

Home > Views > Managing Widgets > My Messages Widget

# My Messages Widget

The My Messages widget is a mailbox in which you can send and receive messages and schedule a new coaching session.

				New
Received V	From	Subject	Туре	Action
6/12/2012 1:36:59 AM	Libby	Notes: System Maintenance	Note	Delete
6/12/2012 1:42:59 AM	jsmith	Notes: Help with system testing	Note	Delete
6/12/2012 1:44:42 AM	jsmith	Call review, your attention needed	Call	Delete
6/12/2012 1:45:48 AM	mjones	Call review, your attention needed	Call	Delete
6/12/2012 1:57:53 PM	jsmith	Coaching invite: Handling customers with outstanding debts	Coaching	Accept
12				

#### My Messages Widget

Three types of messages may appear in the My Messages widget:

Message Type	Description
Call	A message containing a link to a recorded call. This type of message is sent by other users. It contains a link to the call. Click the link to play the call. A SpeechMiner Media Player window opens and plays the call.
	Note: This type of message is sent when a user forwards a call from an <u>Interaction Grid</u> or from the <u>Media Player</u> .
Note	A note from another user
Coaching	An automated notice from the system informing you that another user has scheduled a <u>coaching</u> session for you. When you open the message, the <b>Session Details</b> page of the coaching session opens. To accept the coaching session, in the My Messages widget, under <b>Action</b> , click <b>Accept</b> . The coaching session is accepted, and the message is deleted from the message list.

#### To open a message:

• Click the subject of the message.

#### To send a message to another user:

- 1. Click New and then select Note. A New Note dialog box opens.
- 2. Fill in the fields and then click Send. A message pops up confirming that the message was sent successfully.

### To schedule a new coaching session:

- 1. Click New and then select Coaching Session. A New Coaching Session dialog box opens.
- 2. Fill in the fields and then click Save. A message pops up confirming that the session was added successfully.

If your mailbox contains too many messages to display in the widget at one time, the message list is divided into pages. In this case, page numbers appear at the bottom of the list.

Note: The number of messages that can be displayed in a page depends on the height of the widget. You can change the height, as explained <u>below</u>.

## To go to a different page in the mailbox:

• At the bottom of the list of messages, click the page number.

### Configuring the Widget

You can configure the height and refresh rate of a My Messages widget.

#### To configure a My Messages widget:

1. In the upper-right corner of the widget, click Edit. The widget's configurable settings are displayed.

2. Fill in the fields as follows:

Setting	Description
Height	The height of the widget, in pixels
Refresh Rate	How often the list should be refreshed, in minutes

- 3. Click Save. The settings are implemented.
- 4. Click Close. The settings are hidden.

# See also

Gauge Widget Report Widget My Queues Widget Recently QAed Widget

Home > Views > Managing Widgets > My Queues Widget

# My Queues Widget

The My Queues widget is used by quality analysts to quickly and easily access and keep track of the calls they need to review. The widget displays a list of the queues that are assigned to the current user - those that were created by the user and those that were created by others and shared with the user. The user can click a link to play the next call in a queue, or open a list to view more details about the calls it contains.

C My Queues Widget			Edit 🖂 🕽
Queue 🔻	Quota	<b>Reviewed</b> \Total	Actions
Agents - Spot Checks	10 Calls per Quarter per Agent	5\270	Next List
Audited Calls	10 Calls per Year	0\10	Next List
Financial	5 Calls per Month	0\5	Next List
Random Selection	20 Calls per Quarter	3\20	Next List
Short Calls	20 Calls per Month	0\20	Next List

My Queues widget

### **Columns in the Queues List**

The Queues List contains the following columns:

Column	Description
Queue	The name of the queue
Quota	The number of calls that should be reviewed; if the number is per time period and per agent, the quota indicates this
Reviewed\Total The number of calls that have already been reviewed, followed by the total number of calls in the values refer to the current time period, if one is defined)	
Actions Next: Plays the next call in the queue	
	List: Shows a list of the calls in the queue
	Note: The Actions options remain available even if the quota has already been met. Thus, you can listen to

more calls from a queue than are required, as long as calls that meet the search criteria and were not yet reviewed are available in the database. If no such calls are available, the **Actions** options are not available, even if the quota has not yet been met (as in the Commented calls queue in the illustration above).

## Sorting the Columns

You can sort the rows of the Queues List by the Queue or the Quota column.

#### To sort the list by a column:

• Click the column heading. (To reverse the sort order, click the column heading again.)

# **Playing a Call**

You can play the next call in a queue simply by clicking the **Next** link in the My Queues widget. The <u>Media Player</u> opens in the current Views page.

#### To play the next call in a queue:

• In the My Queues widget, under Actions, click the Next link in the row in which the queue appears. If it is not already open, the Media Player opens at the top of the Views page. Playback begins automatically. For information about working with the Media Player, see <u>Using the Media Player</u>.

liews	Search E	xplore	Reports	Quality	Coaching	Tools	Help		Action Item	s (2) ▼ A	dministrator	Log Ou
'iews										06/12/	12 02:30 PM +	03:00 UT
🔒 General	System Metri.	<mark>8</mark> A	Agents	🔒 Usage					63	Add Widgets	Change Set	tings
	⊷ <u>( )    .</u>	<b>Adject</b> 1:00	1:30 2:0	0 2:30	3:00			×				
<b>4</b> 0	di l	105.00	140.0440.0ML	2444 42 47 204	0_15_48_58_37728	mare 1, 00:00 / 02:	201	100				

Media Player opened in the Views page

## Viewing an Interaction List

You can view the calls in a queue, and play the calls by selecting them from the list. The arrangement of the calls in a list differs slightly depending on the type of quota that is set for a queue. If the quota is defined per agent, the list is divided into sub-lists for each agent. If the quota is defined not defined per agent, the list of calls is not subdivided.

#### Interaction Lists that Are Not Per Agent

In the My Queues widget, queues that are not divided per agent have two levels: The top level displays the list of queues, and the lower level contains the list of calls for a particular queue. You can choose to display either the list of queues or a list of calls in a queue.

lueues l		
Queue: Pe	ndom Selection Quota; 20 Calls per Quarter	0
Call ID	External Call ID	Call Time
4961	ext2114_12_17_2010_13_35_59_33637_pcm	5/21/2012 2:17:00 PM
4953	ext2112_12_17_2010_15_59_24_37967_pcm	5/21/2012 1:39:00 PM
4939	ext2114_12_20_2010_11_43_14_58941_pcm	5/21/2012 1:39:00 PM
4940	ext2130_12_17_2010_14_11_21_34634_pcm	5/21/2012 12:22:00 PM
4955	ext2112_12_20_2010_09_44_54_54927_pcm	5/21/2012 12:21:00 PM
1000		5/21/2012 11:59:00 AM
4941	ext2138_12_17_2010_13_37_36_33681_pcm	

#### List of calls in a queue with no agent breakdown

#### To open the list of calls for a queue with no agent breakdown:

• In the My Queues widget, under Actions, click the List link in the row in which the queue appears. The list of calls is displayed in the widget instead of the list of queues.

#### To close the list of calls and display the list of queues:

• In the upper-right corner of the My Queues widget, click 🤤 (Back).

#### To play a call in the list:

• Click the call ID of the call.

#### **Per-Agent Interaction Lists**

Per-agent Interaction Lists have three levels: The top level displays the list of queues, the next level contains the list of agents for a particular queue, and the lowest level contains the list of calls for a particular agent. You can choose to display any one of these lists in the My Queues widget, and you can play calls from any of the levels.

3 My Queues Widg	et		E	idit 🖃 🗙
Queue: Agents - Spot Ch Agent	ecks Quota: 10 Calls per Quarter per Ag Time Period	gent Reviewed\Total	Actions	-
shila	2/2012	5\10	Next List	
eithan	2/2012	0\10	Next List	
ames	2/2012	0\10	Next List	
doc	2/2012	0\10	Next List	
ake	2/2012	0\10	Next List	
	2/2012	0\10	Next List	
nick	2/2012	0.110		

List of calls per agent (second level display)

#### To open the list of agents for a queue (second-level display):

• In the My Queues widget, under **Actions**, click the **List** link in the row in which the queue appears. The list of agents is displayed in the widget instead of the list of queues, as in the illustration above.

## To play the next call for an agent in an agent list:

• In the agent's row, click Next.

To open the list of calls for an agent (third-level display):

• In the agent's row, click List.

### To play a call in the list of calls:

• Click the call ID of the call.

#### To close a level in the list and display the next level up:

• In the upper-right corner of the My Queues widget, click 🔾 (Back).

## **Call-List Pages**

When an Interaction List contains a large number of items, it is divided into pages. In this case, a page selector appears are the bottom of the list (no. 1 in the illustration below).

Queue:	Payment Issues Guota:	0
Call ID	External Call ID	Call Time
2020	11_06_12.04.40.800_u48070848p_abcdefn_258	10/7/2010 8:48:06 PM
2380	11_104_09.58.05.600_u49090449p_abcdefn_460	10/9/2010 4:49:21 PM
2289	11_103_10.35.03.100_u41090541p_abcdefn_409	10/9/2010 5:41:27 AM
2624	11_109_10.38.30.900_u31101031p_abcdetn_597	10/10/2010 10:31:01 PM
2161	11_07_16.14.58.800_u00080200p_abcdefn_337	10/8/2010 2:00:36 PM
2644	11_109_12.17.37.900_u53111253p_abcdefn_608	10/11/2010 12:53:46 AM
2642	11_109_12.11.17.600_u40111240p_abcdefn_607	10/11/2010 12:40:48 AM
2638	11_109_11.51.20.300_u14111214p_abcdefn_605	10/11/2010 12:14:50 AM
2603	11_109_09.21.24.300_u55100755p_abcdefn_585	10/10/2010 7:55:17 PM
2548	11_107_11.57.10.100_u13100113p_abcdefn_554	10/10/2010 1:13:07 PM
2526	11_107_10.45.44.100_u36101036p_abcdefn_542	10/10/2010 10:36:53 AM
2519	11_107_10.11.15.600_u44100944p_abcdefn_538	10/10/2010 9:44:59 AM
2450	11_104_18.36.55.100_u18100118p_abcdefn_499	10/10/2010 1:18:29 AM
2434	11_104_17.11.24.700_u20091120p_abcdefn_490	10/9/2010 11:20:59 PM
2398	11_104_11.44.10.600_u00090700p_abcdefn_470	10/9/2010 7:00:03 PM
2396	11_104_11.32.45.700_u47090647p_abcdefn_469	10/9/2010 6:47:03 PM
2384	11_104_10.13.00.000_u15090515p_abcdefn_462	10/9/2010 5:15:22 PM
2364	11_103_18.27.57.300_u51090251p_abcdefn_451	10/9/2010 2:51:49 PM
2336	11_103_16.32.49.500_u22091122p_abcdefn_435	10/9/2010 11:22:59 AM
2320	11_103_12.29.17.100_u23090923p_abcdefn_426	10/9/2010 9:23:58 AM

Page numbers

### To navigate to a different page in an Interaction List:

• At the bottom of the Interaction List, click the number of the page you want to display.

# Configuring the Widget

You can configure the height and refresh rate of a My Queues widget.

### To configure a My Queues widget:

- 1. In the upper-right corner of the widget, click Edit. The widget's configurable settings are displayed.
- 2. Fill in the fields as follows:

Setting	Description
Height	The height of the widget, in pixels
Refresh Rate	How often the list should be refreshed, in minutes

- 3. Click Save. The settings are implemented.
- 4. Click **Close**. The settings are hidden.

# See also

Gauge Widget Report Widget My Messages Widget Recently QAed Widget

Home > Views > Managing Widgets > Recently QAed Widget

# Recently QAed Widget

The Recently QAed widget is used by quality analysts and their supervisors to keep track of the calls that have been reviewed. The widget displays a list of the calls that were reviewed in the specified time period, and included information about who reviewed them, when, and, if a form was filled out by the reviewer, which form and what the score was. The user can click a link to play a call in the list, and filter the list by time period and by reviewer.

Recently QAed					Edit 📃 🔊
Show All <u>\ My</u> Calls Show Last <u>12</u> <u>Weeks</u>	Queue ALL	¥			
<u>Call ID</u>	Review Time	By	Queue	Form	Score 🔺
<u>11 110 13.44.02.700 u</u> 43111143p abcdefn 6 58	11/21/10 05:04 PM	administrator	Dan Queue	Agent Review	37
<u>11 01 10.49.51.400 u3</u> 8030338p abcdefn <u>4</u>	11/21/10 02:59 PM	libby_ps	Payments	General Call Review	47
11 01 12.18.51.500 u4 5210945p aen 9	11/18/10 11:33 PM	libby_ps	Random selection of calls		
<u>11 109 14.14.07.300 u</u> <u>37110237p abcdefn 6</u> 16	11/18/10 11:28 PM	libby_ps	Random selection of calls	General Call Review	43
11 109 12.51.36.000 u 58110158p abcdefn 6	11/18/10 11:27 PM	libby_ps	Random selection of calls		

**Recently QAed widget** 

## **Columns in the Interaction List**

The Interaction List contains the following columns:

Column	Description
Call ID	The ID of the call
Review Time	The date and time at which the call was reviewed
Ву	The user name of the reviewer
Queue	The name of the queue
Form	The name of the form the reviewer filled in, if any
Score	The score of the call in the form, if one was filled in

### Sorting the Columns

You can sort the rows of the list by any of the columns.

#### To sort the list by a column:

• Click the column heading. (To reverse the sort order, click the column heading again.)

# Filtering the List

Filter controls are located above the Interaction List. You can filter the Interaction List by reviewer, time period, and queue.

#### Filtering by Reviewer

You can choose to display calls that were reviewed by any reviewer or only those calls that you reviewed yourself.

#### To use the reviewer filter:

• In the upper-left corner of the widget, under **Show**, select **All** to view calls that were reviewed by any reviewer, or **My** to only view calls you reviewed. (The option that is currently selected is unavailable.)

#### Filtering by Time Period

You can choose the time period from which you want to view calls by choosing the time unit (days, weeks, or months) and the quantity of that unit (e.g., 5 hours, or 3 months). The Interaction List will only include calls that were reviewed during the selected time period. (The time period always ends with the current date. Thus, you can view calls from the previous three months, but not from six months ago to three months ago.)

### To modify the quantity of time units:

- 1. Under Show Last, click the number. The number becomes a text field, and an OK button appears below it.
- 2. Enter the required number.
- 3. Click OK. The number is saved.

#### To modify the time units:

- 1. Under Show Last, click the time unit (Hours, Weeks, or Months). A time-unit dropdown list appears, with an OK button below it.
- 2. Select the required time unit.
- 3. Click OK. The selection is saved.

#### Filtering by Queue

You can choose to view all the calls that were reviewed or only those that belonged to a particular queue.

#### To use the queue filter:

• Under Queue, select the name of the queue, or select ALL to view calls from all queues.

## **Playing a Call**

You can play a call in the list simply by clicking the ID of the call. The <u>Media Player</u> opens in the current **Views** page, above the widget.

#### To play a call in the list:

• Click the ID number of the call. If it is not already open, the Media Player opens at the top of the **Views** page. Playback begins automatically. For information about working with the Media Player, see <u>Using the Media Player</u>.

Views	Search E	kplore	Reports	Quality	Coaching	Tools	Help		Action Items (2) 🔻 🖉	Administrator Log
/iews									06/12	'12 02:30 PM +03:00 U
🔒 Genera	l System Metri.	8	Agents	😫 Usage	+				Add Widgets	Change Settings
K								×		
	0::	0 1:00	1:30	2:00 2:30	3:00					

Media Player opened in the Views page

# Configuring the Widget

You can configure the height and refresh rate of a Recently QAed widget.

To configure a Recently QAed widget:

- 1. In the upper-right corner of the widget, click Edit. The widget's configurable settings are displayed.
- 2. Fill in the fields as follows:

Setting	Description
Height	The height of the widget, in pixels
Refresh Rate	How often the list should be refreshed, in minutes

- 3. Click Save. The settings are implemented.
- 4. Click **Close**. The settings are hidden.

## See also

Gauge Widget Report Widget My Messages Widget My Queues Widget Home > Action Items

# Action Items

The Action Items feature is a tool that helps users manage their SpeechMiner tasks, assign tasks to others, and monitor progress on these tasks. For example, a supervisor can create an Action Item for one of his staff members, asking him to perform a particular task at a particular time. The staff member will see that a new task has been assigned to him when he logs into SpeechMiner. He can see details about the task, add notes as he progresses with the task, and close the task when it is completed. The supervisor can monitor progress on the task by reading the notes that are added as it is performed and by keeping tabs on its status.

You can create new Action Items, and view the Action Items you have created or been assigned, from any SpeechMiner screen. Action Items can also be linked to specific Coaching sessions. If they are, you can also view them in the Coaching session page.

## Viewing the List of Action Items

The **Action Items** link in the upper-right corner of the SpeechMiner screens provides information about the number of Action Items assigned to you, and indicates whether any new action items exist that you have not yet read, as follows:

- If no Action Items are assigned to you, the Action Items link appears in black.
- If Action Items are assigned to you, the link appears in green, and the number of Action Items appears after the link in parentheses.
- If new Action Items are assigned to you that you have not yet read, or the status of an existing Action Item has changed, the Action Items link appears in **bold green**.

#### To view your Action Items:

- 1. In the upper-right corner of any SpeechMiner page, click the Action Items link. The Action Items box opens below the link.
- 2. Click the **My Items** tab to view a list of the Action Items assigned to you; click the **I Created** tab to view a list of the Action Items you created.

Tools	Help					A	ction I	tems (7)	*
My Items	Created							New	2
Status	From	Туре	Due Date 👙			Action	ns		
Completed	administrator	Test	05/31/12	Details	Confirm	Reject	Edit		
Open	Libby	Training	06/22/12	Details	Complete	Edit			
Completed	jsmith	Training	06/26/12	Details	Confirm	Reject	Edit		
Open	administrator	Test	06/28/12	<u>Details</u>	Complete	<u>Edit</u>			
Rejected	jsmith	Training	06/29/12	Details	Complete	<u>Edit</u>			
Open	mjones	Test	07/01/12	Details	Complete	<u>Edit</u>			
Open	ismith	Training	07/01/12	Details	Complete	Edit			

Action Items box

Key to illustration:

Number	Description
1	Tabs
2	An Action Item that was already read by the assignee; status is displayed in plain text
3	An Action Item that was not yet read by the assignee, or whose status has changed since it was last read; status

	is displayed in bold text
4	The number of Action Items assigned to the current user
5	Click to close the Action I tems box.
6	Click to create a new Action Item (see Creating a New Action Item).

# **Viewing Item Details**

An Action Item appears as unread until you view the item's details. The status of unread items appears in bold. When an item is read, its status appears in plain text.

### To view an Action Item's details:

• In the Action I tems box, under Actions, click Details. The item's details are displayed below the item.

Tools		Help					A	ction I	tems (7) 🔻
								_	×
My Items	Created								New
Status		From	Туре	Due Date 🚖			Actio	ns	
Completed	adminis	trator	Test	05/31/12	<u>Details</u>	Confirm	Reject	Edit	
Open	Libby		Training	06/22/12	Details	Complete	<u>Edit</u>		
Completed	jsmith		Training	06/26/12	Details	Confirm	Reject	Edit	
Open	adminis	trator	Test	06/28/12	<u>Details</u>	Complete	<u>Edit</u>		
Rejected	jsmith		Training	06/29/12	Details	Complete	<u>Edit</u>		
Open	mjones	Status:	Rejected						×
Open	jsmith	Creator: Assignee: Type: Due Date: Summary: Notes:	administrator (06/	or the new training se 27/12 06:55 PM): of them ready. I want		-		em, thou	gh.
			administrator (06/ All set now. ismith (06/27/12 0 Still need one abo						

Action Items box with item details displayed

Key to illustration:

Number	Description
1	Close Action Items box
2	Close Details area
3	Details area

## To close an Action Item's details:

• Click the 🖾 in the upper-right corner of the Details area.

# **Sorting Action Items**

You can sort the lists of Action Items by any of the columns. For example, you can sort the list by Status or Due Date.

#### To sort a list of Action Items:

• Click the heading of the column by which you want to sort the list. For example, click the Status heading to sort by status.

Note: Click the heading a second time to reverse the order (e.g., z to a instead of a to z).

# See also

Welcome Getting Started Workflows Views Search Using the Media Player Explore Quality Monitoring Coaching Reports Tools Permalinks Appendix A: Standard Reports

Home > Action Items > Managing Action Items

# Managing Action Items

Both the creator and the assignee of an Action Item can modify an Action Item and add notes to it. The notes are displayed with the item details.

When the assignee has completed an Action Item, they should change its status to **Completed**. The creator can then either confirm that the item is completed or reject the change of status. When the change of status is confirmed, the item is closed and is no longer displayed in the lists of Action Items. When the change of status is rejected, the item continues to appear in the lists. The assignee can continue to work on the item, and change its status to **Completed** again later on.

## **Editing an Action Item**

You can modify the settings of and Action Item and add notes to it as necessary. All notes are displayed when the item's details are displayed.

To modify an Action Item and/or add a note to it:

1. In the Action Items box, under Actions, click Edit. The Action Item: Edit dialog box opens.

Action Ite	m: Edit
Creator: Lib	by Created On: 06/12/12
Assignee	administrator
Туре	Training 💌
Due Date	06/22/12
Summary	Review methods for dealing with elderly customers
Notes	
Add Note	
	Save Cancel

Action Item: Edit dialog box

- 2. Modify the settings as required.
- 3. If you want to add a note to the Action Item, under Add Note, type the note.
- 4. Click Save. The dialog box closes and the changes are implemented.

# Changing the Status of an Action Item to Completed

When you have completed and Action Item that is assigned to you, you change its status to Completed.

## To change the status of an Action Item to Completed:

1. In the Action Items box, under Actions, click Complete. The Action Item: Change Status from Open to Completed dialog box opens.

Action Ite	em: Change status from Open to Completed
Creator: mj	ones Created On: 06/27/12
Assignee	administrator
Туре	Test
Due Date	07/01/12
Summary	Please check the list of calls I prepared.
Notes	
Add Note	
	Save Cancel

Action Item: Change status from Open to Completed dialog box

- 2. If you want to add a note to the Action Item, under Add Note, type the note.
- 3. Click Save. The dialog box closes and the status is changed. In the Action Items box, under Actions, the options Confirm and Reject appear instead of the Complete option.

## Confirming or Rejecting a Completed Action Item

When the assignee changes the status of an Action Item to **Completed**, the creator should either confirm that the item was properly completed or reject the change in status in order to indicate to the assignee that more work is required to complete the item satisfactorily.

#### To confirm a completed Action Item:

1. In the Action Items box, under Actions, click Confirm. The Action Item: Change Status from Completed to Confirmed dialog box opens.

Creator: Ad	ministrator Created On: 05/09/12
Assignee	administrator
Туре	Test
Due Date	05/31/12
Summary	Review tests
Notes	l Administrator (05/09/12 02:05 AM): Don't forget section 2.
Add Note	

Action Item: Change status from Completed to Confirmed dialog box

- 2. If you want to add a note to the Action Item, under Add Note, type the note.
- 3. Click Save. The dialog box closes. The Action Item is closed and removed from the list of Action Items.

#### To reject a completed Action Item:

1. In the Action Items box, under Actions, click Reject. The Action Item: Change Status from Completed to Rejected dialog box opens.

Creator: ad	ministrator Created On: 06/27/12		
Assignee	jsmith		
Туре	Training		
Due Date	06/26/12		
Summary	Training session with new group at 2:00.		
Notes	i jsmith (06/27/12 06:41 PM): Ready to go.		
Add Note			
	_		
		Save	Cancel

Action Item: Change status from Completed to Rejected dialog box

- 2. If you want to add a note to the Action Item, under Add Note, type the note.
- 3. Click Save. The dialog box closes. The Action Item is reopened with the status Rejected.

## See also

Creating a New Action Item

Home > Action Items > Creating a New Action Item

# Creating a New Action Item

You can create new Action Items as required, and assign them to the appropriate person. If you wish, you can assign Action Items to yourself, to help you keep track of your own tasks.

**Note:** Action Items can also be created as part of coaching sessions. When they are, they appear both in the general lists of Action Items and in the Coaching session screen. For additional information, see <u>Creating a New Coaching Session</u>.

#### To create a new Action Item:

1. In the Action Items box, click New. The Action Item dialog box opens

Action It	em:				
Creator: ac	Iministrator Cro	eated On: 06/27/12			
Assignee					
Туре	Training 💌				
Due Date					
Summary					
			Γ	Save	Cancel

Action Item dialog box

2. Fill in the fields as follows:

Field	Description					
Assignee	<ul> <li>Select the assignee in one of the following ways:</li> <li>In the text field, type part of the name or username of the assignee. As you type, names and user names containing those letters are displayed in a dropdown list. Select the assignee from the list.</li> <li>Click the button () beside the text field. In the dialog box, select the user from the list of users in the relevant workgroup.</li> </ul>					
Туре	Select the type of Action Item					
Due Date	Click the calendar icon () to select the date by which you want the assignee to perform the task.					
Summary	Type a description of the Action Item					

3. Click Save. The Action Item is opened. It appears in your Action Items box in the I Created tab, and will appear in the assignee's Action Items box in their My Items tab the next time they open it.

# See also

Managing Action Items
Home > Search

# Search

The **Search** page provides you with tools that help you filter massive quantities of interaction data so that you can find the data you are interested in. Filtering can be performed in one of two ways:

- 1. Searching: Creating a set of criteria and then searching for interactions or Events that meet those criteria. The set of criteria can be saved as a <u>Saved Search</u>. The search can then be run again as necessary. For example, you could search for calls that were handled by workgroup A, were processed using either Program B or Program C, and had the Category "Frustration" assigned to them. A list of calls matching these criteria would be displayed in an <u>Interaction Grid</u>.
- 2. Browsing: Navigating in a tree structure in which recorded interactions are divided into groups based on specified characteristics. This method of sifting provides a visual overview of the database of interactions. You can browse through the database by expanding nodes to see more detailed breakdowns of interactions in a particular group, by filtering the tree to limit the display to certain types of interactions, and by viewing details about selected groups of interactions in an <u>Interaction</u> <u>Grid</u>. For example, you could browse through the database of interactions by dividing it into groups based on the workgroups that handled the interactions. If you expanded the nodes, you could see information about which interactions were handled by each agent in the workgroup.

Regardless of which sifting process you use, the end result is a list of items that is displayed in a grid. The grid lists interactions or Events that match your search criteria and contains detailed information about each item. You can use the results in a variety of ways and for many different purposes. For example, you can listen to selected calls, save the list of results for further use, or save selected calls from the grid in an Interaction List for use in a coaching session. In addition, the SpeechMiner Media Player can help you find the important parts of calls and play them back without wasting precious time listening to every second of each call.

## See also

Using an Interaction Grid Searching for Interactions Saved Searches Browsing Interactions

Home > Search > Using an Interaction Grid

# Using an Interaction Grid

Lists of interactions are generated by SpeechMiner in the Search page when you do one of the following:

- 1. In the <u>New Search</u> tab, click Search
- 2. In the Saved Searches tab, click Display
- 3. In the Content Browser tab, click a line in the tree structure
- 4. Click a Permalink to a list of interactions

The list of interactions is presented in an Interaction Grid either at the bottom or the right side of the page. The Interaction Grid contains detailed information about each interaction. You can modify the display to suit your requirements by selecting which columns you want to include in the grid and sorting the interactions in the grid by one of the columns. If you want to listen to a call or view other types of interactions, you can select them in the grid and they will be opened above the grid. You can also save calls in a <u>Call List</u>, export calls, and send links to calls to other users.

		ate Sort	by relevance Interactions						Active Search	Save As Queue
± Ca	lls, Er	nails Last	Quarter, Sorting By relevanc	e						
Sear	rches	s related	l to "order": <u>order <b>numbe</b></u>	er place orde	r <u>order</u>	<u>confirmed</u>				
/iew	1 - 1	0 of 489	🕒 Prev 🕒 N	Vext \cdots 🕒 Bat	ch Actions					🔲 Colum
		Open	Date / Time	Workgroup	Agent	Program	Category	Text Dur	ation Topic	
1			05/24/12 08:00 AM	а	sally	UTOPYINC	Undetermined	ed in <b>order</b> to establish higher trades to report into t	undefined	
2			05/24/12 01:58 AM	b	sally	UTOPYINC	Undetermined	ed in <b>order</b> to establish higher trades to report into t	undefined	
3			05/24/12 01:31 PM	b	don	UTOPYINC	Undetermined	ut in <b>order</b> to create a plan that can be measured w	undefined	
4			05/24/12 02:51 PM	b	don	UTOPYINC	Undetermined	ut in <mark>order</mark> to create a plan that can be measured w	undefined	
5			05/24/12 01:18 AM	b	bob	UTOPYINC	Undetermined	e in <mark>order</mark> ? We didn't think so. That's why you need	undefined	
6		•	05/14/12 07:23 PM	с	shila	UTOPYINC	Financial	this <mark>order</mark> for . him . second okay take a . other . paj0:12	2:56 3 Topics	
7		•	05/14/12 07:33 PM	а	shila	UTOPYINC	Financial	on . orders that on four tickets that are like what ab 0:30	0:56 4 Topics	
8		•	05/12/12 06:27 AM	b	charles	UTOPYINC	Financial	t the <mark>order</mark> for for . to the site now what to <mark>order</mark> s 0:02	2:28 Make Payme	nt
9		•	05/14/12 07:21 AM	d	eithan	UTOPYINC	Financial	s the <mark>order</mark> for for .can add your credit balance cre0:02	2:28 2 Topics	
10		•	05/13/12 12:18 PM	a	shila	UTOPYINC	Financial	e the <b>order</b> , your tax eye dee number have the <mark>orc</mark> 0:12	2:38 5 Topics	

#### **Interaction Grid**

**Note:** If you performed a search in the New Search tab, the grid may contain a list of Events instead of a list of interactions. For additional information, see <u>Using an Event Grid</u>.

## **Columns in the Interaction Grid**

The Interaction Grid can display any or all of the following columns:

Column	Description
Open	An icon indicating the type of interaction (see <u>About Calls and Interactions</u> ). Click the icon to open the interaction above the grid.
Interaction ID Internal	A unique number assigned to the interaction in the SpeechMiner database
Interaction ID	A unique number assigned to the interaction by the external recording or storage system
Date/Time	The start date and time of the interaction
Workgroup	The workgroup of the agent who handled the interaction
Agent	The agent who handled the interaction
Program	The program that was used by SpeechMiner to analyze the interaction
Category	The Category or Categories that were assigned to the interaction. If only one Category was assigned, the name of the Category appears. If multiple Categories were assigned, the number of Categories appears; place your mouse pointer on the value to see a list of the Categories.
Duration	The duration of the interaction, in hours:minutes:seconds
Торіс	The Topic or Topics SpeechMiner identified in the interaction. If only one Topic was identified, the name of the Topic appears. If multiple Topics were identified, the number of Topics appears. Place your mouse pointer on the value to see a list of the Topics.
Text	An excerpt from the interaction text containing a term that was included in a <u>search</u> . (The term must be specified in the SpeechMiner filter group.) The term is highlighted in the excerpt.
	Note: This column is only visible in Interaction Grids that contain search results from searches that included terms.

Additional columns may appear if specific types of interactions are included in the grid. For example, if e-mails are in the grid, the columns Subject, Sender, Receiver, CC, and BCC appear. In addition, in some systems, additional columns can be opened for specific types of metadata. For example, if your system stores a "Location" field for calls, a Location column can be opened whenever calls are listed in an Interaction Grid. Because columns are added for all selected fields that are relevant to all the types of interactions included in the grid, some columns may be blank for some interactions. For example, Duration is only defined for calls, and Sender is only

defined for e-mails. For other types of interactions, these columns are blank.

## Choosing the Columns to Display

You can choose which columns to display in the Interaction Grid.

#### To choose which columns to display in the Interaction Grid:

1. At the top of the Interaction Grid, click Columns. A list of all the available columns opens.



List of available columns

- 2. Select the checkboxes beside the columns you want displayed and clear the checkboxes beside those you do not want displayed.
- 3. Click OK. The list closes, and the columns are displayed in accordance with your choices.

## Sorting the Columns

You can choose to sort the Interaction Grid by any column.

## To sort the Interaction Grid by a column:

• Click the title of the column.

Note: Click the title a second time to reverse the sort order.

### **Interaction-Grid Pages**

When an Interaction Grid contains a large number of items, it is divided into pages. The **Page** field of the page navigator at the bottom of the grid shows which page is currently being displayed. In addition, the View information at the top-left of the grid shows how many interactions are in the list, and which of these are displayed in the current page.

View 1	- 10 of 489			
View ir	nformatio	า		
14 <4	Page 54	of 100	•>	ÞI

10 👻

#### Page navigator

You can use the page navigator to go to a particular page in the list and to select the page size - the maximum number of interactions to display in a single page.

#### To navigate to a different page in an Interaction List:

• In the page navigator. select one of the following:

Option	Description
	Go to the first page
	Go back one page
Page	Type the required page number in the field, and then press Enter.
►>	Go forward one page
ÞI	Go to the last page

#### To select the page size:

• In the page navigator. in the dropdown list on the right, select the page size. The available options are 10, 25, 50, and 100.

## **Viewing Interaction Search Criteria**

If the Interaction Grid was generated in response to a <u>search</u>, the upper-left corner of the Interaction Grid contains a summary of the search criteria and settings that were employed during the search. Click the **H** beside the summary to expand it and see more details about the search criteria.

In addition, if the grid was generated in response to a search for terms, the system may list a "related search" term below the search criteria. For additional information, see <u>Related Searches</u>.

Furthermore, if the system determines that one or more of the search terms was spelled incorrectly, it will correct the apparent errors and indicate this in a note below the search criteria. For additional information, see <u>Spelling Corrections</u>.

#### **Opening an Interaction**

You can play a call or open an interaction from the Interaction Grid. The interactions are opened above the Interaction Grid.

#### To open an interaction:

In the Open column, click the icon of the interaction. For example, to open a call, click the . If the interaction is a call, the Media Player opens above the grid, and the call automatically begins to play. If it is a non-call interaction, the text of the interaction is displayed above the grid.

#### To open the previous or next interaction in the grid:

At the top of the grid, click G Prev or S Next.

## **Exporting Calls**

If you want to save some or all of the call results, or send them to someone else, you can export them. Exporting calls from the Interaction Grid creates a ZIP file that contains the following:

- A CSV file containing a list of the calls that were exported, including all the information about the calls that was presented in the Interaction Grid. This file can be opened using a spreadsheet application such as Microsoft Excel.
- A WAV file for each call included in the list (optional). The WAV file is a playable audio file of the call.

Note: Only calls can be exported.

#### To export one or more calls from the Interaction Grid:

1. Select the checkbox to the left of each call you want to include in the export file. To select all of the calls in the grid, select the checkbox in the column title.

**Note:** If you select both calls and other types of interactions, the calls are exported, but the other interactions are not. If you only select non-call interactions, no action is performed.

- 2. Under Batch Actions, select Export. A dialog box opens and asks if you want to include the audio files with the export.
- 3. Select Yes if you want to export the audio along with the CSV file, or No if you only want the CSV file. A dialog box opens and asks if you want to open or save the ZIP file.
- Select the desired option. If you select Open, the file opens in the application that is configured to open ZIP files on your computer. If you select Save, a Save As dialog box opens.
- 5. If you selected **Save**, navigate to the folder in which you want to save the file, and then click **Save**. The file is saved in the selected location.

## Forwarding Links to Calls

You can send links to calls to other users in the system. Each call link is sent in a separate Call message that appears in the recipient's <u>My Messages</u> widget in the <u>Views</u> page. When the recipient clicks the message, a SpeechMiner Media Player window opens and plays the call.

If you wish, you can also send the recipient an e-mail notification with links to the selected calls. When the recipient clicks a link, the Media Player opens in a new browser tab or window and plays the call. If the recipient is not already logged into SpeechMiner, they are prompted to do so before the Media Player opens.

Note: Only calls can be forwarded.

#### To send a call link to another user:

1. Select the checkbox to the left of each call you want to forward. To select all of the calls in the grid, select the checkbox in the column title.

**Note:** If you select both calls and other types of interactions, the calls are forwarded, but the other interactions are not. If you only select non-call interactions, no action is performed.

2. Under Batch Actions, select Forward. A dialog box opens.

Subject	50
Call review, your atte	ntion needed
Please Select the Recipient	
Send Email Notification	
Send	Cancel

Forward dialog box

- 3. Under Subject, modify the subject text if you wish.
- 4. Under Please Select the Recipient, select the user you want to send the link to, in one of the following ways:
  - In the text field, type part of the name or username of the recipient. As you type, names and user names containing those letters are displayed in a dropdown list. Select the recipient from the list.
  - Click the ... button () beside the text field. In the dialog box, select the user from the list of users in the relevant workgroup.
- If you want to send notifications to the user's e-mail address as well as to their <u>My Messages</u> box, select Send Email Notification.
- 6. Click Send. A Call message is sent to the recipient's My Messages box for each call you selected. If you chose to send the user an e-mail notification, an e-mail is also sent for each call.

# Adding Calls to a Call List

A Call List is a list of calls that is saved for later use. SpeechMiner supports two types of Call Lists: global Call Lists and coachingsession Call Lists. You can see existing global Call Lists in the **Search** page in the <u>Saved Searches</u> tab, under **Call Lists**. Coachingsession Call Lists can only be viewed within the coaching session. For additional information about coaching sessions, see <u>Coaching</u>. You can add calls to an existing Call List or a new list. You can select an existing Call List from a list of global Call Lists or select a coaching-session Call List from those that are attached to the Coaching session. If you wish, you can add a new Coaching session directly from the Interaction Grid, and then add calls to a Call List that is attached to that session.

Note: Only calls can be added to a Call List.

### To add calls to a Call List:

1. Select the checkbox to the left of each call you want to include in the Call List. To select all of the calls in the grid, select the checkbox in the column title.

**Note:** If you select both calls and other types of interactions, the calls are included in the Call List, but the other interactions are not. If you only select non-call interactions, no action is performed.

2. Under Batch Actions, select Add To, and then select one of the following:

То	Select	Result
Create a new Coaching session and a new coaching Call List within that session, and add the calls to the new Call List	Coaching > New	A <b>New coaching session</b> dialog box opens. Specify the name and other settings of the Coaching session, and then click <b>Save</b> . The dialog box closes, and a new Call List dialog box opens. In the text field, type a name for the Call List, and then click <b>OK</b> . The Coaching session and Call List are created, and the calls are added to the Call List.
Create a new coaching Call List within an existing Coaching session, and add the calls to the new Call List       Coaching > [existing Coaching session] > N		A Call List dialog box opens. In the text field, type a name for the Call List, and then click <b>OK</b> . The new coaching Call List is created and attached to the Coaching session, and the calls are added to the Call List.
Add the calls to an existing coaching Call List that is attached to an existing Coaching session	Coaching > [existing Coaching session] > [existing Call List]	The calls are added to the selected coaching Call List.
Add the calls to a new Call List	Call List > New	A Call List dialog box opens. In the text field, type a name for the Call List, and then click $\mathbf{OK}$ . The new Call List is created and the calls are added to it.
Add the calls to an existing Call List	Call List > [existing Call List]	The calls are added to the selected Call List.

## See also

Searching for Interactions Saved Searches Browsing Interactions

Home > Search > Searching for Interactions

# Searching for Interactions

This section explains how to search for interactions or Events by specifying their parameters. In order to perform a search, you use filters to specify which types of interactions or Events you want to see. When you run the search, SpeechMiner combs the database for interactions that match the filter settings you selected, and displays the results in a grid. You can sort the results by date or by relevance (how well the item matches the search parameters).

Search criteria are defined in the New Search tab, in the Filter Panel. Once you have defined the criteria, you can run the search and see the results in a grid that appears in the New Search tab, to the right of the Filter Panel. If you wish, you can then hide the Filter Panel, to make more room for the results grid.

You can also perform a search for terms using the <u>Search box</u>. This box is available in all SpeechMiner screens, and can be used without opening the New Search tab.

Sets of search criteria can be saved as <u>Saved Searches</u> or <u>Queues</u>, and can then easily be used again. A <u>Permalink</u> to a set of search criteria can also be created, and, in addition, search results can be exported.

## To open the New Search tab:

• In the Main Menu, under Search, select New Search. The New Search tab opens.

SpeechMiner ()	Statement of the local division in which the local division in the local division in the local division in the		-	and the second se					Sea	irch	PUTO
Views Se	arch Lag	plore	Re	ports Quality	Coachin	g	Tools	Help	Action Items (8) ¥	Administrat	or Log
New Search									08	/28/12 11:41	PM +03:00
New Search	Saved Searcher	(	Content Brow	ier .							
		E-star									
Search		1 COLOR		by relevance Interaction					Ad	we Search	Save As Que
Save Permaink Clear I	Filters		_	Quarter, Sorting By relevan							
Calls		Searc	ches related	i to "order": order numb	er place orde	e order i	confirmed				
Chats			1 - 10 of 489			ch Actions					Co
Texts			C Open	Date / Time	Workgroup	Agent	Program	Category	Text Duration		
Social				05/24/12 08:00 AM	0	sally	UTOPYINC	Undetermined	ed in order to establish higher trades to report into t	undefined	
Languages		2		05/24/12 01:58 AM	b	sally	UTOPYINC	Undetermined	ed in order to establish higher trades to report into t	undefined	
1 Selected	3			05/24/12 01:31 PM	b	don	UTOPYINC	Undetermined	ut in order to create a plan that can be measured w	undefined	
Date Range		4		05/24/12 02:51 PM	b	don	UTOPYINC	Undetermined	ut in order to create a plan that can be measured w	undefined	
Last Quarter	*	5		05/24/12 01:18 AM	b	bob	UTOPYINC	Undetermined	e in order? We didn't think so. That's why you need	undefined	
From: 04/01/12 12:0				05/14/12 07:23 PM	c	shila	UTOPYINC	Financial	this order for . him . second okay take a . other . paj0.12.56	3 Topics	
Tα: 06/30/12 11:5		7		05/14/12 07:33 PM	0	shila	UTOPYINC	Financial	on . orders that on four tickets that are like what ab 0.30.56	4 Topics	
Expand All / Collapse /	Al	8		05/12/12 06:27 AM	b	charles	UTOPYINC	Financial	t the order for for . to the site now what to order \$ 0.02.28	Make Payme	et
Categories		9		05/14/12 07:21 AM	d	ethan	UTOPYINC	Financial	s the order for for .can add your credit balance cre0:02:28	2 Topics	
1111 2 Selected	J (+)	10		05/13/12/12/18 PM	0	shila	UTOPYINC	Financial	e the order . your tax eye dee number have the ord 0:12:38	5 Topics	
Programs	[M] [*]						HE OF B	age 1 of 49 +	er et 10 💌		
Mil Any	3										
Topics	(M)										
Nel Any	3 (+)										
Any of the following											
order											
10000	[*]										
Limit Terms & Topic											
Any	-										
Interaction Prope	rties										
Metadata     User Actions											

New Search tab

Key to Illustration:

Number	Description
1	Filter Panel (see Defining Search Criteria)
2	Hide Filter Panel button (see Performing a Search)
3	Select sorting method (see <u>Performing a Search</u> )
4	Select grid type (see Performing a Search)
5	Switch to Text Mode button (see Using Text Mode)
6	Filter summary (see Defining Search Criteria)
7	Search results grid (see Performing a Search)
8	Expanded filter set (see Defining Search Criteria)

9

Collapsed filter set (see <u>Defining Search Criteria</u>)

## See also

Using an Interaction Grid Saved Searches Browsing Interactions

Home > Search > Searching for Interactions > Defining Search Criteria

# Defining Search Criteria

Search criteria are specified in the Filter Panel by selecting values for the various filters available. In order to make it easier for you to find the filters you need, most of them are grouped into sets. You can expand the sets to access the filters they contain, and collapse them when you do not want to view them. Most filters provide Multi-Select boxes that enable you to select multiple values for the filter. In addition, some filters allow you to create multiple sets of values; the conditions specified in each set of values must be met for a call to be included in the search results.

The currently defined search criteria are always displayed at the top of the right panel of the New Search tab (no. 6 in the illustration <u>above</u>). As you add conditions to the search criteria, the display is automatically updated, so you can always see what the current selections are.

You can save the current set of search criteria in a number of ways: as a Saved Search, as a Permalink, or as a gueue.

**Note:** The Filter Panel can be used in one of two modes, Standard mode and Text mode. This section explains how to use the Filter Panel in Standard mode. For information about using Text mode, see <u>Using Text Mode</u>.

## **Filter Groups**

The filters in the Filter Panel are divided into groups. The basic settings - interaction types, languages, date range, and processing limit - appear at the top of the Filter Panel and are always displayed when the Filter Panel is displayed. The other groups of filters can be expanded or collapsed. The following groups of filters are available:

Filter Group	Description
SpeechMiner	Filters for selecting the Categories and Programs of calls, and/or the Topics and terms that must be found in them
Call Properties	Filters that allow you to select agents, call length, and call ID properties
Metadata	Filters for selecting metadata values
User Actions	Filters for finding calls that have user comments, were played back by users, about which forms were filled out, or quality checking was performed
Audit and Implementation	Filters for finding Events based on their confidence ratings and auditing results         Note: This group only appears if the Events grid type is selected.

## **Expanding and Collapsing Filter Groups**

You can expand or collapse a single group, or all of the groups.

•	- E Spe	sechMiner		
	Cab	egories		
	Not	Any	Ť.	[+]
	Pro	y ans		
	Not	Any	1	
	Top	ics		
	Not	Any	Ť	[+]
	Any	of the following te	rms	
				Sec.
				[+]
	Lim	Terms & Tonics to	Crusher	
	Limi	t Terms & Topics to Any		
		Any	Ţ	
6	- E Inte	Any raction Propertie	Ţ	
6	E Inte	Any	Ţ	

Expanded and collapsed filter groups

To expand or collapse all of the groups:

• Click Expand All or Collapse All (no. 1 in the illustration above).

To expand a single group of filters:

• Click the name of the group or the 🗄 beside it (no. 3 in the illustration above).

To collapse a single group of filters:

• Click the name of the group or the 🖃 beside it (no. 2 in the illustration above).

## **Using Multi-Select Boxes**

Many of the filters allow you to select more than one item. For example, you can select three Categories to include in your search. A specially designed Multi-Select box enables you to select the items you require for each filter. The symbol beside a field indicates that selections for the field are made using the Multi-Select box.

**Note:** The logical relationship between all items selected in a single Multi-Select box is OR. That is, if **any** of the items is found to be true for a call, the call is considered to have met the specified condition. If you want to define an AND relationship between two or more items, you must add additional lines to the field, as explained <u>below</u>.

Two types of Multi-Select boxes exist: Standard Multi-Select boxes and Agent Multi-Select boxes. Standard Multi-Select boxes are used for all multiple-selection tasks except the selection of agents and workgroups. The Agent Multi-Select box was specifically designed to make selecting agents simple and efficient.

Find:	Selected	All	Close
🗄 🔲 Make Payment			
- 🔄 Found Service M	laintenance		
🔚 🔲 For Manager Rev	view		
For Supervisor R			
For Agent Review			
📃 Incorretly Classif			_
For Trainer Revie			
- C Account Mainter	nance		
🖻 🔲 Bill Inquiry			
Fees and Ser	vice Charges		
- Adjustments			
Balance Inqui	rv		
High Bill Com			-

Standard Multi-Select box

To select items for a field using a Standard Multi-Select box:

- 1. Click the  $\stackrel{1}{\searrow}$  beside the field. The Multi-Select box opens below the field.
- Select the checkbox beside each item you want to select. If necessary, <u>expand</u> an item to select one or more of the items it contains. Use the dropdown menu to select all items or all of the sub-items of an item. Use the <u>Find</u> feature and the <u>Selected</u> display option to help you find the items you need and keep track of what you have selected. For additional information, see below.
- 3. Click outside of the Multi-Selector box, or, at the top of the box, click **Close**. The Multi-Select box closes. The text field indicates how many items were selected. Place your mouse over the text field to see a list of the selected items.

Agent Multi-Select boxes allow you to quickly and easily find and select individual agents or groups of agents. The expandable list on the left contains all available workgroups and agents. The list on the right shows the agents and workgroups that are currently selected.



Agent Multi-Select box

## To select agents or workgroups using an Agent Multi-Select box:

- 1. Click the 📩 beside the Agents field. The Agent Multi-Select box opens below the field.
- 2. In the left column, select the checkbox beside each workgroup or agent you want to select. If necessary, <u>expand</u> a workgroup to select one or more of the agents it contains. Use the dropdown menu to select all items or all of the sub-items of an item. Use the <u>Find</u> feature to help you find the items you need.
- 3. Click Add. The selected workgroups and agents are added to the list on the right.
- 4. Repeat the previous two steps as necessary to add additional workgroups or agents to the list.
- Click outside of the Multi-Selector box, or, at the top of the box, click Close. The Agent Multi-Select box closes. The text field indicates how many items were selected. Place your mouse over the text field to see a list of the selected items.

#### **Expanding and Collapsing Items**

The list of items in a Multi-Select box has a tree structure. When an item contains other items, a  $\textcircled$  or  $\boxdot$  appears to the left of that item's checkbox. You can expand an item to see and select the items it contains, or collapse an expanded item if you do not want to display its contents. You can also expand or collapse all of the items in the list.

#### To expand an item:

• Click the 🛨 beside the item.

## To collapse an expanded item:

#### To expand all of the items in the list:

• Right-click any item in the list, and then select Expand All.

#### To collapse all of the items in the list:

• Right-click any item in the list, and then select Collapse All.

## Selecting Groups of Items

You can select all of the items in the list, or all of the sub-items of an item in the list. You can also clear all selections or all selections of an item's sub-items.

## To select all of the items in the list:

• Right-click any item in the list, and then select Check All.

To select all of the sub-items of an item in the list:

• Right-click the item, and then select Check SubTree.

## To clear all selections in the list:

• Right-click any item in the list, and then select Uncheck All.

## To clear all selections of an item's sub-items:

• Right-click the item, and then select Uncheck SubTree.

## Using Find to Locate an Item in the List

To help you find items in the list quickly, the Multi-Select box contains a Find option. This option enables you to filter the list so that it only displays items that include the sequence of letters you specify.

#### To use the Find option:

• At the top of the Multi-Select box, in the **Find** field, type a letter or sequence of letters that appears in the item you are looking for. The list is filtered as you type; only those items that contain the sequence you typed are displayed.

## **Displaying Selected Items Only**

In the Standard Multi-Select box, you can choose to display only those items that are currently selected.

#### To display only those items that are currently selected:

• At the top of the Standard Multi-Select box, click Selected.

### To switch back to display of all items:

• At the top of the Standard Multi-Select box, click All.

## Removing Items from the List of Selected Agents

In the Agent Multi-Select box, you can remove items from the list of selected agents in the right column as required.

#### To remove items from the list of selected agents:

- 1. In the list of selected agents, select the workgroups and agents you want to remove. Hold down the **Ctrl** key to select multiple items, or the **Shift** key to select a group of adjacent items (by selecting the first and last item in the group).
- 2. Click Remove. The items are removed from the list.

## **Negative Conditions**

By default, a condition is met when one or more of the items selected for a field are true found in a call or are true for a call. You can also choose to define negative conditions for many fields. When you define a negative condition, the condition is met when none of the items selected for the field are found in the call or are true for the call. For example, you can choose to find all calls to which Categories A, B, and C do not apply.

When it is possible to define a negative condition for a field, a Not ()) button appears to the left of the field.

To define a negative condition for a field:

- 1. Click the Not button beside the field. The button is turned on, and looks like this Not.
- 2. Select the conditions for the field as usual. These are the conditions that a call must not fulfill in order to be included in the search results.

## Adding a Line to a Filter

When you select multiple items in a Multi-Select box, an OR logical relationship is defined between the items. For example, if you select two Categories, a call that belongs to either of the two Categories meets the condition. If you want to define multiple conditions that must all be met in order for a call to be included in the search results, you must define each of the conditions in a separate line. For example, if you want to find calls that belong both to Category A and to Category B, you have to select Category A in the first field of the Category, then add a new line to the Category filter and select Category B in the new field it contains.

## To add a line to a filter:

• Click the to the right an existing line in the filter. A new line is added below the existing line, with the word And at the beginning of the line.

Not	5 Selected	.⊥	[+]
And Not	3 Selected	.⊥	[×]

New line added to filter

## **Available Filters**

This section explains the filters that are available in each filter group.

## **General Filters**

The general filters, which appear at the top of the Filter Panel, are always visible. The following filters are in this group:

Filter	Description					
Interaction	Select the types of interactions to include in the search.					
Туре	Note: This set of filters is not displayed if your system only includes calls (see About Calls and Interactions).					
Language	Select the language or languages of the calls you want to include in the search.					
	<b>Note:</b> In some systems, some or all calls do not undergo speech-recognition processing. In these systems, the option <b>No Speech Recognition</b> appears in the list of Languages. Select this value to include calls that did not undergo speech recognition processing.					
	Note: This set of filters is not displayed if your system only includes one language, and all calls undergo speech-recognition processing.					
Date Range	Select the range of dates to include in the search. The following options are available:					
	• All: This is the default value, which includes all calls in the database.					
	• Yesterday: Filters calls recorded on the previous day from 00:00 until 23:59.					
	• <b>Today:</b> Filters calls recorded on the same day from 00:00 until the exact time the search is performed.					
	Week to Date: Filters calls recorded from the beginning of the current week (the last Sunday at 00:00)     until the exact time and date the search is performed. Note: In the U.S., the week starts on Sundays and     ends on Saturdays; for users with Europe-localized versions of the software, the week starts on     Mondays and ends on Sundays.					
	• Last 7 Days: Filters calls from seven days prior to today (at 0:00) until the exact time and date the search is performed.					
	• Last Week: Filters calls from the beginning through the end of the previous week.					
	• Month to Date: Filters calls from the first day of the current month at 00:00 until the exact time and date the search is performed.					
	• Last 30 Days: Filters calls from thirty days prior to today (at 00:00) until the exact time and date the search is performed.					

	<ul> <li>Last Month: Filters calls from 00:00 on the first day until 23:59 on the last day of the previous month.</li> <li>Quarter to Date: Filters calls from 00:00 on the first day of the current quarter until the exact time and date the search is performed.</li> </ul>
	• Last 90 Days: Filters calls from 90 days prior to today (at 00:00) until the exact time and date the search is performed.
	<ul> <li>Last Quarter: Filters calls from 00:00 on the first day until 23:59 on the last day of the previous quarter.</li> </ul>
	• <b>Custom:</b> Filters calls from any date range selected from the two drop-down windows displayed. You can specify the exact day, month, and year of both the beginning and ending dates.
	<b>Note:</b> The times given are for the time zone where your Web server is deployed, and therefore are not necessarily the same as the times where you are physically located.
Limit Processing	Specify the maximum number of calls to reprocess when <u>Active Search</u> is selected.
	<b>Note:</b> If you do not have the required permissions, this field is not visible. In this case, the processing limit is fixed and you cannot change it.

## SpeechMiner Filters

The SpeechMiner filter group includes the following filters:

Filter	Description				
Categories	Select one or more Categories. Only calls in which at least one of these Categories was identified are included in the search results. If you add lines to the filter, only calls that meet the conditions of all the lines are included.				
Programs	Select one or more Programs. Only calls that were analyzed using one of these Programs are included in the search results. Since no call can belong to more than one program, you cannot add additional lines to this filter.				
Topics	Select one or more Topics. Only calls in which at least one of these Topics was identified are included in the search results. If you add lines to the filter, only calls that meet the conditions of all the lines are included.				
Any of the following terms	Define a list of one or more terms (words or phrases) that must be in the call. Multiple terms should be separated by pressing <b>Enter</b> to place them on different lines. Calls containing any of the terms are included in the results of the search. An excerpt from the text of the call in which the term appears is displayed in the <u>Interaction Grid</u> in the <b>Text</b> column.				
	If you add text boxes to the filter (by clicking the beside an existing text box), only calls that meet the conditions in all the text boxes are included.				
Limit Terms and Topics	Select one or more Speaker Types from the list. Only calls in which the Topics and terms specified in the search filters were found in one of the following situations are included in the search results:				
to Speaker Types	• For calls with only one audio channel (in which the system cannot identify who is speaking at any particular time in the call): At least one of the selected Speaker Types were involved in the call. For example, the Topic "Payments" was found at least once in the call, and one of the participants in the call was a speaker of type "Agent."				
	<ul> <li>For calls with more than one audio channel (which allows the system to identify who is speaking at every moment in the call): At least one of the selected Speaker Types mentioned the required Topics and/or terms at least once in the call. For example, the "Agent" in the call talked about the Topic "payments."</li> </ul>				

# **Interaction Properties Filters**

The Interaction Properties filter group includes the following filters:

Filter	Description
Agents	Select any combination of agents and workgroups. If you select a workgroup, all the agents in the workgroup are included in the search condition.
	You can also choose to search for the "current user" rather than a specific agent or workgroup. In this case, when the search runs, the condition changes depending on which user runs it. For example, if the user is agent 12, the search results will only include calls that were handled by agent 12. If the user is a manager, the "current user" option includes

data for the entire workgroup. This option is useful if you want to save the search criteria and share them with other users so they can run the search themselves on their own calls (see <u>Saved Searches</u> ).
<b>Note:</b> The "current user" feature will only work if the user's profile includes a mapping. For additional information about user profiles and mapping users to agents or workgroups, see <u>Managing Users</u> .
Select the range of call durations to include in the search: In the first field, select either Less Than, Between, or More Than. In the second text field or fields, fill in the number of seconds. If you selected Less Than, only calls that are shorter than the value you specified are included in the search. If you selected Between, calls whose durations are more than the first value and less than the second value are included in the search. If you selected More Than, only calls that are longer than the value you specified are included in the search.
Type any portion of a Call ID; any calls whose IDs include the characters you specify are included in the results. You can use the * character as a wildcard. Place it at the beginning or end of a sequence of characters to indicate that at least one other character must be in that position in the sequence. For example, type <b>*123</b> to specify Call IDs that begin with any sequence, but end with 123, or type <b>123*</b> to specify Call IDs that begin with 123 and end with any other sequence of characters.

## **Metadata Filters**

. .

....

Metadata is collected by the recording system and relayed by it to SpeechMiner. The types of available metadata vary from system to system. You can select any type of metadata available in your system and, if you wish, you can specify a value for it. The search results will only include calls for which the selected type of metadata has a value defined, and, if you specify a value, for which the defined value equals the specified value.

To specify a value for a type of metadata:

- 1. In the Name field, select one of the available types of metadata.
- 2. If you want to specify a value for the selected type of metadata, in the **Value** field, type the required value for that type of metadata.

## **User Actions Filters**

User Action filters let you search for calls based on how SpeechMiner users interacted with them after they were recorded.

Filter	Description
Call Comment: Text	Specify text that must appear in a comment that a user added to a call. Only calls that contain comments in which this text is found are included in the search results. If you leave this field blank, calls that contain comments from the users selected in the next field are included in the search results, regardless of the contents of the comments.
Call Comment: User	Select the users who must have added comments to a call. Only calls that contain comments from the selected users are included in the search results.
Call Playback By	Select the users who must have played a call. Only calls that were played back by the selected users are included in the search results.
Form Filled By	Select the users who must have filled in a feedback form about a call. Only calls for which forms were filled in by the selected users are included in the search results
Quality Checked By	Select the users who must have checked the quality of a call. Only calls whose quality was checked by the selected users are included in the search results

## Audit and Implementation Filters

If the Events grid type is selected, this filter group appears in the Filter Panel. The group includes the following filters:

Filter Description			
 Confidence threshold	Select the minimum Confidence value required. Only Events whose Confidence values are at least this high are included in the search results.		

	<b>Note:</b> The Confidence value is generated by SpeechMiner during call processing. It indicates how reliable the identification of the Event is; the higher the value, the greater the degree of certainty.						
Term ID	Specify the ID number of a term that is included in a Topic.						
	Note: This field only appears if you have Event Audit permissions.						
Note: The Term ID of each term that is found during a search appears in the Event Grid.							
Exclude audited events	Select this checkbox to exclude calls that have already been audited from the search.						
TP, FP, SFP	Select the audit ratings required. Only audited Events whose ratings match one of the selected types are included in the search results.						

## Saving the Query

After you have selected your search criteria, you can save the criteria in the system as a Saved Search. Then if you want to run the search again, you can do so without redefining the criteria. Saved Searches can be accessed in the <u>Saved Searches</u> tab. They can also be attached to <u>Coaching</u> sessions.

## To save your search criteria as a Saved Search:

- 1. At the top of the Filter Panel, click **Save**. You are prompted to provide a name for the query.
- 2. In the text field, type a name for the query and then click **OK**. The search criteria are saved as a Saved Search, and the name you specified appears at the top of the search form.

If you opened the search criteria by selecting a Saved Search in the <u>Saved Searches</u> tab, you can choose either to save the current search criteria with the same name or as a new Saved Search with a new name. In this case, in addition to the **Save** option, a **Save** as option appears at the top of the Filter Panel. If you click **Save**, the search criteria are saved under the original name; if you click **Save** as, you are prompted to provide a name for the new query.

## Generating a Link to the Query

After you have selected your search criteria, you can generate and save a Permalink to the query. To run the search again, you need only open the link in a browser.

Note: For additional information, see Permalinks.

## To create a Permalink to the current search criteria:

• At the top of the Filter Panel, select Permalink. A Permalink dialog box opens and displays the Permalink.

## Saving the Query as a Queue

You can save the current search criteria as a queue for <u>Quality Monitoring</u>. When you do, the queue appears in your <u>Queues</u> screen and your <u>My Queues</u> widget. For a detailed description of this feature, see <u>Quality Monitoring</u>.

#### To save the current search criteria as a quality-monitoring queue:

- 1. At the upper-right of the screen, click Save As Queue. A New Queue dialog box opens.
- 2. Fill in the dialog box. (For additional information, see <u>Quality Monitoring</u>.)
- 3. Click **Save**. The search criteria are saved as a queue.

## **Deleting Filter Conditions**

You can clear all of the filter conditions in order to begin defining new conditions from scratch..

## To clear all the filter conditions:

- 1. At the top of the Filter Panel, click **Clear Filters**. You are prompted to confirm that you want to delete all of the currently defined filters.
- 2. Click Yes. The filters are cleared.

## See also

Using Text Mode Performing a Search Using an Event Grid Performing a Quick Search for Terms

Home > Search > Searching for Interactions > Using Text Mode

# Using Text Mode

Search criteria can be specified in the Filter Panel in one of two modes:

- Standard mode: The user selects options from lists in each filter category
- Text mode: The user types the search criteria in a text box using a specified syntax

In general, Standard mode is easier to use. In addition, it includes the full range of search options available, while Text mode only includes the more basic options. However, in some cases, Super Users who know exactly what they want to include in their search criteria may find it faster to type the criteria in Text mode.

Search	(«						
<u>Save</u> <u>Permalink</u> <u>Clear Filters</u>	==						
T:Adjustments,Deposit C:Financial,Agitation Early in Call D:Week to Date L:American English							
Please use: * T: topic1, topic2 * C: category1, category2 * D: date (CD: custom date) * L: language							
Search							

Filter Panel in Text mode

You can switch back and forth between the two modes while you are in the process of defining search criteria. The display in each mode is automatically updated to include the changes that were made in the other mode.

This section explains how to use Text mode. For information about using Standard mode, see Defining Search Criteria.

## Switching to and from Text Mode

You can open Text mode at any time while you are defining search criteria. The criteria that are currently selected are displayed in both modes.

To switch into Text mode:

At the upper-right corner of the Filter Panel, click

#### To switch into Standard mode:

At the upper-right corner of the Filter Panel, click <a>E</a>.

# Defining a Filter Condition in Text Mode

You define filter conditions by typing the code for the type of filter and selecting the condition from a dropdown menu.

## **Filter Codes**

You can use the following codes in Text mode:

Code	Description
Т	Торіс
С	Category
D	Date
CD	Custom Date
L	Language

## **Inserting Filter Conditions**

You can insert one language and one date condition, and multiple Category and Topic conditions. Each Category and Topic condition can also include multiple items. The logical relationship between items within a single condition is OR - if any of the items are in the call, the call will be included in the search results. The logical relationship between separate conditions is AND - only calls that meet both conditions are included in the search results.

1. In the text field, type the code of the type of filter you want to use, followed by a colon (:). A dropdown menu (or date and time selectors, if you type the CD code) opens and displays a list of the available options for the filter.



Dropdown menu for the Topics option (code T).

<u>Events</u>

Date and time selectors for the Custom Date option (code CD)

2. Select the required option from the list. The dropdown menu closes and the option appears in the text field.

**Note:** To filter the list, begin typing a sequence of characters that appear in the name of the option. Only those options that contain the specified sequence of characters are displayed.

- 3. For the Categories and Topics filters, if you want to add an additional selection to the filter, type a comma (,). The relevant dropdown menu opens again. Select the additional option as explained above.
- 4. To add another filter condition, press Enter and then repeat the steps above.

**Note:** You can insert multiple Category and Topic filter conditions. The search results will only include calls or Events that match all of the filter conditions. For example, if you insert two Category conditions, **C:Accounting** and **C:Short Calls**, only calls that are in both Categories are included in the search results. Note, however, that within a single filter condition, if you select multiple items, the logical relationship between the items is OR. That is, if any of the items is found in a call, the call is included in the search results. For example, if you insert one condition, **C:Accounting, Short Calls**, calls that are in either Category are included in the search results.

## **Deleting Filter Conditions**

You can delete filter conditions as necessary by editing the text field. In addition, you can clear all of the filter conditions. Note that if you clear all filter conditions, even conditions that are only visible in Standard mode, and cannot be seen in Text mode, are deleted.

### To delete a filter condition:

· Select the condition and press Delete.

## To clear all the filter conditions:

- 1. At the top of the Filter Panel, click **Clear Filters**. You are prompted to confirm that you want to delete all of the currently defined filters (including those that are not currently visible).
- 2. Click Yes. The filters are cleared.

## See also

Defining Search Criteria

Performing a Search Using an Event Grid Performing a Quick Search for Terms

Home > Search > Searching for Interactions > Performing a Search

# Performing a Search

Once you have selected the required parameter values for a Search, as explained under <u>Defining Search Criteria</u>, you can perform a search. The search results are displayed in a grid on the right side of the screen. The grid is sorted either by relevance or by date, depending on the <u>sorting method</u> that was selected when you initiated the search. It either contains a list of interactions (<u>Interaction Grid</u>) or a list of Events (<u>Event Grid</u>), depending on which <u>grid type</u> was selected. You can change the sorting method whenever you wish. If the search included Topics or terms, you can also change the grid type. In addition, after you run a search, you can hide the Filter Panel, to make more room for the display of the search results.

**Note:** You can export or forward calls from the list of search results, or add the calls to a Call List. For additional information about these options, see <u>Using an Interaction Grid</u>.

## To perform a search:

• At either the top or the bottom of the Filter Panel, click **Search**. The search is performed, and the results are displayed in a grid to the right of the panel.

## **Choosing the Sorting Method**

During a search, SpeechMiner continues searching for items that match your search criteria until one of two things occurs:

- All the items in the database are checked for matches with the search criteria.
- The processing limit (defined in the system's database configuration settings) is reached. For example, if the processing limit is 1000, the first 1000 calls that match the search criteria are retrieved and the search ends.

You can choose the sorting method that is employed during the search. This can be significant if the database contains more items that match your search criteria than the processing limit. Two sorting methods are available:

- By date: The newest items that match your search criteria are retrieved
- By relevance: The items that most closely match your search criteria are retrieved

**Note:** Initially, the search results are sorted in the grid based on the sorting method. You can then choose to sort the results based on any column (see <u>Sorting the Columns</u>). Sorting by column changes the order in which the items that were found are displayed, but does not affect which items are included in the list. When you choose a sorting method, the items that are included in the list may be effected.

The current sorting method appears as plain text at the top of the grid. Beside it is a link that activates the alternative method. (See #3 in the illustration <u>above</u>, in which the current selection is **Sort by date**.)

#### To choose the sorting method of the search:

• At the top of the grid, select **Sort by date** to retrieve calls in chronological order, or **Sort by relevance** to retrieve calls in order of relevance. The search runs again, and the new results appear in the grid.

## Choosing the Grid Type

When a search includes Terms, Topics, and/or Term IDs, the results can be displayed as a list of interactions or as a list of Events. When the grid contains a list of interactions, it offers the standard functionality of the <u>Interaction Grid</u>. You can use it to open interactions, export them, save them in interaction lists, etc. When the grid contains a list of Events, the columns of the grid are somewhat different from those of the Interaction Grid, and the functionality available is also slightly different, as explained under <u>Using an Event Grid</u>.

The current grid type appears as plain text at the top of the grid. Beside it is a link that activates the alternative method. (See #4 in the illustration <u>above</u>, in which the current selection is **Interactions**.)

Note: Searches for Events can only be performed on calls. Other types of interactions are not included in Event searches.

To change the grid from a list of interactions to a list of Events or vice versa:

• At the top of the grid, select **Events** to view a list of Events or **Interactions** to view a list of interactions. The search runs again, and the new results appear in the grid.

## **Related Searches**

When a search includes Terms, the results may include a "related search" that is suggested by the system. For example, if you search for the term "order," the list of results includes interactions in which "order" appears. If the system finds that another term is often found in these same interactions, it may suggest a new search for interactions in which both terms appear. In the example below, the system has found that the term "within" is related to "order" in this way, and suggests performing a search for interactions in which both "order" and "within" appear.

When the system suggests a related search, the suggestion appears above the Interaction Grid after the initial search is performed.

Views	Search	E	plore		Re	ports	Qua	lity	Coaching
New Searc	h								
New Searc	h Saved Se	earches		Cont	ent Brows	ser			
Search		(«	Sort	by da	te <u>Sort b</u>	y relevan	<u>ce</u>   Intera	actions <u>Events</u>	
<u>Save</u> <u>Permalin</u> l	<u>k</u> <u>Clear Filters</u>	2	🕀 Ca	lls, En	nails Last	90 Days,	Sorting By a	late	
🖂 cuils			Sear	ches	related	to "orde	er": <u>order v</u>	within	
🔽 Emails			View	1 - 10	0 of 496		🕒 Prev	Next	🖸 Batc
Chats					Open	Interac	Inte	eraction ID	Da
Texts			1		•	1008	11_01_11.4	14.06.100	06/11/
Social Date Range Last 90 Daγs			2		•	1006	11_01_10.	52.53.200	06/11/
			3		•	1017	11_01_12.	53.31.100	06/11/
	1/12 12:00 AM		4		•	1002	11_01_10.1	16.36.500	06/11/
	9/12 02:48 AM		5		•	1012	11_01_12.	29.56.000	06/11/
Expand All / C	Collapse All		6			4964	allen-p_all_	documents100	05/24/
SpeechMi	iner		7			4965	allen-p_all_	documents101	05/24/
Categories		_	8			4976	allen-p_all_	documents111	05/24/
Not 2 Sel	ected 🔍	[+]	9			4975	allen-p_all_	documents110	05/24/
Programs		_	10			4962	allen-p_all_	documents1	05/24/
Not Any		-	11		•	4927	012320101	82451472505_	u33 <sup>.</sup> 05/14/
Topics			12		•	4922	012320101	81816473505_	u23 <sup>.</sup> 05/14/
Not Any	3	[+]	13		•	4919	012320101	81701472705_	u18:05/14/
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	following terms	_	14		•	4903	012320101	75936474105_	u53 <sup>.</sup> 05/14/
orde	r	[+]	15		•	4901	012320101	75450473905_	u48 <sup>.</sup> 05/14/
		1.1	16			4007	040000404	- 75217473305	

**Related-search suggestion** 

#### To run a related search:

• In the related-search suggestion, click the suggested term or terms. (For example, click the "order within" link.) The search runs and the results are displayed in an Interaction Grid.

SpeechMiner®	arch	Ex	plore		Re	ports	Quality		Coach
New Search									
New Search	Saved Sea	rches		Conti	ent Brow	ser			
Search		(«	Sort	by da	<u>te</u> Sort	by relevance	Interactio	ns <u>Even</u>	
Save <u>Permalink</u> Clear	Filters	2	🕀 Ca	lls, En	nails Last	:90 Days, So	rting By releva	ance	
Calls			View	1 - 51	of 51	0	Prev C	Next	O E
🔽 Emails			TION		Open	Interac	Interact		
Chats			1		•	4188 01	23201012050	5474505	u55:05/
Texts			2				23201012050	and the second second	
Social Date Range			3				23201009484		
Last 90 Days	-		4				23201000484		-
From: 04/01/12 12:			5				23201000404	0.9603540-0406	
To: 06/29/12 03:			6		-		_01_13.26.57	2012-012-012-012-012-012-012-012-012-012	_000 007
Expand All / Collapse	All		7				23201009290		
SpeechMiner			8					2010/2012/2012	2.5.00 %
Categories			9		-		23201011353	81 10 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10	31 (415)(41%)
Not 2 Selected	.⊥	[+]			-		23201011353	0.000.000.000.000	
Programs			10				23201009290		
Not Any	▼		11				23201015184		
Topics			12				23201015184		
Not Any	.⊥	[+]	13				23201015265	898.000 BBBB 21	1000
Any of the followin	g terms		14				23201015265	1122130000	
order			15	-			23201009450	104-501000	202.09
		[+]	16		•		23201009450	201 2010-2010-2010-2010-2010-2010-2010-2	30 (45)(64%
within			17		•		23201017355	2003.000.0000	a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a
And		[×]	18		•		23201017355		
			19		•	4350 01	23201012523	8474505	_u25 <sup>,</sup> 05,
Limit Terms & Topic		Types	20		•	2597 01	23201012523	8474505	_u35 <sup>.</sup> 05/
Any	*		21		•	4784 01	23201016351	7474105	_u33 <sup>.</sup> 05/

Related-search results

# **Spelling Corrections**

When a search includes Terms, the system may determine that one or more of the terms was spelled incorrectly. In this case, it attempts to correct the apparent errors, and performs the search using the corrected terms. When this occurs, the spelling correction is indicated by a note above the Interaction Grid.

Views	Search	Exp	olore		Rej	ports	Qua	lity	Coaching
New Search	1								
New Search	Saved S	earches	(	Ionte	ent Brows	ser			
		6			0 1977 1999				
Search		(«	Sort k	y dal	te Sort	by relevar	nce Inter	ractions <u>Even</u>	<u>is</u>
<u>Save</u> <u>Permalink</u>	<u>Clear Filters</u>	•		s, Em	ails Last	90 Days,	Sorting By r	elevance	
Calis			Show	ing I	results f	for <u>orde</u>	r instead o	of <u>ordr</u>	
🗹 Emails			View 1	- 10	0 of 496		🕒 Prev	Next	😳 Batch A
Chats					Open	Interac	Inte	eraction ID	Date
Social			1			4976	allen-p_all_	documents111	05/24/12 0
Date Range			2			4975	allen-p_all_	documents110	05/24/12 0
Last 90 D	lavs 🔽		3			4965	allen-p_all_	documents101	05/24/12 0
	/12 12:00 AM		4			4964	allen-p_all_	documents100	05/24/12 0
To: 06/29	M 2 03:04 AM		5			4962	allen-p_all_	documents1	05/24/12 0
Expand All / Co	ollapse All		6		•	2736	012320101	35555474105_	_u27 <sup>.</sup> 05/12/12 0
SpeechMir	ner		7		•	4489	012320101	35555474105_	_u21:05/14/12 0
Categories			8		•	2052	012320100	94509476505_	_u21:05/11/12 1
Not 2 Sele	ected 🔍	[+]	9		•	3805	012320100	94509476505_	_u18 <sup>.</sup> 05/13/12 1
Programs		_	10		•	4333	012320101	24912474705_	_u00 <sup>.</sup> 05/14/12 0
Not Any			11		•	2580	012320101	24912474705_	_u05 <sup>.</sup> 05/12/12 0
Topics			12		•	4784	012320101	63517474105	_u33 <sup>.</sup> 05/14/12 (
Not Any	and a second	[+]	13		•	3031	012320101	- 63517474105	- _u44 <sup>.</sup> 05/12/12(
	ollowing terms	-	14		•				- _u49 <sup>.</sup> 05/11/12(
ordr		[4]	15	П	•				u53 <sup>.</sup> 05/13/12 1
		[+]	16	-				92900472905	

Spelling corrected

#### To repeat the search with the original terms you typed:

• In the spelling-correction note, click the original terms.

## **Active Search**

You can choose to reprocess calls in order to see if they contain terms that were not sought in their original processing. When you do this, SpeechMiner reprocesses the calls and, as it does so, it gives added weight to the terms listed in the **Terms** field of the search form. This helps to ensure that more occurences of the term will be found if they exist. Reprocessing is performed after an initial search for the required terms has been performed using the results of the original call processing.

## To reprocess calls:

- 1. Type the terms you want to search for in the Terms field.
- 2. Fill in the other search parameters as required.

**Note:** If the **Language** filter appears in the Filter Panel, make sure to select one of the languages. Active Search is not available unless a language is selected.

- 3. Click Search. The search is performed and the results appear in the grid on the right side of the screen.
- 4. At the upper-right of the grid, click **Active Search**. A dialog box opens and prompts you to provide a name for your new query.
- 5. Type a name for the query, and then click **OK**. The query begins to run, and is also saved as a <u>Saved Search</u>. When the processing of the query is completed, the results appear in the grid.

Note: you can see the status of the Active Search as it runs in the <u>Saved Search</u> screen.

## Hiding the Filter Panel

After you specify search criteria and run a search, you may want to hide the Filter Panel while you are working with the search results, because this will allow you to use a larger portion of the screen for the interaction grid.

Viev	us.	Search	Explore	Reports	Quality	Foa	:hina ·	Tools	Help	Action Items (7) V Adr		og Out
	v Search				27						01:16 AM +03:00	
_	New Search	Saved Sea	rches Conter	nt Browser								
		54104 504	conto			Queu	e Name: Finan	cial-order				
»)	Sort by date									Active Sea	rch Save As Qu	ueue
± Ca	lls Between (	1/01/70 and 01/01/	38, Sorting By date									
/iew	1 - 55 of 55	C Prev	Next	Batch Actions Date / Time	Workgroup	Agent	Program	Category	Т	ext Duration	-	Column
1		1008 11 01		06/11/12 03:03 PM	w	james	UTOPYINC	Financial		m i . well if we don't require 0:14:42	Deposit	
2		1017 11 01		06/11/12 05:47 AM		tilda	UTOPYINC	Financial		wanderelltcryears.(0:08:20	Deposit	
3				08:05/14/12 03:08 PM	a	tod	UTOPYINC	Financial		urs to confirm the order v 0:11:35	Balance Inquiry	
4			-	37:05/14/12 12:37 PM	b	eve	UTOPYINC	Financial		seller the to get in telling th 0:08:49	Adjustments	
5				32:05/14/12 11:32 AM	b	eithan	UTOPYINC	Financial		asing . numbers my order 0:24:23	Adjustments	
6				20:05/14/12 03:20 AM	d	eve	UTOPYINC	Financial	the second se	nna , you a message your 0:11:14	Balance Inquiry	
7				55 <sup>.</sup> 05/13/12 10:55 PM	c	shila	UTOPYINC	Financial	and a second	as . or . current got at ou 0:03:39	Adjustments	
8		4137 012320	- 10115013474305_u	29:05/13/12:09:29 PM	a	charles	UTOPYINC	Financial	ss no orders to what is	t . hmm update your about 0:26:46	Adjustments	
9		4131 012320	10114857474905_u	19:05/13/12:09:19 PM	b	shila	UTOPYINC	Financial	chase <mark>order</mark> of the call .	the tickets first . these pric 0:23:30	Collections	
10		4126 012320	10114636473105_u	14:05/13/12:09:14 PM	a	florence	UTOPYINC	Financial	pping <mark>order</mark> i got cancele	d in . have the tickets and .0:06:26	Deposit	
11		4117 012320	10114330475905_u	59:05/13/12:08:59 PM	b	tod	UTOPYINC	Financial	to . <mark>order</mark> number i could	reference . offer pull up yc 0:06:08	Balance Inquiry	
12		4002 012320	10110326472705_u	44:05/13/12 05:44 PM	b	bob	UTOPYINC	Financial	, the <mark>order</mark> to find out of	hat is a possibility you hav 0:09:37	Adjustments	
13		3994 012320	10110054475105_u	34: 05/13/12 05:34 PM	d	charles	UTOPYINC	Financial	s the <mark>order</mark> number whic	h i will also give you can er0:07:05	Deposit	
14		3805 012320	10094509476505_u	18:05/13/12 12:18 PM	а	shila	UTOPYINC	Financial	e the <mark>order</mark> , your tax ey	e dee number have the <mark>orc</mark> 0:12:38	2 Topics	
15		3761 012320	10093040475705_u	03:05/13/12 11:03 AM	с	bob	UTOPYINC	Financial	other <mark>orders</mark> central time	. deposit they're kinda sev 0:22:17	Balance Inquiry	
16		3684 012320	10090431476305_u	52 05/13/12 08:52 AM	b	shila	UTOPYINC	Financial	ce an <mark>order</mark> yes going or	a . and like using uniforms 0:12:02	Adjustments	
17		3601 012320	10083143475505_u	36 05/13/12 06:36 AM	с	bob	UTOPYINC	Financial	e the <mark>order</mark> and , just get	the box that that's it . trans 0:27:47	Deposit	
18		3288 012320	10060539474105_u	50°05/12/12 09:50 PM	с	tod	UTOPYINC	Financial	e the <mark>order</mark> , gonna get a	n email saying <mark>orders</mark> . se0:07:59	Deposit	
19		3269 012320	10054142473305 u	20°05/12/12 09:20 PM	с	eithan	UTOPYINC	Financial	f the order number it's	my name is tony to not on . 0:14:31	Adjustments	

Filter Panel hidden

## To hide the Filter Panel:

• At the upper-right of the Filter Panel, click

## To display the Filter Panel when it is hidden:

• On the left side of the screen, click 2.

## See also

Defining Search Criteria Using Text Mode Using an Event Grid Performing a Quick Search for Terms

Home > Search > Searching for Interactions > Using an Event Grid

# Using an Event Grid

When you search for calls by Event, the results are presented in an Event Grid. The Event Grid is identical in structure to an Interaction Grid, but it differs in a number of ways:

- The items listed in an Event Grid are Events, not calls. Thus, the same call may appear more than once in the grid, if Events matching the search criteria are found in it multiple times.
- The columns of an Event Grid are different from the columns of an Interaction Grid.

- When you play back an Event that is in the grid, the entire call in which the Event was found is opened in the Media Player, but playback begins at the beginning of the Event.
- Events can be audited in an Event Grid.
- Only calls are included in Event searches; other types of interactions never appear in Event Grids.

This section describes the columns of Event Grids, and explains how to audit Events. For general information about the functionality of Event Grids, including information about choosing which columns to display and choosing a column to sort the list by, see <u>Using an Interaction Grid</u>.

Vie	vs	Search	Explore	Reports	Quality C	oaching	Tools	Help	, ,	Action Items	(8) 🔻 Administra	ator Log Ou
Nev	/ Search						1				08/29/12 12:4	4 AM +03:00 UTC
	New Search	Saved Search	hes	Content Browser								
					Se	arch Name: O	rder - term					
2		Sort by relevance	Interaction:	Events							Active Search	Save As Queue
🗄 Ev	ents Last Quar	ter, Sorting By relev	ance									
View	1 - 10 of 25	C Prev	Next		[ext	Confidence	Plant Time	End Time	Term ID	Agent	Date / Time	Column
												interacti
1		TP/FP/SFP/Clear		there's an emergency o	rder to go	66	0:07:46	0:07:47	PSUT_Emergency_48	tod 0	5/03/12 06:49 AM	
2		TP/FP/SFP/Clear		looks like we have a ser	vice order scheduled for	32	0:02:01	0:02:03	PSUT_Status_Update_61	eithan 0	5/12/12 05:19 PM	
3		TP/FP/SFP/Clear		looks like we have a ser	vice order scheduled for	32	0:02:01	0:02:03	PSUT_Status_Update_61	tod 0	5/14/12 06:08 PM	
4		TP/FP/SFP/Clear		order		28	0:10:35	0:10:35	activeSearchResult	shila 0	5/14/12 07:23 PM	
5		TP/FP/SFP/Clear		see if the order is still so	heduled for today	26	0:10:50	0:10:52	PSUT_Status_Update_48	florence 0	5/14/12 03:33 PM	
6		TP/FP/SFP/Clear		see if the order is still so	heduled for today	26	0:10:50	0:10:52	PSUT_Status_Update_48	bob 0	5/12/12 02:44 PM	
7		TP/FP/SFP/Clear		we have an order for s	ervice to go under your nam	e 24	0:03:21	0:03:23	PSUT_Service_Activation_or	bob 0	5/03/12 12:55 PM	
8		TP/FP/SFP/Clear		order		24	0:29:11	0:29:13	activeSearchResult	shila 0	5/14/12 07:33 PM	
9		TP/FP/SFP/Clear		i'm calling to know when	my order will arrive	21	0:00:06	0:00:08	PSUT_Status_Update_24	jackson 0	5/03/12 01:06 PM	
10		TP/FP/SFP/Clear		looks like we have a ser	vice order scheduled for	20	0:01:36	0:01:38	PSUT_Status_Update_61	tod 0	5/12/12 05:49 PM	
•												1

**Event Grid** 

# Columns in an Event Grid

The Event Grid can display any or all of the columns listed below. In addition, Event Grids may contain additional columns in which metadata specific to your system is displayed.

Column	Description
Open	A Play (>) button; clicking the button opens the call in the Media Player.
TP/FP	If the Event has been audited, one of the following values is selected, and the entire cell is color-coded:
	<ul> <li>TP: True Positive, color-coded green</li> <li>FP: False Positive, color-coded peach</li> <li>SFP: Sense False Positive, color-coded pink</li> <li>If you have Event Auditor permissions, you can select a value in this column. To select a value, click it. To clear the selection when the permission of the permis</li></ul>
	selection, click Clear. Note: If you selected Exclude events that have been audited before you initiated your search, previously audited Events will not appear in the grid.
Text	If the Event was a linguistic event, the text of the Event
Confidence	A value indicating how reliable the identification of Events in the call is. The higher the number, the greater the degree of certainty. You can use this information to choose calls for auditing. Sort the list by this column (by clicking in the column title) and select those calls whose Confidence value is below a certain threshold.
	Note: This number is not a percentage, but it does range from 1 to 100.
Start Time	The start time of the Event, offset from the start of the call, in hours:minutes:seconds
End Time	The end time of the Event, offset from the start of the call, in hours:minutes:seconds
Term ID	The ID number of the term that was identified in the Topic

56 . Search

Resource Name	The name of the Topic corresponding to the Event
Agent	The agent who handled the call
Date/Time	The start date and time (in hours:minutes) of the call
Program	The program that was used to process the call
Interaction ID	A unique number assigned to the call by the external recording system
Interaction ID Internal	A unique number assigned to the call by SpeechMiner
Auditor	If the Event was audited, the name of the auditor

# Auditing an Event

Each linguistic Event that is recognized in a call can be audited. This means that a SpeechMiner user listens to the Event and then rates the accuracy of the identification. Auditing is an important part of fine-tuning the SpeechMiner's speech-recognition accuracy.

In order to audit an Event, the auditor listens to the Event, and then rates the accuracy of the Event recognition by selecting one of the following values in the TP/FP column of the Event Grid.:

- **TP** (True Positive): The Event was correctly identified by SpeechMiner.
- FP (False Positive): The Event was incorrectly identified by SpeechMiner.
- SFP (Sense False Positive): The words were correctly identified by SpeechMiner, but they were used in a sense that does not match the intent of the Topic.

Summary information about Event auditing in your system can be seen in the <u>Audit Analysis</u> and <u>Topic Analysis - Audits</u> reports. Existing audit data can be managed globally in the <u>Calls Admin</u> screen.

## See also

Defining Search Criteria Using Text Mode Performing a Search Performing a Quick Search for Terms

Home > Search > Searching for Interactions > Performing a Quick Search for Terms

# Performing a Quick Search for Terms

You can perform a search for terms from any screen using the **Search** box in the upper-right corner of the screen. All calls from the last 30 days are included in the search. As you type, the **Search** box may offer search suggestions for terms that are related to the terms you type.

## To perform a quick search for terms:

1. In any screen, in the **Search** box, type one or more terms you want to search for. Separate multiple terms with spaces or commas.

Note: Multiple terms are inserted in the search query with AND operators. That is, if you type in two words, the search will find calls in which both words appear.



2. If search suggestions appear below the Search box, and you want to select one of them, click the suggestion. The text you

typed is replaced by the suggestion you selected.

phone <u>social number</u> what <u>social number</u>	social n	umber 🔎

Search suggestions below the Search box

3. Click 2. The search is performed, the **New Search** tab opens, and the results are displayed in it. The terms you specified appear in the Filter Panel, in the SpeechMiner filter group.

SpeechMin <sub>Views</sub>	Search	Explore	Reports	Quality	Coaching	Tools	Help				Search	rator Log	g Ou
vew Search	1										07/03/12 12:	30 AM +03:00 L	итс
New Search	Saved Sea	rches	Content Browser										
Search		( Sur	by date Sort by re	levance Interactions	zents						Active Search	Save As Que	ue
we Permalink	Clear Filters	🔳 🗄 Ca	alis Last 30 Days, So	rting By relevance									
Calls		Т	erms: (what) AND (s	ocial) AND (number)									
Emails		Sea	rches related to "	what social number": 🗴	hat social <b>secu</b>	rity number what	social city numbe	what s	ocial state nur	nber			
Chats		View	/ 1 - 31 of 31	C Prev C Nex	🕒 Batch A	ctions						💼 Colu	um
Texts			Dopen Inte	raction ID Int Inte	action ID	Date / Time	Workgroup	Agent	Program	Category	Text	Duratio	m
Social		1		1029 11_01_14.5	3.39.600	07/02/12 06:24 AM	w	bob	UTOPYINC	2 Categories	in . what is your name what is your name .	to verify 0:02:59	
Languages	▼	2		1016 11_01_12.5	0.04.900	07/02/12 10:09 AM	w	bob	UTOPYINC	2 Categories	tomer <b>number</b> . plus . your account . hmm (	okay . to 0:02:53	
Any Date Range	Ý	3		1038 11_01_15.4	3.48.100	07/02/12 12:56 AM	w	bob	UTOPYINC	2 Categories	ter . what city and state . what street addre	ss there 0:02:46	
Last 30 D	ays 🔻	4		1021 11_01_13.2	6.57.100	07/02/12 11:50 AM	w	james	UTOPYINC	3 Categories	u got what city and state double , and stree	addres 0:14:49	
From: 06/04		5		1040 11_03_09.1	3.52.300	07/02/12 01:29 AM	w	shira	UTOPYINC	2 Categories	social . what is your social . time it and em	ail accol 0:11:40	
	/12 12:30 AM	6		1032 11_01_15.0	5.40.000	07/02/12 05:16 AM	w	lane	UTOPYINC	2 Categories	t and what address what that what addres	s would 0:06:03	
Expand All / Co	llapse All	7		1019 11_01_13.1	3.17.400	07/02/12 08:44 AM	w	shira	UTOPYINC	3 Categories	your <mark>social</mark> security number case you	r order r 0:09:58	
SpeechMin	ier	8		1034 11_01_15.2	5.13.300	07/02/12 03:00 AM	w	shira	UTOPYINC	2 Categories	okay what is your current address what cl	y and st 0:05:17	
Categories		9		1011 11_01_12.2	3.32.100	07/02/12 11:33 AM	w	james	UTOPYINC	2 Categories	okay <b>social</b> security <b>number</b> . neighbors ti	ne three 0:06:14	
Not Any	~	[+] 10		5053 11_01_12.2	3.32.100_u120205	07/02/12 05:12 PM	w	shira	UTOPYINC	2 Categories	okay <mark>social</mark> security <mark>number</mark> , neighbors ti	ne three 0:06:14	
Programs		11		1018 11_01_13.0	3.31.100	07/02/12 01:46 AM	w	bob	UTOPYINC	2 Categories	okay what are the and your social security	numbe 0:02:11	
Not Any	~	12		1008 11_01_11.1	\$.06.100	07/02/12 12:52 AM	w	james	UTOPYINC	3 Categories	for a <mark>social</mark> security number for , okay yo	ur name 0:14:42	
Topics		13		5049 11_01_11.1	4.06.100_u11020E	07/02/12 05:11 PM	w	jasmin	UTOPYINC	3 Categories	for a <mark>social</mark> security <b>number</b> for , okay yo	ur name 0:14:42	
Not Any	₹	[+] 14		1013 11_01_12.3	3.48.800	07/02/12 04:15 AM	w	jasmin	UTOPYINC	3 Categories	your what's your social security number	. calls . 10:04:20	
	ollowing terms	15		5055 11_01_12.3	3.48.800_u1202051	07/02/12 05:12 PM	w	jasmin	UTOPYINC	3 Categories	your what's your social security number	. calls .10:04:20	
what		[+] 16		1014 11_01_12.3	3.22.400	07/02/12 10:15 AM	w	jasmin	UTOPYINC	3 Categories	well what about what and what amount .p	aid wan 0:08:41	
				5054 11_01_12.3	3.22.400_u120205	07/02/12 05:12 PM	w	james	UTOPYINC	3 Categories	well what about what and what amount . p	aid wan 0:08:41	
socia	1	18		1020 11_01_13.2	3.24.800	07/02/12 11:29 AM	w	shira	UTOPYINC	2 Categories	sure what . loan i can get down there on th	s order 10:03:27	
And		[X] 19		1050 11_03_10.0	7.25.200	07/02/12 04:27 AM	w	jasmin	UTOPYINC	2 Categories	what is your social . your tax eye dee n	umber 0:12:03	
				1017 11_01_12.5	3.31.100 (	07/02/12 05:20 AM	w	bob	UTOPYINC	4 Categories	y and what city . how many middle yeah . s	ecurity r 0:08:20	
numbe	r			1033 11 01 15.1		07/02/12 11:39 AM	w	bob	UTOPYINC	2 Categories	ily . social security number , and your pho		

#### Search results

**Note:** As with any other search performed in the New Search tab, the system automatically corrects apparent <u>spelling errors</u> and makes suggestions for <u>related searches</u>.

## See also

Defining Search Criteria Using Text Mode Performing a Search Using an Event Grid

Home > Search > Saved Searches

# Saved Searches

Searches can be saved in one of two forms:

- Saved Search: The search is saved as a query. This means that the search criteria of a <u>Search</u> are saved. You can then run the search again using the same criteria whenever you need to do so.
- Call List: A static list of calls that were added to the list manually by selecting them from an Interaction Grid.

You can access both types of saved searches in the Saved Searches tab. You can also create new, empty Call Lists in this tab. (Calls

Lists can also be created on the fly in an Interaction Grid; see Adding Calls to a Call List.)

## To open the Saved Searches tab:

• In the Main Menu, under **Search**, select **Saved Searches**. The Saved Searches tab opens. The Saved Searches appear in the upper table, and the Call Lists appear in the lower table.

ew	5	Searc	ch	Explore	Reports	Quality	Coaching	Tools	Help	Action Items (7) 🔻	Administrate	or Log
ive	ed Sea	irches								07,	/01/12 11:08	PM +03:00
1	New Sea	rch	Saved Search	nes (	Content Browser							
	- I.		Na	ame:		Created By:		Actions:				
2	Saved	Searches: 8	8			Any	7					
		Display	Edit	Delete	Na	me 👌	Created By	Status	Sharing	Created On	Coaching	Permalin
		1.	<b>E</b>		All Interactions - Th	is Week	administrator	Finished	😝 - administrator, jsmith,	ibby, 5/24/2012 10:52:21 PM	Add	<u>Copy</u>
2		H.			Financial		administrator	Finished	<b>.</b>	5/9/2012 2:40:47 AM	Add	<u>Copy</u>
3			<b>E</b>		Financial - w Agitat	ion - Month to Date	administrator	Finished	즳 - jsmith, libby, mjones,	5/24/2012 11:01:43 PM	Add	<u>Copy</u>
1			E		Financial Calls		administrator	Finished	<b>.</b>	5/15/2012 2:52:12 AM	Add	Copy
5		ł.	<b>E</b>		Order		administrator	Finished	<b>.</b>	6/29/2012 7:37:37 PM	Add	<u>Copy</u>
6			<b>E</b>	Î	Service Issues		libby	Finished	즳 - administrator, libby,	5/25/2012 3:11:01 AM	Add	Copy
7		Hal	<b>E</b>		Short Financial Call	5	administrator	Finished	<b>.</b>	5/9/2012 2:42:20 AM	Add	<u>Copy</u>
в					Undetermined Cate	gories - This Week	administrator	Finished	😝 - jsmith, mjones,	5/24/2012 10:59:19 PM	Add	<u>Copy</u>
								He of Page 1	of 1 💀 🖬 10 💌			
			Na	ame:		Created By:		Actions:				
2	Call Lis	ts: 5	Γ			Any	Ţ.	0 🗎				
		Display	Delete		Name	•	Created By		Sharing	Saved On	Coaching	Permalin
				Elderly	y Callers		libby	즳 - administrator, js	mith, libby, mjones, libby,	5/25/2012 4:04:33 AM	Add	<u>Copy</u>
2				For Re	eview by Trainees		administrator	😝 - administrator, js	mith, libby, administrator,	5/24/2012 10:55:15 PM	Add	<u>Copy</u>
3		<b></b>		Friend	lly Atmosphere		administrator	💫 - administrator,		5/24/2012 10:54:26 PM	Add	Copy
1		ł		Late S	Shift		administrator	💫 - Default, adminis	trator,	5/24/2012 10:55:38 PM	Add	Copy
			Î	Sampl	les for Presentation		administrator	🔒 - administrator, m	iones administrator	5/24/2012 11:38:45 PM	Add	Сору

Saved Searches tab

# Columns in the Saved Searches and Call Lists Tables

The following columns appear in the Saved Searches and Call Lists tables:

Column	Description
	Select the checkbox to include the search in a Delete action (see <u>below</u> ).
	Note: If you did not create the search, this option is not available.
Display	Click the 🕮 icon to do the following:
	• Saved Search table: Run the search and display the results in an <u>Interaction Grid</u> or an <u>Event Grid</u> at the bottom of the screen. (The <u>type of grid</u> depends on which type was selected in the search's settings when it was saved.)
	Call List table: Display the list of calls in an <u>Interaction Grid</u> at the bottom of the screen.
Edit	Click the icon to open the Saved Search in the <u>New Search</u> tab, where you can change the parameters and settings and make use of all of the other features of the <u>New Search</u> tab.
	Note: Saved Searches only; not relevant to Call Lists.
Delete	Click the 🗰 icon to delete the search.
	Note: If you did not create the search, this option is not available, and the icon appears as a.
Name	The name of the search.
Created by	The name of the user who created the search
Status	The status of the Saved Search. The following statuses may appear:

	<ul> <li>Finished: The search was completed.</li> <li>Starting: The search is about to be executed. When this status appears, a Stop link appears beside it. Click the link to prevent the search from running. Processing stops and the status is changed to Stopping.</li> <li>Running: The search is being executed now. When this status appears, a Stop link appears beside it. Click the link to stop running the search. Processing stops and the status is changed to Stopping.</li> <li>Stopping: The Stop link was clicked during execution, and the search is in the process of stopping. When the process is completed, the status changes to Finished.</li> <li>Note: Saved Searches only; not relevant to Call Lists.</li> </ul>
Sharing	The names of the groups and users with whom the search is shared appear in the table beside the icon. Click the icon to open a dialog box in which you can select the groups and individual users with whom you want to share the search. The members of the selected groups and the selected users will see the search listed in their Saved Searches tab. They will be able to run Saved Searches and see the contents of saved Call Lists. <b>Note:</b> You can only modify or delete searches that you created. If you want to modify the search criteria of other searches, you must save them under a new name.
Created on	The date on which the search was created Note: Saved Searches only
Saved on	The date on which the Call List was initially saved. Note: Call Lists only
Coaching	Click Add to add the search to a Coaching session.
Permalink	Click <b>Copy</b> to create a Permalink to the search. You can copy the link to your clipboard and then paste it elsewhere as necessary. Later, you can use a browser to navigate to the Permalink address. When you do, the search will open in the browser. For additional information, see <u>Permalinks</u> .
	<b>Note:</b> Permalinks to Call Lists allow any user to open any of the calls in the list, even if the user does not have permissions to open the partitions to which the calls belong.

## Sorting the Columns

You can choose to sort the tables by any column that contains a call parameter.

## To sort a table by a column:

• Click the title of the column.

Note: Click the title a second time to reverse the sort order.

# Selecting the Number of Rows

You can choose how many rows to show in each of the tables.

## To select the number of rows to display in a table:

• At the bottom of the table, in the dropdown list, select the desired number of rows.

14 01	Page 1	of 1	10 0	10
				5 kt
				15 20
				25 30

Selecting the number of rows to display at one time

# Filtering a Table

If there are a lot of items in a table, you can find the items you are interested in by filtering the display. You can filter by item name and/or by the name of the user who created the item.

## To filter the items in a table by name:

• At the top of the table, in the **Name** field, type a letter or sequence of letters that appears in the name of the item you are looking for. The list is filtered as you type; only those names that contain the sequence you typed are displayed in the table.

## To filter the items in a table by their creators:

- 1. At the top of the table, under **Created by**, click the 🔽. A Multi-Select box opens.
- 2. Select the users whose searches or Call Lists you want to see.
- 3. Click Close. The list is filtered; only those items that were create by users you selected are displayed in the table.

Note: For additional information about using the Multi-Select box, see <u>Defining Search Criteria</u>.

## Collapsing a Table

If you do not want to display one or both of the tables, you can collapse them. This may be convenient, for example, when an Interaction Grid is displayed at the bottom of the screen.

### To collapse a table:

• At the upper-left corner of the table, beside the name of the table (Saved Searches or Call Lists), click 😒

#### To expand a collapsed table:

• Click the D beside the name of the table.

## Creating a New Call List

New Call Lists can be created in one of two ways:

- On the fly: You can create a new Call List on the fly in an Interaction Grid. The new Call List cannot be created empty calls must be selected in the Interaction Grid, and the selected calls are automatically added to the new Call List. For additional information, see Using an Interaction Grid.
- New empty Call List: You can create an empty Call List in the Saved Searches tab. calls can be added to the list from an Interaction Grid later on, as necessary.

#### To create an empty Call List:

- 1. Above the Call Lists table, under **Actions**, click **O**. You are prompted to enter a name for the new list.
- 2. Enter a name, and then click OK. The new Call List is created and added to the Call Lists table.

## Removing a Call from a Call List

You can remove one or more calls from a Call List.

#### To remove calls from a Call List:

- 1. In the Call List table, click **Display** () to display the list of calls in an Interaction Grid at the bottom of the screen.
- 2. Select the checkbox to the left of each call you want to remove from the Call List.
- 3. Under Batch Actions, select Delete from List. The selected calls are deleted from the list.

## **Deleting Multiple Searches or Call Lists**

You can delete multiple searches or Call Lists in one action.

## To delete multiple searches or Call Lists:

- 1. In the relevant table, select the checkbox to the left of each item you want to delete.
- 2. Above the table, under Actions, click 🗐. You are prompted to confirm that you want to delete the selected items.

3. Click Yes. The items are deleted.

## See also

Using an Interaction Grid Searching for Interactions Browsing Interactions

Home > Search > Browsing Interactions

# **Browsing Interactions**

This section explains how to use the Content Browser to find interactions with the characteristics that interest you.

Content Browsing begins by selecting a classification base. This base defines how the interactions will be organized in the tree structure.

Classification Base	Description
Categories	The tree structure is based on Categories that are assigned to interactions. These Categories are defined in SMART and assigned automatically to interactions when the system processes them. Each Category consists of a group of characteristics that identify the type of interaction and its content. When the tree structure is based on Categories, interactions are listed under the Categories that were assigned to them.
Agents	The tree structure is based on Workgroups and can be subdivided by agents. Workgroup and agent information is metadata; for calls, it is collected by the recording system and relayed to SpeechMiner along with the recordings of the calls; for e-mails and other texts, it is written in the database when the texts are imported. When the tree structure is based on Agents, interactions are listed under the workgroups of the agents who handled the interactions.
Programs	The tree structure is based on Programs. These Programs are sets of processing instructions for interactions; they are defined in SMART. When the tree structure is based on Programs, interactions are listed under the Programs that were used by the system to analyze them.

## To open the Content Browser:

• In the Main Menu, under Search, select Content Browser. The Content Browser opens with the default base classification, Category, selected.

SpeechMine	DEMO	and the second division of the second divisio			-				Se	arch 2 utopy
Views	Search	Explore	Reports	Quali	ty	Coaching	Tools	Help	Action Items (7)	
Title									0	6/27/12 08:02 PM +03:00 UTC
New Search	Saved S	earches Cont	ent Browser		_					
Explore: C	tegory Agen/	t Program		Filter By	Category	Any	Ţ.	Da	te Range All	2
Classified Call	s: 3961								From: 01/01/70 0 To: 01/01/38 0	
							Number of Calls			Percentage
- AI										
-> OMissing	a audio level 1						0			0.00%
· Oby lend	<u>≴h</u>						3961			100.00%
o OLma	er than 800 sec						322			8.13%
o Ofrom	501 to 800 sec.						643			16.23%
o O Erom	201 to 500 sec.						1779			44.91%
o O From	8 to 200 sec						1205			30.42%
o OLong	er that an hour						0			0.00%
o OLess	than 8 sec						15			0.38%
Aptation Early in Call					0			0.00%		
O Einancial			732				18.48%			
o OUndetermined					50			1.26%		

#### **Content Browser**

Key to Illustration:

Number	Description
1	Classification base tab
2	Filter By classification
3	Filter By date range
4	Tree structure
5	Collapsed node
6	Expanded node
7	Refresh button

# Filtering the Interaction Tree

When you first open the Content Browser, all interactions that are in the database are included in the tree structure. You can filter the interactions in one of two ways:

- Filter by classification: Show only those interactions that are in a particular subgroup of one of the classification types. For example, show only interactions in Workgroup A.
- Filter by date range: Show only those interactions that took place during a specified period of time.

You can apply both types of filters simultaneously if you wish.

## To filter by classification:

- 1. Under Filter By, in the first dropdown list, select the type of classification you want to filter by: Category, Workgroup, or Program.
- 2. In the second dropdown list, select the subgroup you want to see. The tree structure is updated. Only the interactions in the selected subgroup appear in the tree structure.

#### To filter by date range:

• Under **Date Range**, select a date range. The tree structure is updated. Only the interactions in the selected date range appear in the tree structure.

## Selecting From the Filtered Interaction Tree

Once you have filtered the Interaction List, you can explore the tree structure to see which interactions interest you. You can then select a node in the tree to see more details about the interactions listed in it in an <u>Interaction Grid</u> at the bottom of the screen.

## Understanding the Tree Structure

The tree structure lists interactions in groups according to the classification base. Each line contains additional information about the interactions in that group. The following information appears for each line:

Classification Base	Column Name	Description
All	Number of Calls	The number of interactions grouped in the line
	Percentage	The number of interactions grouped in the line as a proportion of the total number of interactions included in the tree.
		Note: This information is given as a percentage, in two forms: a bar illustrating the percentage, and a number representing the percentage.

Agent	Last Call	The recording time of the last interaction included in the group		
		Note: This value is only defined for calls.		
	Number of Agents	The number of agents included in the group		
Program	Priority	The priority that is assigned to the Program		
	Last Updated	The date on which the Program was last updated		
	Language	The language of the Program		

## Expanding and Collapsing the Tree Structure

You can expand or collapse the tree structure to see the level of detail that is most convenient for you. You can expand or collapse individual nodes or the entire structure.

To expand or collapse a node of the tree structure:

• Click > to expand the node or - to collapse it.

Note: If a node does not have any levels below it, o appears beside it.

To expand or collapse an entire level of the tree structure:

At the bottom of the tree structure, click the button to expand the tree one level, or the Collapse All button to collapse it one level.

#### **Viewing Category Details**

In the Category Browser, you can see a detailed definition of each Category that appears in the tree structure.

## To see the definition of a Category:

• In the tree structure, click the 🛈 icon beside the name of the Category. A window opens and displays the Category definition.



**Category definition** 

## **Changing the Classification Base**

When the Content Browser is open, you can change the classification base from within the page.

#### To change the classification base:

• Click the appropriate tab to select the desired classification base.

# **Viewing Interaction Details**

You can view interaction details for the interactions in any line in the tree structure.

## To view interaction details for a group of interactions:

• In the tree structure, click the group of interactions. An Interaction Grid opens at the bottom of the page and displays detailed information about the interactions.

**Note:** For detailed information about the Interaction Grid, including how you can listen to calls or view texts via the Interaction Grid, see <u>Using the Interaction Grid</u>.

## **Refreshing the Tree**

If new interactions are added to the database while you are viewing the Content Browser, you can add them to the tree by refreshing it.

## To refresh the tree:

• Above the tree, on the right, click (#7 in the illustration above).

## See also

Using an Interaction Grid Searching for Interactions Saved Searches

Search

Home > Using the Media Player

# Using the Media Player

The SpeechMiner Media Player is used to play the audio of recorded calls. It provides a range of call playback features that can help you quickly and easily find the parts of calls that interest you, find information about call properties, view transcripts of calls, add comments to calls and view the comments of other users. To open the Media Player, you simply click a **Play** button beside a call in a <u>Interaction Grid</u> or an event in an <u>Event Grid</u>.

The Media Player is displayed as a timeline with various controls and information surrounding it. The center of the timeline is an audio graph that visually indicates the level of sound in the call at any given moment, so you can skip over silence or find times when voices were raised. If calls are recorded with two audio channels - for example, one for the agent and the other for the customer - the audio channels are color-coded to clearly identify who was speaking at any given moment in the call.

Detected Events, both linguist and non-linguistic, are indicated by icons above the audio graph. User comments are indicated by icons below the audio graph; the comments can be general or linked to specific times in the call. You can easily play calls back from the moment that concerns you by clicking in the timeline at the time of interest.

The illustration below shows the main elements of the Media Player, including some common icons.



## Main Media Player elements

Key to Illustration:

Number	Description
1	Player controls: Play, Pause, etc. (see Playing Back a Call)
2	Event bar containing icons that indicate where Events of various types were detected (see Event Icons)
3	Audio graph showing the volume levels at every moment of the call. If the recording system uses two audio channels, the channels are color-coded.
4	Timeline indicating the offset from the beginning of the call
5	Scrollbar indicating which part of the call is currently displayed. Drag the slider or click elsewhere in the scrollbar to view other parts of the call.
	Note: If the entire call is visible at one time, the scrollbar is not active and it does not have a slider.
	<b>Note:</b> If the display is auto-synced, the scrollbar automatically moves so that the part of the call that is playing is always visible (see <u>Playing Back a Call</u> ).
6	Event icon indicating an Event was detected at this location in the call (see Event Icons)
7	Marker indicating the current location of playback. Click elsewhere in the audio graph to move the marker to another location and begin playback from there.
8	Comment icon indicating that a user added a comment at this location in the call (see <u>Call Comments</u> ).
9	Event icon indicating that a Topic was detected at this location in the call (see Event Icons)

10	Click to close the Media Player.
11	More Actions dropdown menu (see More Actions Options)
12	New Comment button: Click to add a comment to the call (see Managing Comments).
13	<b>Content</b> button: Click to open or close the Content panel, in which you can see the text of the call, the Events that were detected, and user comments (see <u>Viewing Call Content Details</u> ).
14	Attributes button: Click to open or close the Attributes panel, in which you can see the attributes of the call and assign manual Categories to the call (see <u>Viewing Call Attributes</u> ).
15	Slider indicating the part of the call that is currently displayed. Drag to view a different part of the call.
16	Call information: The date and time at which the call took place, the ID of the call, the current time in playback (offset from the start of the call), and the total length of the call
17	Forms button: Click to select a form to fill out about the call, or to edit a form you have already filled out (see Filling in Forms).
18	Click to open the Media Player in a separate window (see <u>Detaching the Player</u> ).

## See also

Event Icons Playing Back a Call Viewing Call Content Call Comments Call Attributes Filling in Forms Detaching the Player More Actions Options

Home > Using the Media Player > Event Icons

# **Event Icons**

Icons indicating when Events were detected appear above the audio graph. Both linguistic and non-linguistic Events are marked. You can see details about the Event that is represented by an icon by placing your mouse pointer on the icon. Event icons and information also appear in the <u>Content panel</u>.

The following non-linguistic Event icons are in use:

Icon	Description
2	Dialtone
2	Ringback: A signal used in PSTN (Public Switched Telephone Networks - standard "land lines") to indicate that the line is being called or an incoming call is present.
<b>■</b> ×	Silence
	Silent period lasting more than 2 seconds (A 💜 icon marks the beginning of the period, and an 🌤 icon marks the end of the period.)
XXX	Crosstalk: In <u>dual-channel calls</u> , a time when both speakers were talking simultaneously
1	Music and noise (A $\checkmark$ icon marks the beginning of the period, and an $\checkmark$ icon marks the end of the period.)
æ	Agitation

# 2

Key press on a touch-tone phone. 16 keys can be identified using DTMF (Dual Tone Multi Frequency); the icon indicates which key was pressed.

The following linguistic Event icons are in use:

Icon	Description
	A Topic that was recognized by SpeechMiner
	A Topic that was recognized by SpeechMiner and is relevant to the specific search the user executed
	A deprecated Topic Event: the Topic definition has changed since it was found in this specific call
	A deprecated Topic Event that is relevant to the specific search the user executed
	A term that was found by an active search (after <u>Active Search</u> was selected in an <u>Interaction Search</u> )
	An active search Event that is relevant to the specific search the user executed

## See also

Playing Back a Call Viewing Call Content Call Comments Call Attributes Filling in Forms Detaching the Player More Actions Options

Home > Using the Media Player > Playing Back a Call

# Playing Back a Call

The Media Player opens above a Call or Event Grid when you select a call or Event for playback. For information about opening the Media Player, see <u>Playing a Call</u> and <u>Playing an Event</u>. This section explains how to use the Media Player to play and manage the open call.

# **Playing Back a Call**

You can play the open call from any point in the recording. Playback always begins from the location of the marker in the audio graph. When you open a call from an Interaction Grid, the marker is placed at the beginning of the call. When you open a call from an Event Grid, the marker is placed at the beginning of the Event. Playback begins automatically when the call is loaded.

To play a call from the current location of the marker:

• Click Play ()

## To play a call from the location of an Event:

• Click the Event icon.

## To play back a call from any location in the call:

• Click the location in the audio graph.

## **Playback Controls**
The playback controls are located on the left side of the Media Player. The following controls are available:



Playback controls

Key to illustration:

Number	Description						
1	Play/Pause:						
	<ul> <li>Play : When playback is paused, the Play button appears. Click the button to begin playback from the current location of the marker in the audio graph.</li> <li>Pause : During playback the Pause button appears. Click the button to stop playback and leave the marker at its current location in the audio graph.</li> </ul>						
2	Previous: Play the previous call in the Call or Event Grid.						
3	Next: Play the next call in the Call or Event Grid.						
4	Skip back: Restart playback from 5 seconds before the current location of the marker.						
5	Auto-Scroll: Turn this option on if you want the call to automatically scroll so that the part of the call that is currently being played back is always visible. The scroll bar moves automatically to keep up with the playback.						
	<b>Note:</b> When the option is turned on, the center of the button is blue ( <sup>(***)</sup> ); if it is off, the center of the button is green ( <sup>***</sup> ).						
	Note: This option has no effect if the entire call is visible at one time.						
6	Playback Speed: Click 🟵 to increase the playback speed, or 😑 to decrease the speed.						
	<b>Note:</b> This option is not available in all systems. When it is available, the available speeds may vary. Typically, they are <b>1.00</b> , <b>1.25</b> , <b>1.50</b> , and <b>2.00</b> .						
7	Mute: Turn the volume off						
8	Volume: Click a line in the icon to select the corresponding volume level.						

## **Keyboard Shortcuts**

The following keyboard shortcuts can be used in the Media Player:

Result
Toggles between Play and Pause
Skips to the next call in the grid
Skips to the previous call in the grid
In an Event Grid, marks the current event as TP (True Positive)

Ctrl + Shift + f	In an Event Grid, marks the current event as FP (False Positive)
Ctrl + Shift + s	In an Event Grid, marks the current event as SFP (Sense False Positive)
Ctrl + Shift + c	In an Event Grid, clears an Event rating

Note: TP, FP, and SFP ratings are assigned to Events during the auditing process (see Using an Event Grid).

## **Filtered Content**

Call audio and text may be filtered in your system to ensure confidential information cannot be accessed by users who do not have permission to do so. Different users may have different permissions in this regard, so certain parts of a call may be filtered out for some users but not others. Parts of a call that have been filtered out appear in the audio graph in gray (#1 in the illustration below) rather than black. The text of the filtered parts in not included in the call Contents, and the Media Player skips these areas during playback.

				щ×						=(x =	¢×		×
	same but belt, data	11.11	uille	. Ma	hallind	utility its	1.1	Walder	M.s.		halling.		
	0.30	1:00	1:30	2:00	2:30	3:00	3:30	4:00	4.30	5:00	5:30		
					06/01/11	12:07 AM	11_01_10	0.52.53.200	00:15/05:4	3			
More Actions	New Comment		Content	-	Attributes							Forms	- 67

Filtered audio content

Filters can be implemented in the following ways:

- Sensitive Topics: Some Topics may be defined in your system as Sensitive. (This attribute is assigned to Topics in the SMART application.) Only users with special permissions can hear the audio or see the text of Sensitive Topics.
- Numbers: Numbers consisting of more than two digits may be filtered out of calls, in order to ensure unauthorized users do not have access to credit card numbers and other confidential information.
- Comments-Only permission: Some users may only be able to access those parts of calls to which comments have been attached.

For information about the filter rules in your system, consult your system administrator.

## **Dual-Channel Audio**

Some recording systems use two audio channels, one for the agent's side of a call and the other for the customer's side of the call. If your recording system does this, SpeechMiner color-codes the channels in the audio graph so that you can tell who is speaking at any given moment. Filtered audio content is still displayed in gray, as described above, so you may see as many as three different colors in the audio graph, as in the figure below.





## See also

Event Icons Viewing Call Content Call Comments Call Attributes Filling in Forms Detaching the Player More Actions Options

Home > Using the Media Player > Viewing Call Content

# Viewing Call Content

The Content panel can be used to view a transcript of the call that is open in the Media Player, as well as the Events that SpeechMiner detected in the call and <u>comments</u> that were added to the call by users. The panel is divided into two panes. The right pane contains the transcript of the conversation, with the Events marked, and the left pane contains a list of the Events that were found in the call. You can choose to display or hide the comments that users added to the call. If you choose to display them, they are listed in the left pane and also marked in their locations in the right pane. You can also adjust the size of the panels and the widths of the two panes.



Content panel showing text and Events, with comments hidden

In the transcript, the current playback location is indicated by a light-blue highlight, and the typeface of the text reflects how certain SpeechMiner is that it correctly transcribed the conversation: the darker the text, the higher its accuracy. If your system employs multiple audio channels, the speakers are identified in the transcript, and the text is color-coded to match the speakers.

	05/21/12 04:13 PM   ex2114_12_17_2010_15_48_58	
More Actions V New Comment V	Content ▲ Attributes ▼	Forms F Customer: Agent: please Customer: double Agent: please Customer: double Agent: to change what it's Customer: yes right yeah Agent: to change what it's Customer: up twenty minutes with that a light on find is just the street in the house hmm to the right from one end to the know and Agent: the the screen on on time scory no longer in Customer: and teacher speaking Agent: Customer: p

Content panel showing two audio channels

## **Opening and Closing the Content Panel**

You can open the Content panel when you want to see it, and close it when it does not interest you.

### To open or close the Content panel:

• Click the Content button.

### **Docking the Content Panel**

You can dock the Content panel - open it in its own section below the Media Player - whenever you wish. This may be convenient if you want to use it for an extended period of time, because it provides a wider display and does not hide any other screen items you may want to look at.



Content panel docked

### To dock the Content panel:

• When the panel is open, in the upper-left corner of the panel, click Dock.

## To undock the Content panel:

• In the upper-left corner of the docked panel, click Undock.

## **Displaying or Hiding Comments**

When the Content panel is open, you can choose to display or hide the comments that users have attached to the call.



Content panel with Comments displayed

### To display or hide the comments:

• At the top of the Content panel, click Comments.

## Hiding the Left Pane

You can hide the left pane to provide more space for the right pane.



#### Content panel with the left pane hidden

### To hide the left pane:

• In the upper-right corner of the pane, click «.

### To display the left pane:

• In the upper-left corner of the Content panel, click ».

## Adjusting the Sizes of the Panel and Panes

You can adjust the height and width of the Content panel and the sizes of the right and left panes.

### To adjust the size of the panel:

Drag the bottom-right corner of the panel in any direction.
 Note: Dragging right or left only affects the width of the right pane.

### To adjust the widths of the right and left panes:

• Drag the dividing line between the panes right or left.

## Working with Events

The locations of Events are indicated in the transcript by numbered Event icons. The numbers match the Event numbers that appear in the left pane. In either pane, you can see the text of a Topic Event by placing your mouse cursor on it. In the right pane, you can also see the name of the Event by placing your mouse cursor on the text of the Event. (The names of the Events are displayed with their icons in the left panel.)

Events in the transcript are preceded by an auditing rating selector. If the Event has already been audited, the audit value is bolded, and the entire selector is color-coded, as follows:

Audit Value	Description	Color-coding		
ТР	True Positive	green		
FP	False Positive	peach		
SFP	Sense False Positive	pink		

For additional information, see Using an Event Grid.

If you have auditing permissions, you can select or modify the audit ratings of Events in the call transcript.

To select an audit value:

• Click the value.

To clear the selected audit value:

• Click Clear

### **Viewing Related Words**

You can run a Related Words report for any word in the call transcipt.

### To run a Related Words report for a word:

- 1. Place your mouse cursor on the word. A pop-menu appears.
- Select Related Words. The Related Words report results are opened in a new window.
   Note: For additional information about this type of report, see Finding Related Words.

## See also

Event Icons Playing Back a Call Call Comments Call Attributes Filling in Forms Detaching the Player More Actions Options

Home > Using the Media Player > Call Comments

## Call Comments

Comments can be added to calls either as global comments, which relate to the entire call, or time-linked comments, which relate to a particular time in the call.

Comments are indicated in the Media Player by Comment icons. In the player area, the icons appear below the audio graph (nos. 1, 2, and 3 in the figure below), and in the <u>Content panel</u>, they appear in the call transcript. The icons are color-coded to indicate whether the comments are positive (,), general (,), or negative (,). You can view the text of a comment by placing your mouse cursor on the icon. In addition, the text of each comment appears in the left pane of the Content panel along with the name of the user who inserted the comment. Global comments appear at the beginning of the call (nos. 1, 4, and 5 in the figure) and time-linked comments appear in their appropriate locations (nos. 2, 3, 6, and 7 in the figure).

**Note:** If you cannot see the call comments in the Content panel, at the top of the left pane of the panel, click **Comments**. For additional information, see <u>Viewing Call Content</u>.





## Adding a Comment to a Call

You can add global and time-linked comments to a call, and indicate whether the comments you add are positive, negative, or general.

### To add a comment to a call:

1. Click New Comment. The New Comment box opens.



New Comment box

2. If you want to add a time-linked comment, select the checkbox beside the Time field.

Note: The time in the **Time** field is automatically set to the time at the location of the cursor in the audio graph. Modify the time if you wish.

- 3. In the text area below the Time field, type your comment.
- 4. Select one of the following:

Option	Description
Good	Positive comment
General	Neutral comment
Bad	Negative comment

5. Click Add. The comment is added to the call.

## **Editing an Existing Comment**

You can modify the text and rating (Good, General, or Bad) of any comment you added to a call. If you have the required permissions, you can also modify other users' comments in this way. You cannot change a global comment into a time-linked comment, or vice-versa, and you cannot change the time of a time-linked comment. You also cannot delete a comment entirely.

### To edit a comment:

1. In the Content panel, click Edit at the end of the comment. The Edit Comment box opens.

Edit Comment		Content	Attribute	es 🔻
Time:	admini	strator (07/02/12)		
Well-handled!				
•				
	1.000	-	 1	
🔎 🖸 Good 🗩 🔿 Ger	neral 🧢	C Bad	Cancel	Update

Edit Comment box

- 2. Modify the text of the comment as required.
- 3. Change the rating of the comment, if necessary.
- 4. Click Update. The comment is modified.

## See also

Event Icons Playing Back a Call Viewing Call Content Call Attributes Filling in Forms Detaching the Player More Actions Options

Home > Using the Media Player > Call Attributes

## **Call Attributes**

The Attributes panel can be used to view the attributes of the call that is open in the Media Player. In addition, you can use it to assign manual Categories to the call.

Attributes 🔺	
S Dock	
Call Processed Time: 07/02/12 01:46 PM	
Workgroups: w	
Agents: bob	
Metadata:	
Manual Categories:	
For Manager Review	
For Supervisor Review	
For Agent Review	
Incorretly Classified	
For Trainer Review	
Belongs To Categories:	
Bill Inquiry	
Balance Inquiry	
Miscs	
Did Not Find Service Maintenance	
Service Activation/Transfer	
New Service Activation	
	1
	110

## Attributes panel

The following types of call attributes are displayed in the Attributes panel:

- Call processing time
- Workgroups
- Agents
- Metadata values
- Manually assigned Categories
- Automatically assigned Categories

## **Opening and Closing the Attributes Panel**

You can open the Attributes panel when you want to see it, and close it when it does not interest you.

### To open or close the Attributes panel:

• Click the Attributes button.

## **Docking the Attributes Panel**

You can dock the Attributes panel - open it in its own section below the Media Player - whenever you wish. This may be convenient if you want to use it for an extended period of time, because it provides a wider display and does not hide any other screen items you may want to look at.





### To dock the Attributes panel:

• When the panel is open, in the upper-right corner of the panel, click Dock.

### To undock the Attributes panel:

• In the upper-right corner of the docked panel, click Undock.

## **Assigning Manual Categories**

When the Attributes panel is open, you can assign manual Categories to the call that is open in the Media Player.

Attributes 🔺	
K Dock	
Call Processed Time: 07/02/12 01:46 PM	
Workgroups: w	
Agents: bob	
Metadata:	
Manual Categories:	
For Manager Review	
For Supervisor Review	
For Agent Review	
Incorretly Classified	
For Trainer Review	
Belongs To Categories:	
Bill Inquiry	
Balance Inquiry	
Miscs	
Did Not Find Service Maintenance	
Service Activation/Transfer	
New Service Activation	

Attributes panel with manual Categories selected

## To assign a manual Category to a call:

• In the Attributes panel, under Manual Categories, select the checkbox beside the Category.

To remove a manual Category from a call:

• Clear the checkbox beside the Category.

### See also

Event Icons Playing Back a Call Viewing Call Content Call Comments Filling in Forms Detaching the Player More Actions Options

Home > Using the Media Player > Filling in Forms

# Filling in Forms

You can fill in a form about the call that is opened in the Media Player. For example, you could fill in a form rating the agent's handling of the call, if a form of that type is in use in your system.

Only one form can be filled out by each user for each call. If you have already filled out a form, you can edit it if you wish. If you want to fill out a different form, you must first delete the first form.

Note: For information about creating forms, see Forms.

## Filling in a New Form

If you have not yet filled in a form for the call, you can select the form to fill in and then fill it in.

### To fill in a new form:

- 1. Click Form. The Select Form dialog box opens and displays a list of available forms.
- 2. Click the form you want to fill out. The form opens in a new window.
- 3. Fill in the form and then click Submit Changes. The values you chose are saved in the system.
- 4. To close the form, click Close.

## Editing a Form

If you have already filled in a form for the call, it automatically opens when you click the **Form** button. You can edit or delete the form at this stage. If you want to fill out a different form, you must first delete this form.

### To edit a form:

- 1. Click Form. The form opens in a new window.
- 2. Modify the form as necessary, and then click **Submit Changes**. The changes are saved.
- 3. To close the form, click Close.

## **Deleting a Form**

You can delete a form you have already filled out as necessary.

### To delete a form:

1. Click Form. The form opens in a new window.

- 2. Click Delete. You are prompted to confirm that you want to delete the form.
- 3. Click Yes. The form is deleted and the window closes.

## See also

Event Icons Playing Back a Call Viewing Call Content Call Comments Call Attributes Detaching the Player More Actions Options

Home > Using the Media Player > Detaching the Player

# Detaching the Player

If you wish, you can detach the Media Player - remove it from the SpeechMiner interface and open it in a separate window. You can then move the window to any location on your screen that you find convenient.

nccp://libby/speechm	niner/controls/UMP/l	UMP_deta	ched.aspx?ca	allId=5054	&seconds=2&n	extPrevDis	abled=-Windo	ows Interne	t Explorer	_ [
			× <b>- 4&gt;+4+4</b> ×	• <b>4</b> ×		-4×		×)= 6	h <mark>, physikala</mark>	×
<b>4</b> 0	0:30	1:00	1:30 2/12 05:12 PM	2:00 11_01_12.	2:30 3:00 38.22.400_u12020			4:30 41	5:00	5:30
More Actions 🔻	New Comment	•	Content	•	Attributes	•		F	orms	÷

**Detached Media Player** 

## To detach the Media Player:

• In the lower-left corner of the Media Player, click I.

## To reattach the Media Player:

• Click I or close the Media Player window.

## See also

Event Icons Playing Back a Call Viewing Call Content Call Comments Call Attributes Filling in Forms More Actions Options

Home > Using the Media Player > More Actions Options

# More Actions Options

The Media Player provides the following additional options for the call that is currently open in it:

- Export: Save the call in a file.
- Forward: Send other users a link to the call.
- Add To: Add the call to a Call List.
- Delete From List: Remove the call from the current Call List. (This option is only available if you opened the Media Player from a <u>Call List</u>.)
- Permalink: Create a <u>Permalink</u> to the call.
- Similar Calls: Find calls that are similar to the call.
- Reprocess Call: Run event analysis again on the call.

These options can be accessed from the More Actions menu in the lower-left corner of the Player, as explained below.

## **Exporting the Call**

If you want to save the call or send it to someone else, you can export it. Exporting the call creates a ZIP file that contains the following:

- A CSV file containing information about the call. This file can be opened using a spreadsheet application such as Microsoft Excel.
- A WAV file a playable audio file of the call (optional)

### To export the call:

- 1. Under More Actions, select Export. A dialog box opens and asks if you want to include the audio files with the export.
- 2. Select Yes if you want to export the audio along with the CSV file, or No if you only want the CSV file.
- 3. A dialog box opens and asks if you want to open or save the ZIP file.
- 4. Select the desired option. If you select **Open**, the file opens in the application that is configured to open ZIP files on your computer. If you select **Save**, a **Save As** dialog box opens.
- 5. If you selected **Save**, navigate to the folder in which you want to save the file, and then click **Save**. The file is saved in the selected location.

## Forwarding a Link to the Call

You can send a link to the call to other users in the system. The link is sent in a Call message that appears in the recipient's My Messages widget in the <u>Views</u> page. When the recipient clicks the message, a SpeechMiner <u>Media Player</u> opens above the widget and plays the call.

If you wish, you can also send the recipient an e-mail notification with a link to the call. When the recipient clicks the link, the Media Player opens in a new browser tab or window and plays the call. If the recipient is not already logged into SpeechMiner, they are prompted to do so before the Media Player opens.

### To send a call link to another user:

1. Under More Actions, select Forward. A dialog box opens.

Subject	12
Call review, your att	ention needed
Please Select the Recipient	
Send Email Notification	
Send	Cancel

Forward dialog box

- 2. Under **Subject**, modify the subject text if you wish.
- 3. Under Please Select the Recipient, select the user you want to send the link to, in one of the following ways:
  - In the text field, type part of the name or username of the recipient. As you type, names and user names containing those letters are displayed in a dropdown list. Select the recipient from the list.
  - Click the ... button (\_\_\_\_) beside the text field. In the dialog box, select the user from the list of users in the relevant workgroup.
- If you want to send a notification to the user's e-mail address as well as to their <u>My Messages</u> box, select Send Email Notification.
- 5. Click Send. A Call message is sent to the recipient's My Messages box. If you chose to send the user an e-mail notification, it is also sent.

## Adding the Call to a Call List

A Call List is a list of calls that is saved for later use. SpeechMiner supports two types of Call Lists: global Call Lists and coachingsession Call Lists. You can see existing global Call Lists in the Calls page in the <u>Saved Searches</u> tab, under Call Lists. Coaching-session Call Lists can only be viewed within the coaching session. For additional information about coaching sessions, see <u>Coaching</u>.

You can add calls to an existing Call List or a new list. You can select an existing Call List from a list of global Call Lists or select a coaching-session Call List from those that are attached to the Coaching session. If you wish, you can add a new Coaching session directly from the Interaction Grid, and then add calls to a Call List that is attached to that session.

## To add the call to a Call List:

• Under More Actions, select Add To and then select one of the following:

То	Select	Result
Create a new Coaching session and a new coaching Call List within that session, and add the calls to the new Call List	Coaching > New	A <b>New coaching session</b> dialog box opens. Specify the name and other settings of the Coaching session, and then click <b>Save</b> . The dialog box closes, and a new Call-List dialog box opens. In the text field, type a name for the Call List, and then click <b>OK</b> . The Coaching session and Call List are created, and the calls are added to the Call List.
Create a new coaching Call List within an existing Coaching session, and add the calls to the new Call List	Coaching > [existing Coaching session] > New	A Call-List dialog box opens. In the text field, type a name for the Call List, and then click $\mathbf{OK}$ . The new coaching Call List is created and attached to the Coaching session, and the calls are added to the Call List.
Add the calls to an existing coaching Call List that is attached to an existing Coaching session	Coaching > [existing Coaching session] > [existing Call List]	The calls are added to the selected coaching Call List.
Add the calls to a new Call List	Call List > New	A Call-List dialog box opens. In the text field, type a name for the Call List, and then click <b>OK</b> . The new Call List is created and the calls are added to it.

Add the calls to an existing Call List		The calls are added to the selected Call List.
	[existing Call List]	

## Deleting a Call from a Call List

If you opened the current call from a Call List, you can remove it from the Call List using the Media Player.

#### To delete the call from a Call List:

• Under More Actions, select Delete From List. The call is removed from the Call List.

### Generating a Permalink to the Call

You can generate and save a Permalink to the call, which can later be used to open the call in the Media Player. To play the call, you need only open the link in a browser.

Note: For additional information, see Permalinks.

### To create a Permalink to the current call:

• Under More Actions, select Permalink. A Permalink dialog box opens and displays the Permalink.

### **Finding Similar Calls**

You can search for calls that are similar to the current call in terms of their subject matter and the phrases they contain. When you do, a new window opens and displays a list of the calls that were found, arranged in order of how similar they are to the original call. The terms in the calls that the system identified as being similar to terms in the current call are highlighted in the list. Calls in the list can be played in the Media Player in the window. (For additional information about playing calls in the Media Player, see <u>Playing Back</u> a <u>Call</u>.) The maximum number of calls that can be included in the list is defined in your site's system variables.

W	1 - 10 of :	55 🖸	Prev 🕤 I	Vext 🕓 Bat	ch Actions					Column:
	0	oen Dat	te / Time	Workgroup	Agent	Program	Category	Text Du	ration	Topic
		07/02/12 04	:15 AM	W	jasmin	UTOPYINC	3 Categories	y and <mark>state</mark> that . <mark>mississippi</mark> well <mark>through</mark> . was0:0	4:20	5 Topics
		07/02/12 05	37 AM	w	jasmin	UTOPYINC	2 Categories	antee service turned on at contact energas for that 0:1	8:26	5 Topics
		07/02/12 05	:11 PM	W	shira	UTOPYINC	2 Categories	antee service turned on at contact energas for that 0:1	8:26	5 Topics
		07/02/12 10	:15 AM	w	jasmin	UTOPYINC	3 Categories	your <mark>social security number</mark> , okay thank you , <mark>ar</mark> 0:0	8:41	7 Topics
		07/02/12 05	:12 PM	w	james	UTOPYINC	3 Categories	your <mark>social security number</mark> , okay thank you , <mark>ar</mark> 0:0	8:41	7 Topics
		07/02/12 01	:39 AM	W	lane	UTOPYINC	3 Categories	yes , <b>hello</b> yes <mark>ma'am</mark> , what city and <mark>state</mark> , that :0:1	9:58	7 Topics
		07/02/12 05	:11 PM	W	shira	UTOPYINC	3 Categories	yes , <mark>hello</mark> yes <mark>ma'am</mark> , what city and <mark>state</mark> , that :0:1	9:58	7 Topics
		07/02/12 06	:04 AM	W	shira	UTOPYINC	3 Categories	t's . <mark>address</mark> is cents . a <mark>deposit</mark> for the new <mark>addı</mark> 0:0	9:14	5 Topics
		07/02/12 08	:44 AM	w	shira	UTOPYINC	3 Categories	e why <b>security <mark>deposit</mark> back mister we we dor0:0</b>	9:58	6 Topics
)		07/02/12 05	:12 PM	W	jasmin	UTOPYINC	3 Categories	<b>ma'am</b> if your <mark>service</mark> address we will call , to ge 0:0	4:32	7 Topics

List of similar calls displayed in a new window

### To find similar calls:

• Under More Actions, select Similar Calls. A new window opens and displays the list of calls.

### Reprocessing the Call

You can run event analysis again on the call. The system may produce different results when you do this, if the definitions in SMART have been modified or call auditing has fine-tuned the speech analysis system since the call was originally processed.

Note: For information about reprocessing batches of calls, see Reprocessing Calls and Managing Audits.

#### To reprocess the call:

• Under More Actions, select Reprocess Call.

## See also

Event Icons Playing Back a Call Viewing Call Content Call Comments Call Attributes Filling in Forms Detaching the Player Home > Explore

# Explore

The **Explore** page is designed to help managers monitor calls, identify and explore issues that arose in calls, and spot unexpected trends and problems. The page contains configurable exploration reports that show the distribution of terms in calls. The data is based on automated analyses of the transcripts of calls, without any input from users about what terms should be sought. For this reason, it can help you identify issues and trends that were not predicted or planned.

In the exploration analyses, a term is a short series of words (usually, two to six words) that were detected together in calls. SpeechMiner attempts to identify the most significant words and phrases in the terms it detects, and groups the terms into clusters based on these words and phrases. Thus, for example, if the terms "I lost my credit card," "my credit card was stolen," and "I can't find my credit card" were all found in calls, SpeechMiner would identify "credit card" as the significant phrase in each of the terms. It would group the terms together into a term cluster called "credit card."

### See also

Welcome Getting Started Workflows Views Action Items Search Using the Media Player Quality Monitoring Coaching Reports Tools Permalinks Appendix A: Standard Reports

Home > Explore > Overview of the Explore Page

## Overview of the Explore Page

The **Explore** page is divided into three areas: a filter area and two analysis areas. The filter area is used to specify which data to include in the reports, by selecting the time period and languages. The analyses in the other two areas show information about the term clusters that were discovered by SpeechMiner in the data from the time period and languages selected in the filter area:

- Term Trends: The data in the upper-right of the page highlights the changes in the distribution of terms in calls. It lists the clusters for which there was the greatest difference between their prevalence in the selected time period and in the previous time period.
- Common Terms: The bottom of the page identifies the term clusters that were most common in the selected time period.

Additional analysis of term clusters and their prevalence in the selected time period can be viewed in a <u>Related Words</u> report. This report graphically shows which terms are commonly found within the same or similar term clusters as a specified term, and how frequently the terms are found together in a cluster. The report enables you to explore terms and term clusters actively, by selecting and zeroing in on the terms that are of interest to you.

You can to drill down from any term cluster in the page or in the Related Words report to see additional details, such as a list of calls in which it is found.

liews		Search	E	xplore	Re	ports	Quality	Coaching	Tools	Help			,	ction Items (8) 🔻	Administrator	Log
xplore	3														30/12 10:05 PM	+03:00 UT
							Current Deri	iod vs. Previous I	Deried							
						Ð	Terms C			Change 🔺		+/-	Percent of	Calle		
Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa	good day		Fercent	onange -	59.7%	+12	Fercent of	3.5%		
_						-	able get h				56.6%	+12	_	3.6%		
	2	3	4	5	6	1		're welcome		-	38.7%	+10	_	3.8%		
	· · · · · ·					- <b>1</b> 1	cable box			_	19.1%	+10	_	3.1%		
	9	10	11	12	13	14	area code				15.7%	+0	_	4.4%		
							six months				3.6%	+0		2.0%		
5	16	17	18	19	20	21	find out	>			3.6%	+1	-	2.0%		
5	10	17	18	19	20	21	tell me			100	2.1%	+1		2.7%		
								ase your skin		12	-6.4%	-2	_	4.9%		
2	23	24	25	26	27	28		ase verify name			-6.5%	-2		9.6%		
							starz enco			-	-6.6%	-4		2.4%		
9	30	31	4	2	3						-0.0%	-1	_	2.2%		
9	50	31		2	3	4	she might						_			
							high spee				-16.8% -17.6%	-3	_	1.9%		
								ming out the hor	ne -			-3	_	1.8%		
me Peri	od	Last 7 D	)ays	-			does not v				-21.7%	-4	-	1.8%		
							family cab				-22.1%	-11		4.8%		
inguage		America	in English	-			make sure				-29.4%	-17		4.9%		
irrent P	eriod	07/04/12	12:00 AM	To 07/07	112 11-50	DM	every thre				-34.8%	-12		2.7%		
in che r	cnou	01/01/12	12.00 HIM	10 01/01	/12 11.00	1-141	email add				-38.0%	-11		2.1%		
evious l	Period	06/24/12	12:00 AM	To 06/30	0/12 11:59	PM	thirty dolla	ars			-42.9%	-10		1.6%		
elated W	Vorde				. <sup>D</sup> Sear	ch										
	10103				10 Juli											

### Explore page

## See also

Setting the Filters Identifying Term Trends Finding Common Terms Using a Trend Graph Finding Related Words

Home > Explore > Setting the Filters

# Setting the Filters

The data in all of the **Explore** page covers a single time period and language - the time period and language selected in the filter area in the upper-left part of the page. You can choose any day as the base day for the filter period, and then choose the time period relative to that day. For example, if you choose Friday, May 25th as your base day, and then choose the time period Last week, the <u>common-terms</u> data at the bottom of the page will be generated for the week preceding May 25th (May 13th-19th), and the <u>term</u> trends data on the right side of the page will compare those seven days with the preceding seven days (May 6th-12th).

Note: You can run a Related Words report from the filter area or from any of the term clusters on the page.

0		July 2012						
Su	Мо	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa		
1	2	3	4	5	6	7		
8	9	10	11	12	13	14		
15	16	17	18	19	20	21		
22	23	24	25	26	27	28		
29	30	31	1	2	3	4		
lime Pe	eriod	Last 7 D	ays	•				
angua	ge	America	n English	•				
Current	Period	07/01/12	12:00 AM	To 07/07.	12 11:59	PM		
Previou	s Period	06/24/12	12:00 AM	To 06/30.	12 11:59	PM		
	Words				D Sear			

Filter area

### To set the filters for the exploration analysis:

- 1. In the upper-left part of the Explore page, in the calendar, select the base date for the filter period.
- 2. Below the calendar, under **Time Period**, select one of the following:
  - Last 7 Days: Includes data from the last seven full calendar days prior to the base date i.e., not including the base date
  - Last Week: Includes data from the beginning through the end of the last full week preceding the base date.
  - Today: Includes data from the base date
  - Week to Date: Includes data from Sunday of the week of the base date through the day preceding the base date
  - Yesterday: Includes data from the day preceding the base date
- 3. Under Languages: Select the language of the calls you want to include in the analysis.

Note: The term-cluster data on the page is updated automatically whenever you change any of the filter values.

## See also

Overview of the Explore Page Identifying Term Trends Finding Common Terms Using a Trend Graph Finding Related Words

Home > Explore > Identifying Term Trends

## Identifying Term Trends

The right side of the **Explore** page contains a histogram that shows the term clusters whose prevalence in calls differed the most between the current time period and the baseline period. The report indicates how the percentage of calls containing each cluster changed from the baseline period to the current period. The current period is selected in the <u>filter area</u>, and the baseline is the

preceding period of the same type. For example, if the currently selected time period is a week, the baseline would be the week preceding it.

Terms Cluster	Percent Change 🔺		+/-	Percent of C	alls
good day		59.7%	+12		3.5%
able get hold them		56.6%	+12		3.6%
much you're welcome		38.7%	+10	_	3.8%
cable box turned off		19.1%	+5	_	3.1%
area code first		15.7%	+6		4.4%
six months		3.6%	+1		2.0%
find out	1.0	3.6%	+1	-	2.0%
tell me		2.1%	+1		2.7%
m ask please your skin	-	-6.4%	-2		4.9%
could please verify name	-	-6.5%	-4		9.6%
starz encore	-	-6.6%	-1	_	2.4%
she might might		-11.0%	-2		2.2%
high speed internet		-16.8%	-3	_	1.9%
before coming out the home		-17.6%	-3		1.8%
does not work i all		-21.7%	-4	-	1.8%
family cable		-22.1%	-11		4.8%
make sure		-29.4%	-17		4.9%
every three months		-34.8%	-12		2.7%
email address		-38.0%	-11	-	2.1%
thirty dollars		-42.9%	-10	-	1.6%

Histogram displaying term-trend information

The following columns appear in the histogram:

Column	Description
Terms Cluster	Term cluster
Percent Change	How much more or less common the cluster was in the current period as compared with the baseline period. Both the bar and the number represent the same value. If the cluster was more common in the current time period, the bar representing the percent change is green and the number value is positive. If the cluster was more common in the baseline period, the bar is blue and the number is negative. For example, 66.1% means the cluster appeared in 66.1% more of the calls in the current than it did in the calls of the baseline period, and -24.1% means the cluster appeared in 24.1% fewer of the calls in the current period than it did in the baseline period.
+/-	The difference between the number of calls in which the cluster was found in the current period and in the baseline period. If the number is positive, the cluster appeared more in the current period than it did in the baseline period. If the number is negative, the cluster appeared in more calls in the baseline period than it did in the current period. For example, -5 means that the cluster was found in five more calls in the baseline period than it was in the current period.
Percent of Calls	The percentage of calls in the current time period in which the term cluster was found. Both the bar and the number represent the same value.

## Viewing Additional Information about a Term Cluster

You can see additional information about a term cluster that appears in the histogram.

### To see additional information about a term cluster in the histogram:

1. Place your mouse on a cluster. The cluster appears in red, and a pop-up menu opens for it.

Terms Cluster	Percent Change 🔺		+/-	Percent of Calls		
good day		59.7%	+12		3.5%	
able get hold them		56.6%	+12		3.6%	
much you're welcome		38.7%	+10		3.8%	
cable box turned off		19.1%	+5		3.1%	
area code first	_	15.7%	+6	_	4.4%	
six months		3.6%	+1	_	2.0%	
find out		3.6%	+1	_	2.0%	
tell me		2.1%	+1		2.7%	
m ask please your skin	-	-6.4%	-2		4.9%	
could please verify name	-	-6.5%	-4		9.6%	
starz Calls Search	-	-6.6%	- 1		2.4%	
she Trend	_	-11.0%	-2		2.2%	
high Related Words		-16.8%	-3	-	1.9%	
before coming out the home	_	-17.6%	-3	_	1.8%	
does not work i all	-	-21.7%	-4	_	1.8%	
family cable		-22.1%	-11		4.8%	
maké sure		-29.4%	-17		4.9%	
every three months		-34.8%	-12		2.7%	
email address		-38.0%	-11	_	2.1%	
thirty dollars		-42.9%	-10	_	1.6%	

#### Pop-up menu

2. Click one of the following, as required:

- Calls Search: Opens an Interaction Grid that lists calls containing the term cluster. The Interaction Grid opens in a separate window.
- Trend: Opens a Trend Graph for the term cluster in place of the histogram.
- Related Words: Opens a <u>Related Words</u> report for the term cluster in a separate window.

## See also

Overview of the Explore Page Setting the Filters Finding Common Terms Using a Trend Graph Finding Related Words

Home > Explore > Finding Common Terms

# Finding Common Terms

The bottom part of the **Explore** page contains a graphic depiction of the distribution of term clusters in the calls that are included in the analysis (as specified in the <u>filter area</u>). The font used to print each cluster indicates how common the term was in the calls; the more frequently a term cluster was found, the larger it appears. In addition, every cluster has a pop-up menu that provides additional options.

**Current Period Top Clusters** 

area code first basically the last four did send is not great day hello be family cable which last four digits listed On looks like make sure much you're welcome one moment plus channels twelve dollars right now see account can you verify social security still cable still your internet telephone number them and them know very very very very good welcome anything else can help

Distribution of common term clusters

## Viewing Additional Information about a Term Cluster

You can see how many times each term cluster appears in the data set, and access additional information about the cluster.

#### To see additional information about a term cluster:

1. Place your mouse on a cluster. The cluster appears in red, and a pop-up menu opens for it.

Current Period Top Clusters area code first basically the last four did send is not great day hello be family cable which last four digits lister On looks like make sure much you're welcome one moment plus channels twelve dollars right now see account can you verify social security still cable still your internet telephone numerication rend Related Words

Pop-up menu

- 2. Click one of the following, as required:
  - Calls Search: Opens an Interaction Grid that lists calls containing the term cluster. The Interaction Grid opens in a separate window.
  - Trend: Opens a Trend Graph for the term cluster in place of the cluster-distribution information.
  - Related Words: Opens a Related Words report for the term cluster in a separate window.

## See also

Overview of the Explore Page Setting the Filters Identifying Term Trends Using a Trend Graph Finding Related Words

Home > Explore > Using a Trend Graph

## Using a Trend Graph

The Trend Graph is a line graph showing changes over time in how often a term cluster was found. The graph shows the percentage of calls that contained the cluster in the current time period and in the preceding weeks. The term cluster appears in black above the graph.



### Trend Graph

The Trend Graph can be opened for any term cluster that currently appears in the Explore page.

### To open the Trend Graph for a term cluster:

• In the Explore page, in the pop-up menu of a term cluster (see <u>Identifying Term Trends</u> and <u>Finding Common Terms</u>), select **Trend**.

To close the Trend Graph and return to the histogram from which it was opened:

• Click Back.

## See also

Overview of the Explore Page Setting the Filters Identifying Term Trends Finding Common Terms Finding Related Words

Home > Explore > Finding Related Words

# Finding Related Words

The **Related Words** report graphically illustrates which other terms are commonly found with a specified term, and how frequently they are found together, in the current sample of calls (as specified in the <u>filters</u>).

Each specified term is presented as the center of a wheel whose related terms are arrayed around it along the rim. The font used to print each related term indicates how frequently the related term was found near the central term; the more frequently a term cluster was found, the larger it appears in the diagram. In addition, every term in the diagram has a pop-up menu that provides additional options.



**Related Words report** 

## **Opening a Related Words Report**

The Related Words report can be opened in one of three ways:

• Entering a search term manually in the Explore page

- Selecting **Related Words** in the pop-up menu of a term cluster in the **Explore** page (see <u>Identifying Term Trends</u> and <u>Finding</u> <u>Common Terms</u>)
- Selecting Related Words in the pop-up menu of a word in the Content panel of the Media Player

### To enter a term manually in the Explore page:

- 1. In the <u>filter area</u>, in the **Related Words** field, enter one or more terms.
- 2. Click Search. The Related Words search is performed, and a diagram of the results appears in a new window.

The results window is a modal window - a child window of the browser window. To continue working with the parent window, you must close the report. To keep the results open, but also interact with the SpeechMiner interface in other ways, you can convert the modal window into a standalone window.

### To close the report-results window:

• In the upper-right corner of the window, click 🔀

### To convert the window into a standalone window:

• In the upper-right corner of the window, click **[**.

## Moving the Diagram Around

You can move the diagram around the Related Words window as necessary. This can help you see hidden parts of the diagram, and is especially helpful if you have expanded the diagram.

### To move the diagram within the Related Words window:

• Hold down either your left or right mouse button and drag the mouse cursor over the diagram.

## **Enlarging the Diagram**

You can make the diagram larger or smaller.

#### To make the diagram larger or smaller:

• Roll your mouse wheel up or down over the diagram.

### **Additional Options**

Every term in the wheel has a pop-up menu providing additional options. The pop-up menus of the related words on the rim of the wheel contain the following items:

- Expand: Creates an additional wheel in the Related Words window with the rim term as its center (see Expanding the Diagram below)
- Merge: Creates a new wheel in the Related Words window in which the central term of the existing wheel is combined with the rim term (see <u>Merging Terms</u> below)
- Search: Performs a term search for calls in which the central term and the rim term appear (see Searching for Terms below)
- Number of Calls: The number of calls in the sample that contained both the central term and the rim term



Related Words pop-up menu

The pop-up menu of the central term only has one option, <u>Search</u>, which performs a search for the central term, as well as information about the number of calls in the sample in which the central term was found.

	before
•1	call Search 'cs')
need	46 Interactions

Pop-up menu for central word

### To open the pop-up menu for a term:

• Place your mouse cursor on the term.

## Expanding the Diagram

Additional wheels can be added to the diagram to show the terms that are related to any of the terms on the rim. This can provide additional information about important terms in the calls and their relationships. For example, the figure below shows an expanded diagram. The original diagram mapped the related words of the term "call." The diagram was expanded to also show the related words of the term "before."





#### To expand the diagram for a rim term:

• In the pop-up menu of the rim term, select Expand [term].

### **Merging Terms**

The existing diagram can be replaced by a new diagram illustrating the related terms for a central term consisting of the original central term and one of the rim terms. For example, in the figure below, the original central term "call" was replaced by a new central term composed of the original term plus the rim term "before."



Merged terms in new diagram

### To merge the central term with one of the rim terms:

• In the pop-up menu of the rim term, select Merge '[rim term]' with '[central term]'.

### Searching for Terms

You can perform a <u>call search</u> for any term in the diagram. If you perform the search for the central term, SpeechMiner finds calls in the sample in which all of the words in the term are found. If you perform the search for a rim term, SpeechMiner finds calls in the sample in which all of the words in the both the central term and the rim term are found. The call search opens in a separate window.

/iew	1 - 10	of 29	😋 Prev 🔹 🕤	Next 🕒 Bat	ch Actions				💼 Columns
		Open	Date / Time	Workgroup	Agent	Program	Category	Text Duratio	n Topic
1		•	07/02/12 12:56 AM	W	bob	UTOPYINC	2 Categories	ive a call before going email or four 0:02:46	3 Topics
2		•	07/02/12 08:23 AM	W	lane	UTOPYINC	2 Categories	there <b>before</b> nine analyst someone be there . need 0:08:27	3 Topics
3		•	07/02/12 05:16 AM	W	lane	UTOPYINC	2 Categories	ive a <mark>call before</mark> going get the for tomorrow a de 0:06:03	5 Topics
4		•	07/02/12 12:04 PM	W	james	UTOPYINC	3 Categories	w <mark>call</mark> . know oh no . alright sir no do . show a <mark>ca</mark> 0:02:43	3 Topics
5		►	07/02/12 03:40 AM	W	james	UTOPYINC	3 Categories	I can <mark>call</mark> you <b>before</b> , there for the eleventh my0:04:37	3 Topics
6		Þ	07/02/12 05:11 PM	W	bob	UTOPYINC	3 Categories	unt . calling thirty minutes so and and i did request tl 0:05:43	4 Topics
7		•	07/02/12 12:57 AM	W	jasmin	UTOPYINC	3 Categories	unt . <mark>calling</mark> thirty minutes so and and i did request tl 0:05:43	4 Topics
8		•	07/02/12 05:11 PM	W	james	UTOPYINC	3 Categories	ou've <mark>called</mark> in <b>before</b> on the account right cause i 0:04:46	4 Topics
9		•	07/02/12 10:26 AM	W	james	UTOPYINC	3 Categories	ou've called in before on the account right cause i 0:04:46	4 Topics
10		•	07/02/12 05:20 AM	W	bob	UTOPYINC	4 Categories	ive a <b>call before</b> going would you like me to callbacl 0:08:20	8 Topics

Call Search for rim term "before" with central term "call"

## See also

Overview of the Explore Page Setting the Filters Identifying Term Trends Finding Common Terms Using a Trend Graph Home > Quality Monitoring

## **Quality Monitoring**

The Quality Monitoring system is designed for use by supervisors, who can use it to assign tasks to their quality managers, track their progress in performing these tasks, and monitor trends. It has two modules:

- **Queues:** The **Queues** screen is used to create lists of calls for quality analysts to review. The user designs the lists by selecting types and quantities of calls; the system automatically generates lists of calls that meet the criteria.
- Forms Manager: The Forms Manager screen is used to create feedback forms for quality analysts and other users to fill in after they have listened to calls.

## See also

Queues Forms Manager

Welcome Getting Started Workflows Views Action Items Search Using the Media Player Explore Coaching Reports Tools Permalinks Appendix A: Standard Reports

Home > Quality Monitoring > Queues

## Queues

The **Queues** page is used to create and manage sets of search criteria for use by quality managers. The system automatically generates lists of calls for each set of criteria, so that the quality analyst can listen to them. The generated lists are randomized. That is, the system does not just take the first calls in the database that match the search criteria; rather, it randomly selects calls from all those calls that meet the criteria. For example, if the quality analyst needs to listen to a random selection of calls that belong to a particular program, and a random selection of calls that were handled by each agent, you would create two queues, one for the calls from the program and another for calls per agent.

The **Queues** page is designed to be used in conjunction with the <u>My Queues</u> and the <u>Recently QAed</u> widgets on the <u>Views</u> page. The queues are created and managed in the **Queues** page; the quality analyst works with the generated lists in the My Queues widget, and the supervisor can keep tabs on what calls have been dealt with in the Recently QAed widget.

A new queue is automatically assigned to the person who created it, and appears in that person's My Queues list. You can choose to share a queue you create with one or more other users. When you do this, the queue appears in the **Queues** page in read-only form, and in their My Queues widget. Supervisors can assign queues to quality managers by sharing the queues with them. Thus, for example, if you want Joe to handle Queue 1 and Ellen to handle Queue 2, you would share Queue 1 with Joe and Queue 2 with Ellen.

### To open the Queues page:

• In the Main Menu, in the Quality dropdown menu, select Queues.

Spe	echMiner @	DEMO											Search			
View	is 9	Search	Explore	Reports	Quality	Coaching	Tools	Help			Action I	tems (7	) ∞ adr	ninistrator	Lo	g 0ı
Que	ues												07/13/1	04:03 A	M +03:00	UT
Que	eues List															
													Add C	ueue	Delete	
Queue	es List (Page 1															
	Queue 🔻		Description		Quota		Review	ed\Total	Acti	n						
Г	Agents - Spot (	Checks			10 Calls per Qu	iarter per Agent	3\280		Edit	Share	Delete	Сору				
Г	Audited Calls				10 Calls per Ye	ar	0\10		Edit	Share	Delete	Сору				
	Customer Servi	ice i	Check that Customer representatives follow requirements.		20 Calls per Qu	larter	0\20		Edit	Share	Delete	Copy				
Г	Financial				5 Calls per Mor	th	1\5		Edit	Share	Delete	Сору				
Г	Financial-order	1	Financial calls dealing	with orders			0		Edit	Share	Delete	Сору				
Г	Random Selecti	ion			20 Calls per Qu	iarter	0\20		Edit	Share	Delete	Сору				
Г	Short Calls				20 Calls per Mo	inth	0\20		Edit	Share	Delete	Сору				
	Tech Support	:	Spot-checks of tech :	support calls	25 Calls per Ye	ar per Agent	1\700		Edit	Share	Delete	Copy				

### Queues page

The **Queues** page lists all of the queues that you created and that were shared with you. You can only edit, share, or delete the queues that you created. The checkbox and Action links of queues that someone else created and shared with you are not available.

## **Columns in the Queues List**

The Queues List contains the following columns:

Column	Description
Queue	The name of the queue
Description	The description of the queue
Quota	The number of calls that should be reviewed; if the number is per time period and per agent, the quota indicates this
Reviewed\Total	The number of calls that have already been reviewed (in the current time period, if one is defined), and, if a time period is defined, followed by the total number of calls that were included in the queue for the current time period.
Action	Click one of the links to select an action (see Managing Queues).

## Sorting the Columns

You can sort the rows of the Queues List by any of the columns (except the Action column).

## To sort the list by a column:

• Click the column heading. (To reverse the sort order, click the column heading again.)

## See also

Creating a New Queue Managing Queues

### Forms Manager

Home > Quality Monitoring > Queues > Creating a New Queue

# Creating a New Queue

In addition to a name and optional description, each queue consists of two parts:

- Search criteria
- Quota

The search criteria are defined using a standard Search form.

## To create a new queue:

1. In the Queues screen, click Add Queue. The New Search screen opens.



New Search screen

2. In the left column, select the search criteria for the queue. For additional information, see Defining Search Criteria.

Note: If you specify a time period in the quota definition (see below), the date range defined in the call search criteria is overridden.

3. At the upper-right corner of the screen, click Save As Queue. The New Queue dialog box opens.

New Queue			
Queue Details			
Name:	<u> </u>		
Quota Type:	Opportunity	•	
Quota Parameters:			
Search Details			
🗆 Calls Between 05/0	1/12 and 05/25/12, Sorting By dat	e	
Languages: (Amer			
Include Comment	Types: Good,Bad,General		
Description			
		Save	Cancel

New Queue dialog box

- 4. Under  $\ensuremath{\textbf{Name}}\xspace,$  enter a name for the queue.
- 5. Under **Quota**, select the type of quota, as follows:

Quota Type	Description						
Opportunity	No quota: When the quality analyst chooses to review a call that matches the search criteria, the system retrieves an appropriate call, but there is no specific requirement for how many calls to review.						
Calls in date range per agent	For each time period, the system retrieves the required number of calls for each agent. The fields required to define the settings are added to the dialog box.						
Calls in date range	For each time period, the system retrieves the required number of calls, regardless of who the agents were. The fields required to define the settings are added to the dialog box.						

New Queue		
Queue Details		
Name:	Commented Calls	
Quota Type:	Calls in date range	•
Quota Parameters:	Calls D	Per Date Day
Note: the selected Que search	ota time span will override the date	range specified in the call
Search Details		
⊡ Calls Between 05/0	1/12 and 05/25/12, Sorting By date	
Languages: (Amer Include Comment	ican English) Types: Good,Bad,General	
Description		
	_	
		Save Cancel

Fields added to dialog box

6. If you selected Calls in date range per agent or calls in date range, fill in the fields as follows:

Field	Description
Calls	The number of calls that should be reviewed from the specified time period. (If you selected <b>Calls in date range per agent</b> , this is the number per agent, not the total number.)
Per Date	The time period: Day, Week, Month, Quarter, or Year.

Note: The Per Agent field is not currently in use.

- 7. Under **Description**, enter a description for the queue (optional).
- Click Save. The queue is added to your list of queues in the <u>Queues</u> screen and in your <u>My Queues</u> widget. Note: If you want to assign the queue to other users, you must share it with them (see <u>Sharing a Queue</u>).

## See also

Managing Queues

Home > Quality Monitoring > Queues > Managing Queues

# Managing Queues

If you created a queue, you can edit it, share it with other users, delete it, or make a copy of it.

## **Editing a Queue**

You can edit the quota settings, search criteria, and sharing settings of a queue.

### To edit the quota settings of a queue:

1. In the **Queues** screen, in the Queues List, under **Action**, click **Edit**. The **Edit Queue** dialog box opens, with the name of the queue in its title and the quota and search settings displayed below:

Edit Queue: Cor	mmented Calls		
Queue Details			
Name:	Commented Calls		
Quota Type:	Calls in date range per agent 💽		
Quota Parameters:	Calls 10	Per Date Quarter 💌	Per Agent Agent
Note: the selected Qu	ota time span will override the date range sp	ecified in the call sea	rch
Search Details			
<ul> <li>Calls Last 90 Days,</li> <li>Languages: (Ame Include Comment</li> </ul>			
Description	Review calls with comments		
Save & Share	Save		Cancel

Edit Queue dialog box

- 2. Modify the quota settings and description as required.
- 3. Click Save to save the changes or Save & Share to save the changes and open the Sharing Queue dialog box (see below).

**Note:** If you modified the quota settings and/or the description, and you also want to change the search criteria, click **Save** to save the quota and description settings, and then open the **Edit Queue** dialog box again to modify the search criteria, as explained below.

4. If you selected Save & Share, modify the sharing settings as required, and then click Save. The settings are saved.

## To modify the search criteria:

- 1. In the Queues screen, in the Queues List, under Action, click Edit. The Edit Queue dialog box opens.
- 2. In the middle of the dialog box, click 2. The <u>New Search</u> screen opens.
- 3. Modify the search criteria as necessary.

4. At the upper left in the New Search screen, click Save. The changes are saved in the queue.

## Sharing a Queue

If you want to assign responsibility for a queue to other users, you must share the queue with them. When you share a queue with someone, the queue appears in their **Queues** screen in read-only form, and in their **My Queues** widget. When anyone sharing a queue reviews a call in the queue, the queue record (calls reviewed/left) is updated for all of those sharing the queue.

#### To share a queue:

1. In the **Queues** screen, in the Queues List, under **Action**, click **Share**. The **Share Queue** dialog box opens, with the name of the queue at the top:

List: Commented Calls
Share with groups
🗖 Chicago
🗖 Default
Share with users
Filter by text:
🗹 Admin Admin (administrator)
☐ Janice Smith (jsmith)
Libby SB (libby)
🗖 Maynard Hill (maynard)
🗖 Miles Jones (mjones)
🗖 Shiela Mann (shiela)
Save Cancel

Share Queue dialog box

- 2. To share the queue with one or more groups, select the groups.
- 3. To share the queue with one or more users, select the users. To filter the list of users, in the **Filter by text** box, type a sequence of letters that appears in the name or user name of the user, only those users whose names contain the sequence appear in the list.
- 4. Click Save. The queue is shared with the selected groups and users.

## **Deleting Queues**

When you no longer need a queue, you can delete it. If you want to delete a number of queues at one time, you can delete them all in one action.

## To delete a single queue:

- 1. In the **Queues** screen, in the Queues List, under **Action**, click **Delete**. You are prompted to confirm that you want to delete the queue.
- 2. Click **Yes**. The queue is deleted.

## To delete multiple queues:

- 1. In the Queues screen, in the Queues List, select the checkbox at the left of each queue you want to delete.
- 2. At the top of the list, click Delete. You are prompted to confirm that you want to delete the queues.
- 3. Click **Yes**. The queues are deleted.

## Copying a Queue

If you want to create a new queue that is very similar to an existing queue, you can do so quickly by copying the existing queue and modifying its settings.

### To create a new queue:

- 1. In the Queues screen, in the Queues List, under Action, click Copy. You are prompted to provide a name for the new queue.
- 2. Enter an name and click **OK**. A copy of the queue is added to the list of queues. All of its properties are identical with the queue from which it was copied, except its name.

**Note:** Once you have created a queue by copying an existing one, you can modify it as you would any other existing queue, as explained above.

## See also

### Creating a New Queue

Home > Quality Monitoring > Forms Manager

## Forms Manager

The Forms Manager is used to create forms for users to fill in after they have reviewed calls or participated in coaching sessions. After a form is filled out, SpeechMiner automatically analyzes it and extrapolates an overall score from the user's answers to the questions it contains. The system can also generate statistical analyses from collections of filled-in forms (see <u>OM Agent Summary</u>). For example, you can see the average score of a particular type of form.

Forms can contain multiple questions of various types, including yes-no questions, multiple-choice questions, and questions requiring free-text responses. Each question can be either required or optional, and questions can be grouped. Conditional forms, which are incorporated into other forms only when certain conditions are met, can also be defined.

The system has two Forms Managers, one for the Quality Monitoring system and one for the Coaching system. Both managers work in the same way, which is described in this section. The only exception is that the Coaching system does not support conditional forms. For information on filling in forms after listening to calls, see <u>Filling in Forms</u>; for information about filling in forms after taking part in coaching sessions, see <u>Taking Part in a Session</u>.

### To open the Forms Manager:

- For the Quality-Monitoring system: In the Main Menu, in the Quality dropdown menu, select Forms Manager.
- For the Coaching system: In the Main Menu, in the Coaching dropdown menu, select Forms Manager.

Views	Search	Explore	Reports	Quality	Coaching	Tools	Help	Action	Items	(7) 🔻 Administrator
orms Ma	nager									07/19/12 05:28 AM +03:0
Batch Act	ions • View ina	tive 🔽								New
Forms (Page	1 of 1)									
Name		Description			Creator	Created A	Modified	Calls	Active	Actions
Customer	Service Calls	Auditing of Custom	er Service Calls		Administrator	07/19/12 05:25 AM	07/19/12 05:25 AM	0	×	Edit Delete
			nercial customers reque		Administrator	05/15/12 02:47 AM	07/19/12 05:27 AM	0	~	Edit Copy Delete Programs
- Service R	equest - Agent Feedback	For agents after the	ey handled service requ	iests	Administrator	05/15/12 02:12 AM	07/19/12 05:28 AM	15	1	Edit Copy Delete Programs
Form										
	orms (Page 1 of 1)									
	orms (Page 1 of 1)	Description			Creator	Created A	Modified	Calls A	ctive	Actions
#### Forms Manager (Quality-Monitoring system)

The Forms Manager lists all of the forms that exist in the system, divided into two groups: general forms and conditional forms.

## **Columns in the Forms List**

The Forms List contains the following columns:

Column	Description
Name	The name of the form
Description	The description of the queue
Creator	The name of the user who created the form
Created	The date and time at which the form was created
Modified	The date and time at which the form was last modified
Calls	The number of calls for which the form has been filled in
Active	<ul> <li>The status of the form:</li> <li>✓ - Active form - available for users to fill in</li> <li>➤ - Inactive form - not available for users to fill in</li> <li>Note: Inactive forms are only visible when View Inactive is selected at the top of the list.</li> </ul>
Actions	Click one of the links to select an action (see Managing Forms).

## Sorting the Columns

You can sort the rows of the Forms List by any of the columns (except the Actions column).

## To sort the list by a column:

• Click the column heading. (To reverse the sort order, click the column heading again.)

## See also

Creating a New Form Managing Forms

Queues Taking Part in a Coaching Session Filling in Forms in the Media Player

Home > Quality Monitoring > Forms Manager > Creating a New Form

# Creating a New Form

Each form has a name, optional description, and notes, and contains a list of questions. The questions can be grouped, and multiplechoice questions can have numbered or textual answers. In addition, each question can be defined as required or optional, and Yes/No and multiple-choice questions can be assigned weights.

The weight of each question is used to calculate the overall score of the form when a user fills it in. For example, a form could contain three questions, one in which the user is asked to rate the agent's handling of the caller, a second in which the user is asked to rate how difficult the caller was to handle, and a third in which the user is asked to type comments. The first two questions could be required, while the third was optional. Users would not be able to save the form if they did not answer the first two questions, but

they could leave the third blank if they chose. The first two questions could be weighted 65% and 35% respectively, and the overall score on the form would be calculated based on these weights.

Two types of forms are supported by the system:

- · General forms: Stand-alone forms that contain questions that are relevant to all types of calls or coaching sessions
- **Conditional forms:** Forms that contain additional questions and are automatically added to general forms when a call belongs to specified Categories (Quality-Monitoring only; not available for Coaching forms)

Forms and their contents are automatically saved in the system as you design them. New forms are inactive until you activate them. Users can only see and fill in active forms.

A form can be selected as the default for one or more Programs. When it is, and it is active, it appears at the top of the list of forms available to users when they are reviewing calls from the selected Programs. Users can still select other forms to fill out if they need to do so.

## **Opening a Blank Form**

The first step in creating a new form is opening a blank form. When the blank form is opened, it contains no questions and is not active. However, it is automatically saved in the system. If you choose to display inactive forms in the Forms List, it will appear there, even if you do not add any questions to it.

Note: You can also create a new form by making a copy of an existing form and editing the copy as necessary.

#### To create a blank form:

1. In the Forms Manager screen, click New. The New Form dialog box opens.

New Form		
Form Details		
Name		
Description		
Note		
Type General		
	Save	Cancel



2. Fill in the fields as follows:

Field	Description
Name	Type a name for the form.
Description	Type a description for the form (optional).
Note	Add additional notes as necessary (optional).
Туре	Select the type of form ( <b>General</b> or <b>Conditional</b> ). <b>Note:</b> This field is not available for Coaching forms, whose type is automatically set to Coaching.

3.

4. Click **Save**. The Form Designer opens and displays a blank form.

SpeechMi	ner	0						Search 👂 💶 🛃
Views	Search	Explore	Reports	Quality	Coaching	Tools	Help	Action Items (7)  Administrator
Form Desi	gner							07/19/12 05:35 AM +03:00 UTC
Preview			Add Group		Back to For	ms Manager		
Name Tec	hnical Support Calls							
	dback form for Tech							
	y for US call centers	5.7						
Type Ger Is Active 💥	Activate							
Total Weight (0-1 Rebalance Weight								
		P-1-1-1-1-	-					
Add a question a	by selecting from the	e links below						
Multiple Choice (	3)							
Multiple Choice (	<u>51</u>							
Multiple Choice (	<u>7)</u>							
Multiple Choice (	10)							
Free Text								
					'			

Blank form in the Form Designer

## Adding Questions to a Form

Four types of questions can be added to a form:

- Yes/No: Questions that should be answered with either yes or no.
- Multiple Choice (3): Multiple choice questions with three possible answers
- Multiple Choice (5): Multiple choice questions with five possible answers
- Multiple Choice (7): Multiple choice questions with seven possible answers
- Multiple Choice (10): Multiple choice questions with ten possible answers
- Free Text: Questions that are answered by typing in free text

Each question is automatically included in a group, and has a title as well as the actual text of the question. The possible answers to multiple choice questions can be edited as required. New questions are initially added at the end of the form, but can be moved to other locations later on.

## Adding a Question to a Form

You can add questions to a form as necessary. The questions are added at the end of the form. You can move them to other locations at any time (see <u>below</u>).

## To add a question to a form:

1. At the lower left of the Form Designer, click the type of question you want to add. A blank question of the selected type is added to the form. It is automatically added at the bottom of the form, and included in the last group in the form. The first question inserted into a blank form is included in the default group, which is initially called New Group. For information about changing the name of a group, see <u>below</u>.

New Group			
Required 🗖	VVeight:1%	[×]	
	Required 🗖	Required 🔲 Weight:1%	

New Yes/No question

2. Click Insert question title to modify the question title. The title becomes a text field.

Agent	[X]
Save Cancel	Required 🔲 Weight:1% 🛛 🛛
Insert question text	
C Yes C No C NA	

**Question Title text field** 

- 3. Edit the title and then click **Save** to save the new title.
- 4. Click Insert question text to modify the question text. The text becomes a text field.

Agent	[×
Experience	Required 🔲 Weight:1% [X]
Save Cancel	A V



- 5. Edit the text and then click **Save** to save the new text.
- 6. If the question is required, select the **Required** checkbox.
- 7. For multiple-choice questions, if you want to replace the default numbers with text, edit the answers as explained below.

## **Editing Multiple-Choice Answers**

When you add a multiple-choice question to a form, each of the possible answers is assigned a number. You can replace the numbers with test as necessary.

## To edit multiple-choice answers:

1. Below the answers, click Edit answers. A text box opens, and displays each of the answers on a separate line.

Agent		[×]
Experience	Required 🔲 Weight:10%	[X]
Did the agent have enough experience to ha	indle the call?	
OYes ONO ONA		
Friendliness	Required 🔲 Weight:1%	[X]
How friendly was the agent?		
1		
2		
3		
4		
		_
Write each answer in separate line (save e	mpty box for default labels)	
Save Cancel		

Multiple choice answers in text box

2. Edit each line as necessary.



Editing multiple-choice answers

3. Click Save. The edited answers replace the default numbers.

Agent			[×]
Experience	Required 🔲	Weight:10%	[×]
Did the agent have enough experience to handle the call? ● Yes ● No ● NA			
Friendliness	Required 🗖	Weight:1%	[×]
How friendly was the agent? Rude Cunfriendly Polite Friendly Very Fr Edit answers	iendly		

Edited multiple-choice answers

#### Moving Questions within a Form

New questions are automatically added at the end of the form. You can move them to other locations in the form as required.

#### To move a question to a different location:

• Drag the icon that appears to the left of the question title. The question moves up or down in the form as you drag it. Release your mouse button to drop the question when it is in its intended location.

## Managing Question Groups

All of the questions in a form are included in question groups. When you add the first question to a form, a default group, called New Group, is automatically added to the form, and the question is included in it. You can change the name of a question group, add additional question groups, and rearrange existing question groups as required. The system can analyze the responses for each group separately in the <u>OM Agent Summary</u> report.

## Changing the Name of a Question Group

You can change the name of any question group in the form.

#### To change the name of a question group:

1. Click the name of the group. The name becomes a text field.

New Group			
Save Cancel			[X]
Insert question title	Required 🔲	Weight:1%	[X]
Insert question text			
CYes CNo CNA			

Group Name text field

- 2. Edit the name
- 3. Click Save to save the new name.

## Adding Question Groups to a Form

You can add question groups to a form as necessary. For example, you could have one group of questions call "Caller" containing questions about the caller and another group called "Agent" containing questions about how the agent handled the call. Questions can be moved from one group to another as necessary (see <u>above</u>).

#### To add a question group to a form:

• At the top of the form, click **Add group**. A new group is added at the bottom of the form.

#### Changing the Order of Question Groups in a Form

You can move existing question groups up or down in a form.

## To move a question group up or down in a form:

• In the upper right corner of the group, click a to move the group up or v to move it down.

## Managing Question Weights

Weights are assigned to Yes/No and multiple-choice questions in a form. The weights indicate the relative importance of each question, and are used by the system to calculate the score of the form when it is filled in by a user. The sum of all the weights in a form must be 100%.

The Forms Designer shows the current sum of the weights in the left column under **Total Weight**. A form cannot be activated if the sum of the weights is not 100%. You can modify the weights assigned to questions in one of two ways:

- Automatically, by assigning equal weights to all questions
- · Manually, by editing the weights of individual questions

#### Automatically Assigning Weights to Questions

You can assign equal weights to all of the Yes/No and multiple-choice questions in a form.

## To assign equal weights to all of the questions in a form:

- 1. In the left column of the Forms Designer, under **Total Weight**, click **Rebalance Weights**. You are prompted to confirm that you want to rebalance the weights.
- 2. Click Yes. The weights of all the questions are reset such that they all are equal and the total is 100%.

## Manually Editing Weights

You can manually modify the weight of any Yes/No or multiple-choice question in a form.

Note: Make sure that the total of all of the weights is 100% before you try to activate the form.

## To manually edit the weight of a question:

1. In the upper-right corner of the question area, click the weight. The weight becomes a text field.



## Weight text field

- 2. Edit the weight as necessary.
- 3. Click Save. The weight is updated.

## Previewing a Form

As you add questions and question groups to a form, you may want to see how the form would look to users. To do this, you can open a preview of the current form in a separate window. In the preview window, you can collapse question groups if you wish.

## To see a preview of the form that is open in the Form Designer:

• In the upper-left corner of the Form Designer, click Preview. A window opens and displays the form as it would look to users.

SpeechMiner - Form: Inappropriate Handling Webpage Dialog	
orm: Inappropriate Handling	
For calls that were not handled properly	
Close	
Caller	
* Q1: Clarity	Veight:25%
How clearly did the caller express his/herself?	
<b>O</b> 1 <b>O</b> 2 <b>O</b> 3 <b>O</b> 4 <b>O</b> 5 <b>O</b> 6 <b>O</b> 7 <b>O</b> 8 <b>O</b> 9 <b>O</b> 10	
Agent	
* Q2: Experience	Weight: 25%
Did the agent have enough experience to handle the call?	
CYes CNO CNA	
* Q3: Friendliness	Weight:25%
How friendly was the agent?	
C Rude C Unfriendly C Polite C Friendly Very Friendly	
General	
* Q4: Overall rating	Weight:25%
Overall, how successful was the call?	
C1 C2 C3 C4 C5 C6 C7 C8 C9 C10	
Q5: Comments	
Please add any comments you may have.	

#### Preview window

## To collapse or expand question groups in a Preview window:

• Click the name of the group.

SpeechMiner - Form: Inappropriate Handling Webpage Dialog	2
Form: Inappropriate Handling	
For calls that were not handled properly	
Close	
Caller	
Agent	
* Q2: Experience	Weight: 25%
Did the agent have enough experience to handle the call?	
OYes ONO ONA	
* Q3: Friendliness	Weight: 25%
How friendly was the agent?	
CRude CUnfriendly CPolite CFriendly Very Friendly	
General	
d	

Collapsed question groups in a Preview window

## Saving a New Form

The changes you make to a form as you design it are automatically saved in the system. During the design process, you can close the form at any time, and the changes you made to it are saved. You can edit it later to continue the design process.

While a form is being designed, it is not active, and is not available to users. When you want to make a form available to users, you must activate it. Furthermore, many form-editing features are not available when a form is active. For example, you must deactivate it to change the locations of questions and question groups.

You can select a Program default for a form. When you do so, the form appears at the top of the user's list of available forms when a call from the selected program is being reviewed.

## Activating a Form

While you are designing a form, it is deactivated. When you have finished designing a form, you can activate it. Once the form is activated, it appears in the list of forms available to users. In addition, you can only choose the conditions for a Conditional form after it is activated. The activation status of a form appears on the left side of the Form Designer, under **Is Active**.

Note: Inactive forms are only listed in the Forms Manager if the View inactive option is selected (see Forms Manager).

#### To activate a form:

• On the left side of the Form Designer, under Is Active, click Activate.

#### **Closing the Form Designer**

You can close the Form Designer at any time. Changes you have made to the current form are automatically saved when you close the Form Designer.

## To close the Form Designer:

• At the upper-right of the screen, click Back to Forms Manager.

Note: If the form is note active, you are asked whether you want to activate the form. Click Yes to activate the form or No to leave it deactivated.

## Selecting Default Programs for a Form

Once a Quality-Monitoring form is activated, you can select Programs for which it is the default form if you wish. When users open the list of forms for calls belonging to these Programs, the form appears at the top of the list of available forms.

Note: This option is not available for Coaching forms.

To select Programs for which a form is the default:

1. In the Forms Manager, under Actions, select Programs. A Program-selector dialog box opens.

Choose the programs to use this form as default          0 Selected         Right click on a node for more options.         English Program         Spanish Program	
Right click on a node for more options. ☐ English Program	
🗖 English Program	

Program-selector dialog box for default form

- 2. Select the Programs for which you want the form to be the default.
- 3. Click Save. The form becomes the default for the selected Programs.

## Selecting the Conditions for a Conditional Form

Once a Conditional form is activated, you can select Categories for which it is to be used. When a user opens a general form for a call that belongs to any of these Categories, the Conditional form is added to the general form.

Note: This option is not available for Coaching forms.

To select Categories for which a conditional form should be used:

1. In the Forms Manager, in the list of Conditional forms, under **Actions**, select **Categories**. A Category-selector dialog box opens.

Form: Financial Calls	when to display	v this form		
None				
Find:	Selected	All		
Missing audio level 1     By length     Agitation Early in Call     Financial     Unclassified     Undetermined				
			Save	Cancel

Category-selector dialog box for Conditional form

- 2. Select the Categories for which you want the form to be used.
- 3. Click Save. The conditions are set.

## See also

## Managing Forms

Home > Quality Monitoring > Forms Manager > Managing Forms

# Managing Forms

Existing forms can be edited, activated, deactivated, or deleted. In addition, in the Quality-Monitoring system, the Programs for which a form is the default, and the Categories associated with a Conditional form, can be modified.

Copies of existing forms can also be created as necessary. This can be useful when a new form is required that is similar to an existing form. The copy can be edited as necessary after it is created.

## **Editing a Form**

You can edit any of the items in a form. Note, however, that some items can only be edited when a form is deactivated, as explained below.

## To edit a form:

- 1. In the Forms Manager, under Actions, select Edit. The form opens in the Form Designer.
- 2. To modify the form's name, description, or notes, the name of a question group, the title, text, or weight of a question, click the text. The text becomes a text field. Edit the text field as required, and then click **Save**.
- 3. To modify the text of multiple-choice answers, click **Edit answers**. The answers open in a text box, with one answer per line. Modify the lines as required, and then click **Save**.

Note: For additional information about the Form Designer, see Creating a New Form.

## Activating or Deactivating a Form

Forms are only available to users when they are activate. Many editing features are only available for deactivated forms. The following items can be edited without deactivating a form:

- Name
- Description
- Notes
- Question-group names
- Question titles
- Question text

The following items cannot be edited without deactivating a form:

- Locations of questions and question-groups
- · Text of answers to multiple-choice questions
- · Required status
- Weight

Forms can be activated or deactivated in the Forms Manager or in the Form Designer. If you use the Forms Manager, you can activate or deactivate a batch of forms at one time. If you use the Form Designer, you can only activate or deactivate the open form. The current activation status appears in the Forms Manager under **Active**, and in the Form Designer, on the left side, under **Is Active**.

## To activate or deactivate one or more forms in the Forms Manager:

- 1. In the list of forms, select the checkbox to the left of each form you want to activate or deactivate.
- 2. At the top of the list, click Batch Actions, and then, in the dropdown menu, select Activate or Deactivate.

## To activate or deactivate a form in the Form Designer:

• On the left side of the Form Designer, under Is Active, select Activate or Deactivate.

## **Deleting Forms**

In the Forms Manager, you can delete forms individually or in a batch.

#### To delete a single form:

- 1. In the list of forms in the Forms Manager, under **Actions**, select **Delete**. You are prompted to confirm you want to delete the form.
- 2. Select  $\boldsymbol{Yes}.$  The form is deleted.

#### To delete a batch of forms:

- 1. In the Forms Manager, select the checkbox to the left of each form you want to delete.
- 2. At the top of the list, click **Batch Actions**, and then, in the dropdown menu, select **Delete**. You are prompted to confirm that you want to delete the selected forms.
- 3. Click **OK**. The selected forms are deleted.

## Modifying Default Program Selections

You can modify the list of Programs for which a Quality-Monitoring form is the default.

#### To modify the list of Programs for which a form is the default:

- 1. In the list of forms in the Forms Manager, under **Actions**, select **Programs**. A Program-selector dialog box opens, with the current selections selected.
- 2. Modify the selections as necessary.
- 3. Click Save. The changes are saved.

## Modifying the Categories of Conditional Forms

You can modify the list of Categories associated with a Conditional form.

## To modify the list of Categories associated with a Conditional form:

- 1. In the list of conditional forms in the Forms Manager, under **Actions**, select **Categories**. A Category-selector dialog box opens, with the current selections selected.
- 2. Modify the selections as necessary.
- 3. Click Save. The changes are saved.

## Copying a Form

You can make a copy of any active form. Once you have done so, you can edit the copy as necessary to create a new form.

## To copy an existing form:

- 1. In the list of forms in the Forms Manager, under Actions, select Copy. You are prompted to give a name to the new form.
- 2. Enter a name for the form, and then click **OK**. The copy is created and appears in the list. (The copy is not activated, and only appears in the list if **View inactive** is selected.)

## See also

Creating a New Form

Home > Coaching

# Coaching

The coaching system is designed to help managers, supervisors, quality-monitoring personnel, and agents with training processes. In the system, coaching sessions are created for trainees to take part in. The sessions consist of lists of calls that the trainee is asked to listen to, either in part or in their entirety. In addition, they may include notes, <u>Action Items</u>, and links to other sites. While anyone with the required permissions can open a new coaching session, it is the session's coach who designs the session by defining the Interaction Lists, Action Items, and links, and by adding notes to guide the trainee through the session.

Both novice and experienced personnel can benefit from taking part in a training session; new employees can be introduced to their jobs through a coaching session, and veterans can be encouraged to fine-tune their techniques by means of coaching sessions that highlight specific aspects of their jobs.

## See also

Working with the Coaching Session List Taking Part in a Session Creating a New Coaching Session Coaching Session Reports Managing Session Types

Home > Coaching > Working with the Coaching Session List

# Working with the Coaching Session List

The coaching **Sessions** screen lets you see which coaching sessions exist, gives general information about each session, and enables you to access the **Session Details** screen in which you can manage or take part in individual sessions.

## To open the Sessions screen:

• In the Main Menu, under Coaching, select Sessions.



#### Sessions screen

The left side of the **Sessions** screen contains the session list, a table that lists the existing sessions. Below the session list is a calendar that shows when the sessions are scheduled. The right side of the screen displays details about the session that is selected in the table.

## **Columns in the Sessions**

The session list contains the following columns:

Column	Description
Status	The status of the session. (See below for a list of possible statuses.)
Schedule Date	The beginning of the time range when the trainee is meant to take part in the session
Name	The name of the session
Coach	The username of the coach
Trainee	The username of the trainee
Actions	Click one of the buttons to select an action. (See below for a list of actions.)

## **Session Statuses**

Session statuses are indicated by icons in the Session List and by color-coding in the calendar. The following session statuses are defined:

Status	Description	Icon	Color-coding
Scheduled	The session has been created, but was not yet started.		Yellow
In Progress	The trainee is currently taking part in the session.	3	Yellow
On Hold	The session was paused after the trainee began taking part in it.		Red
Completed	The trainee has finished taking part in the session.	0	Green

## **Action Options**

The Actions column contains buttons that you can use to perform an action related to a session in the list:

Button	Description
	Adds the session to the Outlook calendar on your local computer
	Resends the e-mail notification about the session to the coach and the trainee
68)	Creates a <u>Permalink</u> to the session.
	Opens the Session Details screen in Setup mode so that you can add content to the session or modify the session properties or content
	Note: Only available to the creator and coach; the trainee cannot open the Session Details in Setup mode
ilili.	Generates a <u>report</u> containing statistical information about all of the sessions assigned to the trainee of the selected session

## Filtering the List

You can use filters to limit the sessions that are displayed in the list to those that meet criteria you specify. Two types of filters are available:

- General filters, which allow you to filter the list based on user and date, and let you choose whether to include completed sessions in the list.
- Column-based filters, which allow you to filter the list based on session status and trainee

## **General Filters**

The general filter controls are located at the top of the session list. The following filters are available:

Filter Type	Description
User	Select <b>All Sessions</b> to display all sessions that you have permissions to see. Select <b>My Sessions</b> to include only view sessions in which you are either the creator, the coach or the trainee.
Date Range	Under <b>From</b> , select the beginning of the period to include in the list. Under <b>To</b> , select the end of the period to include in the list.
Completed	Select the <b>Completed</b> checkbox to include sessions that were completed in the list. Clear the checkbox to only include sessions that were not yet completed.

## **Column-Based Filters**

Column-based filters are located in the column headings of the Status and Trainee columns.

## To use the Status filter:

• In the heading of the **Status** column, in the dropdown list, select the status you want to include in the session list. Only sessions with the selected status are displayed in the list. To view sessions with any status, select **All**.

## To activate the Trainee filter:

• In the text box to the right of the **Trainee** heading, type part of the name or username of the trainee you want to include in the list. As you type, names and user names containing those letters are displayed in a dropdown list. Select the trainee from the list. Only sessions with the selected trainee are displayed in the list.

## To deactivate the Trainee filter:

• Delete the text in the text field and then press Enter. Sessions for all trainees are displayed in the list.

## Sorting the Columns

You can choose to sort the session list by any column.

## To sort the session list by a column:

• Click the title of the column.

Note: Click the title a second time to reverse the sort order.

## Working with the Calendar

The lower left part of the screen contains a calendar in which you can see when the sessions that appear in the list are scheduled to take place. You can choose a monthly, weekly, or daily display. You can also open the **Session Details** screen for a session directly from the calendar.



Monthly calendar display

0 toda	• Jul 22 — 28 2012								
Sun 7/22	Mon 7/23	Tue 7/24	Wed 7/25	Thu 7/26	Fri 7/27	Sat 7/28			
	<b>10a</b> Emergency Calls	<b>9a</b> Auditing Customer Service Calls	<b>12:30p</b> Auditing Calls						
	<b>3p</b> Auditing Sales Calls								

Weekly calendar display

0 0	today Monday, Jul 23, 2012	month	week	day
	Monday 7/23			
all-day				
6am				-
7am				
8am				
9am				
10am	10:00 - 4:00 Emergency Calls			
11am				
12pm				
1pm				
2pm				
Зрт	3:00 - 5:00 Auditing Sales Calls			
4pm				
5pm				
				-

Daily calendar display

## To select the type of calendar display:

• At the upper-right of the calendar area, click month, week, or day. The calendar display changes to the selected type.

## To choose the time period to display:

• In the upper-left of the calendar area, click **1** to display the previous time period (e.g., if you are displaying a weekly calendar, the previous week), or **1** to display the next time period.

To open the Session Details screen for a session that appears in the calendar:

• Click the session in the calendar.

## **Viewing Session Details**

You can view a summary of the properties and contents of a session in the Sessions screen.

## To view session details in the Sessions screen:

• In the session row, click anywhere in the text except for the name of the session. The session details are displayed on the right side of the screen.

Session D	etails: Co	ld Sales Calls							
General D	etails		Notes						
Status: Schedule Date Schedule Date From: To: Start Time: End Time:	Start: 09/1		-	/06/10 05:0 forget n.		(Public) final			
Duration: Type:		00:00 (hh:mm:ss) es Agent Session							
Call Lists Successful Ca Workgroup 1 - Service Transf Action Iter	lls (0/2) Cold Calls (( er (0/?)	Comments (when	re availab	le)					
Status	Creator	Assignee	Туре	Due Date		Actions			
Open	libby	administrator	Test	09/13/10	Details	Complete	Edit		
Confirmed	libby	libby	Training	09/13/10	<u>Details</u>	<u>Edit</u>			
		re ce Page 1	of 1	00 - DI					
Links									
A useful sales	tactic(Not c	licked yet)							
Test link(Not cl	icked yet)								
Test link(Not cl	icked yet)								

## **Session Details**

The display includes five boxes:

Box	Description
General Details	The status and properties of the session. If the trainee has already begun to take part in the session, the start time, end time, and duration of their participation appears. Otherwise, only the Due Dates appear.
Notes	Lists all public notes that are attached to the session, and all private notes that you attached to the session.
Call Lists	Lists all Call Lists that are attached to the session. For each Call List, indicates how many calls have comments, and how many calls are in the list. For example, <b>(1,3)</b> indicates that one call in the list has comments, and the list contains three calls.
	If a call has comments, the comments appear below the Call Listing.
Action Items	An Action Items box in which all Action Items associated with the session appear
Links	Lists all links that are included in the session, and indicates whether the trainee has opened them yet

## **Opening the Session Details Screen**

The **Session Details** screen is used by the creator or coach to manage an individual session - adding Call Lists and notes and modifying properties (see <u>Creating a New Coaching Session</u>) - and by the trainee to take part in the session by listening to the calls (see <u>Taking Part in a Session</u>).

Note: The creator or coach can also open the Session Details screen in Setup mode, as explained above.

#### To open a session in the Session Details screen:

• In the session list, click the name of the session.

## **Creating a New Session**

You can create a new session from the Sessions screen.

## To open a new session:

- 1. At the top of the list, click New Session. The New coaching session dialog box.
- 2. Follow the instructions under Creating a New Coaching Session.

## **Deleting Sessions**

You can delete one or more coaching sessions.

#### To delete coaching sessions:

- 1. Select the checkbox to the left of each session you want to delete.
- 2. At the top of the list, click Delete Session. You are prompted to confirm that you want to delete the sessions.
- 3. Click OK. The sessions are deleted, and a confirmation message appears.

## See also

Taking Part in a Session Creating a New Coaching Session Coaching Session Reports Managing Session Types

Home > Coaching > Taking Part in a Session

# Taking Part in a Session

Trainees take part in a coaching session by opening the session in the **Session Details** screen. In this screen, they can listen to the calls, read the notes, open the links, and manage the <u>Action Items</u> attached to the session. When they have completed the session, they can fill in a feedback form, as appropriate.

## Accepting a Session

When you receive an invitation to a session, you can accept the session (available only for the trainee). When you do so, the invitation is erased from your message list.

#### To accept a session:

In the Views page, in the My Messages widget, in the session-invitation line, click Accept.

## **Opening a Session**

When you are ready to take part in a session, open it in the Session Details screen.

#### To open a session in the Session Details screen, do one of the following:

- In the Views page, in the My Messages widget, click the subject of the message inviting you to the session.
- In the Sessions screen, in the session list, click the name of the session.

Views	Search	Explore	Repo	orts	Quality	Co	aching	Tools	He	lp	Action Items (8)  Administrator		
Session D	etails										07/20/12 03:04 AM +03:00 UTC		
< Back To Sea	sion List Page	Se	ssion Name	: Cold Sales		C	Action Item	Fill Fo	irm	Accept Se	ession Scheduled Start Pause End		
General Detail	s	General						Edit	Notes				
Calls Call Lists: Friendly Atmos Samples for Pre		+ Session Nam Schedule Se Coach: [X] Trainee: [X] Type:		Cold Sales ( 08/01/12 10 08/01/12 11 Janice Smith Admin Admi Advanced /	:00 AM :00 AM n	ining			Administ Don't sessio	forget to	07/20/12 03:00 AM (Public) include the calls from the London		
Searches: New Customer:	5	[X]	Friendly Atmosphere (0/7)										
Links:		+ Samples for	Presentation	(0/7)									
video of Trainir	ig Class	[X] New Custor	ners (0/?)										
Article from Dai	ly News	[X] Action It	ame										
New Search		Status	Creator	Assignee	Туре	Due Date	Actions	\$					
		Open	Administrato	r administrator	Training	08/01/12 De	tails Complete		1				
		Links											
			-	ot clicked yet)									
		Article from	Daily News(N	lot clicked yet)									

**Session Details screen** 

## **Overview of the Session Details Screen**

When you first open it, the Session Details screen contains the following elements:

Element	Description
Session controls	Bar across the top of the screen that contains a link to the <b>Sessions</b> screen, session status information, and session controls
General Details	Call Lists and links attached to the session
General	Session properties
Call Lists	Summary information about each Call List attached to the session. For each Call List, indicates how many calls have comments, and how many calls are in the list. For example, <b>(1,3)</b> indicates that one call in the list has comments, and the list contains three calls.
	If a call has comments, the comments appear below the summary information.
Action Items	Action Items box listing all Action Items linked to the session. For information about using the <b>Action Items</b> box, see <u>Managing Action Items</u> .
Links	Summary information about the links that are attached to the session.
Notes	Lists all public notes that are attached to the session, and all private notes that you attached to the session.

## Progressing Through the Session

Once the session is open, click **Start Session** to begin taking part in it. The start time of the session is recorded, and the status is changed to In Progress. During the session, click **Pause Session** to temporarily stop taking part. Click **End Session** when you have completed the session.

Note: The coach can also pause the session or mark it as completed.

During the session, use the session notes to guide you through the session. Listen to the calls in the Call Lists and pay special attention to those parts that are mentioned in the notes.

## Listening to Calls

The Call Lists attached to the session can be opened in a <u>Interaction Grid</u>, and the calls can be played back in a <u>Media Player</u>, in the **Session Details** screen.

#### To view a Call List:

 On the left side of the screen, under General Details, click the name of the Call List. An Interaction Grid opens on the right side of the screen, in place of the General, Call Lists, and Notes boxes, and lists all of the calls in the list. For detailed information about Interaction Grids, see <u>Using the Interaction Grid</u>.

#### To play back a call:

• In the Interaction Grid, click the **Play** button (**>**) in the call's row. The Media Player opens below the grid and begins to play the call. For detailed information about the Media Player, see Using the Media Player.

## Filling in a Form

The trainee can fill in a form related to the coaching session. For example, the trainee can fill in a feedback form, or a short quiz about the session.

Only one form can be filled out for each session. If you have already filled out a form, you can edit it if you wish. If you want to fill out a different form, you must first delete the first form. If you have not yet filled out a form for the session, the **Fill Form** button appears at the top of the screen. If you have already filled out a form, the form is displayed in the **Session Details** screen below the Notes section, and the **Edit Form** button appears in place of the **Fill Form** button.

Note: For information about creating forms, see Forms.

## To fill in a form:

- 1. At the top of the screen, click Fill Form. The Select Form dialog box opens and displays a list of available forms.
- 2. Click the form you want to fill out. The form opens in a new window.
- 3. Fill in the form and then click **Submit Changes**. The values you chose are saved in the system, and the form is displayed in the **Session Details** screen below the **Notes** section.
- 4. To close the form, click **Close**.

#### To edit a form:

- 1. At the top of the screen, click Edit Form. (Alternatively, in the title bar of the form, click Edit.) The form opens in a new window.
- 2. Modify the form as necessary, and then click Submit Changes. The changes are saved.
- 3. To close the form, click Close.

#### To delete a form:

- 1. At the top of the screen, click Edit Form. (Alternatively, in the title bar of the form, click Edit.) The form opens in a new window.
- 2. Click Delete. You are prompted to confirm that you want to delete the form.
- 3. Click Yes. The form is deleted and the window closes.

## See also

Working with the Coaching Session List Creating a New Coaching Session Coaching Session Reports Managing Session Types

Home > Coaching > Creating a New Coaching Session

# Creating a New Coaching Session

This section explains how to open a new coaching session, set it up by adding <u>Call Lists</u>, notes, <u>Action Items</u>, and links to the session, and manage its contents once it is set up.

Note: New coaching sessions can be opened in a number of ways:

- In the Coaching page
- In the Views page, in the My Messages widget
- In a Interaction Grid or an Event Grid, from the More Actions menu

This section explains how to open a new session in the **Coaching** page. For information about opening a coaching session in one of the other ways, please refer to the relevant sections of this manual. Regardless of how you open the coaching session, you will most likely want to add Call Lists, notes, and other items to the session, as explained in this section.

## **Opening a New Session**

When you open a new coaching session, you specify the name of the session, the coach, the trainee, and the date and time when the trainee should take part in the session. If you wish, you can also add either a public or private note. The session then appears in the list of sessions, but it does not have any content.

#### To open a new coaching session:

1. In the Main Menu, in the Coaching dropdown menu, select Sessions. The Sessions screen opens.



Sessions screen

2. At the top of the Sessions List, click New Session. The New coaching session dialog box opens.

New coaching	g session			
Session Details				
Session Name:				
Schedule Date:	09/12/10 12:00 AM To 11:59 PM			
Coach:	Libby Barkai (libby)			
Trainee:		<u>]</u>		
Туре:	Auditing	-		
Notes:	Public -			
			Save	Cancel

## New coaching session dialog box

3. Fill in the fields as follows:

Field	Description
Session Name	Type a name for the session.
Schedule Date	Click the calendar icon () to select the date and time period during which you want the trainee to take part in the session.
Coach	<ul> <li>Select the coach in one of the following ways:</li> <li>In the text field, type part of the name or username of the coach. As you type, names and user names containing those letters are displayed in a dropdown list. Select the coach from the list.</li> <li>Click the button () beside the text field. In the dialog box, select the user from the list of users in the relevant workgroup.</li> </ul>
Trainee	<ul> <li>Select the trainee in one of the following ways:</li> <li>In the text field, type part of the name or username of the trainee. As you type, names and user names containing those letters are displayed in a dropdown list. Select the trainee from the list.</li> <li>Click the button () beside the text field. In the dialog box, select the user from the list of users in the relevant workgroup.</li> </ul>
Туре	Select the type of coaching session from the list.
Public/Me	If you are adding any notes in the <b>Notes</b> field, select <b>Public</b> if you want the notes to be visible to anyone who can access the session or <b>Me</b> if you only want the notes to be visible to you.
Notes	Type any notes you want to attach to the session. Public notes can be used to help the trainee and/or the coach with the session.

4. Click Save. The coaching session is opened; it appears in the Sessions List and in the schedule below it. It is selected in the Sessions List and its details are displayed in the Sessions screen, to the right of the Sessions List. An invitation message is sent to the <u>My Messages</u> boxes of the coach and the trainee. In addition, if their user profiles include e-mail addresses, notifications are sent to their e-mail addresses. The notification e-mails include an iCal file. When this attachment is opened, the session is automatically added to the user's Outlook calendar.

## Adding and Managing Session Call Lists

Once a coaching session is open, you can add calls to it. Calls are added as Call Lists. Two types of Call Lists can be added:

- Saved Searches: Sets of call search criteria that can be used to retrieve lists of calls.
- Call Lists: Lists of calls that were created manually by adding specific calls. The calls can be added from a Call or Event grid or from a Media Player.

Note: For additional information about the two types of Call Lists, see Saved Searches.

Call Lists can be added in the **Session Details** screen, in setup mode. Once they have been added, the lists can be modified by adding more calls and removing existing calls. Modifications that are made to a Call List in the Coaching page do not affect the original Call List.

## To open the Session Details screen:

1. In the Main Menu, under Coaching, select Sessions. The Sessions screen opens.

Note: For additional information about the Sessions screen, see Managing the Coaching Session List.

2. In the session list, under Actions, click the Setup button ( ) of the session. The Session Details screen opens for the session, and Session is in setup mode appears above the session-details area.

Views	Search	Explore	Reports	Quality	Coaching	Tools	Help	Action Item	is (7) 🔻 Administrator	Log O
Session De	etails								07/19/12 11:36 PM +0	13:00 UT
< Back To Ses	sion List Page	Session Name: Hand	ling B <mark>Se</mark>	ession is in setup mode	C Action Item	Fill Fo	orm Not y	yet accepted 🗷 Schedule	d Start Pause	End
General Detail	\$	General				Edit	Notes			Nev
Calls Call Lists: Searches:		+ Session Name: Schedule Session Coach: Trainee: Type:	n: 01 01 Ja M	andling Billing Problems /19/1212:00 AM /19/1211:59 PM inice Smith les Jones dvanced Agent Training			Administrator I think Mile of calls.	07/19/12 11:26 PM es will be good at	(Public) <u>Edit Delete</u> handling these type	
Links:		+ Call Lists	and Call Cor	nments (where available	2)					
New Search		Links								

Session Details screen in setup mode

## Adding Existing Global Call Lists to a Session

The simplest way to add Call Lists to a coaching session is to select existing global Call Lists and copy them to the session. When a global Call List is added to a coaching session, a copy of the original list is made and attached to the session. The copy becomes a coaching-session Call List, and is not linked to the original global Call List. It can only be viewed from the coaching session. From within the coaching session, you can add or remove calls from an attached Call List and change the search criteria of a <u>Saved Search</u>. These modifications do not affect the original, global Call Lists or Saved Searches.

## To add a Call List to a coaching session:

- 1. In the Session Details screen, on the left side of the screen, under General Details, click the + sign (+) beside Calls. A list of global Call Lists and global Saved Searches appears.
- 2. Select a Call List. The list closes. A copy of the Call List is created and attached to the session, and appears in the relevant section (Call Lists or Searches) under General Details.

Note: You can also add existing Call Lists to a coaching session from the <u>Saved Searches</u> page.

#### Creating New Call Lists within a Session

You can create additional coaching-session Call Lists within a session. You can do this by performing a call search within the session or by opening a Call List that is already attached to the session and saving some of the calls in a new Call List.

## To perform a call search:

- 1. In the Session Details screen, on the left side of the screen below the Calls list, select New Search. A Call Search form opens on the right side of the screen.
- 2. Fill in the search criteria. For additional information, see Creating a New Call Search.
- 3. Click Search. The search results appear to the right of the form.

## To save the search criteria as a Saved Search:

- 1. In the upper-left of the Call Search form, click Save. You are prompted to provide a name for the Saved Search.
- 2. Fill in a name for the Saved Search and click **OK**. The search is saved in the coaching session and appears under **Searches** in the **General Details**.

## To save some or all of the calls in a coaching-session Call List:

- 1. Select the checkbox next to each call you want to add to the Call List.
- 2. At the top of the list, under Batch Actions, select Add To and then select one of the following:

If you want to	Select	Result
Create a new Coaching session and a new coaching Call List within that session, and add the calls to the new Call List	Coaching > New	A <b>New Coaching session</b> dialog box opens. Specify the name and other settings of the Coaching session, and then click <b>Save</b> . The dialog box closes, and a new Call-List dialog box opens. In the text field, type a name for the Call List, and then click <b>OK</b> . The Coaching session and Call List are created, and the calls are added to the Call List.
Create a new coaching Call List within an existing Coaching session, and add the calls to the new Call List	Coaching > [existing Coaching session] > New	A Call-List dialog box opens. In the text field, type a name for the Call List, and then click $\mathbf{OK}$ . The new coaching Call List is created and attached to the Coaching session, and the calls are added to the Call List.
Add the calls to an existing coaching Call List that is attached to an existing Coaching session	Coaching > [existing Coaching session] > [existing Call List]	The calls are added to the selected coaching Call List.
Add the calls to a new Call List (Will not be linked to a specific coaching session)	Call List > New	A Call-List dialog box opens. In the text field, type a name for the Call List, and then click $\mathbf{OK}$ . The new Call List is created and the calls are added to it.
Add the calls to an existing Call List (Will not be linked to a specific coaching session)	Call List > [existing Call List]	The calls are added

#### Modifying Session Call Lists

Once a Call List is attached to a Coaching session, you can add calls to it or remove them as necessary. Calls can be added to a Call List from any Call or Event Grid or from the Media Player. You can also remove calls from a list. If the Call List was copied from a global list, the global list is not affected by changes you make to the coaching-session list.

## To remove calls from a Call List:

- 1. Under General Details, click the name of the Call List. The list opens in an Interaction Grid on the right side of the screen.
- 2. Select the checkbox to the left of each call you want to remove from the Call List.
- 3. Under Batch Actions, select Delete From List. The selected calls are removed from the list.

#### Removing a Call List from a Session

You can remove Call Lists from a session.

## To remove a Call List:

- 1. Under General Details, click the x (X) to the right of the name of the Call List. You are prompted to confirm that you want to remove the Call List from the session.
- 2. Click OK. The Call List is removed from the session.

## Adding and Managing Session Notes

Session notes can be defined as public or private.

- · Public notes are visible to everyone who accesses the session. They are generally intended to help trainees understand the purpose of the coaching session and draw their attention to the aspects of the calls that need to be highlighted.
- Private notes are only visible to the person who writes them. You can use them to add reminders or comments to yourself. For example, when you create a session, you can leave yourself a note reminding you to add a link later, when you have the URL of the link.

Notes can be added to a session when it is first opened (see above) or at any other time. The notes are displayed in the Session Details that can be viewed beside the session list in the Session List screen and in the Session Details screen. You can also edit and delete existing session notes.

### To add a note to a coaching session:

- 1. In the Session Details screen (see above), in the title bar of the Notes box, click New. A blank New Note form opens. Note: If the Notes box is not visible, in the upper-left corner of the screen, click General Details.
- 2. Type the note in the text field.
- 3. In the dropdown menu, select Public if you want the note to be visible to anyone who can access the session or Me if you only want the notes to be visible to you.
- 4. Click Add. The note is added to the session.

## To edit or delete a note:

In the Session Details screen (see <u>above</u>), in the Notes box, select Edit or Delete as necessary.

## Adding and Managing Action Items

You can add Action Items to a coaching session. For example, if you want the trainee to perform a particular task as part of a coaching session, you could open an Action Item in that coaching session to specify that task. When you open an Action Item within a coaching session, the Action Item appears in the coaching session and can be managed from there. It also appears in the general Action Items box, like other Action Items, and can be managed from there as well.

Note: For detailed information about working with Action Items, see Action Items.

To create an Action Item in a coaching session:



- 1. In the Session Details screen, click the Action Item button ( ). The Action Item dialog box opens.
- 2. Fill in the fields and then click Save. The Action Item is opened and appears in Action Items box in the Session Details screen. In addition, it is added to both your general Action Items box and in the assignee's general Action Items box.

Note: For information about the fields of the Action Item dialog box, see Creating a New Action Item.

## Adding and Managing Links

You can add links to external files, websites, and SpeechMiner Permalinks to a coaching session. For example, if you want the trainee to look at a relevant website, you can add a link to the website. During the coaching session, when the trainee clicks the link, a new window is opened and the link is displayed. For example, if you add a link to a website, a new browser window opens and displays the website.

To add a link to a coaching session:

1. In the Session Details screen, on the left side of the screen, under General Details, click the + sign (+) beside Links. An Add Link to Session dialog box opens

Cancel

Add Link to Session dialog box

- 2. Under **Description**, enter a description for the link.
- 3. Under Link Text, enter the location of the link. For example, to add a link to Google, type http://www.google.com.
- 4. Click OK. The dialog box closes, and the link is added to the list of links that appears under General Details under Links.

## To edit a link:

- 1. Under General Details, under Links, click the 📴 beside the link you want to edit. An Add Link to Session dialog box opens.
- 2. Modify the **Description** and **Link Text** as required.
- 3. Click OK. The dialog box closes, and the link is modified.

#### To go to a link:

• Under General Details, click the link. A new browser window opens and displays the link.

## To delete a link:

- 1. Under General Details, click the x (×) beside the link you want to delete. You are prompted to confirm that you want to remove the link from the session.
- 2. Click Yes. The link is deleted

## **Managing Session Properties**

Session properties - name, schedule date, trainee, coach, session type - are defined when you open a new session (see <u>above</u>). You can modify these properties as necessary.

## To modify session properties:

1. In the Session Details screen (see <u>above</u>), in the title bar of the General box, click Edit.

Note: If the General box is not visible, in the upper-left corner of the screen, click General Details.

- 2. The properties of the session become text fields. Modify the text fields as necessary.
- 3. Click Save. The changes are saved.

## See also

Working with the Coaching Session List Taking Part in a Session Coaching Session Reports Managing Session Types

Home > Coaching > Coaching Session Reports

## **Coaching Session Reports**

Coaching session reports provide statistical information about the coaching sessions in the Session List. The reports break down the sessions by status and indicate how many have not yet been started by their trainees, how many are in progress, and how many have been completed. In addition, they show how long trainees already spent, on average and in total, on the sessions in each category.

Additional details about the sessions included in the report appear in the lower half of the report. The details are divided into groups by trainee. You can expand a session to see additional information about it. You can also open its **Session Details** screen directly from the report.



Coaching session report

## Generating a Report

Coaching reports can be generated in the Sessions screen. Two forms of the report are available:

- General report: This report includes all coaching sessions that are included in the set defined by the Session List's general <u>filters</u>. For example, if the general filter specifies **My Sessions** for **Sept. 1st** through **Sept. 30th**, and included **Completed** sessions, all session that meet these criteria are included in the report. (Column <u>filters</u> do not affect the criteria.)
- User report: This report includes all sessions that are included in the set defined by the Session List's general <u>filters</u> and belong to a specific user. That is, if the user is either the creator, coach, or trainee of a session, the session is included in the report.

#### To generate a general coaching report:

• In the <u>Sessions</u> screen, at the top of the list, click the **Run Report** button. The report is generated and is displayed in a new browser window.

## To generate a user coaching report:

• In the <u>Sessions</u> screen, in a row in which the user is the trainee of the specified session, under **Actions**, click . A report for all sessions in which the trainee is either the creator, the coach, or the trainee, is generated and is displayed in a new browser

#### window.

## **Viewing Report Details**

The lower part of a generated report lists the sessions that were included in the report. The sessions are grouped by trainee. The name of each session, the name of the coach, the date it was scheduled to take place or the date on which its status was last changed, the status, and, if the session was already begun or completed, the amount of time the trainee spent on it so far, are displayed. You can view additional details about the session, listen to calls that the trainee listened to during the session, and open the Session Details screen for the session.

## To view additional details about a session:

• Click the + beside the session name. Notes and resources (links) included in the session are displayed below the session name, as well as links to all the calls that the trainee listened to during the session.

🗆 admii	nistr	ator					
÷		Finding a Good Package for a Customer	Coach: jsmith	Due: 7/20/2012	Completed: 7/20/2012	0	5.1 m
Ð		Auditing Sales Calls	Coach: maynard	Due: 7/23/2012	Completed: 7/20/2012	0	2 m
Ð		Customer Service Calls - Introduction	Coach: jsmith	Due: 7/20/2012	Started: 7/20/2012	0	2.4 m
Ð		Auditing Customer Service Calls	Coach: maynard	Due: 7/24/2012	Started: 7/20/2012	0	1.6 m
		Cold Sales Calls	Coach: jsmith	Due: 8/1/2012	Started: 7/20/2012	7	196 m
		Notes:       Administrator: Don't forget to incl         Video of Training Class (Not yet of Article from Daily News (Not yet of Article from Daily News (Not yet of Article from Administrator To administrator Call:         ext2079_12010_38277_pex (no call comments)         Call:       ext2112_12010_57765_pex (no call comments)         Call:       ext2112_12010_59190_pex	clicked) clicked)		someone from list 3.		
	1	(no call comments)					
		Call: <u>ext2114_12010_33637_pex</u>					
		(no call comments)					
		Call: <u>11_01_15.25.pcmncn_83</u>					
	4	(no call comments) Call: <u>11_01_15.30.pcmncn_84</u>					
		(no call comments)					
		(no can comments) Call: <u>11 01 15.52.pcmncn 88</u>					
	1	(no call comments)					
	31	(no can comments)					

Expanded session showing details

## To play a call that appears in the expanded list:

• Click the call link. The <u>Media Player</u> opens in the window, and plays the call. **Note:** To return to the report, press **Backspace**.

## To open a session in the Session Details screen:

• Click the name of the session. The Session Details screen opens in a new browser window.

## See also

Working with the Coaching Session List Taking Part in a Session Creating a New Coaching Session Managing Session Types Home > Coaching > Managing Session Types

# Managing Session Types

Each coaching session has a type assigned to it. The type can help identify the purpose of the session and the type of trainee it is intended for. By default, one session type, General, is defined. You can add additional session types as appropriate for your organization.

Once a session type is saved, you cannot delete it. However, you can deactivate it if you do not want it to be available at present. (The General type cannot be deactivated.) In addition, you can modify the name of an existing session type as necessary.

Note: For information about assigning session types to coaching sessions, see Creating a New Coaching Session.

## To manage session types:

• In the main menu, under **Coaching**, select **Edit Session Types**. The Session Type Manager opens and displays a list of the session types that are currently defined and their statuses.

lew Type:	Add	Add	
Гуре	Is Active		
Auditing			
Call Monitor Training			
General			
Sales Agent Session			

Session Type Manager

To add a new session type:

- 1. Under New Type, type the name of the new session type.
- 2. Click Add. The session type is added to the list and its status is set to Active.
- 3. Click Save. The Session Type Manager closes, and the new session type is included in the list of available session types.

#### To activate or deactivate a session type:

- 1. Under **Is Active**, click the checkbox beside the session type to select or clear it. The session type is active when a checkmark appears in the checkbox.
- 2. Click Save. The Session Type Manager closes, and the change is implemented.

## To modify the name of a session type:

- 1. In the list of session types, modify the name as necessary.
- 2. Click **Save**. The Session Type Manager closes, and the change is implemented.

## See also

Working with the Coaching Session List Taking Part in a Session Creating a New Coaching Session Coaching Session Reports Home > Reports

## Reports

Reports are summaries and analyses of call, speech, and external metadata. You can view reports in your browser, print them, or send them via e-mail. To help you monitor your business, SpeechMiner offers a wide range of standard reports. Most reports are provided as templates that can be customized, if necessary, to better suit your needs. Depending on the type of report, the results may be presented as lists of data and/or in graphic form. In many cases, you can drill-down within a report to see additional details about a particular item.

This section explains how to use the **Reports** page to select a template, customize its settings, run reports, and manage report results. For additional information about specific parameters and a list of available report templates, see <u>Appendix A: Standard</u> <u>Reports</u>.

## See also

Selecting a Template for a Report Creating a Custom Report Managing Saved Reports MRS Library

Home > Reports > Selecting a Template for a Report

# Selecting a Template for a Report

There are a number of ways to select a template for a report. If you do not know which template is most suitable for your purpose, you can start by doing one of the following:

- In this manual, skim over the catalog of available templates in Templates.
- In the SpeechMiner interface, in the Main Menu, under **Reports**, select **Templates**. The **Templates** tab opens and lists all of the available report templates. Place your mouse pointer over the **Preview** icon (a) of each template to see a sample of its results.

Once you know which template you want to use, select it in one of the following ways:

- In the Main Menu, under Reports, in the Templates tab, click the Edit (<sup>127</sup>) icon beside the template.
- In the Main Menu, under Reports, in the Edit Report tab, in the Template dropdown list, select the template.

The selected template opens in the **Edit Report** tab. For information about using this tab to customize and run the report, see <u>Creating a Custom Report</u>. For information about customizing reports for display in the Views page, see <u>Managing Widgets</u>.

#### See also

Creating a Custom Report Managing Saved Reports MRS Library

Home > Reports > Creating a Custom Report

# Creating a Custom Report

This section explains how to use the Edit Report tab of the Reports page to create and run custom reports.

Edit Report				07/25/12 1	2:38 AM +03:00 UTC
Templates Saved Reports	s Edit Report				
Calls Filter:	🕨 🗖 Open in new window 📔 🛃	🔏 🖃 🔎 👔   🕒 Template: 🗛	ent Comparison 📃 Report	Name:	
Calls Calls Chats Chats Chats Chats Chats Chats Chats Social Languages 1 Selected Date Range Last Quarter From: 04/01/22 12:00 AM Tro:: 06/30/12 11:50 PM Expand All / Collapse All SpeechMiner CInteraction Properties CMetadata User Actions	Languages: (American English) Categories: (Financial) Topics: (Balance Inquiry, Collections, D Programs: (UTOPYINC) Report Title Agent Comparison Items on Report Agents Any	eposit, High Bill Complaint, Fees and Service Description Compare Number of Calls	s Charges, Make Payment, Payment Arranger Version Full Report Categories Any	nents, Payment Issue) Display Show All	×

#### Edit Report tab

## Customizing the Settings of a Report

When a report template is selected in the **Edit Report** tab of the **Reports** page, the fields that can be used to customize the report are displayed. Each report template has a different set of fields.

All templates include the following fields:

Field	Description
Report Name	The name of the report in SpeechMiner. This name identifies the report in the list of saved reports.
Report Title	The title of the report, displayed above the report results

Each template includes other fields as appropriate. The fields are divided into two categories:

- Data Set Filters: Parameters that limit or define the body of calls that should be used as the data set for the report. For example, a data-set filter could limit the data to a specific date range or workgroup.
- Items on Report: Parameters that will be graphically represented in the report. For example, the items on report could be a list of agents that you select. Each agent could be represented in the report by a bar in a graph.

#### To customize the settings of a report:

- 1. In the Edit Report tab, under Template, select the required template.
- 2. On the left side of the screen (under **Calls Filter**), select the Data Set filters. These filters are configured in the same way that the filters of the <u>New Search</u> screen are configured (except that Text Mode is not available). For additional information about the filters and how to use them, see <u>Common Parameters</u> and <u>Defining Search Criteria</u>.
- 3. On the right side of the screen, under Items on Report, select the parameters you want to include in the report results.

Note: The symbol 💆 beside a field indicates that selections for the field are made using a Multi-Select dropdown menu. This kind of

menu allows you to select multiple values for the field. Click the symbol to open the menu. Select the required items one by one, or right-click any item in the list to access global selection options. When you have selected all the required items, click to close the dropdown menu. The number of selected items is displayed in the text field. When no items are selected, **Any** appears. This means the parameter is not taken into account at all during report preparation. For additional information about working with Multi-Select boxes, see <u>Defining Search Criteria</u>.

When you are not configuring the Data Set filters, you can hide the left panel of the screen if you wish.

#### To hide or show the Data Set filter panel:

• In the upper-right corner of the panel, click «.

## Analyzing Data from the "Current User"

Report templates that include the **Agents** Data Set filter can be configured to analyze data for the current user or workgroup rather than a specific workgroup. In this case, when the report runs, the data set it uses changes depending on which user runs it. For example, if the user is agent 12, the report will only include calls that were handled by agent 12.

This feature will only work if the user's profile includes a mapping. If the user is an agent, the mapping gives the name of the agent, and reports that are filtered for the "current user" only include data about that agent. If the user is a manager, the mapping gives the name of the workgroup they manage, and the reports that are filtered for the current user include data for the entire workgroup. For additional information about user profiles and mapping users to agents or workgroups, see <u>Managing Users</u>.

#### To configure a report to analyze data for the current user:

• In the Data Set filters on the left side of the screen, under Agents, select Current User, and then click Add.

Once the report is configured in this way, you can enable different users to make use of it if you save it, as explained below, and then share it with the users, as explained under <u>Managing Saved Reports</u>.

## **Running a Customized Report**

Once the settings of the customized report are specified, you can run the report. Reports can be run in a number of ways:

- Run the report and view the results in the browser
- Run the report and send the results as an e-mail attachment to specified recipients. The results are sent as an MHT file. This file opens in a browser and is linked to the SpeechMiner system. As a result, the <u>data drill-down</u> feature can be used in the file.
- Run the report and export the results as a PDF or Excel file

Note: You do not have to save a report in order to run it.

## To run the report and view the results in the browser:

- 1. If you want to view the results in a new browser window, at the top of the form, select the **Open in new window** checkbox. If you want to view the results in the **Customize Report** tab, below the template form, clear this checkbox.
- 2. Click **Run** (**b**). The report runs, and the results are displayed as you requested.

#### To run the report and send the results via e-mail:

- 1. At the top of the form, click **E-mail** (<sup>[]</sup>). A dialog box opens.
- 2. Under To, fill in the e-mail addresses of the recipients. Separate multiple addresses with semi-colons (;).
- 3. Under **Notes**, type any text you want to include in the body of the e-mail.
- 4. Click **Send**. The report runs, and the results are sent to the recipients you specified. A confirmation message appears when the results are sent.

#### To run the report and export the results:

- 1. At the top of the form, click 🔑 to export the results to a PDF file or 🗟 to export the results to an Excel file. A dialog box opens and asks you if you want to open or save the file.
- 2. Select the desired option. If you select **Open**, the file opens in the application that is configured to open files of the selected type on your computer. If you select **Save**, a **Save As** dialog box opens.
- 3. If you selected **Save**, navigate to the folder in which you want to save the file, and then click **Save**. The file is saved in the selected location.

## **Using Report Results**

Depending on the type of report, the results may be in the form of a graph, a histogram, or a table.

You can drill down to the underlying data on which any graphic component of a report (graph bars, lines, or table headers) is based. When you do this, you will be presented with a new report which is based on the data point you clicked on.

#### To drill down to the underlying data of a report component:

• Click the component.

## To play back a call from a drill-down list:

• Click the Call ID. The Media Player opens in a new browser window and begins to play back the call.

#### To close the drill-down list and return to the report results:

- If the report was displayed in the Customize Report tab, at the bottom of the form, click Back (\$\circ\$).
- If the report was opened in a separate window or tab, use the browser's **Back** button or press **Backspace**.

Data in tables can be sorted by any column.

#### To sort data in a table:

• Click the heading of the column by which you want to sort the table. (To reverse the sort order, click the heading again.)

## Saving a Customized Report

If you want to run a report with the same settings in the future, you can save it. In addition, if you have edited the settings of a saved report, you can either save the new settings with the original name using the **Save** option or save the new settings as a different report using the **Save** as option.

Note: You do not have to save a report in order to run it.

### To save a customized report:

• At the top of the form, click **Save** ().

## To save the current report settings under a new name:

• At the top of the form, click **Save as** ().

## See also

Selecting a Template for a Report Managing Saved Reports MRS Library

Home > Reports > Managing Saved Reports

# Managing Saved Reports

Saved reports are customized report templates that you can run as often as needed. They can be run on demand, or according to a schedule. You can access saved reports and configure their schedules in the **Saved Reports** tab.

## To open the Saved Reports tab:

• In the Main Menu, under Reports, select Saved Reports. The Saved Reports tab opens.
/iew:	5	9	Search	Ex	plore Reports	Quality	Coaching	Tools	Help		Action Items	(8) 🔻 Administrator	Log 0
ave	ed Re	eports										07/23/12 04:39 A	M +03:00 UT
	Templa	ates	Save	ed Reports	Edit Report								
				Name	Ten	nplate	Created By		Sharing		Actio	ns	
керс	orts: 7				An	у 🗸	Any	-↓	Any	$\checkmark$			
		Display	Edit	Delete	Name 🚖	Template	Created By		Sharing		Schedule	Last Modified	Permalink
1		<b></b>	=		Agent Performance	Top and Bottom Perform	r administrator	<b>.</b>	jsmith, mjones, shiela		🛄 - Time Based	07/23/12 04:42 AM	Copy
2			=	1	Agents - Detroit	Agent Comparison	jsmith		London, administrator		- Deactivated	07/23/12 04:38 AM	Copy
3			E	Î	Call Duration per Agent	Agent Comparison	administrator	<b>.</b>	jsmith, libby, maynard		- Deactivated	07/23/12 04:10 AM	Copy
4					Calls per Department	Metadata Frequency	administrator	<b></b> _	libby, maynard, shiela		- Time Based	07/23/12 04:42 AM	Copy
5		in.	1	1	Financial Calls - Mini	Agent Bubble Chart	administrator	<b>.</b>			- Deactivated	07/16/12 03:11 AM	<u>Copy</u>
6			<b>E</b>	1	Medium Length - Financia	Agent Bubble Chart	administrator	🔒 -			- Event Based	07/23/12 04:43 AM	<u>Copy</u>
7					System alert	System Alert	System				- Event Based	03/25/12 11:54 AM	

## Saved Reports tab

Note: Unlike the other saved reports in the list, the System alert report is automatically generated and saved by the system. For additional information, see <u>System Alerts</u>.

## **Columns in the Saved Reports Tables**

The following columns appear in the Saved Reports tables:

Column	Description
Display	Click the 🕮 icon to run the report and display the results at the bottom of the screen. For information about working with the results, see Creating a Custom Report.
Edit	Click the is icon to open the report in the <u>Custom Report</u> tab, where you can change the parameters and settings and make use of all of the other features of the <u>Custom Report</u> tab.
Delete	Click the i icon to delete the report. Note: You can also delete a number of reports at once, as explained <u>below</u> .
Name	The name of the report
Template	The template on which the report is based
Created By	The name of the user who created the report
Sharing	A $\textcircled{i}$ icon appears for reports that you created. A $\textcircled{i}$ icon appears for reports that other users created and shared with you. The names of the groups and users with whom the report is shared appear in the table beside the icon.
	Click the lie icon to open a dialog box in which you can select the groups and individual users with whom you want to share the report. The members of the selected groups and the selected users will see the report listed in their <b>Saved Reports</b> tab and will be able to run the report.
	Note: You can only modify reports that you created. If you want to modify other reports, you must save them under new names.
Schedule	Indicates whether the report has a schedule defined for it, and, if so, what kind of schedule. Click the in icon to activate, deactivate, create, or modify the schedule. For additional information, see <u>Scheduling a Report</u> below.
Last Modified	The date on which the report settings were last saved
Permalink	Click <b>Copy</b> to create a Permalink to the report. You can copy the link to your clipboard and then paste it elsewhere as needed. Later, you can use a browser to navigate to the Permalink address. When you do, the report will open in the browser. For additional information, see <u>Permalinks</u> .

## Sorting the Columns

You can choose to sort the tables by any column that contains a report parameter.

## To sort a table by a column:

- Click the title of the column.
  - Note: Click the title a second time to reverse the sort order.

## Selecting the Page Size

When the list of saved reports is long, it is divided into pages. The **Page** field of the page navigator at the bottom of the grid shows which page is currently being displayed.

1.0	100	Page	1	of 1	-	241	20	-
1.40	1.50	Faye	ľ. –	OFT	2017	101	120	-

### Page navigator

You can use the page navigator to go to a particular page in the list and to select the page size - the maximum number of reports to display in a single page.

## To navigate to a different page in the list of saved reports:

• In the page navigator. select one of the following:

Option	Description
	Go to the first page
<	Go back one page
Page	Type the required page number in the field, and then press Enter.
	Go forward one page
M	Go to the last page

#### To select the page size:

• In the page navigator. in the dropdown list on the right, select the page size. The available options are 20, 40, 60, 80, and 100.

## Filtering the List

You can use filters to limit the saved reports that are displayed in the list to those that meet criteria you specify. The filter controls are located at the top of the list. The following filters are available:

Filter Type	Description
Name	Enter a sequence of characters. Only those saved reports whose names contain the sequence you enter are displayed.
Template	Click the $\checkmark$ icon to open the <u>Multi-Select box</u> . Select the report templates to include in the list, and then click <b>Close</b> to activate the filter. Only those saved reports that are based on the selected templates are displayed.
Created By	Click the $\checkmark$ icon to open the <u>Multi-Select box</u> . Select the users to include in the list, and then click <b>Close</b> to activate the filter. Only those saved reports that were created by the selected users are displayed.
Sharing	Click the $\checkmark$ icon to open the <u>Multi-Select box</u> . Select <b>My Reports</b> to display only those reports that you created, or <b>Shared Reports</b> to display only those reports that were created by other users and shared with you. Click <b>Close</b> to activate the filter.

## **Scheduling Reports**

You can schedule reports to run automatically at specified times or in response to specified Events. The results are automatically sent via e-mail to the recipients you specify. The current schedule setting of each saved report is indicated in the **Schedule** column as follows:

- Deactivated: The report does not run on a schedule.
- Time Based: The report runs automatically at specified times.
- Event Based: The report runs automatically when specified Events are detected

Note: You can only create or modify the schedules of reports you created.

You can create reports schedules individually for specific reports or globally for a number of selected reports. You can also deactivate active schedules in either of these ways.

#### To configure the schedule for a single report:

• In the report table, in the report's row, click **Schedule** (). The scheduling dialog box opens (see below). Follow the instructions below to select the schedule options you require.

#### To configure the schedule of a group of reports:

- 1. Select the checkbox to the left of each report you want to include in the schedule. To select all of the reports in the list, select the checkbox in the column title.
- 2. At the top of the list, to the right of the filters, click **Schedule** (). The scheduling dialog box opens (see below). Follow the instructions below to select the schedule options you require.

Active  Schedule Recipients	<b>_</b>
Schedule for report: Quarterly Call Review Schedule Type Time Based Start End Date Range 09/21/11 Hour One-time Schedule Day Report runs only once. VWeek Month Start time: 02 00 C Month AM PM	
Schedu	le Cancel

Scheduling Dialog Box

### Scheduling Reports to Run at Specified Times

If you want to see report results on a routine basis, you can schedule the reports to run at specified intervals.

#### To schedule the selected reports to run at specified times:

- 1. At the top of the scheduling dialog box, select Active. The scheduling settings in the dialog box become available.
- 2. In the Schedule tab, under Schedule Type, select Time Based. The options for configuring the schedule are displayed.
- 3. Under Date Range, select the start and end dates for the schedule to be implemented.
- 4. Select the time period Hour, Day, Week, Month, Once you want to use to schedule the reports. For example, if you want to run the reports every weekday, or on Mondays and Thursdays, select Day.
- 5. In the box beside the units, fill in the desired schedule.
- 6. Fill in the **Recipients** tab and save the settings as described below.

#### Scheduling Reports to Run in Response to Events

Event-based scheduling enables you to keep track of potentially significant trends and/or to be alerted when significant changes in agent or customer behavior occur. In this context, the term Event does not refer to an individual occurrence of an Event but to a specified number or percentage of calls in which the Event was detected. For example, the detection of caller agitation in more than 10% of calls could be an Event that causes a report to be generated.

#### To schedule the selected reports to run in response to Events:

- 1. At the top of the scheduling dialog box, select Active. The scheduling settings in the dialog box become available.
- 2. In the Schedule tab, under Schedule Type, select Event Based. The fields required to configure the schedule are displayed

Active 🔽 Schedule Recipients
Schedule for report: System Load Graph Schedule Type Event Based Categories Values Condition Any Duration Hours
Schedule Cancel

Scheduling Dialog Box: Event-Based Schedule

- 3. In the **Condition** line, under **Categories**, click 🐱. A Category Multi-Select box opens. Select the Categories that must be identified in the calls. When you have selected the Categories, click 🗵 to close the Category selector. (For additional information about using the Multi-Select box, see <u>Defining Search Criteria</u>.)
- 4. In the next field, select one of the following:
  - Exceeds (>) if you want the selected reports to run when the selected Categories are identified in more than a specified number or percentage of calls
  - Equals (=) if you want the selected reports to run when the selected Categories are identified in a specified number or percentage of calls
  - Drops Below(<) if you want the selected reports to run when the selected Categories are identified in fewer than a specified number or percentage of calls
- 5. Under Values, fill in the number or percentage of calls.
- 6. In the next field, select Calls if the value refers to a number of calls, or % of calls if the value refers to a percentage of calls.
- 7. Under **Duration**, fill in the number of time periods (of the unit specified in the next field) in which the condition must be met. For example, type "2" if the condition must be met within a 2-day period (and then select **Days** in the next field).
- 8. Select the unit of time for the duration value you entered in the previous field.
- 9. Fill in the Recipients tab and save the settings as described below.

#### **Recipients Tab**

Regardless of which type of schedule you create, you must specify the recipients of the reports.

To specify the recipients of scheduled reports:

1. In the scheduling dialog box, in the **Recipients** tab, fill in the fields as follows:

Field	Description
То	The e-mail addresses of the report recipients. Separate multiple addresses with semi-colons (;).
From	The sender address to use
Subject	The text that should appear in the subject line of the e-mail.
Report Format	Select <b>Web archive</b> to format the results as an MHT file (which can be opened in Internet Explorer). Select <b>PDF</b> to format the results as a PDF file.
Priority	Select the desired priority level for the e-mail message.

2. Click **Schedule**. The reports are scheduled as specified in the **Schedule** tab and the recipients are set as specified in the **Recipients** tab.

#### Deactivating a Schedule

If you want to stop running one or more active schedules, you can deactivate them.

#### To deactivate active schedules:

1. At the top of the scheduling dialog box, clear the **Active** checkbox.

Note: If you selected a group of saved reports before you opened the scheduling dialog box, the Active checkbox is cleared already when the scheduling dialog box opens.

2. Click Schedule.

### Running a Report and Working with the Results

You can run a report and view the results in the **Saved Reports** screen. Once the results are open, you can <u>drill down</u> to view additional details, as you would if you ran the report in the **Edit Report** screen. You can also e-mail the results or export them as PDF or Excel files.

### To run the report and view the results in the browser:

• Click **Display** (). The report runs, and the results are displayed at the bottom of the screen.

#### To drill down to the underlying data of a graphic report component:

· Click the component.

#### To play back a call from a drill-down list:

• Click the Call ID. The Media Player opens in a new browser window and begins to play back the call.

#### To close the drill-down list and return to the report results:

• At the bottom of the list of saved reports, click **Back** ( ).

#### To e-mail the displayed results:

- 1. At the bottom of the list of saved reports, click **E-mail** (<sup>[]</sup>). A dialog box opens.
- 2. Under To, fill in the e-mail addresses of the recipients. Separate multiple addresses with semi-colons (;).
- 3. Under Notes, type any text you want to include in the body of the e-mail.
- 4. Click **Send**. The report runs, and the results are sent to the recipients you specified. A confirmation message appears when the results are sent.

#### To export the displayed results:

- 1. At the bottom of the list of saved reports, click Job to export the results to a PDF file or a to export the results to an Excel file. A dialog box opens and asks you if you want to open or save the file.
- 2. Select the desired option. If you select **Open**, the file opens in the application that is configured to open files of the selected type on your computer. If you select **Save**, a **Save As** dialog box opens.
- 3. If you selected **Save**, navigate to the folder in which you want to save the file, and then click **Save**. The file is saved in the selected location.

## **Deleting Saved Reports**

You can delate reports individually for a specific report or globally for a number of selected reports.

Note: You can only delete reports you created.

#### To delete a single report:

- In the report table, in the report's row, click **Delete** (1). You are prompted to confirm you want to delete the report.
- Click Yes. The report is deleted.

#### To delete a group of reports:

- 1. Select the checkbox to the left of each report you want to delete. To select all of the reports in the list, select the checkbox in the column title.
- 2. At the top of the list, to the right of the filters, click **Delete** (III). You are prompted to confirm you want to delete the reports.
- 3. Click Yes. The reports are deleted.

## See also

Selecting a Template for a Report Creating a Custom Report MRS Library

Home > Reports > MRS Library



The MRS Library is a dll that provides support for various report features. If you are having problems running reports, it is worthwhile that the correct version of the MRS Library is deployed in your system. You will not generally have to do this unless UTOPY technical support asks you to.

## To find out the version number of the MRS Library:

- 1. In a browser, navigate to the **Report Manager** page. This page is accessed on the report server at the URL http://[report server]/reports. (Replace [report server] with the name of your report server.)
- 2. Select the database folder. A list of the contents of the folder opens.
- 3. Select MRSLibrary\_Version. The MRS version number is displayed.

SQL Server Reporting Services Home > libby8_0 > MRSLibrary Version	Home   My Subscriptions   Site Settings   Hel Search for:
View Properties History Subscriptions	
🚰 New Subscription	, ,
I≪ ≪ 1 of 1 ▷ ▷I 100% ▼	Find   Next Select a format 💌 Export 😰 🎒
MRS version	
8.0.5098.0	

MRS version (7.2.4060.0)

## See also

Selecting a Template for a Report Creating a Custom Report Managing Saved Reports Home > Tools

# Tools

The **Tools** page provides access to an array of global SpeechMiner functions and management features. Depending on your permissions, you may be able to use these features to manage Preset Views, manage user accounts and permissions, monitor and manage the system and its servers, and view information about the definitions of Topics, Programs, and Categories that are defined in SMART and used by SpeechMiner to analyze calls.

## See also

User Management System Administration Elements Explorer

Home > Tools > User Management

## User Management

All users in the SpeechMiner system are associated with groupings of various types. These groupings control which call and system data the user can see and which permissions the user has to see and activate system features. The following user groupings are in use in the system:

User Category	Description
Role	A set of permissions that define what features the user can access and use in the SpeechMiner system
Workgroup	The call center or department of a call center to which the user belongs
Partition	Call data from a particular call center or department of a call center
Group	A set of workgroups and/or partitions that identify the call data to which the user has access

Individual users can have multiple roles and belong to multiple workgroups, partitions, and groups. User profiles specify the roles, groups, and partitions associated with each user.

Depending on your role, you may be able to modify some or all elements of your own profile. You may also be able to manage other user accounts: creating new users, managing their profiles, managing groups, roles, and permissions. This section explains how to manage user accounts if you have the required permissions.

**Note:** The user-management functions in the **Tools** page relate to users of the SpeechMiner browser-based interface, in which calldata is accessed, as well as the SpeechMiner Administration Tool (SMART), in which the call analysis features are set up and configured.

## See also

Editing Your User Profile Managing Users Managing Groups Managing Roles

System Administration Elements Explorer

Home > Tools > User Management > Editing Your User Profile

# Editing Your User Profile

Your user profile includes your user name and password, your roles, workgroups, and partitions, and other personal information such as your name, phone number, and e-mail address. Depending on your permissions, you may be able to view your user profile and edit some or all of its properties.

#### To edit your user profile:

- 1. In the Main Menu under **Tools**, select **User Management** and then select **Edit Profile**. The **Edit Profile** screen opens and displays your user profile.
- 2. Modify the settings and information as necessary. For detailed information about the fields, see Managing Users.
- 3. Click Save Changes. The changes are saved.

### See also

Managing Users Managing Groups Managing Roles

Home > Tools > User Management > Managing Users

# Managing Users

Managing users includes creating new user accounts, assigning roles, groups, and partitions to users, managing user passwords, maintaining additional user information, and deactivating or deleting existing accounts.

The collection of information and group associations assigned to a user is called a user profile. This section explains how to create user accounts and manage user profiles.

## **Creating a New User Account**

You can open an account for a new user and configure the user's group associations and permissions.

#### To open a new user account:

- 1. In the Main Menu, under **Tools**, select **System Admin** and then select **Administer Users**. The **Administer Users** screen opens and displays a list of the existing user accounts.
- 2. Click New ( ). A blank Edit Profile screen opens.

ws	Search	Explore	Reports	Quality	Tools	Help		Action Items (8) 🔻	administrator	
t Profi	ile							08/:	22/12 02:56 AM	+03:00 UT
	User Login			User Associations			User Info			
	User Login Active:	<b>F</b>		User Associations						
		M					* First Name:			
	* User Login:			Administrator						
				Event Audit			_			
				Power User			*Last Name:			
		~	~	🗖 Regular User		•				
	Authentication:	C SpeechMiner	• Windows	* User Groups:			_			
	* Windows Domain:	r		Chicago			Title:			
	Dornam.	1		Default			Organization:			
							Phone:			
				London						
						~	Ernail:			
				User Partitions:		Institut	Home Page:			
				Partitions		<u> </u>				
				Shared			Comments:			
				E- Workgroups			Mapping:		_	
				💌 🗖 a			Mapping.			
				● □ b		•				
							3			
								* F	Required field	
	Clear	User Data				Save Chang	les	🔽 Send Email Notific	ation	

## Edit Profile Screen

3. Fill in the fields as follows:

Field	Description						
Active	Select this checkbox to make the account active. An account must be active for the user to log into it.						
User Login	Enter a username for the user.						
Authentication	Select <b>SpeechMiner</b> if you want to the username and password to be managed by SpeechMiner and stored in SpeechMiner's database. Select <b>Windows</b> if the user will log into SpeechMiner using the same username and password they use to log into Windows. The fields required to configure the selected option are displayed.						
Old Password	This field is not relevant to new accounts.						
	Note: This field only appears if SpeechMiner is selected under Authentication.						
New	Type a password for the account.						
Password	Note: This field only appears if SpeechMiner is selected under Authentication.						
Verify	Type the password for the account again to ensure it was typed correctly.						
Password	Note: This field only appears if SpeechMiner is selected under Authentication.						
Windows	Type the name of the Windows domain in which the user's account is managed.						
Domain	Note: This field only appears if Windows is selected under Authentication.						
User Roles	Select the user roles to associate with the account. These roles define the permissions the user will have in SpeechMiner. For additional information, see <u>Managing Roles</u> .						
	<b>Note:</b> If roles appear in the list but are not active, you do not have the permissions required to assign these roles to users.						
User Groups	Select the groups to associate with the account. Each group represents a set of workgroups and/or						

	partitions that identify which call data the user will be able to access. For additional information, see <u>Managing Groups</u> .
User Partitions	If you want to enable the user to access call data from additional workgroups and/or partitions that are not included in their groups, select them here.
First Name	Enter the user's first name.
Last Name	Enter the user's last name.
Title	Enter the user's title.
Organization	Enter the organization the user works for.
Phone	Enter the user's phone number.
Email	Enter the user's e-mail address.
Home Page	Enter the address of any page in the SpeechMiner web interface to make that page the user's homepage. Enter the address in the following format:
	You can copy the page address from the end of the <b>Address</b> field of the browser when the page is open. For example, if you want to use the <u>New Search</u> page as the homepage, and the address of the <b>New Search</b> page is <a href="http://myserver/speechminer/pages/speechminer/pages/calls/querySettings.aspx">http://myserver/speechminer/pages/speechminer/pages/calls/querySettings.aspx</a> , you would remove the base of the address (enter <a href="http://myserver/speechminer">http://myserver/speechminer</a> ) and enter <a href="mages/calls/querySettings.aspx">page is opened when they log in.</a> Note: If this field is left blank, the last View the user had open in their <a href="mailto:Views">Views</a> page is opened when they log in.
Comments	Enter any additional comments.
Mapping	<ul> <li>If the user is a call-center agent, select the user's name in the call center's recording system. If the user is a call-center manager, select the name of the workgroup they manage. You can select the name or workgroup in one of the following ways: <ul> <li>In the text field, begin typing the name of the agent or workgroup. A dropdown list of names that contain the combination of letters you type appears. Keep typing until you see the name, and then click it to select it.</li> <li>Click</li></ul></li></ul>
Send Email Notification	If you want to send the new user an e-mail message telling them that their account is open and explaining how to access it, select this checkbox. The e-mail message is sent to the address specified in the <b>Email</b> field.

4. Click **Save Changes**. The new account is created. The **Edit Profile** screen closes and the **Administer Users** screen is displayed. If you chose to send the user an e-mail notification, the e-mail is sent.

## Managing Existing User Accounts

You can filter the list of existing users in a number of ways to help you find the accounts that interest you. You can also modify user profiles and activate, deactivate, or delete user accounts.

To see the list of existing user accounts:

• In the Main Menu, under **Tools**, select **System Admin** and then select **Administer Users**. The **Administer Users** screen opens and displays the list. The list includes a summary of each user's profile: username, personal name, assigned roles, groups, and partitions, account status, and last login date and time.

Vie	45	Search	Explore	Reports	Quality	Coaching	Tools	Help	Action Items (7) 🔻	administrator Log
Adr	ninis	ter Users							07/0	8/12 11:33 PM +03:00 U
Jser	<b>s:</b> 6	N	ame:	Roles: Any	Ţ	Groups: Any	Ţ	Actions	: More Actions	•
		Login 🔶	Name		Roles		Groups	Parti	tions Active	Last Login
1		administrator	Admin, Admin	Administrator,	Event Audit,SMART P	owei Default		/,/a,/b,/c,/d,/Shared	.Nv, ✓	07/08/12 10:43 PM
2		smith	Smith, Janice	Administrator		Default		/,/Shared,	4	06/27/12 06:57 PM
3		bby	SB, Libby	Administrator,	Event Audit,Power Us	ser,S Default		/,/Shared,	4	06/12/12 01:34 AM
4		naynard	Hill, Maynard	Regular User,	SMART User	London		I.NV.	4	07/08/12 11:33 PM
5		njones	Jones, Miles	Administrator		Default		/,/Shared,	4	06/27/12 06:44 PM
6		hiela	Mann, Shiela	Power User,S	MART Power User	Chicago		/,/a,/b,/Shared,	4	07/08/12 11:31 PM

**Administer Users Screen** 

#### Filtering The List of User Accounts

You can filter the list of user accounts by any combination of user name, role, and group. The filter controls are located above the list.

#### To filter the list of user accounts:

- 1. If you want to filter by user name, in the **Name** field, type a letter or combination of letters. When the filter is activated (see step 4), user accounts that do not include the specified combination of letters will be hidden from the list.
- If you want to filter by role, click the solution beside the Roles field to open the Roles Multi-Select box. In the box, select the role or roles you want to include in the list. (For additional information about using the Multi-Select box, see <u>Defining Search</u> <u>Criteria</u>.)
- 3. If you want to filter by group, click the beside the **Groups** field to open the **Groups** Multi-Select box. In the box, select the group or groups you want to include in the list. (For additional information about using the Multi-Select box, see <u>Defining</u> <u>Search Criteria</u>.)
- 4. Click the **OK** button to the right of the **Groups** field. The filter is activated; accounts that do not match the filter settings are not displayed.

#### **Modifying User Profiles**

You can modify user profiles in one of two ways:

- Open an individual user's profile and modify it. For example, you could change a user's password.
- Make global changes to selected profiles using the **More Actions** menu. For example, you could add a role to a number of users' accounts.

#### To modify an individual user profile:

- 1. In the Administer Users screen, in the Login column, click the user's name. The Edit Profile screen opens and displays the user's current profile.
- 2. Modify the profile as required. For information about the various fields in the screen, see Creating a New User above.

Note: The User Login and Authentication fields cannot be modified. You may not be able to modify other fields if you do not have permissions to do so.

3. Click Save Changes. The profile is updated. The Edit Profile screen closes and the Administer Users screen is displayed.

#### To make global changes to selected profiles:

1. In the Administer Users screen, select the checkbox in the left column of each user profile you want to modify.

Note: To select all of the user profiles, select the checkbox at the top of the column.

- 2. Above the list, click More Actions. The More Actions dropdown menu opens.
- 3. Select the desired option, as follows:

Option	Description	
Mark as Active	Activates the selected accounts.	

Mark as Inactive	Deactivates the selected accounts. The users will not be able to log into their accounts. <b>Note:</b> Inactive accounts can be reactivated later as necessary. When you click <b>OK</b> (see the next step), you will be able to choose whether to delete all the user's saved searches, reports, and scheduled reports, or just to stop all scheduled reports.
Add to Role(s)	Opens a list of the roles that exist in the system. Select the roles you want to add to the users' profiles, and then click $\boxtimes$ to close the list.
Add to Group(s)	Opens a list of the groups that exist in the system. Select the groups you want to add to the users' profiles, and then click 🗵 to close the list.
Remove from Role(s)	Opens a list of the roles that exist in the system. Select the roles you want to remove from the users' profiles, and then click 🗵 to close the list.
Remove from Group(s)	Opens a list of the groups that exist in the system. Select the groups you want to remove from the users' profiles, and then click 🖾 to close the list.

4. Click the **OK** button to the right of the **More Actions** field. The changes are implemented.

Note: If you selected Mark as Inactive, when you click **OK**, you are prompted to choose whether to delete all the user's saved searches, reports, and scheduled reports, or just to stop all scheduled reports. Select the desired action, and then click **OK**.

#### **Deleting Users**

You can delete existing user accounts as necessary. When an account is deleted, all saved searches, reports, and scheduled reports created by the user are deleted. If you want to keep these items, but you do not want the user account to be accessible, you can deactivate the account (see <u>Modifying User Profiles</u> above). When an account is deactivated, the user cannot log into it, but the profile is saved and saved searches and reports can be retained. The account can be reactivated later on as necessary.

#### To delete user accounts:

- 1. In the Administer Users screen, select the checkbox in the left column of each user account you want to delete.
- 2. Above the list, click **Delete** (). You are prompted to confirm that you want to delete the selected accounts.
- 3. Click OK. The accounts are deleted.

### See also

Editing Your User Profile Managing Groups Managing Roles

Home > Tools > User Management > Managing Groups

## Managing Groups

Groups identify the call data that is associated with specific users. When a user belongs to a particular group, they have access to the call data that is assigned to that group. All Interaction Lists, searches, and reports they access will only include data about the calls in their group. For information about assigning groups to users, see <u>Managing Users</u>.

Each group is defined as a list of partitions and workgroups. Partitions identify call data using the identification system that was used by the recording system. For example, a partition might include calls to phone number x, extension y. Workgroups are based on the structure of the call center and identify the user's place in the enterprise's hierarchy. For example, a workgroup might be Denver Center, ABC Bank. In most cases, certain partitions are associated with specific workgroups, so it is sufficient to select workgroups and the partitions are automatically included. At times, it may be necessary to add partitions as well. This section explains how to create and manage groups. Groups are managed in the Administer Groups screen.

To open the Administer Groups screen:

• In the Main Menu, under **Tools**, select **User Management**, and then select **Administer Groups**. The **Administer Groups** screen opens and displays a list of the groups that are already defined in the system. For each group, the workgroups and partitions associated with the group are listed under **Partitions**.

## Creating a New Group

You can create new groups as necessary.

#### To create a new group:

1. In the Administer Groups screen, below the list of groups, click the New button. A group-definition dialog box opens.

Group: Default	80	
Partitions Selection:		
2 Selected		
Find:	Selected	All
	Save	Cancel

#### Group-definition dialog box

- 2. Under Group, type a name for the group.
- 3. In the tree area below the group name, select the partitions and workgroups to associate with the group. Click the plus sign (I) beside a node to expand a node or the minus sign (I) to collapse it.
- 4. Click Save. The dialog box closes, and the group is created and added to the list.

### Modifying Groups

You can modify the list of partitions and workgroups associated with a group.

#### To modify a group:

- 1. In the **Administer Groups** screen, click the name of the group. A group-definition dialog box opens. The partitions and workgroups that are currently associated with the group are selected.
- 2. In the tree area below the group name, modify the selection of partitions and workgroups necessary. Click the plus sign (I) beside a node to expand the node or the minus sign (I) to collapse it.
- 3. Click Save. The dialog box closes, and the group definition is modified.

## **Deleting Groups**

You can delete groups from the system if no users are associated with them.

### To delete selected groups:

- 1. In the Administer Groups screen, in the list of groups, under Delete, select the checkbox of each group you want to delete.
- 2. Below the list of groups, click the Delete button. You are prompted to confirm that you want to delete the groups.
- 3. Select OK. The groups are deleted.

#### See also

Editing Your User Profile Managing Users Managing Roles

Home > Tools > User Management > Managing Roles

## Managing Roles

Roles are used to create sets of permissions that are appropriate for different types of users. For example, the role of Administrator is a set of permissions that enables a user to access most system features, including user and system management and SMART functionality. By contrast, the role of Regular User is a much more limited set of permissions that is designed to enable agents to see call data that is relevant to them, to take part in coaching sessions, and to see the results of certain reports, but blocks access to many system functions.

Users with different roles see different elements of the SpeechMiner interface. For example, a Regular User may not have permissions to see the **Tools** page at all. In this case, **Tools** will not even appear in the Main Menu of a user who has this role. By contrast, a user with an Administrator role will see all the pages and all the tabs and screens that belong to each page.

One or more roles can be assigned to each user. The user's permissions in the SpeechMiner system include all the permissions of all their roles.

Seven default roles are defined in the system. The default permission sets of these roles are designed to be appropriate for the majority of SpeechMiner users.

Default Role	Description
Regular User	A standard set of permissions suitable for most users, this role permits viewing of most pages, playing back calls, and adding comments to calls. It does not permit any access to SMART.
Power User	An expanded set of permissions that includes the standard set of permissions assigned to Regular Users plus permissions for user management.
SMART User	A standard set of permissions suitable for most users of SMART.
SMART Power User	An expanded set of permissions for SMART users that includes the standard set of permissions assigned to SMART Users plus permission to release a program that is locked by another user, edit global variables and directives, update program processing priority, activate and deactivate programs, and export and import programs.
Event Audit	This Role is aimed at the auditing tasks required to check for the system's quality during the implementation of new Topics.
Administrator	Aimed at allowing for administrative tasks such as user and permissions management.

## **Managing Roles**

If you have the necessary permissions, you can modify the lists of permissions defined for each existing role, delete any role except the Administrator role, and create new roles.

Roles are managed in the Administer Roles screen.

#### To open the Administer Roles screen:

• In the Main Menu, under **Tools**, select **User Management** and then select **Administer Roles**. The **Administer Roles** screen opens and displays a list of existing roles.

Views	Search	Explore	Reports	Quality	Coaching	Tools	Help	Action Items (7) 🔻	administrator	Log Ou
Administe	er Roles							07/	08/12 11:39 PM	+03:00 UTC
			Roles (P	age 1 of 1)						
			Delete	<u>Name</u> 💌			Сору			
				Administrator			Copy			
				Event Audit			Copy			
				Power User			Copy			
				Regular User			Copy			
				SMART Power Us	er		Copy			
				SMART User			Copy			

## Modifying a Role

You can modify the permissions that are assigned to any role.

**Note:** The list of permissions you can choose to assign to a role is configured in the **Administer Permissions** screen. For additional information, see <u>Managing Permissions</u>.

## To modify a role:

1. In the Administer Roles screen, click the name of the role. The role-configuration dialog box opens.

Role: Power User		
Grant Roles Web Site Reports SMART SMConfig		
Select the roles this type of user may grant to users in the syster	n:	
Administrator		
Event Audit		
Power User		
Regular User		
SMART Power User		
SMART User		
	Save	Cancel

Role-configuration dialog box

2. In the Grant Roles tab, select the roles that users with the current role can assign to other users.

For example, if you are configuring the Administrator role, you would probably choose all of the roles, but if you are configuring the Power User role, you would probably not choose Administrator, SMART User, or SMART Power User, because Power Users do not configure SMART user accounts and only an Administrator should be able to grant an Administrator role.

3. In the Web Site, Reports, SMART, and SMConfig tabs, select the permissions the role should have.

In each tab, the permissions are divided into groups. To collapse a group, click the >> in the title bar of the group. Click the << again to expand a collapsed group.

If you wish, you can filter the list of permissions in a tab. To do so, in the **Filter by text** field, type a character or sequence of characters that are included in the names or values of the permissions you want to see. Permissions that do not include the sequence of characters are hidden from the display as you type.

4. When you have finished modifying the permissions for the role, click **Save**. The modifications are saved and the dialog box closes.

#### Adding a New Role

You can add new roles to the system as necessary. New roles can be added in one of two ways: by adding a new role and configuring it directly, or by copying and existing role and then modifying the configuration of the copy as necessary.

#### To add a role:

- 1. In the Administer Roles screen, click the New button. The role-configuration dialog box opens.
- 2. Under Role, type a name for the role.
- 3. In the tabs, select the required permissions as described above.
- 4. When you have finished selecting the permissions for the role, click Save. The role is saved and the dialog box closes.

#### To copy a role and modify it:

- 1. In the **Administer Roles** screen, in the line containing the role you want to copy, click **Copy**. You are prompted to enter a name for the new role.
- 2. Enter a name for the role, and then click **OK**. The new role, with the attributes of the role from which it was copied, is added top the list of roles.
- 3. Click the name of the role. The role-configuration dialog box opens.
- 4. Modify the permissions as required (see above).
- 5. When you have finished modifying the permissions for the role, click Save. The role is saved and the dialog box closes.

#### **Deleting Selected Roles**

You can delete roles as necessary.

#### To delete selected roles:

- 1. In the Administer Roles screen, in the list of groups, under Delete, select the checkbox of each role you want to delete.
- 2. Below the list of roles, click the Delete button. You are prompted to confirm that you want to delete the roles.
- 3. Select OK. The roles are deleted.

### See also

Editing Your User Profile Managing Users Managing Groups

Home > Tools > System Administration

## System Administration

The System Administration tools are used to monitor and manage the system and its servers as well as some of its global features, such as Preset Views and alerts.

### See also

Managing Preset Views Monitoring the System Managing the Call Queue Purging the System Managing the Cache Reprocessing Interactions and Managing Audits System Configuration Managing Alerts System Alerts

User Management Elements Explorer

Home > Tools > System Administration > Managing Preset Views

## Managing Preset Views

Views are sets of widgets in a particular layout that are visible in the <u>Views</u> page. Preset Views are Views that are designed by administrators or managers for use by other users. They are designed in the **Tools** page and then published to the **Views** pages of specified users.

If you have the necessary permissions, you can create, publish, and manage Preset Views, as explained in this section. For an overview of Views and the **Views** page, see <u>Views</u>.

## **Creating a New Preset View**

You create a new Preset View by designing a layout for the View and publishing it to the Views pages of users with specified roles. For each role you select, you also specify the permissions for the Preset View - whether a user with that role can modify or delete the View in their **Views** page.

#### To design a new Preset View:

- 1. In the Main Menu, under Tools, select System Admin and then select Preset Views. The Preset Views screen opens.
- 2. Click New. A New Preset View dialog box opens.

New Prese	t Viev	N							
Preset View D	etails								
Name:									
Description:									
Permissions:		Role	Name	Move Widgets	Edit Widgets	Add Widgets	Rename View	Move View	Delete View
	Add	Administrato	or 💌						
							Save	С	ancel

New Preset View Dialog Box

- 3. Under Name, type a name for the Preset View.
- 4. Under **Description**, type a description for the Preset View.

**Note:** Although you can add roles to the Preset View at this time, it is recommended that you design the view (add widgets and set the layout) before adding the roles. When you have finalized the design, add the roles and publish the Preset View as described below.

- 5. Click Save. A blank Preset View appears.
- Use the Add Widgets and Change Settings options to create the View, and edit the settings of the widgets as necessary. For detailed information about how to do this, see <u>Managing Views</u> and <u>Managing Widgets</u>.
- 7. When you have finished designing the Preset View, in the upper-right corner of the screen, click **Back to Preset Views**. The Preset View closes, and the **Preset Views** screen is displayed. The new Preset View appears in the list of Preset Views in the screen.

Once you have designed the Preset View, you can set the user roles to which you want to publish the Preset View and the permissions each type of user will have to modify the Preset View.

- 1. In the **Preset Views** screen, in the list of Preset Views, click the name of the Preset View, or click **Edit**. The **Edit Preset View** dialog box opens.
- 2. Under Permissions, under Role Name, select one of the user roles to which you want to publish the Preset View.
- 3. To the left of the selected role, click **Add**. A permissions row is added for the selected role. Checkboxes appear in the row for each type of permission.
- 4. Select the checkbox of each permission you want to grant to users of the selected role.
- 5. Repeat the previous three steps for each role to which you want to publish the Preset View.
- 6. Publish the Preset View as described below.

### **Publishing Preset Views**

After you create a new Preset View or modify an existing one, you must publish the View in order for it to appear in users' **Views** pages in its current form. Published Preset Views appear in the pages of all users whose roles appear in the View's permission settings. If you republish a Preset View that was already published before, the new version overwrites the existing version in all users' **Views** pages.

**Note:** When you republish a Preset View, all local changes to the View that were made by individual users are removed; the new version of the View replaces all existing versions.

#### **To publish Preset Views:**

- 1. In the Preset Views screen, in the list of Preset Views, select the checkbox beside each Preset View you want to publish.
- 2. At the upper-left of the screen, click the **Reset** button. You are prompted to confirm that you want this version of each
- selected Preset View to overwrite any previous versions of the same Views that may already be on users' Views pages.
- 3. Click  $\mathbf{OK}$ . The new Preset View is published to the Views pages of all users with the roles you specified.

## **Editing Preset-View Settings**

You can edit the name, description, and permissions of any of the Preset Views you created. The changes are implemented as soon as you save them; you do not have to republish the Views after you change their settings.

#### To edit the permissions of an existing Preset View:

- 1. In the **Preset Views** screen, in the list of Preset Views, click the name of the View, or click **Edit**. The **Edit Preset View** dialog box opens.
- 2. Modify the name, description, and permissions as required.
- 3. Click **Save**. The changes are saved and published to user's **Views** pages. If you removed a user's role from the list of permissions, the View is removed from the user's **Views** page.

## **Editing Preset-View Layout**

You can modify the layout and widget set of any of the Preset Views you created. Once you do this, you must publish the View again to implement the changes on users' **Views** pages.

**Note:** When you republish a Preset View, all local changes to the View that were made by individual users are removed; the new version of the View replaces all existing versions.

#### To modify the layout of an existing Preset View:

- 1. In the **Preset Views** screen, in the list of Preset Views, under **Layout**, click the 📴 icon. The current Preset View is displayed.
- 2. Modify the layout and selection of widgets as required. For detailed information about working with the layout and widgets, see <u>Managing Views</u> and <u>Managing Widgets</u>.
- 3. When you have finished designing the Preset View, in the upper-right corner of the screen, click **Back to Preset Views**. The Preset View closes, and the Preset Views screen is displayed.
- 4. To publish the changes to user's Views pages, follow the instructions above.

## **Deleting a Preset View**

You can delete a Preset View. When you do so, the View is removed from the **Views** pages of all users and from the list of Preset Views in the **Tools** page.

#### To delete a Preset View:

- 1. In the Preset Views screen, in the list of Preset Views, select the checkbox beside each Preset View you want to delete.
- 2. At the upper-left of the screen, click the **Delete** button. You are prompted to confirm that you want to delete the selected Preset Views.
- 3. Click OK. The selected Preset Views are removed from all users Views pages and from the list of Preset Views.

## See also

Monitoring the System Managing the Call Queue Purging the System Managing the Cache Reprocessing Interactions and Managing Audits System Configuration Managing Alerts System Alerts

Home > Tools > System Administration > Monitoring the System

## Monitoring the System

The **Monitor System** screen provides information on the status of the different SpeechMiner modules and allows the user to stop or run (restart) the system as necessary. In addition, the bottom of the screen can be used to view system messages.

To open the Monitor System screen:

• In the Main Menu, under Tools, select System Admin and then select Monitor System.

Spee	chMiner®	DEMO								Sear	ch 🔎	UTOP
/iews	Sea	arch Explore	Report	s (	)uality	Coaching	Tools	Help	A	ction Items (7) 🔻	administrator	Log 0
Ionit	or System									07/1	0/12 04:28 AM	+03:00 UT
II Call	<b>s:</b> 4,030				Not	Processed: 0 (T	ime Remaining: 0:)	00:00)		Lates	t Call Time: 07/0	04/12 05:14 F
×	Log Errors: In Process:	448 0	4	Log Warni Total Proc	ngs: essed (24H):	3,347 0			Queue eechMiner ut Folders	Number of Calls 0 0	Last Update	
	Waiting for Ca Waiting for Inc	tegorization: 0 lexing: 0		Total Cate Total Inde:	gorized (24H): xed (24H):	0			cording System Total		13 3000103	
Refre	esh Page Las	t Updated: 07/10/12 04:2	8 AM									•
Sites D Loc	al 🖲 All	Error Level	ors or Warnings 🔿	Errors Only				Sites				
⊟∙Site					Sites Fold	ers Computer	s					
÷	- 🧭 <u>default</u>				Site			Details				
					default		0					
						Message	s					
Last	6 days Mark As Read	Machine:			Type: All		Contair	ns Text:		Show	Read Messages	Show
	Machine	Time 👙	Т	уре				Messa	ige			
.IBBY		7/7/2012 11:31:52 PM	1 Warning		Receive mes	sage failed from q	ueue STOP_AS. T	limeout expired. The tim	neout period ela	apsed prior to completi	on of the operatic	on or the serv
.IBBY		7/5/2012 4:52:29 PM	Warning		Error in get o	all wav image Not	Authorized at auc	dio_webservice.getCall	lmg(Int32 callid	, Boolean forceLoad, S	String searchTopi	cs, Int32 calls
IBBY		7/5/2012 4:45:56 PM	Warning		Error in get o	all wav image Not	Authorized at auc	dio_webservice.getCall	lmg(Int32 callid	, Boolean forceLoad, S	String searchTopi	cs, Int32 calls
JBBY		7/5/2012 4:44:37 PM	Warning		Error in get o	all wav image Not	Authorized at auc	dio_webservice.getCall	lmg(Int32 callid	, Boolean forceLoad, S	String searchTopi	cs, Int32 calls
					14 01	Page 1 of 1	10 pt 10 -				Vi	iew 1 - 4 of 4

**Monitor System Screen** 

## **Monitoring Module Status**

The Monitor System screen presents a system status information, including:

- All Calls Calls currently in the SpeechMiner database
- Not Processed Number of calls waiting to be processed. These calls have been added to the system by the fetcher, but have not gone through recognition yet.
- Latest Call Time The time of the latest call that was added to the system.
- Log Errors, Log Warnings Number of errors and warnings that haven't been handled yet. When there are errors, the administrator can investigate using the information in this screen as well as by running the <u>Monitor System</u> report or using the ULogger utility directly on a server.

**Note:** The system can be configured to send reports of errors via e-mail to specified recipients whenever errors arise. For additional information, see <u>System Alerts</u>.

- In Process Number of calls currently being processed. These calls have started the recognition process and haven't been completed yet.
- Total Processed (24H) Number of calls that were processed in the last 24 hours. This is an indicator of how well the processing system is functioning
- Waiting for Categorization This number includes calls that are waiting to processed (Not Processed) and calls that are done processing but that are waiting to be picked up by the categorizer.
- Total Categorized (24H) Number of calls that were categorized in the last 24 hours. This is an indicator of how well the categorization system is functioning.
- Number of calls in queue waiting to be processed, broken down into the various phases
  - SpeechMiner Calls already picked up by the fetcher and added to the system, waiting to be processed.
  - Input Folders Calls in the input folders, waiting to be picked up by the fetcher.
  - **Recording System** Calls in the recording system, waiting to be picked up by the UConnector (This information is only available on certain systems, depending on the integration with the recording system).
  - **Total** Summary of all numbers above. Reflects the known amount of processing ("backlog") to be done, in order to catch up with current recording. A small total number is a healthy state. A total of 0 might indicate an idle system, where UConnector has no remaining calls to pick up or UConnector is down.

On a system with high fluctuation in call volumes over the course of a day or a week, the total number will grow during the peak volume period, and will gradually get smaller during the rest of the cycle. An ever growing total indicates a problem.

Note: The UConnector can buffer a relatively large amount of calls (calls that are between the Recording System and

the Input Folders state). Such calls will be temporarily missing from the total count.

- Status of the various sites
- Folder status (Input, Filter, and Store): If available space is low, a warning or error is generated.

### **Starting or Stopping Machines**

You can start of stop some or all of the machines in the system from the Monitor System screen.

#### To start or stop all the machines in the system:

• Use the Start (>) and Stop (=) buttons on the right.

Note: Stopping the system does not turn off the UPlatform.exe service. To do that, you must run the SMConfig tool.

#### To start or stop a single machine in the system:

In the left panel, select the machine. Two new buttons appear under the system's Start (>) and Stop () buttons: Start Machine () and Stop Machine (). Use these buttons to start or stop the selected machine.

### Viewing System Messages

The bottom of the screen can be used to display system messages.

Note: You can also see system messages, as well as additional system-status information, by running the Monitor System report.

#### To view system messages:

- 1. At the bottom of the screen, in the Messages area, set the filters you want to apply to the message list.
- 2. Click Show. The messages are displayed below the filters.

#### To see the full text of a message:

• Place your mouse cursor on the message text.

#### To mark all the messages that were retrieved as "read":

• Click Mark as Read.

## See also

Managing Preset Views Managing the Call Queue Purging the System Managing the Cache Reprocessing Interactions and Managing Audits System Configuration Managing Alerts System Alerts

Home > Tools > System Administration > Managing the Call Queue

## Managing the Call Queue

When SpeechMiner retrieves calls from the shared file system, it adds them to a queue of calls that are waiting to be processed. The calls in the queue are processed in accordance with the priority levels of their Programs or, if the Program priorities are equal, in accordance with the selected process order (older calls first or newer calls first).

Program priority levels are initially set in SMART, but they can be changed from within the SpeechMiner interface, either on a permanent or a temporary basis. Changing the priority level permanently changes it for calls that are currently in the queue and for calls that are added to the queue later. Changing it temporarily only affects those calls that are already in the queue. When new calls are added to the queue, they are assigned the normal priority level of the Program to which they belong. In this way, calls that are already in the queue can be moved up or down in priority without influencing how SpeechMiner will treat the next group of calls it adds to the queue.

Only batches of calls belonging to a particular Program can be moved in the queue; individual calls cannot be moved.

The call queue settings are set in the Manage Call Queue screen.

Views	Search	Explore	Reports	s Quality Coaching		Tools	Help	Action Items (7)  administrator Log Out
Manage Call Queue						07/10/12 08:02 PM +03:00 UTC		
		Process orde	r: Older calls first	•				
Pre	ogram 🔻	Pri	<u>prity</u>	<u>Calls in Qu</u>	ieue			
Fee Inquiries		Very High	Edit	4	4 Set Priority			
Loan Requests		Very Low	Edit	12	7 Set Priority			
New Accounts		High	Edit	4	4 Set Priority			
Payments		Low	Edit	12	7 Set Priority			

Manage Call Queue screen

To open the Manage Call Queue dialog box:

• In the Main Menu, under Tools, select System Admin and then select Manage Call Queue.

#### To change the process order:

• Under Process Order, select the required process order.

To permanently change the priority of a Program:

• In the Program column, click Edit. In the dialog box, select the required priority level, and then click OK.

To temporarily change the priority of a Program:

• In the Calls in Queue column, click Set Priority. In the dialog box, select the required priority level, and then click OK.

To sort the table by a particular column:

• Click the heading of the column. (Click it a second time to reverse the order.)

#### See also

Managing Preset Views Monitoring the System Purging the System Managing the Cache Reprocessing Interactions and Managing Audits System Configuration Managing Alerts System Alerts

Home > Tools > System Administration > Purging the System

## Purging the System

When old calls are no longer required, it is possible to safely remove them from the system. This will reduce the database size and will result in better performance overall.

You can choose to delete all calls in the database or select a specific group of calls to delete. If you choose to delete a specific group, you define the group in one of the following ways:

- Date range
- One or more Programs

Note: Calls that belong to static Interaction Lists or manual Categories are not deleted during a purge.

Note: It is possible to set up an automated purging job. For additional information, contact UTOPY Inc. support.

#### To purge calls from the system:

- 1. In the Main Menu, under Tools, select System Admin and then select Purge System.
- 2. Select the desired options.
- 3. Click Delete.

#### See also

Managing Preset Views Monitoring the System Managing the Call Queue Managing the Cache Reprocessing Interactions and Managing Audits System Configuration Managing Alerts System Alerts

Home > Tools > System Administration > Managing the Cache

## Managing the Cache

For performance reasons, many of the fixed elements of the interface, such as the names of Categories and Topics, or the list of metadata types, are stored in a cache. The contents of this cache is automatically reset from time to time, and is also normally reset whenever changes made in SMART are applied in SpeechMiner. Nonetheless, at times you may find it necessary to reset the cache manually. For example, you may wish to do this when a new agent has begun working, so that the agent's name will appear in the system.

You can reset the entire cache or select specific parts of the cache to reset.

#### To reset part or all of the cache:

1. In the Main Menu, under Tools, select System Admin and then select Manage Cache. The Manage Cache screen opens.

SpeechM	iner	Search 2 JT Search						
Views	Search	Explore	Reports	Quality	Coaching	Action Items (8)  Administrator		
Manage C	ache							07/23/12 04:49 AM +03:00 UTC
			Choose the	Cache objects yo	u want to reset:			
			All			-		
							Reset	
							Robot	

#### Manage Cache screen

- 2. In the dropdown list, select the part of the cache you want to reset.
- 3. Click Reset. The selected part of the cache is reset, and a confirmation message appears.
- 4. Click  $\ensuremath{\text{OK}}$  to close the confirmation message.

## See also

Managing Preset Views Monitoring the System Managing the Call Queue Purging the System Reprocessing Interactions and Managing Audits System Configuration Managing Alerts System Alerts

Home > Tools > System Administration > Reprocessing Interactions and Managing Audits

# Reprocessing Interactions and Managing Audits

The **Interactions Admin** screen is used to perform a number of interactions- and audit-management tasks: deleting audits, reprocessing interactions, and cleaning the database of information about terms that were removed from Topics. These tasks may be necessary, for example, when Topic terms have undergone significant changes.

Views	Search	Explore	Reports	Quality	Coaching	Tools	Help	Action Items (8) V Administrator Log
Interactic	ons Admin							07/23/12 04:51 AM +03:00 U
			Delete	Audits Reproc	ess Interactions	Clean Orphani	ed Audits	
				N				
			Audits:	None 🗸			Delete	

**Interactions Admin screen** 

#### To open the Interactions Admin screen:

• In the Main Menu, under Tools, select System Admin and then select Interactions Admin.

#### **Deleting Audits**

You can delete all the audits for a particular Topic or for all Topics.

#### To delete audits:

- 1. In the Interactions Admin screen, in the Delete Audits tab, click the arrow (<sup>1</sup>) to the right of the Audits field. A dropdown list of Topics appears.
- 2. Select the Topics for which you want to delete the audits.
- 3. Click Delete. The audits are deleted for the selected Topics.

#### **Reprocessing Interactions**

You can run event analysis again on all interactions or for specified Topics or Programs. You can also specify the date range for which you want to apply the reprocessing.

#### To reprocess interactions:

- 1. In the Interactions Admin screen, in the Reprocess Interactions tab, select the types of interactions you want to reprocess.
- 2. Select a reprocessing option, as follows:

Option	Description
All	Reprocess all interactions.
Topics	Reprocess the selected Topics.
Programs	Reprocess the selected Programs

Views	Search	Explore	Reports	Quality	Coaching	Tools	Help	Action Items (8) 🔻 Administrato	r Log Ou
Interacti	ons Admin							07/23/12 04:51 /	AM +03:00 UTC
			Delete A	Emails C Reprocess s: None am: None Quarter t From: 07/07			ed Audits Reprocess		



- 3. If you selected **Topics** or **Programs**, click the arrow () beside your selection, and then, in the Multi-Select box, select the items you want to reprocess. (For additional information about using the Multi-Select box, see <u>Defining Search Criteria</u>.)
- 4. In the last field, click the arrow to open the dropdown list, and then select the range of dates for which you want to reprocess the items.
- 5. Click Reprocess. The items are reprocessed.

#### **Cleaning Orphaned Audits**

If terms were deleted from Topics during the auditing and fine-tuning process, they should also be removed from the lists of terms that are tracked in reports and in the Interaction and Event grids.

#### To remove deleted terms from the lists of tracked terms:

• In the Interactions Admin screen, in the Clean Orphaned Audits tab, click Clean. The terms are deleted.

### See also

Managing Preset Views Monitoring the System Managing the Call Queue Purging the System Managing the Cache System Configuration Managing Alerts System Alerts

Home > Tools > System Administration > System Configuration

## System Configuration

The System Configuration page displays system configuration and security information. The configuration information is for viewing only, but some of the security settings can be changed.

## See also

Viewing System Information Managing Security Settings

Managing Preset Views Monitoring the System Managing the Call Queue Purging the System Managing the Cache Reprocessing Interactions and Managing Audits Managing Alerts System Alerts

Home > Tools > System Administration > System Configuration > Viewing System Information

# Viewing System Information

You can see a summary of information about the different components of the system. If you wish, you can embed this summary in intranet sites that use <u>wiki markup</u>.

#### To view system-configuration information:

• In the Main Menu, under **Tools**, select **System Admin** and then select **System Configuration**. The **System Configuration** screen opens and displays the Default tab, in which the system-configuration information is displayed.



### Default tab

To embed the system-configuration information in an intranet site:

- 1. In the System Configuration screen, in the Wiki tab, select and copy the text.
- 2. In the intranet site, paste the text in the desired Wiki location.

#### See also

Managing Security Settings

Home > Tools > System Administration > System Configuration > Managing Security Settings

# Managing Security Settings

SpeechMiner complies with the security standards defined in the PCI-DSS standard (Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard). These standards are designed to prevent confidential information from being accessed by unauthorized individuals. For example, one purpose of SpeechMiner security settings is to prevent unauthorized people from hearing calls that are stored in the database. Some of the options that must be implemented in SpeechMiner in order for it to conform to the PCI-DSS standard are:

- Call export is disabled for all users.
- Anonymous Permalinks are disabled for all users.
- Numbers are filtered out of all call playback.
- All audio files are encrypted.
- The password for encrypting audio files has been changed from its default value.
- The password for the default user account (Administrator) has been changed from its default value.
- Access to the SpeechMiner browser-based interface is only available using Windows authentication; SpeechMiner authentication is disabled.
- Access to the system is blocked after ten consecutive attempts to log in with an invalid password.
- Permissions are set properly for all users and components of the system.
- All web services use a secure API, and can only be accessed using a token that is supplied by the system upon user login.
- Secure SSL connections are used for all connections to and between servers in the system.
- The SSL certificate is valid and includes all the domains used by the site.
- All user events are logged.
- Tracing is disabled on all web servers in the system.

The settings that must be configured in order to implement these options are defined in various locations in the system, including SMConfig (the SpeechMiner configuration tool), the SpeechMiner web interface, and the configuration files of specific system features. In some cases, more than one setting must be configured in order for a requirement to be met. (For example, SSL connection requirements must be configured separately for different servers in the system.) The Security Center lists all of the PCI-related settings in your system and, whenever possible, automatically checks the system to see if they conform to the standard. In some cases, the system can correct an issue for you by changing the relevant settings; in other cases, you must manually correct the settings. You can also choose not to implement some or all of the PCI requirements; you can manually change the settings as you see fit.

The Security Center also contains a log of all security-related actions that were performed in the system. The log lists configuration changes and failed login attempts. This information can be used to monitor the system for security breaches.

**Note:** The information in this section is intended to explain how to work with the Security Center interface. It includes a general overview to the subject of PCI implementation in SpeechMiner. For comprehensive information about securing your SpeechMiner environment, please follow the guidelines in the *SpeechMiner PCI Implementation Guide*.

**Note:** Following these guidelines does not ensure that your entire system is PCI-DSS compliant, or guarantee the confidentiality of your data. It is your company's responsibility to work with your IT department to ensure that your hardware and network systems are secure from internal as well as external intrusions. UTOPY Inc. makes no claims about the security of your network or the extent to which it is PCI-DSS compliant.

## **Opening the Security Center**

The Security Center is accessed from the System Configuration screen.

#### To open the Security Center:

• In the System Configuration screen, click the Security Center tab.

iews	Search	Explore	Reports	Quality	Coaching	Tools	Help	Action Items (8) 🔻	Administrator Log
/stem Co	nfiguration								4/12 11:46 PM +03:00 U
	i Security Cente	er							
	mmended Configu								
		in the second	Manual Requirements						
	gs to secured system security gaps you n								
nter nong tre	Setting 🚖						Explanation		Action
Administrator I	Password		Change the default pa	ssword for all Sper	chMiner built-in user	s (Administrator)			Manual
Anonymous P			Disable creation of an						Fix
Anonymous P			Make sure to remove a			onfig for all WEB :	servers		Manual
Database			Make sure Database p						Manual
Database							SpeechMiner applications		Manual
Disable Trace			Make sure to remove t						Manual
Encrypt Audio			Change the password		-				Manual
Encrypt Audio			Set encryption for auc						Manual
Export Calls	5969-5630-6		Disable export calls						Fix
External Syste	ms			counts which are u	sed for external syst	terns have the min	imum priviliges necessary for t	he application to function properly	Manual
iter numbers			Make sure that wordF						Manual
iter numbers			Filter all numbers from		,	- (/			Fixed
Seneral			Make sure that directo		bled unless deliberat	elv desired			Manual
Seneral							viner service user should have	access to those folders)	Manual
assword atte	ampts		Make sure to limit max						Manual
Secured Web			Set the web services						Fixed
Speechminer L			Allow only Windows a			nage			Fix
LS Protection							nes all domains used by the site		Manual
	- internal configurat	ion	Use SSL connections						Fix
	- Report Server		Make sure that the rep						Manual
LS Protection			Make sure that the SG				a nooc conngaration)		Manual
LS Protection							e sure that they require SSL co	nnections	Manual
Iser Events			Log all user events		roo oo nig ir air rico		o caro marinoj rogano oce o		Fixed
Mindows Auth	pentication		Make sure that only A	rtive Directory user	e ara dafinad ae uea	ers in Sneechmine	r		Manual
r ni kuo vi s Aku	ICT LICOLOT		make sore that only A	cure proctory user			of 1 => == 25 💌		View 1 - 24 of 2
					14	os Page I	011 10 01 20		VIEW 1 - 24 01 2
ecurity Audi		8.26		. 1					
ast 30	Days 💌 🗹 Faile	ed Login 🗹 Config	uration Change Ref	resh					
		Event			Time	÷	Login	Comments	
Configuration I				77	23/2012 5:55:07 PM		administrator	e:/utopy/software/nuance/user.xml	
Configuration I	Edit			7/	23/2012 5:55:07 PM		administrator	connection string in Uplatform.exe.config	
Configuration I					23/2012 5:55:07 PM		administrator	e:/utopy/software/utopy/product/bin/release/uplatform.conf	
Configuration I	Edit			7/	23/2012 5:55:07 PM		administrator	connection string in smart.exe.config	
Configuration I	Edit			77	23/2012 5:55:07 PM		administrator	e: utopy\software\utopy\product\web\web.config	
Configuration I	Edit			77	23/2012 5:54:15 PM		administrator	License has changed	
ogin Denied.				7/	23/2012 4:35:08 AM		janicec	Authentication failed. Authentication chosen is: SPEECHMINER	
ogin Denied				7/	8/2012 9:09:58 PM		administator	Authentication failed. Authentication chosen is: SPEECHMINER	
ogin Denied				7/	4/2012 5:02:07 AM		administrator	Authentication failed. Authentication chosen is: SPEECHMINER	
Configuration I	Edit			7/	2/2012 11:11:18 AM		administrator	e:\utopy\software\nuance\user.xml	
					14	Dama I	of 3 🍉 ы 10 🗸		View 1 - 10

#### Security Center tab

The upper part of the tab contains PCI-compliance information. The lower part contains a log of security-related user actions. Both tables can be sorted by any of the columns they contain.

## To sort a list by a column:

• Click the title of the column. (Click it a second time to reverse the order.)

## Managing PCI-Related Settings

The **PCI-DSS Recommended Configuration** section contains a table that lists all of the PCI-related settings. The table has three columns:

Column	Description
Setting	Name of the setting
Explanation	Description of what conditions must be met in order for the setting to conform to the standard. <b>Note:</b> If the system cannot check whether the setting meets the conditions, "Make sure that" appears at the beginning of the explanation.
Action	<ul> <li>The current status of the setting, and/or the type of action required to correct it:</li> <li>Fixed: The setting conforms to the PCI requirements.</li> <li>Fix: The setting does not conform, but the system can correct it.</li> </ul>

Manual: Either the setting does not conform, or the system cannot check whether the setting conforms.

#### To correct a setting that can be fixed automatically:

- 1. Under Action, click Fix. You are prompted to confirm that you want to change the setting.
- 2. Click Yes. The system corrects the setting and changes its Action status to Fixed.

#### To correct a setting manually:

• Follow the instructions under **Explanation** to manually correct the problem. For additional information, please refer to the SpeechMiner PCI Implementation Guide.

#### To correct all the settings that can be fixed automatically:

- 1. At the top of the list, click **Reset**. You are prompted to confirm that you want to change the settings.
- 2. Click Yes. The system corrects the settings and changes their Action status to Fixed.

Note: Settings that require manual correction are not changed when Reset is selected.

#### Monitoring the Security Log

The lower table in the Security Center lists system configuration changes and failed logins that occurred in a specified time period. (System configuration changes are changes that are implemented using SMConfig, the SpeechMiner system configuration tool.)

#### To configure the display in the table:

1. At the top of the table, select the display options as follows:

Option	Description
Last	Enter the number of hours or days (prior to the current time) to include in the table
Time Unit	Select Hours or Days
Failed Login	Select this option to include failed logins in the list
Configuration Change	Select this option to include configuration changes in the list

2. Click Refresh. The display in the table is updated to match the options you chose.

## See also

Viewing System Information

Home > Tools > System Administration > Managing Alerts

## Managing Alerts

You can configure SpeechMiner to send email alerts to specified people when groups of calls have certain unusual or significant characteristics. For example, you can check for changes in the number of calls containing caller agitation, or how many calls each agent handled per week.

The following types of alerts are available:

- Change Alert: This type of alert is designed to tell you when the number of calls that meet a certain condition has changed significantly from one time period to the next. For example, you could define a Change Alert to notify you when the number of calls dealing with a particular Topic is more than ten percent higher that it was the previous week.
- **Threshold Alert:** This type of alert is designed to tell you when a significant number of calls meet a certain condition. For example, you could define a Threshold Alert to notify you when the number of calls handled by an agent falls below 1000 in a given week.

- **Trend Alert:** This type of alert is designed to find significant changes over time in the numbers of calls that meet a certain condition. For example, you could define a Trend Alert to notify you when the number of calls dealing with new accounts decreases significantly for four weeks straight.
- On Event Alert: This type of alert is designed to tell you when a particular type of event takes place in a specific number of calls. For example, you could define an On Event Alert to notify you when your competitors are mentioned in more than ten calls.

Change, Threshold, and Trend alerts are generated by the system once a day. That is, at a set time every day, the system checks the preceding day's data to see which of the alert conditions were met, and sends notifications for those alerts that were generated. On Event Alerts are generated whenever their conditions are met. The same On Event alert could be generated multiple times in the same day, if the conditions were met multiple times.

## **Creating a New Alert**

You can create new alerts as required.

### To create a new alert:

1. In the Main Menu, under **Tools**, select **System Admin** and then select **Alerts**. The **Alerts** screen opens and displays a list of the currently defined alerts.

Views	Search	Explore	Reports	Quality	Coaching	Tools	Help	Action Items (8) V Administrator Log 0
Alerts								07/25/12 12:01 AM +03:00 UT
			Alerts (P	age 1 of 1)				
			Delete	Name 🔻	Туре	La	ast Triggered	
				Change in Calls with Dissatisfaction	Change Alert	07	/25/12 12:10 AM	
				Fewer New Account Requests	Trend Alert	07	/25/12 12:20 AM	
				Other Suppliers Mentioned	On Event Alert	07	/25/12 12:22 AM	
				Too Many Calls about Discounts	Threshold Aler	t 07.	/25/12 12:15 AM	
					Alert was sav	ed.		

Alerts screen

2. Below the list of alerts, click New. The Alert Type dialog box opens.

Alert Type		
Change Alert		
Next	t Car	ncel

 Select the type of alert you want to create, and then click Next. An Alert Parameters window opens. The fields vary slightly depending on the type of alert you selected.

Alert Type dialog box

Change Alert			
Alerts the subscribers when the numbe	r of calls in the filter change by a fixed p	ercentage.	
Details			
Alert:			
Trigger the alert if			
Agent Any	and also Categories	🖌 Any 🗸	
Change Value	<ul> <li>Time Period</li> <li>day(s)</li> <li>a</li> </ul>	nd the same period beforehead	
When triggered, send an email to			
Roles:	Groups:	Type email or User name:	
Administrator	Default		Add
Event Audit	And	[	Clear
			Cicai
Regular User     SMART Power User			
			Save Cancel

Alert Parameters window for a Change Alert

- 4. Under **Details**, in the **Alert** field, type a name for the alert.
- 5. Under Trigger the alert if, select the call-property conditions, as follows:

Field	Description
Agent (Not available in Threshold Alerts)	If you want to limit the alert to calls that were handled by particular work groups or agents, click the beside this field to open the Multi-Select box. Add the work groups and/or agents to the list of selected agents, and then close the Multi-Select box. For additional information about using the Agent Multi-Select box, see <u>Defining Search Criteria</u> .
Categories/Topics	If you wish, you can limit the alert to calls that belong to particular Categories or that contain particular Topics. To do this, in the dropdown list, select either Categories or Topics, and then, click the seide the next field to open the Multi-Select box and select the Categories or Topics. For additional information about using the Multi-Select box, see <u>Defining Search Criteria</u> .

6. Fill in the fields on the next line as follows. (Note that the fields vary depending on the type of alert.)

## Change Alert:

Field	Description
Change Value	Enter the percentage of calls or the number of calls that should activate the alert. For example, if you want the alerts to be sent out when the number of calls that match the conditions during the current time period is 20% lower this week than it was last week, enter <b>20</b> . Alternatively, if you want the alerts to be sent out if the number of calls matching the conditions during the current time period is lower by 100 this week than it was last week, enter <b>100</b> .
calls/%	If the Change Value is a number of calls, select calls. If it is a percent change, select %.
Time Period	In the first field, enter the quantity of days, weeks, or months to include in each time period. For example, if the time period is two weeks, enter <b>2</b> .

In the second field, select the type of time period: **day(s)**, **week(s)**, or **month(s)**.

### Threshold Alert:

Field	Description
Threshold Position	In the first field, select <b>Above</b> if the threshold you want to define is above a specified value, or <b>Below</b> if it is below a specified value. For example, if you want the alerts to be sent out if the percentage of calls matching the conditions during the current time period is greater than 20%, select <b>Above</b> . Similarly, if you want the alerts to be sent out if the number of calls matching the conditions during the current time period is greater than 100, select <b>Above</b> . In the second field, enter the threshold value (e.g., <b>20</b> for 20% or <b>100</b> for 100 calls).
calls/%	If the Threshold Position is a number of calls, select calls. If it is a percent change, select %.
Time Period	In the first field, enter the quantity of days, weeks, or months to include in the current time period. For example, if the time period is two weeks, enter 2. In the second field, select the type of time period: <b>day(s)</b> , <b>week(s)</b> , or <b>month(s)</b> .

### Trend Alert:

Field	Description
Trend Direction	Select <b>Up</b> if you want the alerts to be sent out when an upward trend is identified, or <b>Down</b> if you want to find downward trends. For example, if you want to be notified of an increasing number of calls involving agitated callers, select <b>Up</b> . Alternatively, if you want to be notified when there is an apparent decrease in calls about a particular Topic, select <b>Down</b> .
Time Period	Enter the quantity of days, weeks, or months to include in the trend test. For example, if you want to test for monthly trends over the past six-months, enter <b>6</b> .
consecutive	Select the type of time period: <b>day(s)</b> , <b>week(s)</b> , or <b>month(s)</b> . For example, if you want to see trends over the past six months, comparing month to month, select <b>month(s)</b> .

## On Event Alert:

Field	Description
Send alert when	Enter the number of calls in which the event must occur before an alert is sent.

- 7. Under **When triggered, send an email to**, specify the recipients of the alert by selecting any combination of roles and groups, and adding individual users and email addresses, as follows:
  - Under Roles, select the roles that should receive the email alerts. For example, if you select Administrator and Power User, any user with either of these roles will receive the alert.
  - Under **Groups**, select the groups that should receive the email alerts. Any user who belongs to one or more of the selected groups will receive the alert.
  - Under **Type email or User name**, enter the email address or user name of the person that should receive the email alerts. As you type, the system automatically displays a list of all usernames that contain the entire sequence of characters you have typed thus far. If the user name you want to add appears in the list, select it and it is automatically entered into the field. When the email address or user name appears in its entirety in the field, click **Add** to add it to the list of recipients. The email address or user name is added to the list of recipients that appears below the field.
- 8. Click **Save**. The alert is created and is added to the list of alerts. When groups of calls matching the conditions you set are identified by the system, email alerts are sent to the recipients you specified.

## Sorting the List of Alerts

You can sort the list of alerts by any of the columns.

#### To sort the list of alerts by a column:

Click the heading of the column. The selected column is identified by a selected the heading.
 Note: To change the sort order from ascending to descending, or vice-versa, click the heading a second time.

## **Editing an Existing Alert**

You can edit the settings of an alert as necessary.

#### To edit the settings of an alert:

- 1. In the Alerts screen, in the list of alerts, click the name of the alert. The alert parameters window opens.
- 2. Modify the settings as necessary.
  - Note: To remove an individual user name or email address from the list of recipients, select it in the list and then click Clear.
- 3. Click Save. The changes are implemented.

## **Deleting Alerts**

You can delete alerts from the list when they are no longer needed.

#### To delete alerts from the list:

- 1. In the Alerts screen, in the Delete column, select the checkbox of each alert you want to delete.
- 2. Below the list, click Delete. You are prompted to confirm that you want to delete the selected alerts.
- 3. Click Yes. The selected alerts are deleted.

## See also

Managing Preset Views Monitoring the System Managing the Call Queue Purging the System Managing the Cache Reprocessing Interactions and Managing Audits System Configuration System Alerts

Home > Tools > System Administration > System Alerts

## System Alerts

A monitoring process runs on every platform computer in the system. The current state of the platform computers in the system is displayed in the <u>Monitor System</u> page. The system can be configured to send out e-mail notification messages to specified recipients whenever a monitoring process discovers an error, such as a full disk, on one of the monitored computers. Whenever a new error is discovered, a notification is sent. The notification lists all errors that are detected in the system at the time it is sent (even if notifications about them have already been sent).

**Note:** New notifications are only sent out when new errors are discovered. Even if an error has remained uncorrected for a long period of time, no new notifications are sent out about it unless additional errors are detected.

System alert notifications are configured using a <u>Saved Report</u> called **System alert**. This saved report appears automatically in the **Saved Reports** page and cannot be deleted. It is configured using the Scheduling feature.

#### To configure System Alert notifications:

1. In the Main Menu, under Reports, select Saved Reports. The Saved Reports tab opens.

liews	5	5	earch	Ex	plore Repo	rts	Quality	Coaching	Tools	Help		Action Items	(8) 🔻 Administrator	Log O
ave	ed Re	eports											07/23/12 04:39 A	M +03:00 UT
	Templ	ates	Save	ed Reports	Edit Report									
				Name	Т	emplate		Created By		Sharing		Actio	ons	
Repa	orts: 7	1			/	Any	▼	Any	*	Any	$\stackrel{\scriptscriptstyle \top}{\checkmark}$	1		
		Display	Edit	Delete	Name 🚖		Template	Created By		Sharing		Schedule	Last Modified	Permalink
1		in,	1	1	Agent Performance	Тор	and Bottom Perform	τ administrator		- jsmith, mjones, shiela		🔢 - Time Based	07/23/12 04:42 AM	Copy
2		in.	1		Agents - Detroit	Age	nt Comparison	jsmith		London, administrator		- Deactivated	07/23/12 04:38 AM	Copy
3		int.	1	1	Call Duration per Agent	Age	nt Comparison	administrator		jsmith, libby, maynard		- Deactivated	07/23/12 04:10 AM	Copy
4		in,	2	1	Calls per Department	Meta	idata Frequency	administrator		libby, maynard, shiela		🧱 - Time Based	07/23/12 04:42 AM	Copy
5			=	1	Financial Calls - Mini	Age	nt Bubble Chart	administrator		1		🛄 - Deactivated	07/16/12 03:11 AM	Copy
6			=		Medium Length - Finand	cial Age	nt Bubble Chart	administrator		-		🛄 - Event Based	07/23/12 04:43 AM	Copy
7					System alert	Syst	em Alert	System				🔢 - Event Based	03/25/12 11:54 AM	

## Saved Reports tab

2. Locate the row of the **System alert** report, and click **Schedule** (III). The scheduling dialog box opens, and the Recipients tab is displayed. (The Schedule tab is not available for this report, because it is configured automatically.)

Active 🔽	
Schedule Recipients	
To john@demo.com; sheila@demo.com	
L (use semi-colon to separate email addresses)	
Reply To system@demo.com	
Subject SpeechMiner System Alert	
Report Format Web archive	
Priority Important	
ſ	Schedule Cancel

Scheduling dialog box

3. Fill in the fields as follows:

	Field	Description	
17			il

То	The e-mail addresses of the report recipients. Separate multiple addresses with semi-colons (;).
From	The sender address to use
Subject	The text that should appear in the subject line of the e-mail.
Report Format	Select <b>Web archive</b> to format the results as an MHT file (which can be opened in Internet Explorer). Select <b>PDF</b> to format the results as a PDF file.
Priority	Select the desired priority level for the e-mail message.

4. Click Schedule. The recipients of system alerts are set as specified.

## See also

Managing Preset Views Monitoring the System Managing the Call Queue Purging the System Managing the Cache Reprocessing Interactions and Managing Audits System Configuration Managing Alerts

Home > Tools > Elements Explorer

## **Elements Explorer**

The **Elements Explorer** allows you to browse the elements (<u>Topics</u>, <u>Programs</u>, and <u>Categories</u>) available in your version of SpeechMiner.

## See also

Topic Statistics Program Statistics Category Statistics

User Management System Administration

Home > Tools > Elements Explorer > Topic Statistics

## **Topic Statistics**

The **Topic Statistics** screen displays the properties of selected Topics, such as the Topics' Term Count (the number of terms the Topic contains) and Program Count (how many Programs use the Topic).

SpeechMir		-										UTOP
Views	Search	Explore	Repor	ts Quality	Coaching	Tools	Help			Action Ite	ms (8) 🔻 🛛 Administral	tor Log O
Topic Stati	stics										07/24/12 06:14	AM +03:00 UT
Top	ics 11 Selected	T.	Search	Export (xls)								
												-
Term Count	Saved By	Hierarchy	Topic ID	Topic Name	Creatio		Apply Date	Locked By	Created By	Save Date	Program Count	Programs
15	admin	1	1043	Payment Address	04/15/09	02:39 AM	03/25/12 11:00 AM		administrator	03/25/12 10:59 AM	1	UTOPYINC
24	administrator	1	1038	Deposit	04/23/09	01:11 AM	03/25/12 11:00 AM		administrator	03/25/12 10:59 AM	1	UTOPYINC
24	rsingh	1	1009	Payment Arrangements	04/15/09	02:32 AM	03/25/12 11:00 AM		administrator	03/25/12 10:59 AM	1	UTOPYINC
32	administrator	1	1039	Make Payment	04/15/09	02:28 AM	03/25/12 11:00 AM		administrator	03/25/12 10:59 AM	1	UTOPYINC
45	rsingh	1	1036	High Bill Complaint	04/15/09	02:47 AM	03/25/12 11:00 AM		administrator	03/25/12 10:59 AM	1	UTOPYINC
48	rsingh	1	1037	Fees and Services Charges	04/15/09	02:42 AM	03/25/12 11:00 AM		administrator	03/25/12 10:59 AM	1	UTOPYINC
52	rsingh	1	1017	Balance Inquiry	04/15/09	02:46 AM	03/25/12 11:00 AM		administrator	03/25/12 10:59 AM	1	UTOPYINC
64	rsingh	1	1011	Adjustments	04/15/09	02:42 AM	03/25/12 11:00 AM		administrator	03/25/12 10:59 AM	1	UTOPYINC
76	administrator	1	1041	Collections	04/15/09	02:49 AM	03/25/12 11:00 AM		administrator	03/25/12 10:59 AM	1	UTOPYINC
81	rsingh	1	1032	Payment Issue	04/15/09	02:40 AM	03/25/12 11:00 AM		administrator	03/25/12 10:59 AM	1	UTOPYINC

**Topic Statistics page**
To open the Topic Statistics screen:

• In the Main Menu, under Tools, select Elements Explorer and then select Topic Statistics.

To view the properties of one or more Topics:

- 1. In the **Topics** Multi-Select box, select the Topics whose properties you want to see. (For additional information about using the Multi-Select box, see <u>Defining Search Criteria</u>.)
- 2. Click Search. The properties of the selected Topics are displayed.

# **Exporting to XLS:**

You can export the table of Topic properties to an XLS file for offline use. This may be especially useful during the implementation phase.

#### To export the list of Topics:

• Click Export.

# See also

Program Statistics Category Statistics

Home > Tools > Elements Explorer > Program Statistics

# **Program Statistics**

The Program Statistics screen shows the following information for selected Programs:

- The number of Topics in the Program. This information can help you identify empty Programs.
- List of Topics in the Program, including the name of the Topic, its save date, the name of the user who saved it, and the list of Terms in the Topic

ews	Search Explore	Reports Quality Coact	ing Tools	Help	Ac	tion Items (8) V Administrator Log Ou
naram	Statistics					07/24/12 06:16 AM +03:00 UTC
	ograms 1 Selected 🗸	Search				
Pro	ograms I Selected 👻	bearch				
ogram	ns: UTOPYINC Topic Cour	nt: 42				
ic Name	save Date Sa	aved By				
ice and I	Maintenance 03/25/12 10:59 AM ac	dministrator				
				Terms		
	i need a new meter set up	pipe put back in there so i can hook up	setting up a new gas line		we have a problem with the gas meter	
	low pressure problem	the meter has been hit	could be a pressure problem	n	dispatch to see if he can check it for you	
	i need a new gas meter	the meter needs to be replaced	bring up the correct gas met	ter	you're wanting the meter removed	
	not getting enough pressure to	did he tell you how many bee tee you	to get the meter back installe	ed	about getting our meter ordered	
	we had a gas fire	i need to get a gas meter installed on my property	ready for them to come put	a meter in	if one of our residence has had a meter set	t l
	my meter needs many repairs	plastic cover is broken	somebody hit the meter		relocating the meter	
	the pipe lines that are on the ground	put in some yard lines	the plumber will run an air te	est on the line	the underground lines set	
	he has to verify the pressure	they did some damage when	to locate our underground lin	nes	meter hit by a car and need replace	
	any way i can get a service man out	that's the line locater	someone to locate those ga	s line for me	need to swap out the meter	
	need them to come out and hook it up	my meter is in need of repair	send a request to the local of	office to contact you about gas line	request to have the meter pulled	
	a form to the local office to have a crew	the underground service line	a lack of pressure in the su	oply line	waiting for the service line to be installed	
	i need someone to fix my meter	hook the meter up to the new location	the riser needs to be replace	ed	to check my meter and my regulator	
	maintaining the gas line	we'll do a pressure test before	that's what we call a kill ser	vice	and a meter will be installed	
	put it under pressure	a way to move it to the inside	somebody ran over the gas	meter	set that up for a kill service	
	you want the riser removed	underground line locater	scheduled to be repaired		seems like my meter in broken	
	going all electric	to have our gas line put in	the meter is completely gone	9	and you want to convert to gas	
	run over the meter	perform a pressure test to make sure	it needs to be replaced		the meter has been removed	
	I'm changing over to electric in my house	to relocate a meter it ranges from	landed on the gas meter		pressure problems	
	the gas meter has been taken off	you said your gas meter is broken	i need a service tech to com	ne out and check	to have the gas meter removed	
	something was wrong with the flex line	i did the pressure test and connected the meter bar	our construction and repair	have to do some work on the line	gas meter installed at our new property	
	getting her meter changed	she needs a bigger meter	low gas pressure		we'll hook our line to that line	
	for a line locate	the gas meter is not big enough to pull the bee tee you	take the riser off		putting in new risers	
	i am converting to gas	if the line was still running good	i need to get a new meter in	stalled	meter was old and needed to be replaced	
	application for gas meter	something is wrong with the flex line	come check the pressure		for a gas meter to be installed	
	we had to have a gas test	requesting your underground service	underground line		we're gonna do a pressure test	
	our gas meter is just running wild	you want to add gas service to your home	i have an older meter		must have backed into the gas meter	

**Program Statistics page** 

#### To open the Program Statistics screen:

• In the Main Menu, under Tools, select Elements Explorer and then select Program Statistics.

#### To view information about one or more Programs:

- 1. In the **Programs** Multi-Select box, select the Programs whose properties you want to see. (For additional information about using the Multi-Select box, see <u>Defining Search Criteria</u>.)
- 2. Click Search. The information about the selected Programs is displayed.

# See also

Topic Statistics Category Statistics

Home > Tools > Elements Explorer > Category Statistics

# **Category Statistics**

The **Category Statistics** screen contains a complete list of the Categories defined in your system. The screen displays data about each Category, including the following:

- Name: The name of the Category and its place in the hierarchy of Categories. This information is displayed in a similar fashion in the Category Explorer (see Exploring Calls).
- **Description:** Description of the Category
- Locked By: Lock status. Indicates whether the Category is locked, and, if it is, which user locked it
- Expression: Summary of the Category definition. This provides a quick way to review the definition and check that it is correct.
- Active: Active status. Indicates whether the Category is active or inactive

#### To open the Topic Statistics screen:

• In the Main Menu, under Tools, select Elements Explorer and then select Category Statistics.

See also

Topic Statistics Program Statistics Home > Permalinks

# Permalinks

The Permalink feature enables you to save a network address for a particular item, such as a query or a report. This makes it easy to access the item again. For example, after you select search criteria for a new call search, you can generate and save a Permalink to the query. Later, you can paste into the **Address** field of your browser. When you press **Enter**, the search form is opened with all of your search criteria specified. You can save the Permalink on your computer or as a favorite in your browser, or you can send it to other users by e-mail or IM. Then, when you or the recipient want to run the search, you need only open the link in a browser.

In some cases, when you generate a Permalink, you can specify whether is can be accessed by anyone who has the link or only by SpeechMiner users who have permissions in the system for the item. In these cases, if you choose the latter option, users must provide their SpeechMiner username and password in order to access the item. When this option is not available, a SpeechMiner username and password are always required.

Permalinks can be created for a variety of types of items, including specific calls, call searches, reports, and coaching sessions. When you choose to generate a Permalink for one of these items, a **Permalink** dialog box opens and displays the Permalink URL. For information about how to use this dialog box, see below. For information about how to open the dialog box in a particular screen, see the section of this manual that describes the screen.

Permalink		6
http://libby/speechmi gs.aspx?searchId=21	ner/pages/calls/que	rySettin
Allow anonymous	Copy & Close	Close

#### Permalink dialog box

#### To save a generated Permalink:

1. At the bottom of the **Permalink** dialog box, select **Allow anonymous** if you want to permit users to open the link without a username and password. If you do not select this option, a username and password for a user account with permissions for the linked item is required in order for a user to access the link.

Note: This option is not available for all types of Permalinks, and users must log in in order to open the link.

2. Click **Copy & Close**. The link is copied to your clipboard and the dialog box closes. Paste the link in a text file, the **Address** field of your browser, an e-mail message, etc., as required.

Most Permalinks only enable users to open interactions that belong to partitions for which they have permissions. Some Permalinks allow users to open interactions from partitions for which they don't have permissions. When this is the case, a warning message appears in the **Permaling** dialog box:

Permalink Note that any user who receives calls regardless of partition sett		ole to play the
http://libby/speechmin s.aspx?listId=1005	her/pages/calls/sa	vedQuerie
Allow anonymous	Copy & Close	Close

Warning in Permalink dialog box

#### See also

Welcome Getting Started Workflows Views Action Items Search Using the Media Player Explore Quality Monitoring Coaching Reports Tools Appendix A: Standard Reports

Creating a New Call Search Saved Searches Media Player: More Actions Options Managing Saved Reports Managing the Coaching Session List Home > Appendix A: Standard Reports

# Appendix A: Standard Reports

SpeechMiner comes with a number of standard report templates. These report templates are described in this appendix. For information about configuring and generating reports from templates, see <u>Reports</u>.

#### Note:

- Some reports may not be available to all users. As such, you may not see them in your system.
- You may have access to reports that are not documented here because they were custom made for your organization.

#### See also

Template Layout
Common Parameters
Templates

Home > Appendix A: Standard Reports > Template Layout

# Template Layout

This section explains the general layout of report templates. The next section, <u>Common Parameters</u>, describes parameters that appear in many report templates. These sections are followed by the <u>Templates</u> section, a catalogue of all of the report templates, with descriptions of each report and additional information about the reports. When specific templates use significantly different layouts and parameters from the most common ones explained below and in the <u>Common Parameters</u> section, they are explained in the <u>Templates</u> section in the description of the relevant report template.

The report templates in SpeechMiner have a maximum of three rows of parameters, each row dealing with different functions in the report. In addition, most report templates have a Data Set filter section on the left side of the screen. The layouts of most templates are similar to the <u>Agent Comparison</u> template shown below.

Edit Report				07/25/12 12:38 AM +03:00 UTC
Templates Saved Reports	Edit Report			
Calls Filter:	Open in new window	🛃 🔏 🖂 🔎 🝙   🕒 Template:	Agent Comparison 📃 Repo	rt Name:
<ul> <li>✓ Calls</li> <li>✓ Emails</li> <li>✓ Chats</li> <li>✓ Texts</li> </ul>	Languages: (American English) Categories: (Financial) Topics: (Balance Inquiry, Collect Programs: (UTOPYINC)	ions, Deposit, High Bill Complaint, Fees and Serv	ces Charges, Make Payment, Payment Arran	gements, Payment Issue)
Languages	Report Title Agent Comparison Items on Report	Description	Version Full Report	]
Date Range Last Quarter From: 04/01/12 12:00 AM To: 06/07/12 11:59 PM	Agents Any	Compare Number of Calls	Categories Any	Display Show All
Expand All / Collapse All © SpeechMiner © Interaction Properties © Metadata © User Actions				

#### Agent Comparison template

In this section, we will explain the layout of report templates using the <u>Agent Comparison</u> template as an example, since it has the most common layout of parameters you will encounter.

#### **Template Rows**

The following rows appear on the right side of the template:

#### **First Row**

Contains controls for working with report results (see <u>Creating a Custom Report</u>), followed by the **Template** field, in which you can select the type of report, and the **Report Name** field, which you can use to name the report. If you choose to save the report parameters as a saved report (see <u>Managing Saved Reports</u>), the Report Name is used to identify it in the system.

Open in new window	🗜 🚀 📼 🔎	Template:	Agent Comparison 📃	Report Name:
1	the state of the second se		· ·	

#### Second Row

Contains fields for defining the report title and an optional report description. These items are displayed at the top of the report results. By default, the name of the report template is used as the report title, but you can modify it as necessary. Some templates also have a **Version** parameter in this row. If so, you can use this parameter to select the size or format of the report output.

Report Title	Description	Version	
Agent Comparison		Full Report	•

#### Third row

Contains the **Items on Report** parameters - the fields that determine which items will appear graphically on the report. In some reports, one or more of the parameters may also have statistical functions.

Items on Report			
Agents	Compare	Categories	Display
Any 🗸	Number of Calls	Any 🗸	Show All

# **Data Set Filters**

The left side of most report templates contains the Data Set filters. These filters specify which data will be included in the report's analyses. For information about the filters and how to configure them, see <u>Common Parameters</u>.

Calls Filter:
Calls
🗖 Emails
🗖 Chats
🗖 Texts
🗖 Social
Languages
1 Selected 🗸
Date Range
Last Quarter 💌
From: 04/01/12 12:00 AM
To: 06/30/12 11:59 PM
Expand All / Collapse All
SpeechMiner
Interaction Properties
Metadata
<b>⊞ User Actions</b>

#### **Data Set filters**

When you are not configuring the Data Set filters, you can hide the left panel of the screen if you wish.

To hide or show the Data Set filter panel:

• In the upper-right corner of the panel, click @ or .

The current filter settings are displayed on the right side of the template below the first row:



#### Current filter settings

# See also

Common Parameters Templates Creating a Custom Report

Home > Appendix A: Standard Reports > Common Parameters

# **Common Parameters**

The following parameters are the most common ones you will encounter. Most of them have the same function no matter which template you use. Exceptions will be briefly explained in this section, and dealt with in detail in the documentation on individual reports in the <u>Templates</u> section.

#### **General Settings**

#### Template

You can choose or switch to any of the report templates available.

#### **Report Name**

Text entered in this field will be used as a file name for the report if you choose to save the report. This name will appear under the **Saved Reports** tab for future access.

#### **Report Title**

Text entered in this field will be displayed in large, bold type at the top of the report results. The report title is optional. The name of the report template appears in this field by default, but can be modified or deleted.

#### Description

Text entered in this field will be displayed in fine print directly below the Report Title in the report results. The description is optional.

#### Version

The output of some reports can be generated in different versions - different sizes or formats In this field, select the desired output version from the dropdown list. The available options vary depending on the template. The following options may be available:

• Full Report: Full-size report output optimized for printing (either 11" wide x 8.5" high, or 8.5" wide by 11" high, depending on the template). Full reports often contain two parts: a graph or chart followed by a summary table which may also contain additional details.

In some cases, when a Full report contains items that can be expanded to display more details, the version has two options, **Expanded** and **Collapsed**. When **Full Report (Expanded)** is selected, all items are initially expanded when the report is displayed; when **Full Report (Collapsed)** is selected, all items are initially collapsed. In either case, the items can be expanded or collapsed by the user after the report is generated.

- Mini: Small output for display in the Views page (480px wide x 288px high)
- Wide: Wide-width output for display in the wider columns of the <u>Views</u> page (768px wide x 288px high)
- Table Only: Full-size report output that only includes the summary table; graphs and diagrams are not printed (either 11" wide x 8.5" high, or 8.5" wide by 11" high, depending on the template)

- X-Axis Only: For bubble charts; when this option is selected, the report output is in the form of a table with a bar graph representing the x-axis values. No bubble-chart is produced, and y-axis values are not represented. (Width: 768px)
- **Y-Axis Only:** For bubble charts; when this option is selected, the report output is in the form of a table with a bar graph representing the y-axis values. No bubble-chart is produced, and x-axis values are not represented. (Width: 768px)

# **Data Set Filters**

The Data Set Filters allow you to narrow down the data from the entire database in order to base your report on a subset of the available data.

All of the Data Set Filters have an "AND" relationship, which means each filter further restricts the options available, and all call events and topics represented in your final data set satisfy all Data Set Filters. Should you choose options from two different filters that mutually exclude each other (e.g., a Program designated as "Customer Service France" with calls only in French and the Language option "Dutch"), you will have zero data in your report.

Note that the parameters that appear under **Items on Report** (i.e., the third row of parameters; see description <u>below</u>) allow you to select specific information from the base of data that is selected under Data Set Filters. Distributional information presented in the report is calculated for the items selected under **Items on Report**, built upon the base of data that is selected using the Data Set Filters.

The Data Set Filters appear in the Filter Panel on the left side of the report template for all reports that support them. The filters are divided into groups. The basic filters appear at the top of the Filter Panel and are always displayed when the panel is displayed. The other groups of filters can be expanded or collapsed. The following groups of filters are available:

Filter Group	Description
Basic filters	Filters for selecting interaction types, languages, and the date range <b>Note:</b> A day begins at 0:00 and ends at 23:59. "To Date" date filters (All, Today, Week to Date, Last 7 Days, Month to Date. Last Month, Quarter to Date, Last 90 Days) include calls until the exact time and date the report is generated. The times given are for the time zone where your Web server is deployed, and therefore are not necessarily the same as the times where you are physically located.
SpeechMiner	Filters for selecting the Categories and Programs of calls, and the Topics that must be found in them For each option, select one or more values. Only calls in which at least one of the selected values for each option was identified are included in the data set. For example, if you select three Categories and two Programs, only calls belonging to at least one of the Categories and one of the Programs are included. You can add lines to the Categories and Topics. The logical relationship between each line is AND. For example, if one line under Categories specifies one Category and another line specifies another Category, a call must be in both Categories to be included. To add a line, click p To create a negative filter, click the button beside the field. For example, to include all Categories except Category A, select Category A and select the button beside the Category field.
Call Properties	<ul> <li>Filters that allow you to select agents, call length, and call ID properties</li> <li>Agents: Select any combination of agents and workgroups. If you select a workgroup, all the agents in the workgroup are included in the data set. You can also choose to search for the "current user" rather than a specific agent or workgroup. In this case, the condition changes depending on which user runs the report.</li> <li>Call Length: Select the range of call durations to include in the data set: In the first field, select either Less Than, Between, or More Than. In the second text field or fields, fill in the number of seconds. If you selected Less Than, only calls that are shorter than the value you specified are included. If you selected Between, calls whose durations are more than the first value and less than the second value are included. If you selected More Than, only calls that are longer than the value you specified are included.</li> <li>Call ID: Type any portion of a Call ID; any calls whose IDs include the characters you specify are included in the data set. You can use the * character as a wildcard. Place it at the beginning or end of a sequence of characters to indicate that at least one other character must be in that position in the sequence. For example, type *123 to specify Call IDs that begin with any sequence of characters.</li> </ul>
Metadata	Filters for selecting metadata values Metadata is collected by the recording system and relayed by it to SpeechMiner. The types of available metadata vary from system to system. You can select any type of metadata available in your system and, if you wish, you can specify a value for it. The search results will only include calls for which the selected type of metadata has a value defined, and, if you specify a value, for which the defined value equals the specified value.

User Actions Filters for finding calls that have user comments, were played back by users, about which forms were filled quality checking was performed	
	Under <b>Call Comment Text</b> , specify text that must appear in a comment that a user added to a call. In the other fields, select the users who must have performed the specified actions.

For additional information about the filters and about working with the Data Set Filter interface, see Defining Search Criteria.

# **Items on Report**

The parameters in this section allow you to select specific information from—and calculate distributional information on—the data in the data set that was specified using the <u>Data Set Filters</u>. If no selections are made under **Items on Report**, default values will determine how the data you have narrowed down through the Data Set Filters appear in the report.

Since the parameters in **Items on Report** differ from report to report, only the most common ones are explained in this section, listed alphabetically. Less common parameters will be explained in their respective templates.

#### Agents

You can select the specific Agents or Workgroups to be analyzed and displayed in your report. The default value ("Any") includes all agents. Your selections here must match up with your selections in the <u>Data Set Filters</u> (e.g., the same Workgroups or Agents, belonging to the same Languages and Programs), if the latter are not all set to default ("Any"). In other words, the report output will only include Agents who were selected here and who were not excluded from the data set in the Data Set Filters.

#### Categories

You can select specific Categories of calls to limit the data set analyzed for your report. Your data set will include calls belonging to any of the Categories selected. Use the default value ("Any") to include all available Categories. Note that if a single call belongs to multiple Categories, it will be counted as one call for each Category selected under this parameter. Also, bear in mind that the report output will only include calls in Categories that were selected here and were not excluded from the data set in the <u>Data Set Filters</u>. Thus, if you selected certain Categories in the Data Set Filters section, only Categories that are selected both there and here will appear.

When used with Percentage of Calls in the <u>Data Type</u> parameter, the report will display the ratio of {the number of calls from the selected Categories in Items on Report} to {the number of calls from the Categories selected for analysis in Data Set Filters}, as a percentage. Note that if one or more calls belong to multiple Categories, the sum of the percentages of calls for all Categories may add up to more than 100%.

#### Data Type or Compare

You can specify the type of data you wish to display in your report. The most common choices are:

- Number of Calls: Displays the number of calls per each report item. Data may vary depending on the other filters selected.
- **Percentage of Calls:** Displays the percentage of calls per report item in your data set. For additional information, see <u>Categories</u> (in this <u>Items on Report</u> section).
- Average Call Duration: Displays the average length, in minutes, of all calls for each report item. The entire conversation for the call recording session is considered, excluding the wrap time after the call.
- Total Resources: Displays the total amount of time, in hours, of all the calls per report item. It is essentially the sum of all call durations.

#### Period Type or Period

This parameter is most commonly seen on reports that show trends. The output of the report will be displayed in increments of the selected Period Type. For each increment, the value of the selected Data Type will be displayed for each particular report item. For example, if the Data Type is "Number of Calls" and the Period Type is "Day," the number of calls for each day in the date range included in the report will be shown.

#### Top or Display

In this parameter, you can choose how many of the highest or lowest values are displayed on the report. The options may include 5, 10, 15, 20, All, All Sorted, and All Unsorted.

#### See also

Template Layout Templates Home > Appendix A: Standard Reports > Templates

# Templates

This section contains detailed information regarding each report template, including a general description, an overview explaining how to customize the report (how the parameters function), and a sample report. For some templates, additional information on common usages and actions you can perform on the reports is provided.

Most reports are interactive: you can drill down within a report to view additional details about any graphic component (graph bars, lines, or table headers) by clicking on it. In addition, you can play a call in the <u>Media Player</u> directly from an Interaction List in the report results. These interactive options are called actions. In some cases, report results offer additional action options. In these cases, the description of the report includes as Actions section describing the additional actions that are available. For more information about using the standard report actions, see <u>Creating a Custom Report</u>.

In some cases, reports have a number of available versions, such as a Full version, a MINI version, and a Wide version. In these cases, a single template is used to generate all of the versions, and a **Version** parameter is used to select the desired version. (For additional information about the **Version** parameter, see <u>Common Parameters</u>.)

Note: The information you see in reports is limited to the data to which you have access.

The following standard report templates are available:

Agent Bubble Chart Agent Comparison Agent Trend Audit Analysis Call List **Capacity Trend** Category Bubble Chart Category Distribution Category Trend **Coaching Summary** First Topic Distribution Metadata Frequency MINI\_System Load Monitor System Performance Profile Predictive Elements **Program Distribution OM Agent Summary** System Load Team Comparison Top and Bottom Performers Topic Analysis - Audits Topic Analysis - Trends Topic Call List Usage Tracking **User Management** 

Home > Appendix A: Standard Reports > Templates > Agent Bubble Chart

# Agent Bubble Chart

Templates Saved Reports	5 Edit Report		
Calls Filter:	🕨 🗖 Open in new window   🛃 🚀 📼 🔎 👔	🕤 Template: Agent Bubble Chart 💽 I	Report Name:
Calls	Languages: (American English) Report Title Agent Bubble Chart Rems on Report	Description X-Axis Categories Any	Version Full Report V-Axis Categories Any

# Description

The Agent Bubble Chart report compares Agents and/or Workgroups by plotting them on a graph according to the percentage of calls in the horizontal (x-axis) and vertical (y-axis) Categories. Each Agent is represented on the graph by a bubble. The size of each bubble represents the average call duration.

The X-Axis Only and Y-Axis Only versions present the data as a histogram indicating percentage of calls per Agent and/or Workgroup, rather than a bubble chart.

# **Common Usages**

- Plot Agents showing average call duration plus two customer-experience Categories (e.g., Dissatisfaction and Escalation)
- Plot Agents showing average call duration plus two agent-efficiency Categories (e.g., Transfer Rate and Hold Rate)
- Plot Agents showing average call duration plus two Categories that represent metadata (e.g., Customer Satisfaction and Issue Resolution)

# **Customizing the Report**

#### **General Settings**

• Version: Available in Full Report (standard size), Mini, Wide, X-Axis Only, and Y-Axis Only versions. For additional information, see <u>Common Parameters</u>.

For all other parameters, see Common Parameters.

#### **Data Set Filters**

See Common Parameters.

#### **Items on Report**

- X-Axis Categories: Select one or more Categories to include in the x-axis of the bubble chart. Note that only Categories that were not excluded from the data set by means of the Categories parameter of the Data Set Filters section are included in the report.
- Y-Axis Categories: Select one or more Categories to include in the y-axis of the bubble chart. Note that only Categories that were not excluded from the data set by means of the Categories parameter of the Data Set Filters section are included in the report.

For all other parameters, see Common Parameters.

#### Actions

- Click a bubble in a chart, a bar in a graph, or an item in a table to open a list of calls included in the item.
- In X-Axis Only and Y-Axis Only versions, click at to drill down to a <u>Category Trend</u> report.

# Sample Reports



**Full Report Version** 

Team / Agent Name 🗘	(Multiple Selected) 🗘			Calls 🗘	Total Calls 🗘
agent f		19.4%	N	13	67
agent h		19.4%	~	12	62
agent e		16.7%	$\sim$	11	66
agent b		16.4%	$\sim$	11	67
agent g		15.3%	$\sim$	9	59
agent d		13.7%	~	10	73
agent k		13.6%	$\sim$	8	59
agent i		10.2%	~	5	49
agent c		7.6%	$\sim$	5	66
agent j		5.1%	$\mathbb{M}$	3	59
Summary		13.9%		87	627

#### X-Axis Only Version

Home > Appendix A: Standard Reports > Templates > Agent Comparison

# Agent Comparison

Templates Saved Reports	; Edit Report				
Calls Filter:	Dipen in new window	🔒 🔏 🖃 🔎 👔   🕒 Template: 🗍	Agent Comparison	Report Name:	
Calls Emails Chats Chats Social Languages 1 Selected Cast Guarter Cast Guarter From: 04/01/12 12:00 AM Tro: 06/01/211:59 PM Expand All / Colleges All SpeechMiner Interaction Properties Metadata User Actions	Languages: (American English) Report Title Agent Comparison Items on Report Agents Any	Description Compare Number of Calls	Version Full Report Categories Any		Display Show All

# Description

The Agent Comparison report consists of a bar graph comparing Agents' performance against each other as well as against the average value of all Agents represented.

# **Common Usages**

- Plot Agent performance statistics to see who performs above and below the benchmark (the average of a group determined by the filter selections)
- Drill down on specific Agents to play their calls and find examples of effective agent behavior or of areas needing improvement
- Utilize the data obtained from the report to identify training needs for effective agent coaching

# **Customizing the Report**

# **General Settings**

• Version: Available in Full Report (standard size), Mini, Wide, and Table Only versions. For additional information, see <u>Common</u> <u>Parameters</u>.

For all other parameters, see Common Parameters.

# **Data Set Filters**

See Common Parameters.

### Items on Report

See Common Parameters.

#### Actions

• Click a bar in a graph or an item in a table to open a list of calls included in the item.

# Sample Report



Agent Name 🗘	Number of Calls 🗘	Percent of Calls 🗘	Avg. Duration 🗘	Total Resources 🗘	Pct. of Resources 🗘
agent b	29	43.3%	07:00	03:23:00	58.3%
agent c	39	59.1%	07:06	04:36:41	68.6%
agent d	37	50.7%	07:44	04:46:11	64.0%
agent e	36	54.5%	07:26	04:27:33	72.6%
agent f	29	43.3%	06:27	03:07:03	57.9%
agent g	31	52.5%	09:00	04:38:47	69.3%
agent h	25	40.3%	06:10	02:34:14	48.8%
agent i	24	49.0%	06:47	02:42:58	64.2%
agent j	33	55.9%	07:01	03:51:35	64.9%
agent k	27	45.8%	08:48	03:57:47	54.0%
Summary**	310	49.4%	07:22	38:05:49	62.5%
Data Set Summary***	690	100.0%	05:54	67:55:03	100.0%

\* Unweighted average Number of Calls for the selected agents (defined in Items on Report section)

\*\* Summary of calls handled by the selected agents and belonging to one or more of the selected categories (defined in Items on Report section)

\*\*\* Summary of all calls that meet the Data Set criteria (defined in Data Set Filters section)

#### SpeechMiner® by UTOPY

Agent Comparison v4 executed 5/29/2011 3:45:19 PM by libby

Calls have the following constraints:

Language: American English Make Payment, Account Maintenance, Bill Inquiry, Collections, Payment Information, Service Activation/Transfer, Service Deactivation, Standard Service Issues, System Issue, Discount

Home > Appendix A: Standard Reports > Templates > Agent Trend

# Agent Trend

alls Filter:	🕨 🕨 Open in new window	🛛 🛃 🖃 🔎 📓   🔇 Template:	Agent Trend	Report Name:		
🔽 Calls	Languages: (American English)					
🗖 Emails	Report Title	Description	Version			
Chats	Agent Trend		Full Report	<b>*</b>		
Texts	Items on Report					
C Social	Teams / Agents	Compare	Categories		Period	
Languages	Any	Number of Calls		Ţ	Day	•
1 Selected 🗸			1		[54]	
Date Range						
Last Quarter 🗾						
From: 04/01/12 12:00 AM						
To: 06/30/12 11:59 PM						
Expand All / Collapse All						
SpeechMiner						
Interaction Properties						
🗄 Metadata						
User Actions						

# Description

The Agent Trend report is a line graph that displays agent performance on one or more selected categories over time.

# Common Usages

- Track progress of agent performance over time to monitor effectiveness of training programs.
- Use graph to measure and compare performance and provide feedback to the agent.

# **Customizing the Report**

#### **General Settings**

• Version: Available in Full Report (standard size), Mini, Wide, and Table Only versions. For additional information, see <u>Common</u> <u>Parameters</u>.

For all other parameters, see Common Parameters.

#### **Data Set Filters**

See Common Parameters.

### **Items on Report**

See Common Parameters.

#### Actions

• Click a line in a graph or an item in a table to open a list of calls included in the item.

# Sample Report



00:00

00:00

08:43

11:21

02:34

03:22

SpeechMiner® by UTOPY Agent Trend v4 executed 5/29/2011 4:32:54 PM by libby

-03:58

-04:13

Home > Appendix A: Standard Reports > Templates > Audit Analysis

\* Unweighted average Average Call Duration for the selected agents (defined in Items on Report section)

05:08

06:43

# Audit Analysis

Language: American English

Calls have the following constraints: From 10/3/2010 12:00 AM To 10/11/2010 11:59 PM

agent i

agent k

Templates Saved Reports	Edit Report			
🕨 🗖 Open in new window   🔒 🔏 📼 🔎	👔 📔 😋 Template: 🛛 Audit Analysis	Report Name:		
Report Title Audit Items on Report	Description			
Audit Dates All From: 01/01/70 02:00 AM To: 01/01/38 01:59 AM	Language American English	Programs Any	Topics	Exclude missing events
Thresholds 40,50,65,73,85				

# Description

The Audit Analysis report is a table that shows the precision with which each Topic was identified by SpeechMiner. The precision value is given for one or more confidence levels, as specified in the report parameters, and is determined by the TP/FP/SFP (True Positive/False Positive/Sense False Positive) selections made by the auditor as part of the <u>call-auditing process</u>.

This report is instrumental to implementers, as it allows them to fine-tune the system to the right accuracy level. After learning about Topic-identification performance, the implementer can adjust confidence levels as necessary.

# **Common Usage**

• Monitor the quality of the different Topics in the system based on audit information.

# **Customizing the Report**

#### **General Settings**

See Common Parameters.

#### **Items on Report**

- Audit Dates: The same as Date Range (see <u>Common Parameters</u>). The dates, however, refer to when the calls were audited rather than when the calls were processed in the system.
- Language: See Common Parameters.
- Programs: See Common Parameters.
- Topics: Choose the Topics whose audits you want to examine.
- Exclude missing events: If checked, all orphaned audits will be excluded. For more information on orphaned audits, contact your SpeechMiner administrator.
- **Thresholds:** Type in the confidence levels for which you wish to see precision values. Separate multiple values with commas. For each Topic included in the report, precision values will be displayed as percentages for each confidence level. In addition, the report also shows the total number of TPs/FPs/SFPs for each Threshold.

**Note:** Confidence levels are assigned by the system to each term it identifies. They indicate how closely the term defined in the Topic matches the term that was discovered in the audio segment. "Precision" in the report means the percentage of TPs for all the audits in the Topic whose confidence levels were equal to or above the given Thresholds. This means that each of the Thresholds includes all of the audits in the Threshold levels above it. Thus, in the example below, the 40-Threshold column includes all audits with precision values of 40 or higher, the 50-Threshold column includes all audits with confidence levels of 50 or higher, and so on.

## Actions

- Click a Topic to drill down to the audit information for each of the terms in the Topic (shown in the Sample Reports section below).
- Click the TP/FP/SFP numbers to drill down to an Audit Interaction List (shown in the Sample Reports section below), which lists the calls that were audited.

#### **Sample Reports**

	Audi	ting Sum	mary			
Summary of Audit Results						
Low - 0%	Med-Low	- 51% 🗾 Me	dium - 69% 📃	High - 76%		
Topic\Thresho	ld	40	50	65	73	85
Tatal	Precision	57.14 %	57.14 %	61.54 %	61.54 %	66.67 %
Total	TP/FP/SFP	8/6/3	8/6/3	8/5/3	8 / 5 / 3	6/3/2
				;		
Topic\Thresho	ld	40	50	65	73	85
Maka Doumont	Precision	0.00 %	0.00 %	0.00 %	0.00 %	0.00 %
Make Payment	TP/FP/SFP	0/1/0	0/1/0	0/1/0	0 / 1 / 0	0 / 1 / 0
Deverant Lagations	Precision	50.00 %	50.00 %	50.00 %	50.00 %	100.00 %
Payment Locations	TP/FP/SFP	2/2/1	2/2/1	2/2/1	2 / 2 / 1	1 /0 / 0
D	Precision	50.00 %	50.00 %	100.00 %	100.00 %	100.00 %
Deposit	TP/FP/SFP	1/1/0	1 /1 / 0	1 /0 / 0	1 /0 / 0	1 /0 / 0
	Precision	60.00 %	60.00 %	60.00 %	60.00 %	60.00 %
Payment Arrangements	TP/FP/SFP	3 / 2 / 1	3 / 2 / 1	3 / 2 / 1	3 / 2 / 1	3 / 2 / 1
	Precision	100.00 %	100.00 %	100.00 %	100.00 %	100.00 %
Balance Inquiry	TP/FP/SFP	1 /0 / 0	1/0/0	1/0/0	1/0/0	1 /0 / 0
8	Precision	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
Payment Issue	TP/FP/SFP	0 / 0 / 1	0 / 0 / 1	0 / 0 / 1	0 / 0 / 1	0 / 0 / 1
	Precision	100.00 %	100.00 %	100.00 %	100.00 %	N/A
Customer Identification	TP/FP/SFP	1 /0 / 0	1/0/0	1/0/0	1 /0 / 0	0 / 0 / 0

# SpeechMiner® by UTOPY

Audit Analysis v4 executed 12/28/10 03:00 AM +02:00 UTC by libby\_ps

Language is American English

Audit Analysis report



Topic analysis of selected term

nclude	event	s audited: TP											
Confide	nce th	nreshold: From 40											
angua	ges: A	American English											
Topics:	(Paym	nent Arrangements)											
AV 1 - 3		😋 Prev 🕤 Next Batch Actions										<b>C</b>	olu
	of 3 Play	C Prev C Next Batch Actions	Confidence	Start Time	End Time	Term ID	Resource Name	Agent	Date / Time	Call ID	Call ID Int	-	
	Play		Confidence							Call ID		Auditor	
	Play ►	Text		0:15:46	0:15:49	PSUT_Payment_	Payment Arrangem	agent a	10/10/10 01:57 AM		C 2455	Auditor libby	te

Audit Interaction List

Home > Appendix A: Standard Reports > Templates > Call List

# Call List

Templates Saved Report:	s Edit Report	
Calls Filter:	🕨 🗖 Open in new window   📙 🎉 🖃 🔎 👔   😋 Template: Call List 🛛 🔽 Report Name:	
Calls	Languages: (American English)	
Emails	Report Title Description	
Chats	Call List	
Social	Rems on Report	
Languages	Categories Agents Comments	
1 Selected 🗸	Any J DISPLAY V	
Date Range		-
Last Quarter 📃		
From: 04/01/12 12:00 AM To: 06/30/12 11:59 PM		
Expand All / Collapse All		
SpeechMiner		
Interaction Properties		
Metadata		
User Actions		

# Description

The Interaction List report is a table that lists calls that match specified filters and settings. It is an easy way to track down calls by using filters. Results for each call include the Call ID, the Call Time (the start time of the call), the call's Program, the Agent handling the call, the call Duration, and, optionally, any comments that were added to the call by users.

#### **Common Usage**

- Retrieve calls based on specified search parameters.
- Listen to call audio of interest for quality assurance purposes.

#### **Customizing the Report**

#### **General Settings**

See Common Parameters.

#### **Data Set Filters**

See Common Parameters.

#### **Items on Report**

• **Comments:** Select **DISPLAY** to show any comments that were added to a call when the call was opened in the audio player. Select **HIDE** if you do not want the comments to be visible to the report recipient.

For all other parameters, see Common Parameters.

# Actions

• Click a call in the table to open the Media Player and play the call.

# Sample Report

Call List										
List of calls is limited to 1000. 1000 returned										
Call ID 🗘	Call Time 🗘	Program \$	Agent \$	Duration \$	Comment \$					
dutch (20)_u48021248p_dutchn_32456	2/1/2010 4:48:49 PM	dutch	dutcho	02:11	and the books in the					
dutch (2)_u34021234p_dutchn_32455	2/1/2010 4:34:47 PM	dutch	dutcho	03:36						
dutch (198)_u34021234p_dutchn_32454	2/1/2010 4:34:45 PM	dutch	dutcho	02:24						
dutch (196)_u34021234p_dutchn_32453	2/1/2010 4:34:44 PM	dutch	dutcho	03:10						
dutch (194)_u20021220p_dutchn_32452	2/1/2010 4:20:39 PM	dutch	dutcho	11:18						
dutch (192)_u20021220p_dutchn_32451	2/1/2010 4:20:34 PM	dutch	dutcho	05:38						
dutch (190)_u06021206p_dutchn_32450	2/1/2010 4:06:31 PM	dutch	dutcho	08:05						
dutch (188)_u06021206p_dutchn_32449	2/1/2010 4:06:29 PM	dutch	dutcho	09:19						
dutch (186)_u06021206p_dutchn_32448	2/1/2010 4:06:25 PM	dutch	dutcho	12:16						
dutch (184)_u06021206p_dutchn_32447	2/1/2010 4:06:23 PM	dutch	dutcho	05:24						
dutch (182)_u52011152p_dutchn_32446	2/1/2010 3:52:16 PM	dutch	dutcho	02:16						
dutch (180)_u52011152p_dutchn_32445	2/1/2010 3:52:15 PM	dutch	dutcho	04:31						
dutch (18)_u38011138p_dutchn_32444	2/1/2010 3:38:14 PM	dutch	dutcho	05:01						
dutch (178)_u38011138p_dutchn_32443	2/1/2010 3:38:12 PM	dutch	dutcho	05:47						
dutch (176) u38011138p dutchn 32442	2/1/2010 3:38:05 PM	dutch	dutcho	05:54						

Home > Appendix A: Standard Reports > Templates > Capacity Trend

# Capacity Trend

Templates Saved Reports Edit Report	
🕨 🗖 Open in new window 📋 🛃 🌌 🖘 🔎 👔 📋 😋 Template: Capacity Trend 📃	Report Name:
Dates All From: 01/01/70 02:00 AM To: 01/01/38 01:59 AM	Report Title Capacity Trend

# Description

The Capacity Trend report contains information that can be used by the system administrator to monitor the system load and see the extent to which the system can handle new incoming calls. It has two parts:

- A bar graph that shows the number of hours of loaded calls and accumulated calls for each day in the selected time period.
- A table listing the maximum number of channels (i.e., the maximum number of agents taking calls concurrently at any one time in the day) and the maximum number of seats available (i.e., the maximum number of agents who could use the system) each day

# **Common Usages**

- Analyze the number of recent calls in the system to determine if current hardware resources meet the required capacity
- Forecast future hardware needs and allocate resources accordingly

# **Customizing the Report**

See Common Parameters.



# Sample Report

Home > Appendix A: Standard Reports > Templates > Category Bubble Chart

# Category Bubble Chart



# Description

The Category Bubble Chart report compares Categories by plotting them on a graph according to the percentage of calls in the horizontal (x-axis) and vertical (y-axis) Categories. Each Bubble Category is represented on the graph by a bubble. The size of each bubble represents the average call duration. The x-axis value indicates the percentage of calls that were in both the Bubble Category and any of the selected x-axis Categories. The y-axis value indicates the percentage of calls that were in both the Bubble Category and any of the selected y-axis Categories.

The X-Axis Only and Y-Axis Only versions present the data as a bar graph indicating percentage of calls per Category, rather than a bubble chart.

# **Common Usages**

- Plot call-reason Categories showing average call duration plus two customer-experience Categories (e.g., Dissatisfaction and Escalation)
- Plot call-reason Categories showing average call duration plus two agent-efficiency Categories (e.g., Transfer Rate and Hold Rate)
- Plot call-reason Categories showing average call duration plus two Categories that represent metadata (e.g., Customer Satisfaction and Issue Resolution)

# **Customizing the Report**

#### **General Settings**

• Version: Available in Full Report (standard size), Mini, Wide, X-Axis Only, and Y-Axis Only versions. For additional information, see <u>Common Parameters</u>.

For all other parameters, see Common Parameters.

#### **Data Set Filters**

See Common Parameters.

#### **Items on Report**

- Bubble Categories: Select the Categories to represent as bubbles in the chart.
- X-Axis Categories: Select one or more Categories to include in the x-axis of the bubble chart.
- Y-Axis Categories: Select one or more Categories to include in the y-axis of the bubble chart.

**Note:** For all of these parameters, only Categories that were not excluded from the data set by means of the **Categories** parameter of the Data Set Filters section are included in the report. Thus, if you selected specific Categories in the Data Set Filters section, only Categories that are selected both there and here will be included in the report.

#### Actions

- Click a bubble in a chart, a bar in a graph, or an item in a table to open a list of calls included in the item.
- In X-Axis Only and Y-Axis Only versions, click at to drill down to a <u>Category Trend</u> report.

### **Sample Reports**



Category 🗘	Total Calls 🗘	Avg. Duration 🗘	(Multiple 😄	Percent 🗘	(Multiple 🖕	Percent 🗘
1 Account Maintenance	7	15:37	3	42.9%	1	14.3%
2 Adjustments	1	02:52	0	0.0%	0	0.0%
3 Balance Inquiry	18	04:21	0	0.0%	1	5.6%
4 Collections	36	09:51	11	30.6%	3	8.3%
5 High Bill Complaint	1	04:29	1	100.0%	0	0.0%
6 New Customer - 2011	547	05:55	121	22.1%	75	13.7%
7 New Service Activation	243	08:15	74	30.5%	25	10.3%
8 Payment Information	14	08:13	3	21.4%	0	0.0%
9 Payments Issue	3	18:01	2	66.7%	1	33.3%
10 Service Transfer	215	08:24	71	33.0%	22	10.2%
Summary*	608	06:06	135	22.2%	85	14.0%
DataSetSummary**	690	05:54	146	21.2%	102	14.8%

\* Summary of calls belonging to one or more of the selected Categories (defined in Items on Report section)

\*\* Summary of all calls that meet the Data Set criteria (defined in Data Set Filters section)

## SpeechMiner® by UTOPY

Category Bubble Chart v4 executed 5/30/2011 12:16:19 AM by libby

Calls have the following constraints:

Language: American English

Account Maintenance, Fees and Service Charges, Adjustments, Balance Inquiry, High Bill Complaint, Payments Issue, Meter Reading and Gas Usage, Collections, Payment Information, New Service Activation, Service Transfer, New Customer - 2011

**Full Report Version** 

Category 🗘	(Multiple Selected) 🗘			Calls 🗘	Total Calls 🗘
Payments Issue		33.3%	$\sim$	1	3
Account Maintenance		14.3%	~	1	7
New Customer - 2011		13.7%	~	75	547
New Service Activation		10.3%	~	25	243
Service Transfer		10.2%	~	22	215
Collections		8.3%	~	3	36
Balance Inquiry		5.6%	$\sim$	1	18
Adjustments		0.0%	~	0	1
High Bill Complaint		0.0%	$\sim$	0	1
Payment Information		0.0%	~	0	14
Summary		14.0%		85	608

X-Axis Only Version

Home > Appendix A: Standard Reports > Templates > Category Distribution

# Category Distribution

Templates Saved Report	ts Edit Report
Calls Filter:	🗴 🕨 🔽 Open in new window   📮 📓 💷 🔎 👔   💿 Template: Category Distribution 🔄 Report Name:
🔽 Calls	Languages: (American English)
Emails	Report Title Description Version
Chats	Category Distribution Full Report
Social	Items on Report
Languages	
From: 04/01/12 12:00 AM	
To: 06/30/12 11:59 PM	
Expand All / Collapse All	
Metadata	
<b>User Actions</b>	
Social Languages 1 Selected Date Range Last Quarter From: 04/01/12 12:00 AM To: 06/30/12 11:59 PM Expend All / Colleges All Expect-Miner Entertaction Properties Motadata	Items on Report     Categories     Distributed By     Display       Any     Percent of Calls     Show All

# Description

The Category Distribution report is a graph or chart that shows the distribution of calls by Category for a specified domain. The distribution can be calculated by percentage of calls or by percentage of resources (total duration of all calls included in the analysis).

# **Common Usages**

- Plot the proportion of calls in specified Categories to analyze business trends and customer issues
- Compare the distribution of multiple Categories—such as call or cancellation reasons, product popularity, or competitor mentions—across your body of calls
- Utilize the comparative data obtained from the report to identify the optimal ways to target customer issues

# **Customizing the Report**

#### **General Settings**

- Version: Available in Full Report (standard size), Mini, Wide, Columns, and Summary versions:
  - Full Report, Mini, Wide: Bar graphs listing the selected Categories and showing their proportion in the data set. For additional information about these versions, see <u>Common Parameters</u>.
  - Columns: A chart that shows the average call duration for each Category. These values are displayed above the total

number of calls in the Category.

• Summary (Pie): A pie chart indicating the proportion of calls or resources in the entire data set that are in or used by the selected Categories. (Whether to base the calculations on the number of calls or on the total resources is selected under Distributed By; see Items on Report below.)

For all other parameters, see Common Parameters.

#### **Data Set Filters**

See Common Parameters.

#### **Items on Report**

• Distributed By: Select whether the distribution should be calculated based on percentage of calls (the total number of calls) or percentage of resources (the total duration of all calls).

For all other parameters, see Common Parameters.

## Actions

- In Full, Mini, Wide, or Columns versions, click a Category or bar to open a list of calls in the Category.
- In the Full version, click **Trend** () to drill down to the distribution of calls for a Category. If the distribution of the items on the report (see Items on Report above) was by percentage of calls, the distribution of calls is by percentage of calls; if it was by percentage of resources, the distribution of calls is by average call duration.

# **Sample Reports**

Category 🗘	Percent of Calls 🗘			Calls 🗘	Avg. Duration 🗘	Tot. Resources 🗘
Service Activation/Transfer		35.2%	~	243	08:15	33:25:59
Standard Service Issues		15.4%	$\sim$	106	08:13	14:30:15
Collections		5.2%	$\sim$	36	09:51	05:54:22
Bill Inquiry		3.2%	$\sim$	22	06:13	02:16:41
Service Deactivation		2.2%	$\sim$	15	06:56	01:44:01
Payment Information		2.0%	$\sim$	14	08:13	01:54:58
Account Maintenance	1	1.0%	$\sim$	7	15:37	01:49:19
Make Payment		0.1%	$\sim$	1	09:02	00:09:02
Summary*		49.1%		339	07:29	42:14:27
Data Set Summary <sup>™</sup>		100.0%		690	05:54	67:55:03
* Summary of calls belonging to one o	r more of the selected Categories (defined in Ite	erns on Report section)				
** Summary of all calls that meet the D	ata Set criteria (defined in Data Set Filters secti	ion)				
					SpeechMir	er® by UTOPY

**Full report** 



**Columns report** 



Summary (Pie) report



Category Distribution per week (drill-down from Full report)

Home > Appendix A: Standard Reports > Templates > Category Trend

# Category Trend

Templates Saved Reports	Edit Report		
Calls Filter:	🕨 🗖 Open in new window 📔 📓 🖼 🔎 🔊	Category Trend	Report Name:
Calls	Languages: (American English)		
Emails	Report Title	Description	Version
Chats	Category Trend		Full Report
	Items on Report		
Languages	Categories	Compare	Period
1 Selected 🗸	Any	Number of Calls	Day
Date Range			
Last Quarter 🗾			
From: 04/01/12 12:00 AM To: 06/30/12 11:59 PM			
Expand All / Collapse All			
SpeechMiner			
Interaction Properties			
Metadata			
<b>User Actions</b>			

# Description

The Category Trend report shows changes in Categories over a period of time. The trend line can represent number of calls, percentage of calls, average call duration, or total resources. There is one line per selected Category.

# **Common Usages**

• Plot the trends in a particular Category or multiple Categories chronologically

- Identify peak periods to make informed scheduling and staffing decisions
- Measure the response to new product releases
- Evaluate the effectiveness of recent business changes and agent training

# **Customizing the Report**

### **General Settings**

• Version: Available in Full Report (standard size), Mini, Wide, and Table Only versions. For additional information, see <u>Common</u> <u>Parameters</u>.

For all other parameters, see <u>Common Parameters</u>.

#### **Data Set Filters**

See Common Parameters.

# **Items on Report**

See Common Parameters.

#### Actions

• Click a point in a graph or an item in a table to open a list of calls included in the item.

# Sample Report



Home > Appendix A: Standard Reports > Templates > Coaching Summary

# Coaching Summary

Templates Saved R	Leports Edit Report						
Open in new window	🚽 🔏 📼 🔎 🝙   🕒 Tem	olate: Coaching Summary 🗾	Report Name:				
Report Title Coaching Summary	Description	Version Full Report (Collapsed)		Date Range All From: 01/01/70 02:00 AM To: 01/01/38 01:59 AM	T	Users Any	Ţ

# Description

The Coaching Summary report summarizes the current status of coaching sessions in a pie chart and table, and lists active coaching sessions by user. Items in the list can be expanded to display details about coaching sessions.

# **Common Usage**

• Monitor personnel training.

# **Customizing the Report**

#### **General Settings**

• Version: Available in Full Report (Expanded) and Full Report (Collapsed) versions. For additional information, see <u>Common</u> <u>Parameters</u>.

For all other settings, see Common Parameters.

# Actions

- Click beside a user/trainee to expand it and view a list of coaching sessions assigned to the user/trainee, or to collapse an expanded user/trainee.
- Click 🗄 beside a coaching session to expand it and view details about the session, or 🖃 to collapse an expanded session.
- Click 
   or 
   at the top of the table to expand or collapse all of the items in the table.

# Sample Report

Coaching Session Status						
	-	Sessions	Pct. of Sessions	Duration	Av	g. Duration
	Completed	1	10%	18 m		18 n
	In Progress*	1	10%	154646 m		154646 n
	Not Started	8	80%	0 m		0 n
	Total	10	100%			
	* In Progess includes s	sessions that are On H	lold.			
⊞ ⊟ User / Trainee	Session Details	5			Calls	Duratio
User / Trainee	Session Details	i			Calls	Duratio
User / Trainee	Session Details Coach: admir		/23/2010 <b>Comple</b>	ted: 9/12/2010	Calls	Duratio 18.9 r
<b>User / Trainee</b> 3 libby		istrator <b>Due:</b> 8		ted: 9/12/2010 ted: №		
Jser / Trainee ∃libby ഈ ■ Dan Session	Coach: admin	istrator <b>Due:</b> 8 De <b>Due:</b> 9	/14/2010 Star		0	18.9 r 0 r
User / Trainee ibby ■ Dan Session Cold Sales Calls ■ Handling Complaints	Coach: admin Coach: johnd Coach: johnd	istrator <b>Due:</b> 8 De <b>Due:</b> 9 De <b>Due:</b> 9	/14/2010 Star	ted: No ted: No	0 0	18.9 r
User / Trainee ∃ libby	Coach: admin Coach: johnd Coach: johnd Coach: johnd O% 4 Sessions Sch	istrator Due: 8 De Due: 9 De Due: 9 De Due: 9	/14/2010 Star /13/2010 Star	<b>ted:</b> No <b>ted:</b> No t Started	0 0 0	18.9 r 0 r 0 r

Home > Appendix A: Standard Reports > Templates > First Topic Distribution

# First Topic Distribution

Templates Saved Reports	Edit Report
Calls Filter:	🕨 🔽 Open in new window   📙 🔏 🖃 🔎 🝙   💿 Template: First Topic Distribution 📃 Report Name:
✓ Calis     Emeils     Chats     Texts     Social     Languages     1 Selected     J     Date Range     Last Quarter     From: 04/01/12 12:00 AM     To: 06/30/12 11:59 PM	Copen in new window     Generation     Copen in new window     Generation     Copen in new window     Copen in new window
Expand All / Collapse All B SpeechMiner E Interaction Properties Metadata User Actions	

# Description

The First Topic Distribution report is a bar graph that shows the first Topics that were detected in each of the selected calls. The Topics are ranked by the Data Type chosen (Number of Calls, Percentage of Calls, or Average Call Duration).

# **Common Usages**

- Classify and quantify calls according to the first-occurring topic that was recognized in the calls.
- Compare the first topic distribution to assess why customers call.

• Utilize the comparative data obtained from the report to identify optimal ways to target customer issues.

### **Customizing the Report**

#### **General Settings**

See Common Parameters.

# **Data Set Filters**

See Common Parameters.

#### **Items on Report**

• **Topics:** Select the Topics you want to include in the report. Note that the Topics selected here must be within the range selected in the Data Set Filters or they will not appear in the report.

For all other parameters, see Common Parameters.

#### Actions

• Click a bar in the graph to open a list of calls included in the item.

# Sample Report

Total Calls: 562			
Topic ‡	Number of Calls 🗘		
Customer Identification		123	
Service Activation or Transfer		114	
Last 4 digits of SS		113	
Emergency		33	
Website		28	
Existing Customer		27	
Make Payment		26	
Status Update		21	
Deposit		15	
Balance Inquiry	1	5	

Home > Appendix A: Standard Reports > Templates > Metadata Frequency

# Metadata Frequency

Templates Saved Reports	s Edit Report				
Calls Filter:	Open in new window	H H 🗆 🗸 🗃   🕒	Template: Metadata Frequency	Report Name:	
Calls Emails Chats	Languages: (American English) Report Title Metadata Frequency	Description	Version Full Report		
Texts Social Languages I Selected	Items on Report Metadata Field Name department	Pattern to Include	Values to Exclude	Minimum Call Count	Categories Any J
Date Range 05/01/12 - 05/25/12 From: 05/01/12 12:00 AM To: 05/25/12 12:59 AM					
Expand All / Collapse All  SpeechMiner  Interaction Properties					
Metadata     User Actions					

# Description

The Metadata Frequency report is a histogram that shows, for a selected metadata field, how many calls in the data set had each of the values of the field. The report has two levels. The top level is a summary that shows how many calls they belonged to each value and the percentage of all the calls in the data set that had the values. For example, if the metadata field "department" is selected, the report shows how many departments (values) were represented in the data set, and divides the departments into groups based on how many calls they had. The lower level gives details for one of the groups in the top level, listing the values that had at least the number of calls represented by the group, and indicating how many calls they had. The Wide version of the report also shows the most common Category of those calls.

In the sample reports below, the top-level report contains a bar graph that indicates there were three departments ("3" at the top of the first bar) for which there were three calls (3x at the bottom of the bar), one department for which there were four calls, and one department for which there were five calls. Above this, the report shows that 14.8% of the calls in the entire data set were in the first group, 21.3% of the calls were in either the first or second group, and 29.5% of the calls were in the first, second, or third group. The Mini version of the report does not include the percentage data. The lower-level report was opened by drilling down on the first bar of the graph in the top-level report. It shows the breakdown of calls for all the values.

# **Common Usages**

- Classify and quantify calls according to a metadata field.
- Utilize the comparative data obtained from the report to identify issues that may require attention.

# **Customizing the Report**

#### **General Settings**

• Version: Available in Full Report (standard size), Mini, and Wide versions. For additional information, see <u>Common</u> <u>Parameters</u>.

For all other parameters, see Common Parameters.

#### **Data Set Filters**

#### See Common Parameters.

#### **Items on Report**

- Metadata Field name: Select the metadata field for which you want to run the report. Note that the field selected here must be within the range selected in the Data Set Filters or no data will appear in the report.
- Pattern to Include: Enter a series of one or more characters that must be found in the field value in order for it to be included in the report (optional; leave the field blank to include all patterns).
- Values to Exclude: Enter one or more field values to exclude from the report. Separate multiple values with commas; do not leave a space after the comma (optional; leave the field blank to include all values).
- Minimum Call Count: The minimum number of calls that must be found for a value in order for the value to be included in the report

For all other parameters, see Common Parameters.

# Actions

- In the top level:
  - Click a bar in the graph to drill down to the lower level
- In the lower-level:
  - Click a bar in the graph to search for calls that have the field value represented by the bar.
  - Click 💷 to drill down to a <u>Category Distribution</u> report.

# Sample Reports



Top level

department 🗘	Number of Calls 🗘		Top Category 🗘
sales		5	0-0
technical support		4	0.0
customer service		3	0.0
human resources		3	0.0
marketing		3	0.0

Lower level

Home > Appendix A: Standard Reports > Templates > MINI\_System Load

# MINI\_System Load

Templates Saved Re	eports Edit Report		
Open in new window	🚽 📝 📼 🔎 🝙   😋 Template: 📶 S	System Load 📃 Report Name	81
Dates 05/01/12 - 05/31/12  From: 05/01/12 12:00 AM To: 05/31/12 12:59 AM	-	ờranularity DAY ⊻	Report Title System Load

# Description

The MINI\_System Load report is a line graph that shows the amount of audio hours processed per day or hour. On the line graph, two lines are displayed, one for processed calls and one for loaded calls.

Note: A larger version of this template, System Load, is also available. The smaller version is intended for use in the Views page.

#### **Common Usage**

• Monitor the processing load of the system.

# **Customizing the Report**

- Dates: The same as Date Range in Data Set Filters (See Common Parameters)
- Granularity: Choose either HOUR or DAY for the scale on the horizontal axis. Make sure your selection is reasonable for the dates you selected.
- Report Title: See Common Parameters.

# Sample Report



Home > Appendix A: Standard Reports > Templates > Monitor System

# Monitor System

Templates Saved Reports Edit Report		
🕨 🗖 Open in new window 📋 🔒 🎉 🖃 🔎 🝙 📋 😋 Template: Monitor System	Report Name:	
Dates All T From: 01/01/70 02:00 AM To: 01/01/38 01:59 AM	Show errors Show warnings	Show information

# Description

The Monitor System report provides an overview of the SpeechMiner system status. The report consists of three components:
- 1. The first chart displays the system load over the specified period. It indicates how many audio hours were loaded and processed on each day in the period.
- 2. The second chart displays how many hours of audio were processed at a each given speed in real-time performance.
- 3. The third chart lists errors and warnings from all machines. It shows the time each error was recorded and the type of error, and provides additional information about the error.

### **Common Usage**

• View and analyze several aspects of system data at once in order to make informed system-administration and resourceallocation decisions.

# **Customizing the Report**

- Dates: Select the time period to include in the report
- Show errors: Check this option to include error messages in the list of messages in the third chart.
- Show warnings: Check this option to include warning messages in the list of messages in the third chart.
- Show information: Check this option to include information messages in the list of messages in the third chart.

### Actions

- Click Mark as Read to mark all displayed messages as read.
- Click Hide read to hide all messages that were already read (available when read messages are displayed).
- Click Show read to display all hidden messages (available when read messages are hidden).

# Sample Report



Home > Appendix A: Standard Reports > Templates > Performance Profile

# Performance Profile

Templates Saved Reports	Edit Report
Calls Filter:	🕨 🗖 Open in new window   🛃 🖉 💷 🔊   😋 Template: Performance Profile 💽 Report Name:
Calis Chats Chats Chats Chats Social Languages 1 Selected Cate Range Last Quarter From: 04/01/212:00 AM To: 06/30/1211:59 PM Expend All / Collepse All SpeechMiner Cinteraction Properties Comments Comm	Languages: (American English) Report Title Description Version Performance Profile Tams on Report Teams / Agents (Profiles) Any Agent  Profile Type Compare Categories Threshold (% Difference) Any  Compare Categories Threshold (% Difference) Any  Compare Categories Threshold (% Difference) Compare Categories Threshold (% Difference) Compare Categories

### Description

The Performance Profile report is a bar graph and table that compares Workgroup or Agent performance in a specified Category or group of Categories to the benchmark (the Workgroup's or Agent's average). You can choose to analyze performance based on the number of calls, the percentage of calls, average call duration, or total resources. The table includes data about the number of calls, the difference from the benchmark, and the percentage above or below the benchmark.

### **Common Usages**

- Visualize and compare agent performance for training and feedback.
- Utilize the data obtained from the report to increase the efficiency of team and operations management.
- Assess the efficacy of training programs by plotting performance before and after the program's implementation.

### **Customizing the Report**

#### **General Settings**

• Version: Available in Full Report (Expanded), Full Report (Collapsed), Mini, and Wide versions. For additional information, see <u>Common Parameters</u>.

For all other parameters, see Common Parameters.

#### **Data Set Filters**

See Common Parameters.

#### **Items on Report**

- **Profile:** Select the Agents or Workgroups you would like to compare to the average (the benchmark) for specific Categories. Your selection must match the Benchmark Type, but it does not have to match the Workgroup or Agent parameters in the Data Set Filters.
- Benchmark Type: Select the type of benchmark to use: Agent or Team (Workgroup). The selection here must correspond with those in the Data Set Filters. If you selected Workgroups in the Data Set Filters (rather than individual Agents in the expanded Workgroups), you must select Team for the Benchmark Type in order to return results. The Benchmark Type must also match the Profile selected; if Agent is selected as the benchmark type, Agents must also be selected in the Profile parameter.
- Compare: See Common Parameters.
- Categories: See Common Parameters.
- **Threshold:** Specify the minimum percent deviation from the benchmark required for an item to be included in the report. For example, "40" means only values that are greater or less than the benchmark by at least 40% are included in the report.

# Actions

- Click 
   beside an agent or team to expand it and view a list of Categories.
- Click 🗆 to collapse an expanded item.
- When an item is expanded, click **Trend** (IM) to drill down to a <u>Category Trend</u> report.

# Sample Report

# **Performance Profile**

Team / Agent	Number of Calls			Benchmark	Difference	% Difference
🗆 agent b						9
Unable to Help		3	~	3.6	-0.6	-16.7%
🗆 agent e						
Unable to Help	and the second sec	4	~	3.6	0.4	11.1%
⊞ agent g	Highest= Unable to Help ( 6 )			3.6	2.4	66.7%
⊞ agent h	Highest= Unable to Help ( 5 )			3.6	1.4	38.9%

Home > Appendix A: Standard Reports > Templates > Predictive Elements

# Predictive Elements

Calls Filter:	🕨 🗖 Open in new window 📔 🚽 🎢 📼 🔎 🖹	Template: Predictive Elements	Report Name:
Calls Chats Chats Social Languages 1 Selected Date Range	Languages: (American English) Report Tale Predictive Elements Iams on Report Categories Any J	Description Target Any	Version Full Report
Last Quarter From: 04/01/12/12:00 AM To: 06/30/12 11:59 PM Expand All / Collepse All EspectMiner Interaction Properties Metadata User Actions			

# Description

The Predictive Elements report is composed of two bar graphs that show the relationship between selected Categories and Target **Categories. The first graph has nested pairs**—the first bar of the pair is the number of calls that fall into the selected Categories, while the second bar of the pair is the number of calls that fall into both the selected Categories and the Target Categories (Success Factor). The second graph shows the ratio of the two bars in each pair. By examining the ratios, you can see how each Category affects the Target and make changes based on those findings.

# **Common Usages**

- Plot the relationship between one or more Categories and the Target Categories to better understand cause-effect trends in customer behavior
- Determine which factors increase the likelihood of reaching the desired Target (for example, which of the several potential Scripts more reliably leads to a closed sale)
- Determine which business practices and agent behaviors contribute to an undesired outcome (such as cancellation)
- Utilize the data obtained from the report to optimize agent training
- Analyze the report data to make informed decisions about business practices

# **Customizing the Report**

### **General Settings**

• Version: Available in Full Report (standard size), Mini, Wide, and Columns versions. The Columns version presents the data in graphs alone, without printing the values in table format. For additional information, see <u>Common Parameters</u>.

For all other parameters, see Common Parameters.

#### **Data Set Filters**

See Common Parameters.

#### **Items on Report**

- Categories: See <u>Common Parameters</u>.
- Target: Select Categories that you would like to include in the Target. Categories selected must match or be contained within the Categories previously selected in the Data Set Filters.

### Actions

• Click an item to open a list of calls in the specified Category (or the specified Category and Target Categories).

# **Sample Reports**

		Proble	matic Cal	lls per Ca	ategory		
Category Calls			Continuous Sileno Help, For Manag Si				
	Category Name	¢	Total Calls 💲	Target ⊛ Calls	Perc	ent of Call	\$
Make Payment			1	0		0.0%	
Bill Inquiry			22	1		4.5%	
Payment <sup>1</sup>			14	2		14.3%	
System Issue			5	3		60.0%	
Website	-		63	13		20.6%	
Collections 🗧			36	15		41.7%	
Service 🛁	-		243	79		32.5%	
New	-		547	119		21.8%	

**Full version** 





Home > Appendix A: Standard Reports > Templates > Program Distribution

# Program Distribution

Templates Saved Report:	s Edit Report
Calls Filter:	🕨 🗖 Open in new window   🛃 🔏 🖂 🔎   😋 Template: Program Distribution 📃 Report Name:
🔽 Calls	Languages: (American English)
Emails	Report Title Description Version
Chats	Program Distribution Full Report
Texts	
C Social	
Languages	
1 Selected 🗸	
Date Range	
Last Quarter 🗾	
From: 04/01/12 12:00 AM	
To: 06/30/12 11:59 PM	
Expand All / Collapse All	
SpeechMiner	
Interaction Properties	
🗄 Metadata	
User Actions	

# Description

The Program Distribution report graphs the call volume for each Program.

# **Common Usage**

• Visualize and monitor comparative call-volume data by Program.

# **Customizing the Report**

### **General Settings**

See Common Parameters.

### **Data Set Filters**

### See Common Parameters.

### Actions

• Click an item to open a list of calls included in the item.

### Sample Report

Program Name 🗘	Percent of Calls 🗘		Calls 🗘 🖌	Avg. Duration 🗘	Tot. Resources 🗘
Seniors ADSL Campaign		50.0%	30	09:31	04:45:30
Winter 2011 Sales Campaign		33.3%	20	12:19	04:06:33
Summer Sales Campaign		16.7%	10	04:47	00:47:49
Data Set Summary*			60	08:52	09:38:52

Home > Appendix A: Standard Reports > Templates > QM Agent Summary

# **QM Agent Summary**

Templates Saved Reports	s Edit Report
Calls Filter:	🕨 🗖 Open in new window   🚽 🖉 🖃 🔎 🍙   💿 Template: 🛛 🕅 Agent Summary 📃 Report Name:
	Languages: (American English) Report Title Description QM Agent Summary
Social Languages 1 Selected	Items on Report Form Service Request - Agen -
Last Quarter         Image           From: 04/01/12 12:00 AM         To: 06/30/12 11:59 PM	
Expand All / Collapse All SpeechMiner Interaction Properties	

# Description

The QM Agent Summary report summarizes the responses on forms that were filled out by quality monitoring staff after they reviewed calls.

# **Common Usage**

• Visualize and monitor comparative call-quality data by agent, for an entire form and for question groups within the form.

### **Customizing the Report**

### **General Settings**

• Form: The name of the form

For all other settings, see Common Parameters.

### **Data Set Filters**

#### See Common Parameters.

### Actions

• In the table, under **Actions**, click **Trend** to view a graph summarizing the scores returned by the agent in the past (normally, over the past three months, but this value may vary from one organization to another).

# Sample Report



Home > Appendix A: Standard Reports > Templates > System Load

# System Load

🕨 🗖 Open in new window   🔒 🔏 📼 🔎 🔊	Template: System Load Report Name:	
Dates All From: 01.01/70 02:00 AM To: 01.01/38 01:59 AM	Granularity HOUR	Report Title System Load

# Description

The System Load report includes a line graph and a grid displaying the amount of audio hours processed per day or hour. On the line graph, two lines are displayed, one for processed calls and one for loaded calls. The grid below the graph shows each point (either a date or time) that appears in the line graph, with its corresponding loaded and processed hours.

Note: A smaller version of this template, MINI\_System Load, is also available. It is intended for use in the Views page.

### **Common Usage**

• Monitor the processing load of the system.

# **Customizing the Report**

- Dates: The same as Date Range in Data Set Filters (See Common Parameters)
- Granularity: Choose either HOUR or DAY for the scale on the horizontal axis. Make sure your selection is reasonable for the dates you selected.
- Report Title: See Common Parameters.

# Sample Report



Home > Appendix A: Standard Reports > Templates > Team Comparison

# Team Comparison

Templates Saved Reports	Edit Report			
Calls Filter:	Copen in new window	🚽 📝 🖃 🔎 🝙   😋 Template: 🕇	earn Comparison 💽 Report Name: 🛛	
	Languages: (American English)			
☐ Emails ☐ Chats	Report Title Team Comparison	Description	Version Full Report	
Texts	Items on Report	I		
Languages	Teams J	Compare Number of Calls	Categories	Display Show All
1 Selected J Date Range		,		
Last Quarter				
To: 06/30/12 11:59 PM				
Expand All / Collapse All  SpeechMiner				
Interaction Properties				
Metadata     User Actions				

# Description

The Team Comparison report is a bar graph that compares performance between teams and against the average value of all teams represented.

# **Common Usages**

- Analyze the report data to optimize team and operations management
- Provide clear visual reports for training assessment and feedback

# **Customizing the Report**

### **General Settings**

• Version: Available in Full Report (standard size), Mini, and Wide versions. For additional information, see <u>Common</u> <u>Parameters</u>.

For all other parameters, see Common Parameters.

### **Data Set Filters**

### See Common Parameters.

### **Items on Report**

- Teams: Select specific Workgroups to be analyzed and displayed on your report. The default value ("Any") includes all Workgroups. You must also make the appropriate selections on the Workgroup or Agent, Language, and Program filters in the Data Set Filters. If, in the Data Set Filters, individual Agents were selected instead of Workgroups, you must select the Team that contains those Agents, or no results will be returned.
- Compare: See Common Parameters.
- Categories: See Common Parameters.

### Actions

• Click a bar in the graph to open a list of calls included in the item.



# Sample Report

Home > Appendix A: Standard Reports > Templates > Top and Bottom Performers

# Top and Bottom Performers

Templates Saved Report:	s Edit Report			
Calls Filter:	Dipen in new window	🚽 📝 📼 🔎 👔 🕴 😋 Template: 🔤 and	Bottom Performers 🔽 Report Name:	
Calls Filter: Calls Emails Chats Crats Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code Code	Copen in new window Languages: (American English) Report Title Top and Bottom Performers Jrems on Report Top Agents (Required) Any	Cescription     Description     Description     Description     Any     J	I Bottom Performers Report Name:	Categories Any
<b>⊞ User Actions</b>				

### Description

The Top and Bottom Performers report is a bar graph that indicates values for three groups (top performers, bottom performers, and average performers) across multiple Categories. This enables you to identify what top performers do differently from the rest and thereby spread the knowledge of best practices. This report is only useful if you know ahead of time who your top, bottom, and average Agents or teams are. It is purely a graphical representation of comparison, and will NOT tell you who the top and bottom Agents are, but rather how they compare in specific areas of performance.

### **Common Usages**

- Compare the behavior of top and bottom performers to identify best practices.
- Utilize the data obtained from the report to optimize agent training and improve business processes.

### **Customizing the Report**

#### **General Settings**

• Version: Available in Full Report (standard size), Mini, and Wide versions. For additional information, see <u>Common</u> <u>Parameters</u>.

For all other parameters, see Common Parameters.

#### **Data Set Filters**

See Common Parameters.

#### **Items on Report**

- **Top Agents:** Specify the top Agents (based on prior assessment) to be displayed for each Category. The percentage of calls handled by the selected top Agents will be displayed for each Category. Selections here must be within those made in the Workgroup and Agent filters in the Data Set Filters.
- Bottom Agents: Specify the bottom Agents (based on prior assessment) to be displayed for each Category. The percentage of calls handled by the selected bottom Agents will be displayed for each Category. Selections here must be within those made in the Workgroup and Agent filters in the Data Set Filters.
- Average: Specify the average-performing Agents (based on prior assessment) to be displayed for each Category. The percentage of calls handled by the selected average-performing Agents will be displayed for each Category. Selections here must be within those made in the Workgroup and Agent filters in the Data Set Filters.
- Categories: See Common Parameters.

### Actions

• Click a bar or a value to open a list of calls included in the item.

# Sample Report

Top (627 Calls)		Bottom (631 Calls)	Ave	age (690 Calls) 📒	
Category Name 💠	Percent of Calls		Top ‡	Bottom 🗘	Average 🗧
Bill Inquiry	1		3.0%	3.0%	3.2%
Collections	-		4.9%	5.6%	5.2%
Payment Information			2.2%	2.1%	2.0%
Service Activation/Transfer	-		34.9%	35.3%	35.2%
System Issue			0.8%	0.8%	0.79
Website	-		9.6%	9.0%	9.19
New Customer - 2011			79.3%	79.7%	79.3%
			Spe	echMiner®	by UTOP'
			Top and Bottom Performers v4		
Calls have the following constraints: From 8/1/2010 12:00 AM To 10/31/2010 11:59 PM Language: American English Bill Inquiry,Collections,Payment Information,Service Ac	tivation/Transfer,System Issue,V	/ebsite,New Customer - 2011			
average includes one of these workgroups or agents top performers include : workgroup 1	: workgroup 9				
bottom performers include : workgroup 4					

Home > Appendix A: Standard Reports > Templates > Topic Analysis - Audits

# Topic Analysis - Audits

Templates Saved Report:	s Edit Report
Calls Filter:	🕨 🗖 Open in new window   🔒 🔏 🖃 💫 🍙   🕤 Template: Topic Analysis - Audits 🔽 Report Name:
Calls	Languages: (American English)
Emails	Report Title Description
Chats	Topic Analysis - Audits
	Rems on Report
Languages	Topics Confidence Thresholds
1 Selected	Any J. 1,40,50,65,72,85
Date Range	
Last Quarter 🗾	
From: 04/01/12 12:00 AM To: 06/30/12 11:59 PM	
Expand All / Collapse All	
Expand Air Collapse Air	
Interaction Properties	
🗄 Metadata	
User Actions	

# Description

The Topic Analysis - Audits report is a table that shows the precision with which each Topic was identified by SpeechMiner. Precision values are given for one or more confidence levels, as specified in the report parameters, and are determined by the TP/FP/SFP (True Positive/False Positive/Sense False Positive) selections made by the call auditor (see <u>Using an Event Grid</u>).

Each line in the table contains auditing and precision information for one Topic, including the level of strictness required for recognizing the Topic (as defined in the Topic definition in SMART), how many times the Topic was found in the calls that were included in the report, how many calls it was found in, and how many of the events found were audited. In addition, the precision is graded for each threshold included in the report. The grades are calculated by dividing the number of TP events by the sum of the TP and FP events. The grades are presented as follows:

Grade	Value of TP/(TP+FP)
-------	---------------------

А	<b>A</b> >= 0.8
В	0.8 > <b>B</b> >= 0.7
С	0.7 > <b>C</b> >= 0.6
D	0.6 > <b>D</b> >= 0.5
F	<b>F</b> < 0.5

This report is instrumental to implementers, as it allows them to fine-tune the system to the correct accuracy level. After learning about Topic-identification performance, the implementer can adjust confidence levels as necessary.

### **Common Usage**

• Monitor the quality of the different Topics in the system based on audit information.

### **Customizing the Report**

### **General Settings**

See Common Parameters.

### **Items on Report**

- **Topics:** Choose the Topics whose audits you want to examine.
- Confidence Thresholds: Type in the confidence levels for which you wish to see precision values. Separate multiple values with commas.

**Note:** Confidence levels are assigned by the system to each term it identifies. They indicate how closely the term defined in the Topic matches the term that was discovered in the audio segment. "Precision" in the report means the percentage of TPs for all the audits in the Topic whose confidence levels were equal to or above the given Thresholds. This means that each of the Thresholds includes all of the audits in the Threshold levels above it. Thus, in the example below, the 40-Threshold column includes all audits with precision values of 40 or higher, the 50-Threshold column includes all audits with confidence levels of 50 or higher, and so on.

# Actions

- Click a Topic to drill down to the audit information for each of the terms in the Topic (shown in the Sample Reports section below).
- Click the 🔳 to drill down to an item's details (shown in the last two samples in the Sample Reports section below). The details show information about the precision as a function of confidence level and as a function of elapsed time in calls.
- In the list of terms for a Topic, click the name of a term in order to open a call-search window and find calls in which the term is found.

# Sample Reports

Topic 🗘	Percent of	C-II- *	Calls 🗘	Strictness ‡	Events 🗘	0	1	40	50	65	70	
Topic + Customer Identification (9 Terms)	Percent of	81.8%	Calls + 305	Strictness +	Events + 364	Audits ÷	B	40 A	A	A	12 A	-
Service Activation or Transfer (51 Terms)		34.6%	129	Wery-Low (1)	204	44 55	B	A	A	A	A	,
Last 4 digits of SS (5 Terms)		34.6%	129	Wery-Low (1)	204	55 45	A	A	A	Δ	A	
Last 4 digits of 33 (5 remis) Make Payment (14 Terms)		27.3%	123	Very-Low (1)	127	45 27	C	B	B	A	~	
Deposit (17 Terms)	_	27.3%	83	Very-Low (1)	122	27	D	D	D	A	A	
Payment Arrangements (10 Terms)		8.0%	30	M Very-Low (1)	69	- 15	C	C	C	C	~	-
Balance Inquiry (16 Terms)		5.9%	22	Med-High (72)	25	1	A	A	A	A	A	
	8.0									A	-	'
Payment Locations (6 Terms) Payment Issue (4 Terms)		3.5% 0.8%	13	Med-High (72)	13	5	D	D	D	D	U	1
Restore Service (2 Terms)		0.0%			4	0						
High Bill Complaint (1 Term)		0.3%	3	Low (40)	1	0						
		0.3%		,	•	0						
Payment Address (1 Term) Summary		U.3%	1 373	🔟 High (85)	1	195	B	в	в			_
						TP FP SFP	131 44 20	87 26 12	80 22 11	59 18 7	49 17 7	
						PREC	75	77	78	77	74	
Data Set Summary			373		1408	195						
* Summary of calls containing the selected Topic (defi												
						Speech	Aine	er®	by	U	го	P
					Topic Analysis -	Audits executed	4/7/2	D11 4	:35:0	12 AN	1 by I	Lib
Calls have the following constraints:												

Topic Analysis - Audits report

Payment Issues												
Term ‡	Percent of	Calls ‡	Calls 🗘	Strictness ‡	Events 🗘	Audits ‡	1	40	50	65	72	85
name on the check		4.5%	31	🔝 Very-Low (1)	34	0	_				_	
to do a one time payment		2.9%	20	🔟 Very-Low (1)	23	13	в	в	в	в	С	C
do you authorize almat energy to take a one	_	2.2%	15	🔝 Very-Low (1)	15	0						
is it a visa or a master card	_	2.0%	14	🔝 Very-Low (1)	14	14	С	в	в	D	D	
name of the bank		2.0%	14	🔟 Very-Low (1)	16	0						
is this a checking account		1.9%	13	🔟 Very-Low (1)	14	0						
and the expiration date	_	1.4%	10	🔟 Very-Low (1)	10	0						
expiration please	-	1.0%	7	🔟 Very-Low (1)	7	0						
i'll take your routing number first	-	0.6%	4	🔟 Very-Low (1)	4	0						
would you like to pay by check	-	0.6%	4	🔟 Very-Low (1)	4	0						
and how much are you paying		0.4%	3	🔟 Very-Low (1)	3	0						
and what is that bank account number		0.4%	3	🔟 Very-Low (1)	3	0						
how would you like to make that payment	1	0.3%	2	🔟 Very-Low (1)	2	0						
the zip code where you receive your card		0.1%	1	🔟 Very-Low (1)	1	0						
Summary		14.8%	102		150	27	С	в	в	C	С	C
						TP	17	14	13	7	6	2
						FP	8	5	4	4	4	1
						SFP	2	1	1	1	1	1
						PREC	68	74	77	64	60	67
Data Set Summary			690		1829	233						
Data Set Summary * Summary of calls containing the selected Topic (define	d in Items on Repo	ort section)	690		1829	233						
** Summary of all calls that meet the Data Set criteria (de	fined in Data Set I	Filters section)										
						Speech	/line	r®	by	U	го	Pγ
					Topic Apalysis .	Audits execute						

Terms in a selected Topic



**Topic Details** 



**Term Details** 

Home > Appendix A: Standard Reports > Templates > Topic Analysis - Trends

# Topic Analysis - Trends

Templates Saved Reports	s Edit Report		
Calls Filter:	🕨 🗖 Open in new window 📔 🚂 😭 💌 🔊	🕤 Template: Topic Analysis - Trends 💽	Report Name:
Calls	Languages: (American English)		
Emails	Report Title	Description	
🗖 Chats	Topic Analysis - Trends		
Texts			
🗖 Social	Items on Report		
Languages		Minimum Number of Calls	Compare
1 Selected 🗸	Any	0	Number of Calls
Date Range			
Last Quarter 💌			
From: 04/01/12 12:00 AM			
To: 06/30/12 11:59 PM			
Expand All / Collapse All			
SpeechMiner			
Interaction Properties			
🕀 Metadata			
<b>⊞User Actions</b>			

### Description

The Topic Analysis - Trends report is a table that compares how often particular Topics were found in the selected time period with how often they were found in the preceding time period. Each line in the table contains information for one Topic, including the percent change between the current period and the preceding period, and the number and percent of calls in each period in which the Topic was found.

The baseline time period for the report is selected in the Data Set parameters (see <u>Common Parameters</u>). The preceding time period is automatically set by the system based on the baseline. For example, if the baseline is a two-month period, the preceding time period used is the two months preceding that baseline period.

### **Common Usage**

Monitor Topic trends in calls handles by the system

# **Customizing the Report**

### **General Settings**

See Common Parameters.

### **Items on Report**

- Topics: Choose the Topics whose audits you want to examine.
- Minimum Number of Calls: Type in the minimum number of calls in which a Topic must be found in order for it to be included in the results.

### Actions

- Click a Topic to drill down to the trend information for each of the terms in the Topic (shown in the Sample Reports section below).
- In the list of terms for a Topic, click the name of a term in order to open a call-search window and find calls in which the term is found.

# Sample Reports

				Selected (10	)/8/10 - 10/11	/10)	Previous (*	10/6/10 - 10/8/1	0)
Topic ‡	Percent Cha	nge ‡	Calls 🗘	Percent of	Calls ‡	Calls ‡	Percent o	f Calls 🗘	Calls 🗘
Restore Service (2 Terms)		253.6%	2		1.1%	3		0.3%	1
Collections (4 Terms)		194.6%	3		1.8%	5		0.6%	2
Service Deactivation (8 Terms)		165.2%	5	1	3.2%	9		1.2%	4
Balance Inquiry (13 Terms)		155.4%	7		4.6%	13		1.8%	E
Existing Customer (4 Terms)		106.2%	9	-	7.5%	21		3.6%	12
Emergency (15 Terms)		27.3%	2	-	9.6%	27	100	7.6%	25
Deposit (12 Terms)		26.5%	3	_	15.7%	44	1000	12.4%	41
Payment Locations (5 Terms)		17.9%	0		2.1%	6		1.8%	E
Fees and Services Charges (4 Terms)	_	17.9%	0		1.1%	3		0.9%	з
Last 4 digits of SS (5 Terms)		8.0%	-7		27.5%	77		25.5%	84
Customer Identification (8 Terms)	_	5.5%	-15		45.7%	128		43.3%	143
Explosion (3 Terms)		-5.7%	-1		1.4%	4		1.5%	6
Payment Arrangements (7 Terms)	_	-9.9%	-4		4.6%	13	10	5.2%	17
Service Activation or Transfer (36 Terms)		-20.6%	-32	_	23.6%	66		29.7%	98
Make Payment (13 Terms)		-28.1%	-23		12.9%	36		17.9%	59
Service and Maintenance (6 Terms)		Und.	5		1.8%	5		0.0%	C
Adjustments (1 Term)		Und.	1		0.4%	1		0.0%	C
Payment Issue (3 Terms)		Und.	2		0.7%	2		0.0%	C
Summary*		-1.8%	-43	().	76.8%	215		78.2%	258
Data Set Summary**			-50			280			330

\*\* Summary of all calls that meet the Data Set criteria (defined in Data Set Filters section)

# SpeechMiner® by UTOPY

Topic Analysis - Trends executed 4/27/2011 8:55:55 PM by libby

Selected: Calls have the following constraints: From 10/9/2010 12:00 AM To 10/11/2010 11:59 PM Language: American English Previous: Calls have the following constraints: From 10/6/2010 12:00 AM To 10/8/2010 11:59 PM Language: American English

**Topic Analysis - Trends report** 

				Selected (10	)/8/10 - 10/11	/10)	Previous (	10/6/10 - 10/8/1	.0)
Term 🗘	Percent Cha	inge ¢	Calls	Percent of	Calls ‡	Calls ‡	Percent o	of Calls ‡	Calls ‡
we will need a deposit		371.4%	3	100	1.4%	4	ат.	0.3%	1
a deposit for the new address	_	932.1%	8		3.9%	11	-	0.9%	3
there will be a deposit required of		135.7%	1		0.7%	2	ат.:	0.3%	1
there will be no deposit required		135.7%	1		0.7%	2		0.3%	1
the new deposit for this address	_	106.3%	3	_	2.5%	7		1.2%	4
if a deposit is needed		81.3%	7		7.1%	20	1	3.9%	13
deposit required or not		44.0%	2	_	3.9%	11		2.7%	Ş
we could waive the deposit		-76.4%	-4	1	0.4%	1		1.5%	5
we do have to collect a deposit		Und.	1	1	0.4%	1		0.0%	C
the deposit at the new location		Und.	4	-	1.4%	4		0.0%	C
transfer that deposit over to the new address		Und.	1	1	0.4%	1		0.0%	C
a deposit that you need to pay before end	_	Und.	1	1	0.4%	1		0.0%	C
Summary*		26.5%	3		15.7%	44		12.4%	41
Data Set Summary**			-50			280			330
* Summary of calls containing the selected Topic (define		0000000000							
** Summary of all calls that meet the Data Set criteria (de	fined in Data Set Filt	ters section)					Speech	Miner® by	
							opeeen	winter or by	01011

Selected: Causis nave the following constraints: From 103/2010 12:00 AM for 10.011/2010 11:59 PM Language: American English Previous: Calls have the following constraints: From 10.8/2010 12:00 AM for 10.08/2010 11:59 PM Language: American English

Terms in a selected Topic

Home > Appendix A: Standard Reports > Templates > Topic Call List

# Topic Call List

Templates Saved Reports	Edit Report		
Calls Filter:	Dispen in new window	🛃 🔏 📼 🔎 🛐 🕴 😋 Template: 🔽 Topic Call L	ist Report Name:
🔽 Calls	Languages: (American English)		
Emails	Report Title		Topics
Chats	Call List		Any
Texts	1		
Languages			
1 Selected 🗸			
Date Range			
Last Quarter 💌			
From: 04/01/12 12:00 AM			
To: 06/30/12 11:59 PM			
Expand All / Collapse All  SpeechMiner			
Interaction Properties			
<b>⊞ User Actions</b>			

# Description

The Topic Interaction List report returns a list of calls in specific Topics based on the search parameters entered.

# **Common Usages**

• As a drill down from <u>First Topic Distribution</u>

### **Customizing the Report**

### **Data Set Filters**

See Common Parameters.

# **Items on Report**

- Report Title: See Common Parameters.
- **Topics:** Select the desired Topics of calls you want displayed. The Topics must match up with the appropriate Workgroup, Agent, Language, and Program selections in the Data Set Filters.

### Actions

• Click any Call ID to open the Media Player and play the call.

### Sample Report

Call L	.ist	
List of calls is limited to 1000. 18 returned		
Calls have the following constraints: From March 25, 2009 00:00 To March 31, 2009 23:59 belongs to one of these programs: French Euro,German,Euro Spanish		
Call ID	call Time 🗘	Program 🖨
french (81)_u15250715p_eurofrenchn_1762	March 25, 2009 00:15	French Euro
french (83)_u23250723p_eurofrenchn_1764	March 25, 2009 00:23	French Euro
french (86)_u23250723p_eurofrenchn_1767	March 25, 2009 00:23	French Euro
french (87)_u31250731p_eurofrenchn_1768	March 25, 2009 00:31	French Euro
french (88)_u31250731p_eurofrenchn_1769	March 25, 2009 00:31	French Euro
french (89)_u32250732p_eurofrenchn_1770	March 25, 2009 00:32	French Euro
french (91)_u32250732p_eurofrenchn_1773	March 25, 2009 00:32	French Euro
french (94)_u56250756p_eurofrenchn_1776	March 25, 2009 00:56	French Euro
french (95)_u56250756p_eurofrenchn_1777	March 25, 2009 00:56	French Euro
french (98)_u05250805p_eurofrenchn_1780	March 25, 2009 01:05	French Euro
french_u05250805p_eurofrenchn_1781	March 25, 2009 01:05	French Euro
french (12)_u13250813p_eurofrenchn_1785	March 25, 2009 01:13	French Euro
french (13)_u32250232p_eurofrenchn_1786	March 25, 2009 07:32	French Euro

Home > Appendix A: Standard Reports > Templates > Usage Tracking

# Usage Tracking

Templates Saved Reports Edit Report		
🕨 🗖 Open in new window   📑 🚰 📼 🔎 🛐	😋 Template: Usage Tracking 📃	Report Name:
Report Title Usage Tracking	Description	Detes All From: 01.01/70 02.00 AM To: 01.01/38 01:59 AM

# Description

The Usage Tracking report shows information about the activities of users over a selected date range.

### **Common Usage**

- Monitor the activity of SpeechMiner users.
- Find out who performed the last system Apply in SMART
- See which calls have been listened to

### **Customizing the Report**

- Report Title: See Common Parameters.
- Description: See Common Parameters.
- Dates: The same as Date Range in Data Set Filters (see Common Parameters).

### Actions

- Click a user to drill down to a log of the user's actions (shown in the Sample Reports section below).
- In the log of user actions, click one of the tabs at the top of the list to filter the list. For example, click **Logins** to see a list of when the user logged into or out of the system.

# **Sample Reports**

User Id 🗘	Last Login 🗘	Last Apply 🗘	Applies 🗘	Calls 🗘	Logins 🗘	Failed 🗘	Pages 🗘	Reports 🗘	Searches
libby	4/28/2011 3:38 AM		0	0	16	1	120	79	8
jill	4/28/2011 3:33 AM		0	0	4	5	11	14	
administrator	4/10/2011 7:45 AM		0	0	15	0	28	64	
harriet			0	0	0	4	0	0	
johndoe			0	0	0	5	0	0	
Unknown username	3		0	0	0	1	0	0	
Summary			0	0	35	16	159	157	8
Calls have the following	g constraints:								

User Tracking report

libby		All Events Admin Applies Calls Logins Pages Reports Searches
Event Time 🗘	Event ‡	Comments \$
4/28/2011 4:03 AM	Report - Run	Report template name: Usage Tracking v2
4/28/2011 3:52 AM	Report - Run	Report template name: Usage Tracking v2
4/28/2011 3:52 AM	Page - View	Page title: Edit Report
4/28/2011 3:52 AM	Page - View	Page title: Edit Report
4/28/2011 3:52 AM	Page - View	Page title: Views
4/28/2011 3:52 AM	Login - OK	
4/28/2011 3:52 AM	Login - Logout	
4/28/2011 3:52 AM	Page - View	Page title: Views
4/28/2011 3:50 AM	Report - Run	Report template name: Usage Tracking v2
4/28/2011 3:50 AM	Page - View	Page title: Edit Report
4/28/2011 3:50 AM	Page - View	Page title: Edit Report
4/28/2011 3:50 AM	Page - View	Page title: Views
4/28/2011 3:50 AM	Login - OK	
4/28/2011 3:48 AM	Login - Logout	
4/28/2011 3:48 AM	Report - Run	Report template name: Usage Tracking v2
4/28/2011 3:48 AM	Page - View	Page title: Edit Report
4/28/2011 3:46 AM	Report - Run	Report template name: Usage Tracking v2
4/28/2011 3:46 AM	Report - Run	Report template name: Usage Tracking v2
4/28/2011 3:46 AM	Report - Run	Report template name: Usage Tracking v2
4/28/2011 3:46 AM	Report - Run	Report template name: Usage Tracking v2
4/28/2011 3:45 AM	Page - View	Page title: Edit Report
4/28/2011 3:44 AM	Static List - Open Link	1003

User log

Home > Appendix A: Standard Reports > Templates > User Management

# User Management

Templates	s Saved Re	ports Edit Rep	ort					
🕨 🗖 Open ii	n new window 📗 🔓	a 🔏 🖂 🔎 👔 🛛	🕒 Template: 🛛	Jser Management	R	eport Name:		
Users Any	Ţ	User Groups Any	Ţ	User Roles Any	Ŷ	Active Only Yes	•	Report Title User Management

### Description

The User Management report is a table that displays the properties of groups and users in your SpeechMiner system.

### **Common Usage**

• Monitor users, their roles, and the groups they belong to

# **Customizing the Report**

The first four filters have an AND relationship, which means each filter further narrows down your choices of the users to be presented on the report. Make sure your selections are not mutually exclusive; otherwise, no results will be returned.

- Users: Select the users you want to appear on the report. For additional information about users, see Managing Users.
- User Groups: Select the user groups you want to appear on the report. For additional information about groups, see Managing Groups.
- User Roles: Narrow down users by selecting specific roles. For additional information about roles, see Managing Roles.
- Active Only: Select Yes to only include active users, or No to include all users. Note that a non-active user is a user whose account profile is marked as non-active. (It does not refer to users who are not currently using the system.)
- Report Title: See Common Parameters.

# Sample Report

		U	Is	er Man	ag	ement						
Active Users Only												
Group 🗘		Partitions			Created On 🗘		Created By 💲		🗧 Last Update	Last Update 🗦		
Default / /Share		ad			1/*	1/1970 2:00 AM			1/1/1970 2	1/1/1970 2:00 AM		
Chicago /partitio		in 2			6/	1/2011 3:57 PM	libby		6/1/2011 4	6/1/2011 4:04 PM		
Denver /Shared		1			6/	1/2011 3:59 PM	libby		6/1/2011 3	6/1/2011 3:59 PM		
User	ŧ	Groups	\$	Roles	ŧ	Create	d On	÷	Last Login	\$		
administrator		Default		Administrati Event Audit SMART Pov User	54	1/24/2007 4:13 AM			6/1/2011 3:15 PM			
harriet		Default		Regular Use	er	10/11/2010 4:36 PM		РМ	10/11/2010 4:43 PM			
jill		Default Power User Administrat Event Audit		or	4/28/2011 3:21 AM			4/28/2011 3:48 AM				
jmiller		Chicago		Regular Use	er 6/1/20		011 4:01 PM		6/1/2011 4:05 PM			
johndoe		Default		Administrat Event Audit		9/7/2010 1:35 AM		۹M	9/7/2010 1:39 AM			
libby		Default Regular Use Power User Administrat SMART Use Event Audit SMART Pov User		or er		РМ	6/1/2011 4:07 PM					
libby_ps		Default		Administrat SMART PS		10/26/20	10 2:32 PM		2/14/2011 9:03	2/14/2011 9:03 PM		
mfeld		Chicago		Power User		6/1/20	)11 4:03 PM		6/1/2011 4:03	6/1/2011 4:03 PM		

# Index

W

Welcome 1